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1994 

General Board 

1995 
New Jersey: Vergel Maness 
New Mexico: Earl Jenkins 
North Carolina: Tom Lilly 
Northeast Association: Jim Nason 
Northwest Association: Terry Stafford 
Ohio: Delmar Sparks 
Oklahoma: Jack Richey 
South Carolina: Joe Cagle 
Tennessee: Charles Thigpen 
Texas: Thurmon Murphy 
Virginia: Jeff Crabtree 
West Virginia: Carl Vallance 
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Alabama: John Edwards 
Arizona: David Taylor 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atlantic Canada: Darryl Crain 
California: Nuel Brown 
Colorado: Bob Thomas 
Florida: Randy Bryant 
Georgia: Herbert Waid 
Idaho: Tommie Carlson 
Illinois: Ernie Lewis 
Indiana: Robert Helms 
Kansas: James Mize 
Kentucky: Tim York 
First Louisiana: Ron Parker 
Maryland: Lester Horton 
Mexico: Fred Jones 
Michigan: Charles Cooper 
Mississippi: J. L. Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 

Executive Committee 
Chairman: Ralph Hampton, 5614 Meadowcrest, Nashville, TN 37209 
Clerk: Waldo Young, 1722 North Union, Shawnee, OK 74801 

1994 
Tom Lilly (N.C.) 
Thurmon Murphy (Tex.) 
Jim Nason (NE Assoc.) 

1995 
Charles Cooper (Mich.) 
Nathan Ruble (Mo.) 
David Joslin (Ark.) 

Officers 
Ralph Hampton (Tenn.) 
Carl Cheshier (Ark.) 
Waldo Young (Okla.) 

Bible College Trustees 
Chairman: Ken Walker, 2121 29th Street, Ashland, KY 41101 
President: Tom Malone, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

1994 
Ken Walker (Ky.) 
Bob Ketchum (Okla.) 
Howard Price (Ga.) 

1996 
Sam Truett (N.C.) 
Larry Montgomery (Fla.) 
J.M. Creech (Ga.) 

1998 
Richard Bowers (Ala.) 
Larry Powell (Tenn.) 
Douglas Little (Ark.) 

Foreign Missions Board 
Chairman: Robert Trimble, P. 0. Box 128, Perryman, MD 21130 
Director: Eugene Waddell, P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

1994 1996 
William Reagan (Canada) Bill Jones (Texas) 
Robert Trimble (Md.) Galen Dunbar (Ga.) 
Norwood Gibson (S.C.) Archie Mayhew (Calif.) 

1998 
Joe Grizzle (Okla) 
David Shores (ID.) 
Dean Dobbs (N.C.) 

Home Missions Board 
Chairman: Earl Hendrix, 88 Blackstock Road, Inman, SC 29349 
Director: Roy Thomas, P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

1995 
Fred Hanson (Canada) 
Earl Hendrix (S.C.) 
J.D. Norris (Ala.) 

1997 
Milburn Wilson (Calif.) 
Glenn Thomas (Tenn.) 
Larry Russell (Va.) 

Master's Men Board 

1999 
Lynn Wood (Okla.) 
Don Guthrie (Texas) 
Wendell Walley (N.C.) 

Chairman: Waymon Ray, 3705 S. 65th W. Avenue, Tulsa, OK 74107 
Director: James Vallance, P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

1995 
Johnny Fowlkes (Ark.) 
James Orr (Ky.) 
Waymon Ray (Okla.) 

1997 
Howard Gwartney (Okla.) 
George Brunkhorst (Calif.) 
Thurman Pate, Jr. (Tenn.) 
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1999 
Don Neal (Ind.) 
Dwight Fletcher (Miss.) 
Gary Wilson (Ala) 



Board of Retirement 
C?ainnan: _Ron Barber, 932 West 109th Street, Jenks, OK 74037 
Director: B1ll Evans, P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 3701 J-5002 

1995 1997 1999 
Jack Daniel (Ga.) 
Waymon Fields (Ala.) 
Wilburn Beasley (S.C.) 

Ron Barber (Okla.) 
Roger Harwell (Ark.) 
Milton Hollifield (N.C.) 

Robert Morgan (Tenn.) 
Lincoln Varney (Ky.) 
Henry Van Kluyve (N.C.) 

Sunday School and Church Training Board 
C~ainnan: Milton Worthington, 368 Starr Drive, Troy, Ml 48083 
D1rector: Alton Loveless, P.O. Box 17306, Nashville, TN 37217 

1994 1996 1998 
Milton Worthington(Mich.) 
Billy Hanna (Ga.) 
Jim Shepherd (Okla.) 

David Sutton (Texas) 
James McAllister (Calif.) 
Dean Stone (Co.) 

Will Hannon (Ark.) 
Edwin Hayes (Ohio) 
Larry Clyatt (Ill.) 

Commission For Theological Integrity 
Chairman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

1994 L.C. Johnson (Tenn.) 
1995 Daryl Ellis (Ill.) 

1998 

1996 Lonnie Skiles (Mo.) 
1997 Leroy Forlines (Tenn.) 

Fred HaJJ 

Historical Commission 
Chairman: Mary Wisehart, P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 3701 1-5002 

1994 Robert Picirilli (Tenn.) 
1995 Steve Hasty (Tenn.) 

1998 

1996 Thomas Marberry (OkJa.) 
1997 Jack Williams (Tenn.) 

Mary Wisehart (Tenn.) 

Radio-Television Commission 
Chairman: Bob Shockey, P.O. Box 50117, Nashville, TN 37205 

1994 
1995 

James Vallance (Tenn.) 
Bob Shockey (Tenn.) 

1998 

1996 Sandy Goodfellow (Tenn.) 
1997 Bill Gardner (Tenn.) 

Steve Faison (Tenn.) 

Music Commission 
Chairman: Vernon Whaley, P.O. Box 50117, Nashville, TN 37205 

1994 Randy Sawyer (N.C.) 1996 David Bates (Mo.) 
1995 Vernon Whaley (Tenn.) 1997 Douglas Little (Ark.) 

1998 Bill Gardner (Tenn.) 
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.... ------------------------------

Proceedings 
The 57th annual session of the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists met July 18-22, 1993, in the Commonwealth Convention Center, 
Louisville, Kentucky. The convention theme was "Laborers Together," 
taken from I Corinthians 3:9. Vernon Whaley served as music coordinator 
with Richard McDonald as organist and Jerry Carraway as pianist. Ralph 
Hampton moderated the convention business sessions. 

Sunday Morning-July 18, 1993 
Jack Richey presided at the Adult Sunday School and the adult morning 

worship service. The congregation sang, "Leaning on the Everlasting 
Arms." Jack Richey welcomed the congregation and led in prayer. Jerry 
Carraway sang a solo, "Sheltered in the Arms of God." Thomas Marberry, 
faculty member of Hillsdale FWB College, Moore, Oklahoma, taught the 
Adult Sunday School lesson. It was based on Psalm 72, from the Randall 
House Publications curriculum. 

Daron Dwyer led the congregation in singing, "Brethren, We Have Met 
to Worship," to open the Sunday morning worship service at 11:00 a.m. 
Jack Richey called on Gilbert Pixley to lead in prayer. 

The congregation sang, "He Lives." The Florida Ministers Quartet sang, 
"At the Cross" and a medley of songs about grace. 

The New Life Singers from Hillsdale FWB College sang, "Peace in the 
Midst of the Storm" and "Written in Red." 

Nathan Ruble, executive secretary of the Missouri State Association of 
Free Will Baptists, was introduced to bring the message. He read I 
Corinthians 3:1-9 and brought the message on the convention theme of 
"Laborers Together." 

After announcements, Jack Richey prayed the benediction. 

Sunday Evening-July 18, 1993 
Phil Cooper led the congregation in singing, "Tis So Sweet to Trust in 

Jesus" to open the Sunday evening service. Tim York, presider, gave the 
welcome and called on Dick Van Hoose to lead in prayer. 

After the congregation sang, "Footsteps of Jesus," the convention 
offering was received. 

The Rejoice Ministry Team from Free Will Baptist Bible College sang, 
"On the Jericho Road," "The Wayfaring Stranger" and "This World is Not 
My Home." 

Clifford Austin, pastor of Highland Avenue FWB Church, Prestonsburg, 
Kentucky, was introduced to bring the message. He read Luke 14:25-30, 
and brought the message on "Counting the Cost." After the message, 
"Have Thine Own Way" was sung as an invitation hymn. 

The chorus, "Because He Lives," was sung as the benediction. 

Monday Evening-July 19, 1993 
Randy Sawyer led the congregation in prayer, then in singing, "Spirit of 
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the Living God," to open the service. 
The Resounding Praise Hand bell Choir from Donelson FWB Church in 

Nashville, Tennessee, played, "Great Is Thy Faithfulness." 
Clerk Waldo Young called the convention into official session and 

introduced Moderator Ralph Hampton. The moderator then announced 
the committees that would be serving during the session. 

Those appointed to the Resolutions Committee were Millard Sasser, 
CA, chairman; Keith Fletcher, IL; Jim Smith, TN; Jeff Crabtree, VA; Lynn 
Wood, OK. 

Those appointed to the Nominating Committee were David Sutton, TX, 
chairman; Billy Sharpston, OH; James Puckett, OK; Nathan Ruble, MO; 
James Forlines, AR. 

Those appointed to the Credentials Committee were Nuel Brown, CA; 
Bob Thomas, CO; Randy Bryant, FL; Herbert Waid, GA; Robert Helms, IN. 

The Obituary Committee consisted of J. L. Gore, MS; David Williford, 
FL; Kent Barber, GA. 

Kentucky State Promotional Secretary Tim York brought greetings and 
welcomed attendees to the state of Kentucky. 

Carl Cheshier, who presided at the service, led in prayer. He then 
intro_duced the Stanley Jones Singers from Missouri who ministered in 
must c. 

Randy Sawyer led the congregation in singing, "Heaven Came Down," 
"The Family of God," and "He is Lord." 

The Mass Choir, under the direction of Doug Little, sang his arrange­
ment of "I Bowed On My Knees and Cried Holy." The congregation sang, 
"All Hail The Power." 

After prayer by Carl Cheshier, the convention offering was received. 
The Resounding Praise Handbell Choir played the offertory. 

Bailey Thompson, pastor of the Wood crest Church, Catoosa, OK, was 
introduced as the speaker. Before he came to bring the message, Lawrence 
Taylor, NC, sang, "Who Am I?" 

Pastor Thompson read Luke 24:50-55, and brought the message on 
"Doing It With God." 

In a presentation at the close of the service, special recognition was 
given to Rev. and Mrs. Herman Hersey for their many years of service to 
the Retirement Department. They were presented with plaques and a gift 
check. 

The congregation sang, "Love Lifted Me" as the benediction. 

Tuesday Morning Bible Conference-July 20, 1993 

Charles Cooper, MI, presided at the Bible Conference which began at 
9:00 a.m. Tuesday morning. At the first service special music was pro­
vided by the California Christian College Ensemble and the New Life 
Singers from Hillsdale FWB College. 

Curtis Lilly, pastor of Friendship FWB Church, Flint, MI, was the 
speaker. 

The Southeastern FWB College singers and New Life Singers from 
Hillsdale FWB College provided special music for the second service of 
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the conference. Wendell Walley, pastor of Zephyr Hills FWB_ Church, 
Asheville, NC, was introduced as the speaker for the second service of the 
conference. 

Tuesday Evening-July 20, 1993 
Thurmon Murphy, TX, presided over the Tuesday evening service. f-!e 

read Psalm 100 as a call to worship and called on Keith Woody to lead m 

prayer. "M J 1 L Vernon Whaley led the congregation in singing, y esus, ove 

Thee." . . . . T "W 
The Free Will Baptist Bible College ReJOice Mmtstry earn sang, e 

Shall See God." 
The congregation sang, "Great Is the Lord," "How. Majestic Is Your 

Name," "Great Is Thy Faithfulness,". and "V:fe Will Glo!"'fy·" 
Special singers from four Free Wtll Baptist colleges JOtned together to 

present a mini-concert. The Rejoice Ministry Team sang, "It Is G~>Od ~o 
Praise the Lord" and "Boundless Love." The ensemble from Cahfornta 
Christian College sang, "Redeemed At His Throne I Stand." T~e combined 
group sang, "There Is a Redeemer." New Life Singers from Hillsdale FWB 
College sang " In the Power of His Spirit." The group from Southeastern 
FWB College' sang, '~orthy of All ~raise." Ran?y Sa~e~, backed by the 
combined group of smgers, sang, In_ the Mon:tmg Ltght. 

The convention offering was recetved. Chns Truett played a trumpet 
solo as the offertory. . , . 

The congregation sang, "Heaven's Jubilee. Darryl Femngton from 
Hillsdale FWB College sang, "Softly and Tenderly." 

Bobby Ferguson, pastor of the First FWB Church, Houston, TX, was 
introduced to bring the message. He read Matthew 16:14-18 and brought 
the message on "Storming the Gates of Hell." 

At the conclusion of the message, announcements were made, after 
which "Victory in Jesus" was sung as the benediction. 

Wednesday Morning-July 21, 1993 
Moderator Ralph Hampton called the session to order ~t 9:00 a.m . He 

read Matthew 28:18-20, Colossians 1 :21-29, shared devotional thoughts 
and led in prayer. . . 

The clerk read the Credentials Committee report. A motion earned to 
receive the report and seat the delegates. . . 

The clerk read Item #1 of the General Board Report. A motiOn earned 
to adopt the item. 

Executive Secretary Melvin Worthington gave the report of the Execu-
tive Office. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the ~u~get. 

Director Eugene Waddell gave the report of the Forei_gn MtssiOns 
Department. Treasurer Michael Johnston gave the financtal report. A 
motion was made and seconded to receive the repor:t ~d a_dopt the 
budget. After lengthy discussi~n rega~ding whether mtsstonanes ~ere 
effectively teaching the Free Will Baptist Church Covenant, the prevtous 
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questio~ was mov~d and ~econded. The moderator's decision to accept 
the previOus. questiOn mot10n was challenged. He put the question to the 
body regardmg whether or not they wanted to continue discussion. The 
body voted to continue discussion. 

The moderator recessed the meeting at 12:00 noon. 

Wednesday Afternoon-July 21, 1993 
The afternoon ses~ion was cal~ed to order at 1:30 p.m. Assistant 

Mod_erator_ Carl Ch~shter read I Connthians 4:1-5 and led in prayer. 
Dtscusston c~ntinued o~ the report of the Foreign Missions Depart­

men_t. The prev10us questiOn was moved and carried. The motion to 
recetve the Foreign Missions Department report and adopt the budget was 
approved. 

Bill J~nes , TX, was elected to fill the unexpired term of Alton Loveless 
who restgned from the Foreign Missions Board. The term will expire in 
1996. 

President_ Tom Malone gave the report of Free Will Baptist Bible 
College, ass_1sted by_ Board Chairman Ken Walker and Treasurer Thomas 
Sass_. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

£?t~ector Roger Reeds gave the report of the Sunday School and Church 
Trammg Depart~ent. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the 
budget. A st0:ndmg vote of appreciation was given for Roger Reeds for his 
years of servtce to Randall House Publications. He announced that Alton 
Lo~el_ess would be the new director of the Sunday School and Church 
Trammg Department. 

Director Roy Thomas gave the report of the Home Missions Depart­
ment. ~oard member Rue Dell_ Smith ~as presented a plaque for 12 years 
of service on the board. A motion earned to receive the report and adopt 
the budget. 

Lynn Wo_od (OK), Don Guthrie (TX) and Wendell Walley (NC) were 
ele~te~ to siX-year terms on the Home Missions Board. These terms will 
exptre m 1999. 

The following men were elected to two-year terms on the General 
Bo~d from their respectiv~ states: Alabama, John Edwards; Arizona, 
Da~td Tayl_or; A:kansas, Davtd Joslin; Atlantic Canada Association, Darryl 
Cram; Cahfo~ta, Nuel Brow.:; Colorado, Bob Thomas; Florida, Randy 
Brya_nt; G~orgta, Herbert Wa1d; Idaho, Tommie Carlson; Illinois, Ernie 
L~WJs; I~d_tana, Rob~rt ~elms; Kansas, James Mize; Kentucky, Tim York; 
Ftrst Loutstana_As~octation, Ron Parker; Maryland, Lester Horton; Mexico, 
Fred Jones; Mtchtgan, Charles Cooper; Mississippi, J. L. Gore· Missouri 
Nathan Ruble. ' ' 

Charles Cooper (MI), Nathan Ruble(MO) and David Joslin (AR) were 
~lected for two-year terms on the Executive Committee, terms to expire 
m 1995. 

Director James Vallance gave the report of the Master's Men Depart­
ment. A plaque was_ presented to Wendell Leckbee for his years of service 
on the board. A motiOn was made and seconded to receive the report and 
adopt the budget. A motion was made and seconded to amend the budget 

A-24 

to reflect the actual rent expense that should be paid for space in the 
National Offices Building. The figure of $1 ,200.00 was changed to read 
$26 379.60. This would change the total budget to read $178,779.60. The 
motion to amend was adopted. The motion to receive the report and 
adopt the budget as amended was approved. 

Dwight Fletcher (GA), Don Neal (IN) and Gary Wilson (AL), ~e~e 
elected to six-year terms on the Master's Men Board, terms to exptre m 
1999. . 

A motion carried to recess until 9:00 a.m. Thursday mommg. 

Wednesday Evening-July 21, 1993 
Jim Nason called the Wednesday evening service to order at 7:00p.m. 

and led in prayer. 
Jerry Carraway led the Men's Chorale in singing, "Jesus Needs a Few 

Good Men." Rusty Russell led the congregation in singing, "Bring Them 
In " 

. Brenda Webb, Norman, OK, sang, " I Bowed on My Knees and Cried 

Holy." M" · · 
Richard Adams director of development for Home tsstons, mtro-

duced the home' missionaries present for the service. Roy Thomas 
introduced his mother and brother who were present. 

Director Eugene Waddell introduced the foreign mi~sionaries who 
were present for the service. Senior missionary Mabel W~lle_y gave greet­
ings to the congregation. Members of TEAM, a youth missiOnary effort, 
were included in the introductions. 

The congregation sang, "An Old ~cco~nt_Was Set~led." . 
Jim Nason led in prayer. The special mtsstons offenng was recetved as 

a trumpet solo was played for the offertory. 
Joe Jones and Ken Riggs sang, "Win the Lost at ~y Cost." . 
Doug Little, pastor of First FWB Church, Russellvllle, AR, was mtro­

duced to bring the message. He read Acts 13: 1-~: "and brought th7, 
message on "Laboring Together to Reach the World. Trust and ?bey,, 
"Where He Leads Me I Will Follow" and "Wherever He Leads Ill Go, 
were sung as an invitation. Several people, especially youth, responded 
to the invitation to come forward. 

Thursday Morning-July 22, 1993 
Moderator Ralph Hampton called the meeting to order ?t 9:00 a.m. 

Assistant Clerk Keith Burden read Matthew 5:13-16 and led m prayer. 
Director Herman Hersey gave the report of the Retirement Department. 

A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Robert Morgan (TN), Lincoln Varney (KY) and H:nry Van Kluyve (NC) 

were elected to six-year terms on the Board of Rettrement. 
Herman Hersey gave the report of the Free Will Baptist Foundation. A 

motion carried to receive the report and adopt th~ b_udget. . 
Leroy Forlines gave the report of the CommiSSion for Theologtcal 

Integrity. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
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Fred Hall was elected to a five-year term on the Commission for 
Theological Integrity. 

Bob Shockey gave the report for the Radio-Television Commission. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Steve Faison 
(TN), was elected to a five-year term on this commission. 

Vernon Whaley gave the report of the Music Commission. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Randy Sawyer (NC) 
was elected to fill the unexpired term of Blaine Hughes who resigned from 
the Music Commission, term to expire in 1994. Bill Gardner (TN) was 
elected to a five-year term on the Music Commission. 

Mary Wisehart gave the report of the Historical Commission. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Mary Wisehart was 
elected to the 1998 term on the Historical Commission. 

The clerk read Item #2 of the General Board report recommending 
reprinting Rejoice, The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book. A motion carried to 
adopt Item #2. 

Item #3 of the General Board report was read recommending Tampa, 
Florida, as the site of the July 20-24, 2003, na tional convention. A motion 
carried to adopt Item #3. 

Item #4 ofthe General Board report was read. It pertained to program· 
ming a service in the 1994 convention to celebrate the completion ofthe 
Capital Stewardship Campaign, "A MiHion More by '94." A motion was 
made and seconded that "A committee be appointed from people among 
us with success in fund raising to lead in raising the funds called for in this 
item." The motion to amend carried. A motion was made and seconded 
to amend the item by changing "Wednesday" night to read, "Tuesday" 
night. The motion to amend carried. The item was adopted as amended. 

The clerk read Item #5 of the General Board report pertaining to a 
schedule to reduce the percentage of the undesignated receipts coming 
to the Executive Office. A motion carried to adopt Item #5. 

Item #6 of the General Board Report, recommending the adoption of 
the report of the Financial Disclosure Committee was adopted. 

Item #7 of the General Board Report recommending the adoption of 
the Budget Committee report regarding developing promotional materi­
als for the Together Way Plan was adopted. 

A motion carried to authorize the Management Committee to appoint 
the special committee called for in Item #4 of the General Board report. 

Melvin Worthington gave the report of the International Free Will 
Baptist Consultation Committee. Motion carried to receive the report and 
adopt the recommendation. 

Dean Jones gave the report of the National Youth Conference. A motion 
carried to receive the report. · 

Mary R. Wisehart gave the report of the Woman's National Auxiliary 
Convention. A motion carried to receive the report as information. 

The clerk read the report of the Registration Committee. A motion 
carried to receive the report as information. 

Melvin Worthington gave the report ofthe Budget Committee. A motion 
carried to adopt the report. 
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. the Double in a Decade Committee report. A 
Melvin Worthmgton gave 

motion carried to ~eceive ~ef ~~~~bituary Committee. Several names of 
The clerk read t e rep.o o b dd d to the report. A motion carried to 

deceased were handed an to e a e 

receive the repodrtl. #I of the Resolutions Committee report. A motion 
. The clerk rea tern 

carried to adopt Item #11. t" Committee report was read. A motion 
Item #2 of the Reso u tons 

carried to adopt Item # 2. . · d to adopt the item. 
Resolution #3 was read. A mot!on ~~~ade and seconded to adopt 
Resolution ~4 was rea:d: ;~~~~onded to amend the item by adding, 

Item #4. A mota on w~ m . of this resolution to their congressmen and 
"That state clerks sen coptes . d A motion was made and seconded 
senators." Th~ ame~d~~r:t c~~~at we provide copies of this resolution 
to amend_ the 1tem ~a , mg, d ent carried. Item #4 was adopted 
to our mihtary chap lams. The amen m 

as~:~~~~~~ #5 was read. A mo~on c~:~ ~~ ~~~p~ :~:~ !~: 
Resolution #6 was read. A mot! on c~s made and seconded to adopt 
Resolution #7 was re<:'-d: A mt o~on :Se of soundtracks in the worship 

Item #7. Item #7, pertammg o. e d f t d 
services of the national c?nve~tion, ;~:e ;e~~~ ~as read. It pertains to 

th~~~~e#:o~fl~:h~~~~~~~~~~rt i~~~~ schools. A motion carried to adopt 

Item #8. . . 1 h 1 d drug rehabilitation was read. A 
Item #9, pertammg to a co o an , 

motion carried to adopt ~t:m #9. Church Covenant was read by the 
Resolution #1 0, pertaamng t~ the nded to amend the resolution by 

clerk. A motion was made an seco . · · be required to bring 
adding (6) "Our Missions boards and masshton~ntes conformity with the 

. . k d ganized churc es m o 
our misston wor s an o.~l " After lengthy discussion on the amend-
Covenant as soon as poss~ e. d and carried. The motion to 
ment, the previous question was move 

amend was approved. d d d to amend Item # 10 by deleting 
A t. was made an secon e d d mo aon . revious question was rna e an 

points (4), (5) al?d (6). Againd ~e deletion was defeated. After more 
carried. The motwn to lamt. en th! previous question was moved and 
discussion on the reso u wn, d d 
carried. Resolution #1 0 w~s tppr~ved::S ~a~~ :Oci seconded to adopt 

Resolution # 11 was rea · . mo Ion ed and carried. Item # 11 was 
the item. The previous question was mov 

adopted. . made and seconded to adopt 
Resolution # 12 was read. A_ motwn was d and carried. Item # 12 was 

Item # 12. The previous questiOn was move 

adopted. d d from the floor which states, 
A motion wa~ made ~nd sec on a~d Mark and Juli Riggs have been 

"Whereas, Lonnie and Am~a Spar~s th m a standing vote of approval for 
slanderously accused, motwn to gtve e 
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their ~cti.ons ,!n Spain." A motion was made and seconded to amend by 
su~st~tutwn, Th~t we commend Lonnie and Anita Sparks and Mark and 
Jult R1ggs for the1r years of service in SpcUn." The previous question was 
moved and carried. The motion to amend was adopted. The motion as 
amended was adopted. 

The clerk read Item #13 of the Resolutions Committee report recom­
me~ding ~standing .vote of thanks to the Kentucky State Association for 
thetr hos~mg the ~atwnal .convention. Item # 13 was adopted. 

A motiOn earned to gtve a vote of appreciation to Jeff and Susan 
Turnbough for their service in Spain. 

The moderator announced the committee members who will serve on 
the Mi~isterial Family Life Committee called for in Resolution #1. This 
committee consists of Leroy Forlines, chajrman; Ken Riggs; Eugene 
Waddell; Trymo~ Messer and Larry Powell. The executive secretary and 
the moderator w11l also assist this committee. 

A ~o~ion was made from the floor, and seconded, that the National 
Asso~tatwn reaffirm. its b,~lief in the statement of Chapter IX, of the 
Trea_trse (page 26) t1tled, Repentance." A motion carried to table the 
motwn. 

. The final report of the Nominating Committee, pertaining to the na­
tiOnal officers, was read. It nominated Ralph Hampton as moderator Carl 
Cheshier as assistant moderator, Waldo Young as clerk and Keith Bu,rden 
as assistant clerk. 

A motion carried to receive these nominations and elect these as the 
officers. 

A motion carried to adjourn. The time was a few minutes past 1:00 p.m. 

A-28 

The Executive Secretary's Report 
1993 

We rejoice in God's blessings on the Executiv~ Offic.e mini~try during 
1992. The office functioned well as the staff con.tmued:ts efficient work. 
We commend the Executive Office staff: executive asststant and Contact 
editor, Jack Williams; bookkeeper, Melody Hood; editoria_l a~sistant~ 
Marilyn Pritchard; Contact circulation mana$er and recept10~1st, Dar1 
Goodfellow; part-time worker, Anne Worthmgton (ch~rch dtrectory/ 
secretary)· and maintenance superintendent, Wade Tnmble. (Wade 
died in Jar:uary 1993). Steve Pate now serves as maintenance superinten­
dent. 

The Executive Office represented the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. at the Evangelical Press Associa~ion , Rel~gi?us Conference 
Management Association, Christian Stewardship As~o~I~twn, U.S. Ch~rch 
Leaders Conference and the Association of Statisticians of Arnencan 
Religious Bodies. These organizations provide a forum for exchange of 
ideas and information. 

The Executive Secretary attended 22 state associations during 1992. A 
spirit of harmony and unity characterized these ~eeting.s. Associ~­
tion reports indicate continued growth and increased mterest m _?e.nomi­
national ministries. Financial concerns surfaced at these assoc1at10ns. 

The 1992 national convention went well. Attendance was up and the 
music, meetings and messages were outstanding: Th~ most signific~t 
business action was the approval of a new denom1nat10nal stewardship 
plan for the equitable support of all denominational ministries-- "The 
Together Way Plan." We commend the Indiana State Association of Free 
Will Baptists for hosting the convention. 

Preparation for the 1993 convention in Louisville, Kentucky, went 
smoothly. Site visits are scheduled in the sp~ng of 199.3 for the 2003 
convention which will be hosted by South Carolina or Flonda. We plan to 
meet in South Carolina for the 2003 convention if adequate facilities are 
avajlable. In the event adequate facilities are not available in South 
Carolina sites will be considered in Florida. If South Carolina hosts the 
2003 co~vention then Florida will host the 2005 convention. 

The Intematidnal Convocation of Free Will Baptists with representa­
tives from Japan, Mexico, Canada, Brazil, Panama, Uruguay and the 
United States met in Panama August 24-28, 1992, and voted to work 
toward organizing an International Fellowship of Free Will Baptists in 
1995. Delegates adopted the "Panama Declaration 1992" .af~m:ing their 
commitment to the fundamental belief of orthodox Christianity, those 
distinctive beliefs and practices which characterize Free Will Baptists, the 
necessity of holy living, the dangers of the ecumenical ~ovement and the 
priority of evangelism. Plans call for each represe~tative to re~omm~nd 
to their association that an International Fellowship of Free Wtll Baptists 
be organized in 1995. The Executive Secretary was elected to cc:>ordinate 
the 1995 meeting. The Foreign Missions Department and Executive Office 
planned the 1992 consultation. 
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Contact subscriptions totaled 5,981 in the December mailing. Compli­
mentary copies are provided for students at Free Will Baptist Bible 
College, Hillsdale Free WiiJ Baptist College, California Christian College 
and Southeastern Free Will Baptist College. 

Contributions for The Capital Stewardship Campaign, "A Million More 
by 94," totaled $57,212 in 1992. Total contributions since January I, 1992, 
when the campaign was launched, through April 1993 total $94,802. A 
promotional brochure and video are available at no charge from the 
Executive Office. A number of states have adopted the campaign. We 
encourage each state to reach the campaign goal of $5 per member. 

Sales of Rejoice, The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book totaled approxi­
mately 86,000 as of December 31, 1992. Plans call for Rejoice to be 
reprinted when the present inventory has been sold. 

Contributions to national agencies totaled $7.8 million in 1992. Com-
parative figures since 1983 are: 

1983 $4,627,217.56 
1984 $5,055,269.03 
1985 $5,634,007.92 
1986 $5,826,768.00 
1987 $5,797,896.42 

1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 

$6,428,621.22 
$6,489,728.33 
$6,933,944.49 
$7,848,694.01 
$7,832,441.46 

Cooperative Channel Contributions totaled $1.7 million-$243,000 
undesignated and $1.4 million designated. Per capita giving was $37.44; 
our goal was $43.18. September 26 has been designated National Minis­
tries Sunday. Based on 1993 national agency gift income budgets, each 
Free Will Baptist needs to give $42.85. Our new financial plan, "The 
Together Way," adopted by delegates during the 1992 national conven­
tion , emphasizes one plan with two methods of support--designated and 
cooperative. This plan of equitable support for all denominational minis­
tries will be implemented January 1, 1994. 
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Charting Contributions Through the Cooperative Channel 

Designated 
1983 

487,876.30 
61% 

Co-op 

314, 162.76 
39% 

19~!0,490.44 ( + 14.88%) 380,000.33 ( +20.96%) 
60% 40% 

1985 
563,474.05 

60% 

1986 

( +0.53%) 374,804.51 
40% 

(-1.37%) 

Total 

802,039.06 

940,490. 77( + 17.26%) 

938,278.56 (-0.24%) 

780,988.61 ( +38.60%) 368,470.06 (-1.69%) 1, 149,458.67( +22.5 1 %) 
68% 32% 

1987 
876,378.54 ( + 12.2 1%) 

75% 

1988 
944,949.06 ( +7.82%) 

75% 

1989 
I ,009,688.56 ( +6.85%) 

76% 

1990 
I ,035,463.36 ( +2.55%) 

76% 

1991 
I , 129,064.33 (9.04%) 

77% 

1992 
1,480,847.5 1 (+31.16%) 

88% 

289,547.31 (-2 1.42%) I , 165,925.85 ( + 1.43%) 
25% 

323,295.09 ( + 11 .66%) 1 ,268,244.15 ( +8. 78%) 
25% 

319,483.14 (-1.18%) 1 ,329, 171.70 ( +4.80%) 
24% 

330,567.40 ( +3.47%) 1,366,030.76 (+2.77%) 
24% 

329,050.08 (-0.46%) 1,458, 114.41 (+6.74%) 
23% 

243, 195.98 (-26.09%) 1, 724,043.49( + 18.24%) 
14% 

Cooperative Channel Contributions Increase from 1983-1992 
Designated 203.53% CO-OP -22·59% 
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Executive Office Home Missions 

Designated Co-op Total Designated Co-op Total 

1983 $ 7,945.88 $130,700.41 $138,646.29 1983 $ 96,231.01 $33,023.18 $129,254.19 

1984 1,770. 14 154,384.33 156,154.47 1984 123,410.33 40,580.05 163,990.38 

1985 2,257.83 166,172.19 168,430.02 1985 111,277.57 37,553.90 148,83 1.4 7 

1986 9,528.25 16 7,852.99 177,381.24 1986 180,869.97 36,111.27 216,981.24 

1987 23,900.46 188,013.53 211,913.99 1987 172,90 1.51 18,276.22 191,177.73 

1988 24,646.15 193,102.83 217,748.98 1988 160,944.26 23,434.61 184,378.87 

1989 25,129.16 200,319.16 225,448.32 1989 176,544.28 21,449.50 197,993.78 
1990 75,721.44 166,278.57 242,000.01 1990 179,583.94 29,571.90 209,155.84 
1991 68,011.64 191 ,443.70 259,455.34 1991 216,177.42 24,769.01 240,946.43 
1992 123,182.46 180,694.62 303,877.08 1992 293,769.40 11 ,250.25 305,019.65 

Free Will Baptist Bible College Master's Men 

Designated Co-op Total Designated Co-op Total 

1983 $ 31,836.48 $ 42,196.29 $ 7 4,032. 77 1983 $ 511.85 $23,850.21 $ 24,362.06 
1984 23,94 7.63 51,900.33 75,84 7.96 1984 2,041.91 29,334.90 31,376.81 
1985 25,166.41 47,985.31 73,151.72 1985 753.60 27,122.71 27,876.31 

1986 27,94 7.85 46,141.70 7 4,089.55 1986 585.38 26,080.81 26,666.19 

1987 51,479.96 23,352.50 7 4,832.46 1987 3,617.10 13,199.87 16,8 16.97 

1988 57,775.58 29,944.15 87,719.73 1988 4,859 .96 16,924.93 21,784.89 

1989 61,876.60 27,407.66 89,284.26 1989 4,414.04 16,682.98 21 ,097.02 

1990 48,084.25 37,786.32 85,870.57 1990 5,424.23 23,000.39 28,424.62 

1991 61,558.53 31 ,649.40 93,207.93 1991 7,316.70 19,264.88 26,581.58 

1992 8 1,669.82 14,375.28 96,045.10 1992 17,388.70 8,750.10 26,138.80 
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Historical Commission 

Designated Co-op 

1983 $ 137.71 $ 1 ,834.61 
1984 102.60 2,256.42 
1985 208.88 2,086.06 
1986 278.48 2,005.83 
1987 688.28 1,015.06 
1988 676.30 1,301.90 
1989 757.28 0.00 
1990 413.59 821.42 
1991 493.53 688.09 
1992 1,137.01 312.52 

Commission for Theological Integrity 

Designated Co-op 

1983 $ 342.00 $ I ,834.61 
1984 I00.31 2,256.42 
I985 236.71 2,086.06 
1986 265.32 2,005.83 
1987 705.84 I,015.06 
1988 719.7I 1,301.90 
1989 786.88 1,I91.60 
1990 446.56 821.42 
I991 542.4I 688.09 
1992 1,193.44 312.52 
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Total 

$ 1 ,972.32 
2,359.02 
2,294.94 
2,284.31 
1) 703.34 
1,978.20 

75 7.28 
1,235.01 
1 '181.62 
1 ,449.53 

Total 

$ 2,176.61 
2,356. 73 
2,322. 77 
2,271.15 
1 '720.90 
2,021.61 
I ,978.48 
1 ,267.98 
I ,230.50 
1 ,505.96 

1990 
1991 
1992 

Designated 

$ 197.63 
221.71 
920.26 

Co-op 

$ 821.42 
688.09 
312.52 

Total 

$1,019.05 
909.80 

1 ,232. 78 

The biennial All-Boards conference met December 7-8, 1992, at the 
Double tree Hotel in downtown Nashville for two days ofintense sessions. 
Oklahoma attorney Ron Barbe r led a three-hour seminar on board 
members' responsibility. Executive Secretary Melvin Worthington led a 
90-minute Capital Stewardship Campaign discussion concluding with the 
first showing of the Vision 2000 video, a 12-minute film designed to 
promote the campaign. Ralph Hampton, moderator of the National 
Association, led a discussion of the denomination's new financial plan, 
"The Together Way." A financial disclosure recommendation was adopted 
by attendees and recommended to the General Board. This recommen­
dation was presented by a Financial Disclosure Committee chaired by 
Ralph Hampton and composed of the chairman of each national board. 

The biennial Leadership Conference will meet December 6-7, 1993, in 
Nashville. Each state leader is encouraged to make plans to attend the 
conference. 

Speakers for the 1993 national convention in Louisville, Kentucky, 
include: Nathan Ruble, Clifford Austin, Bailey Thompson, Bobby Ferguson, 
Curtis Lilly, Wendell Walley and Douglas Little. The theme will be 
"Laborers Together." State Associations interested in hosting the national 
convention are encouraged to contact the Executive Office. 

Reporting forms 501, 502, 503, 504 can be obtained from the Executive 
Office. Each church and association is encouraged to use these forms. 

The Double in a Decade Campaign launched January l, 1991, with a 
two-fold goal: to plant 250 new churches and double denomination 
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f!lembership by 2000 A.D. Statistical data for 1992 indicates· 9 283 b 
t1s~s , 1_2, 123 members added; 7,223 members lost with a n~t ~emb~­
shlp gam of 4,900. Comparative figures from 1988 are: -

1988 1989 1990 1991 
Baptisms 7,910 8,678 7,946 8,703 
Members Added 12,436 12,726 12,537 12,931 
Members Lost 6,454 7,511 6,583 7,240 
Net Increase 5,982 5,215 5,954 5,691 

Rejo~cing and_ Resting in Our Redeemer, Your servant 
Melvm Worthmgton, Th.D., CMP ' 
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Ccruflcd Public Account.ams 

Tmy A H•ll 
Rus'<(ll E Neal 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free WiD Baptists, Inc. 
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7(11 Old H1ckory Boulevard 
Sune 103 
Bremwood. TN 37027 
TEL 61 ')/3-:'7 · J~B'> 
FAX t>lVJr. JiRfl 

We have audited the balance sheets of the Executive Office of the National 

Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December, 31 1992 and the 

related statements of activity and changes in fund balances and cash flows for 
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 

Executive Office's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these financial statements based on our audit. Information included on 
the balance sheet and statements of activity and changes in fund balances and 
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1991 is presented for comparative 

pu~es only and was extracted from financial statements presented by fund 

for that year, on which we expressed an unqualified opinion dated June 5, 

1992. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly , in all 

material respects, the financial position of the Executive Office of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1992,and the results of 

its activity and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended 

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

April 30, 1993 

A-37 



>
 

I <
:.

) 
(
)
)
 

>
 

I <
:.

) 

C
D

 

N
 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 
O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

O
F

 F
R

E
E

 W
IL

L
 B

A
PT

IS
T

S,
 

IN
C

. 
B

al
an

ce
 S

he
et

s 

D
ec

em
be

r 
3

1,
 1

99
2 

(w
it

h 
co

m
pa

ra
ti

ve
 t

ot
al

s 
fo

r 
19

91
) 

O
j!

er
at

in
g 

F
un

ds
 

T
ot

al
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

C
on

ta
ct

 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
C.

>n
ve

nt
io

n 
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
A

ss
et

s 
O

ff
ic

e 
M

al
!ll

1J
ne

 
Pr

-o
je

ct
s 

F
un

d 
F

un
ds

 
F

un
ds

 
C

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
et

s:
 

C
as

h 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 b

ea
ri

ng
 d

ep
os

it
s 

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

: 
$ 

14
,6

44
 

9,
61

0 
8,

98
2 

21
,1

10
 

54
,3

46
 

-
D

ue
 f

ro
m

 a
ff

ili
at

ed
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

(n
ot

e 
T)

 
-

-
2,

36
8 

-
2,

36
8 

-
N

ru
s 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
 (

no
te

 4
) 

26
,0

51
 

-
17

,0
00

 
-

43
,0

51
 

-
M

as
te

r's
 M

en
 

1,
94

6 
-

46
 

56
7 

2.
55

9 
-

O
th

er
 

-
62

4 
28

 
26

6 
91

8 
-

D
ue

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 f
un

ds
 (

no
te

 3
) 

48
.5

00
 

T
ot

al
 r

ec
ei

va
bl

es
 

76
,4

97
 

62
4 

19
,4

42
 

83
3 

48
,8

96
 

-
-

In
ve

nt
or

y,
 a

t 
lo

w
er

 o
f c

os
t (

fu
st

-
in

, f
u

st
-

ou
t 

m
et

ho
d)

 
or

 m
ar

ke
t 

(n
ot

e 
7 

an
d 

10
) 

-
-

13
6,

19
6 

-
13

6,
19

6 
-

Pr
ep

al
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 (n
ot

e 
9)

 
13

,0
88

 
13

,0
88

 
-

-
-

-
T

ot
al

 Q
IJ

're
nt

 a
ss

et
s 

10
4,

22
9 

10
,2

34
 

16
4,

62
0 

21
,9

43
 

25
2.

52
6 

-
O

ff
ic

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

fu
rn

itu
re

 a
nd

 a
ut

om
ob

ile
s,

 n
et

 o
f 

.I.
C

'.r
um

ul
at

ed
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

(n
ot

e 
2)

 
-

28
,1

05
 

$ 
10

4.
22

9 
10

,2
34

 
16

4,
62

0 
21

,9
43

 
25

2J
26

 
28

,1
05

 
-

U
ab

iU
tl

es
 

ao
d

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

s 
C

ur
re

nt
 l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s:
 

AC
XO

W
Jts

 p
ay

ab
le

 a
nd

 a
cc

ru
ed

 e
xp

en
se

s 
$ 

2,
14

4 
-

50
 

-
2,

19
4 

-
N

oc
es

 p
ay

ab
le

 (
no

te
 6

) 
-

-
37

,4
52

 
-

37
,4

52
 

-
D

ue
 t

o 
OC

he
r 

fu
nd

s 
(n

ot
e 

3)
 

-
48

.5
00

 
T

ot
al

 <
llr

re
nt

 l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

2,
14

4 
48

,5
00

 
37

,5
02

 
-

39
,6

46
 

-
-

Fu
nd

 b
&

Ja
nc

es
 

10
2,

08
5 

(
3
8
~
 

12
7,

11
8 

21
,9

43
 

21
2,

88
0 

28
,1

05
 

-
Se

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

no
te

s 
to

 f
in

ao
da

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
$ 

10
4.

22
9 

10
.2

34
 

16
4,

62
0 

21
,9

43
 

25
2.

52
6 

28
,1

05
 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 
O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

O
F

 F
R

E
E

 W
IL

L
 B

A
P

T
IS

T
S

, 
St

at
em

en
ts

 o
f 

A
ct

iv
ity

 a
n

d
 C

ha
ng

es
 i

n 
F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

s 

IN
C

. 

R
ev

en
ue

s:
 

C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e 

pl
an

 r
ec

ei
pt

s 
(n

ot
e 

5)
 

D
is

bu
rs

ed
 t

o 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

(n
ot

e 
5)

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ff
ic

e 
C

oo
pe

ra
ti

ve
 p

la
n 

re
ce

ip
ts

 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 M

ag
az

in
e 

S
al

es
of

by
rn

na
b(

no
te

T
) 

G
if

ts
 a

nd
 o

ff
er

in
gs

 

In
te

re
st

 i
nc

om
e 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

fe
es

 
O

th
er

 i
nc

om
e 

E
xp

en
se

s 
an

d
 c

os
t 

o
r 

sa
le

s:
 

s 

Y
ea

r 
en

de
d 

D
e
a
m

b
tr

 3
1,

 1
99

2 

(w
it

h 
co

m
pa

ra
ti

ve
 t

ot
al

s 
fo

r 
19

91
) 

O
pe

ra
ti

n
g

 F
un

ds
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

O
ff

ic
e 

1,
72

4,
04

3 

C
on

ta
ct

 
M

ag
11

Jn
e 

S
pe

ci
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

F
u

n
d

 

(1
,4

20
,1

66
) 

-
. -

30
3,

87
7 

78
,6

95
 

49
5 

7,
72

1 

31
2,

09
3 

78
,6

95
 

66
,3

52
 

1,
50

1 
67

,8
53

 

7.
86

1 
1,

00
2 

50
,0

90
 

75
 

59
,0

28
 

T
ot

al
 

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 

F
un

ds
 

1,
72

4,
04

3 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

F
un

ds
 

(1
.4

20
,1

66
) 
-
-
-
-

30
3,

87
7 

78
,6

95
 

66
,3

52
 

7,
86

1 
1,

49
7 

50
,0

90
 

9,
29

7 
51

7,
66

9 

<->
 

Sa
la

ri
es

 
12

1.
55

3 
25

,0
00

 
27

,7
43

 
4,

94
7 

19
,8

89
 

6,
28

7 
42

,0
10

 

2,
75

3 
52

8 
12

4,
83

4 

is.
oo

o 
27

,7
43

 
5,

29
0 

35
,6

25
 

6,
28

7 
42

,0
10

 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 f

ri
ng

e 
be

ne
fi

ts
 

Pa
yr

ol
l t

ax
es

 
T

ra
ve

l 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 

O
cc

up
an

cy
 c

os
ts

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

L
eg

al
 a

nd
 a

ud
it 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
-

ge
ne

ra
l 

E
qu

jp
m

en
t 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 r
en

ew
al

s 

Su
pp

lie
s 

an
d 

of
fi

ce
 e

xp
en

se
 

T
ot

al
 o

f e
xp

en
se

s 
an

d 
co

st
 o

f s
al

es
 

ca
rr

ie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 p

ag
e 

4 

21
6 

2,
07

1 

81
3 

81
3 

12
7 

13
,6

65
 

3,
41

9 

18
0 

1,
17

9 
3,

6
12

 
1,

10
8 

8,
40

6 
-

5,
69

4 
38

 
7,

30
6 

26
1,

73
4 

8.
57

8 
3,

82
0 

25
,2

25
 

6,
22

4 
3,

79
2 

1,
10

8 
21

,4
44

 

7,
43

0 

29
9,

35
7 

7,
43

0 

19
92

 
19

91
 

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 

A
ll 

A
ll 

F
un

ds
 

F
un

ds
 

54
,3

46
 

80
,7

16
 

2,
36

8 
34

,4
05

 
43

,0
51

 
7,

80
4 

2.
55

9 
2,

95
0 

91
8 

1.
52

7 

_
_

_
 

48
~8

96
 

46
,6

86
 

13
6,

19
6 

18
4,

27
9 

13
,0

88
 

11
,2

75
 

25
2,

52
6 

32
2,

95
6 

28
.1

05
 

27
.7

86
 

-
28

0,
63

1 
35

0,
74

2 

2,
19

4 
1,

61
8 

37
,4

52
 

12
6,

95
8 

-
39

,6
46

_ 
12

8,
57

6 

24
0,

98
5 

~
,
6
3
1
 

-

19
92

 
T

ot
al

 
A

ll 
F

un
ds

 
1,

72
4,

04
3 

(1
,4

20
,

1~
 

30
3,

87
7 

78
,6

95
 

66
.3

52
 

7,
86

1 
1,

49
7 

50
,0

90
 

9,
29

7 
51

7,
66

9 

22
2,

16
6 

35
0,

74
2 

19
91

 
T

ot
al

 
A

ll 
F

un
ds

 
1,

45
8,

11
5 

{1
,1

98
,6

60
) 

25
9,

45
5 

55
,6

62
 

89
,3

28
 

27
,3

94
 

3,
41

1 
56

,0
40

 

10
.5

34
 

50
1,

82
4 

12
4,

83
4 

12
1,

04
2 

25
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
 

27
,7

43
 

29
,2

85
 

5,
29

0 
5,

20
6 

35
,6

25
 

24
,1

47
 

6,
28

7 
5,

01
4 

42
,0

 I 0
 

32
,3

50
 

7,
43

0 
11

.8
45

 
6,

22
4 

6,
61

4 

3,
79

2 
3,

06
9 

1,
10

8 
11

,1
77

 

21
,4

44
 

12
,1

96
 

30
6,

78
7 

28
6,

94
5 



/ 
...

. _
__

_ 
.. 

··
--

-
-

. 
. 

-·-
--

-
--

--
...

...
...

...
...

._
__

_ 

)>
 

I ~
 

0 >
 

f ~
 .... 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 
O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

O
F

 F
R

E
E

 W
IL

L
 B

A
P

T
IS

T
S

, 
IN

C
. 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
an

d 
C

ha
ng

es
 i

n
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

s,
 C

on
ti

nu
ed

 
Y

ea
r 

en
de

d 
l>

ea
m

b
er

 J
l,

 1
99

1 

(w
it

h 
co

m
pa

ra
ti

ve
 t

ot
ld

s 
ro

r 
19

91
) 

O
pe

nl
in

g 
F

uu
ds

 
19

92
 

19
91

 
T

ot
al

 
T

ot
al

 
To

« a
! 

Ex
ec

:u
C

iv
e 

C
on

ta
ct

 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 
E

qu
Jp

m
en

t 
A

ll
 

A
ll

 
o

m
ce

 
M

ai
!U

.in
e 

P
ro

je
ct

! 
~
 

Fu
nd

s 
Fu

nd
s 

Fu
nd

s 
Fu

nd
s 

E
xp

en
se

s 
an

d 
co

st
 o

t s
al

es
: 

(c
on

ti
nu

ed
) 

T
ot

al
 o

f e
xp

en
se

s 
an

d 
co

st
 o

f s
al

es
 

ca
rr

ie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

flo
m

 p
ag

e 
3 

26
1,

73
4 

8,
57

8 
3,

82
0 

25
,2

25
 

29
9,

.3
57

 
7,

43
0 

30
6,

78
7 

28
6,

94
5 

Pr
in

tin
g 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
2,

48
7 

44
,3

60
 

-
17

,2
52

 
64

,0
99

 
-

64
,0

99
 

6
6,

42
7 

Po
st

ag
e 

I m
ai

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
1,

25
5 

13
,9

79
 

43
 

60
3 

15
,8

80
 

-
15

.8
80

 
16

,2
90

 
D

ue
s,

 s
ub

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
, 

bo
ok

s,
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
ns

 
1,

86
] 

34
5 

-
71

0 
2,

91
6 

-
2,

91
6 

2,
82

3 
T

el
ep

ho
ne

 
2,

04
8 

9
2

 
3 

68
6 

2,
82

9
 

-
2,

82
9 

2,
89

5 
W

ri
te

r's
 f

ee
s 

-
3,

48
5 

-
-

3,
48

5 
-

3,
48

5 
3.

22
5 

In
te

re
st

 e
xp

en
se

 
-

-
8,

88
3 

-
8,

88
3 

-
8,

88
3 

19
,9

37
 

C
os

t o
f h

ym
na

ls
 so

Jd
 

-
-

48
,0

83
 

-
48

,0
83

 
-

48
,0

83
 

37
,2

66
 

A
ud

ito
ri

w
u 

-
-

-
28

,8
62

 
28

,8
62

 
-

28
,8

62
 

19
,0

70
 

""' 
M

ea
l f

un
ct

io
ns

 

1,
01

9 
1,

01
9 

1,
01

9 
2,

10
8 

-
-

-
-

M
us

ic
 

-
-

-
66

1 
66

1 
-

66
1 

65
3 

B
i-

an
nu

al
 l

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 
10

,6
18

 
-

-
-

10
,6

18
 

-
10

,6
18

 
O

th
er

 
2,

43
0 

-
71

8 
1,

58
0 

4,
72

8 
-

4,
72

8 
4,

73
0 

28
2,

43
3 

70
,8

39
 

61
,5

50
 

16
,5

98
 

49
1,

42
0 

7,
43

0 
49

8,
85

0 
46

2,
36

9 
E

xc
es

s o
f r

ev
en

ue
s 

ov
er

 (u
nd

er
) 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
29

,6
60

 
7,

85
6 

6,
30

3 
(1

7,
57

0)
 

26
,2

49
 

(7
,4

30
) 

1
8,

81
9

 
39

,4
55

 
O

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 I
n 

tu
nd

 b
aJ

aa
c:

e:
J:

 

A
cq

ui
st

io
n 

of
 fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
(7

,3
26

) 
-

-
(4

23
) 

(7
,7

49
) 

7,
74

9 
A

ba
nd

on
m

en
t 

of
 fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(8
,3

20
) 

F
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e,
 
~g

in
ni

ng
 o

f 
y

ra
r 

u 
re

st
at

ed
 (

no
te

 1
0)

 
79

,7
51

 
{4

6,
12

2)
 

12
0.

81
5 

39
,9

36
 

19
4,

38
0 

27
,7

86
 

22
2.

16
6 

19
1

,0
31

 
F

un
d 

ba
la

nc
e,

 e
nd

 o
r 

y
ea

r 
s 

10
2.

08
5 

(3
8,

26
6)

 
12

7.
11

8 
21

,9
43

 
21

2.
88

0 
28

.1
05

 
24

0,
98

5 
-

-
22

2.
16

6 

Se
e 

ac
::c

om
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

to
 l

l.
aa

nc
la

l 
st

at
em

en
t~

 

"' 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 
O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

O
F

 F
R

E
E

 W
IL

L
 B

A
PT

IS
T

S,
 

IN
C

. 

C
as

h 
Fl

ow
s 

tr
om

 O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
E

lt
ce

ss
 o

f r
ev

en
ue

s 
ov

er
 (u

nd
er

) 
ex

pe
m

es
 

$ 
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 t

o
 r

ec
on

ci
le

 n
et

 e
am

.in
gs

 to
 n

et
 c

as
h 

pr
ov

id
ed

 (u
se

d)
 b

y 
op

er
at

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

an
d 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

In
te

r-
fu

nd
 t

ra
ns

fe
rs

 a
nd

 d
ue

 to
 I 

fr
om

 w
;o

un
ts

 
(l

na
ea

se
) 

de
cr

ea
se

 i
n:

 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
 

In
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

Pr
ep

ai
d 
e
~
n
s
e
s
 

ln
ae

as
e 

(d
ec

re
as

e)
 in

: 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

or 
C

as
b 

Fl
ow

s 
Y

ea
r 

en
d

ed
 D

e<
:e

m
be

r 
3

1
, 

19
9Z

 

(w
lt

b 
(:

D
m

pa
nt

lv
e 

to
ta

ls
 f

o
r 

19
91

) 

O
p

er
at

in
g

 F
u

n
d

s 

T
o

ta
l 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

C
o

nt
ac

t 
S

p
ed

al
 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

O
pe

ra
t.

ln
g 

om
ce

 
M

an
zi

n
e 

Pr
oJ

ec
ts

 
F

un
d 

F
un

ds
 

2
9,

66
0 

7,
85

6
 

6,
30

3 
(1

7,
57

0)
 

26
,2

49
 

50
0 

(4
23

) 
(7

,7
49

) 
(7

,8
26

) 

8
0

7
 

37
 

i4
 

32
,0

29
 

H
 

. 
48

,0
83

 
-

48
,0

83
 

(1
,8

13
) 

-
-

-
(1

,8
13

) 

~
p
m
e
n
t
 

F
u

n
d

s 

(7
,4

30
) 

7,
43

0 
7,

74
9 

19
9Z

 

T
o

ta
l 

A
ll

 
F

un
ds

 

18
,8

19
 

7,
43

0 

33
,0

37
 

48
,0

83
 

(1
,8

13
) 

19
91

 

T
o

ta
l 

A
ll

 

F
u

n
d

s 

39
,4

55
 

11
,8

45
 

35
,8

15
 

37
)-

67
 

(1
0,

20
2)

 

.A
ca

lu
nt

s 
pa

ya
bl

e 
an

d 
IC

CJ
\Ie

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

-
-
-
'7

:...:
.1:
..3 

-
(9

9)
 

(3
8)

 
51

6 
-

57
6 

(1
,2

14
} 

11
3,

02
6 

N
et

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

C
as

b 
fl

ow
s 

fr
om

 1
11

V
es

tin
g 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

A
dv

uc
cs

 to
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 F
un

d 
C

oU
ed

.io
ns

 fr
om

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 F

un
d 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
N

et
 in

ve
st

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
C

as
h 

F
lo

w
s 

fr
om

 F
ln

an
d

ac
 A

ct
Jv

ltl
es

 
R

ep
ay

m
el

lls
 o

f d
eb

t N
et

 f
in

an
ci

ng
 s

ct
iv

iti
es

 

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 (
de

cr
ea

se
) 

in
 c

as
h

 

C
as

h 
at

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r 
C

as
h 

at
 e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l 

di
sc

lo
s.

re
s:

 
In

te
re

st
 p

ai
d 

V
al

ue
 o

f E
lt

ea
at

iv
e 

O
ff

ic
e 

fu
rn

is
hi

ng
s 

oo
nt

ri
bu

le
d 

S
ee

 a
cx

oP
Jp

ao
yf

ng
 n

o
tt

t 
to

 D
o

an
d

al
 .

-t
at

em
en

ts
. 

21
,5

41
 

8,
39

3 
86

,3
16

 
(1

7,
86

7)
 

98
,3

83
 

7,
74

9 
10

6,
13

2 

(2
6,

05
1)

 

(2
6,

05
1)

 -
-

-
-

(1
7,

00
0)

 
7,

80
4 

7,
80

4 

(4
3,

05
1)

 
7,

80
4 

(3
5.

24
7)

 

(7
,7

49
) 

{7
,7

49
) 

(8
9,

50
6)

 -
-
-
­

(8
9,

50
6)

 -
-
-
-

(2
0,

19
0)

 
(1

0,
06

3)
 

(2
6,

37
0)

 

2
9,

17
2 

31
,1

73
 

8
0,

71
6 
-
-
-
-

(4
3,

05
1)

 
7,

80
4 

(7
,7

49
) 

(4
2,

99
6)

 

(2
3,

3
38

) 

{2
3,

33
8)

 

(8
9,

50
6)

 
(1

00
,0

63
) 

(8
9,

50
6)

 
{1

00
,0

63
) 

(2
6,

37
0)

 
(1

0,
37

5)
 

80
,7

1
6 

9
1,

09
1 

==
=;;

s:=
 =
=
~
=
=
 =

=
=

8=,
9==

8=2
 

21
.1

10
 

54
.3

46
 
=

=
=

=
 

54
,3

46
 

80
,7

16
 

$ 
8,

88
3 

35
,3

93
 

$ 
-

20
.3

40
 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 _
~
-
=
·

··
--
"
'=
"
"
"
"-
'"

"'
-
-
=
·

·
·
=
-
-
·
 
·-

-=
"'

7
 H

O
O

 
; 

1 

•
•
 

1

;'\
'lf

t!
'o

t
-

+
 

H
-
U

O
H

 
·.:

7 
··

-
l
O

U
U

t
 
-
~

·.
&.

· 

__ ..
... ~

-
-

--
-

·
. 
··-

·-·
··· 

···
-·

· 
.....

. .
.. 

·-
··-

...
...

 
. .

 -
. 

--
--

-'
 

.. 
·­

--
--

-
--

--
-

---
---·-

-
.. 

·-
--

--
-

---
-

-
-

.__
_..

,._
 ...

.. ;
.~

~1
:·~

~-.. -.
....

 · ..
 ~ ..

 !:.::
.: .

...
.. :

. _
__

__
 ~····

-· 
.• 

. ..
 

. .•.
 ,, 

t.
 

·-
·-

·. 

1 



~ 
....... ····-

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF TilE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

D«ember 31, 1991 aod 1991 

The Executive Olfice operates under the auspices of the National ~iation of Free Will Baptists, Inc. and is 
governed by lhe Executive Committee of lhe General Board of the National ~iation of Free Will Baptists, 
Inc. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Office Equipment, Furniture and Automobiles 
Office equipment, furniture and automobiles are stated at cost Depreciation is provided over the useCuJ 

liCe of the asset using the straight- line method. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, 
and betterments that do not significantly ex lend the useful Jives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Income Taxes 

The Executive Office is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for 
income taxes is made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Executive Office considers all cash funds, cash bank 
accounts and highly liquid debt instruments purchased wilh a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
and cash equivalents. 

(2) Office Equipment, Furniture and Automobiles 

(3) 

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations computed on the straight- line method was $7,430 
in 1992and $11,845in 1991. 

Components of office equipment, furniture and automobiles are as follows: 

Office equipmenl 
$ 44,988 

Furniture 
20,340 

Automobiles 
15,985 

81,313 
Less accumulated dcprecialion 

53,209 
$ 28,104 

Due To l From Other Funds 

The Executive Office continues to advance funds to cover deficits from the publication of Contact 
Magazine. Additional net advances of $500 in 1992 and $14,000 in 1991 were noceMaJ}'. Total advances 

through December 3], 1992 amount to $48,500. These inter- fund balances have been eliminated from 
the totals of the balance sheet. 

(4) Notes Receivable 

Various funds have made interest bearing unsecured advances 10 the Building Services Fund of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as follows: 

1992 1991 
Executive office $ 26,051 
Special projects fund 17,000 
Convention fund 

7,804 
$ 43,051 7,804 

6 

A-42 

' ~ 
I· 
I 
i 

f 
; 
I 

I , 
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NATIONAL 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF TilE 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

INC. 

(5) Cooperative Plan . . . d d' bursing funds of lhe Cooperative Plan. Designated 
The Executive Office is responsible for recetvmg an IS ency and undesignated funds are disbursed 

. b d to the named Department or ag • . ~ th 
contributions are diS urse . t The foUowing summarizes these transactiOns or e 
based on the proportionate sharmg arrangemen . 

be 31 1992as compared to 1991totals. year ended Decem r • 
1991 1991 

Retelpts: 

Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
lUi no is 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Missi!5ippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
Termessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
Canada 
Northwest Association 

Total receipts 

Disbursements: 
Executive Office 
Foreign Missions 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Home Missions 
Retirement & Insurance 
Master's Men . 
Commission for Theologicallntegnty 
Foundation 
Historical Commission 
Music Commission . . 
Radio & Television Commlsston 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
Other 

Total disbU~Sements 

COOP 

Deslenated Undesignated Total 

3,115 
2,602 

99,578 
10,843 

155 

Tolal 

3,860 
1,292 

70,679 
11,973 

$ 2,742 373 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,360 242 
84,062 15,516 

803 10,040 
755 
586 

115,257 

90 
87,019 

7,217 
100 

2,311 
900 

119,115 
S13 

134,316 

30 
136 

11,067 
5,834 

487.256 
2.10,501 
80,720 
76,703 
3,621 

46,769 

6S 

1,480,848 

16,057 
16.216 

221 

20,630 
968 
659 

7,800 

4,032 
23,510 
5,083 

49 
8,201 

30,168 
53,641 
2,084 

16,118 
7,507 
1,712 
2,040 

80 
248 

243.195 

16,643 
131,473 

221 
90 

107,649 
8,185 

759 
10,111 

900 
4,032 

142,625 
S.S96 

134,316 

30 
18S 

19,268 
36,002 

540,897 
212,585 

96,838 
84,210 
5,333 

48,809 
80 

313 

1,724,043 

18.514 
110,010 

265 
110,858 

7,339 
638 

3,223 
120 

4,691 
63,771 
5,855 

103,758 
50 

2,396 
22.142 
32.595 

493,495 
150,728 
75,895 

114,685 
3,781 

45,174 
87 

241 

1,458,115 

303 877 2S9,45S 123,182 180,695 • 
850,m 14.375 865,152 1;;~~ 

81,670 14,375 96,045 
305 019 240,946 293,769 11.250 • 

6.slo 8,750 25,260 25•723 
1 26,139 26,582 
17,389 8·ji~ l.S06 1,231 
1,193 86 17,S13 

11,038 3,748 14,7 1,182 
1,137 313 1,450 

0 313 1.233 910 
92 313 1,3SS 1,329 

115·.~~ 15,638 16.204 
66,583 29,521 66.S83 _........::, __ --~==- _ _..:=.:= 

1,480,848 243,195 1,724.043 ],458.115 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(6) Notes Payable (see note 7) 

11.5% no~ payable amounting to S37,4S2 to the Board of Retirement and Insura11ce of the National 

Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. secured by hymnals carried in inventory at $136,196. 

(7) Agreement Wltb Affiliated Organization to Distribute Hymnals (see note 6) 

The Executive Office has an agreement with Sunday School and Church Training and Randa!J House 

Publications ("Randall House"). whereby Randall House warehouses and distributes hymnals. Further, 

Randall House will invoice the customer, coJiect funds and remil such coJlections, nel of commisions 

of $.795 per hymnal sold. to the Executive Office. A3 of December 31, 1992 RandalJ House was 

warehousing approximately 14,000 hyl1lllals with an inventory value of Sl36,196 and owed the Executive 

Office $2,368 for hymnal sales. 

(8) Pension 

The Executive Office participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance 

of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plm is contributory and is matched up to a 

maximum of S% of compensaHon. Employees may participate al date of employment. Pension 

expenses amounted to $4,894 in 1992 and $4,812 in 1991. The pension plan is a defined contribution 

plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant 

can either receive a lump- sum distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

(9) Capitalized Lease Payments 

The Executive Office entered into an agreement to lease space in the National Office Facility and 

further agreed to contribute to the debt service costs during the cons lnlction period and to continue 

until the debt has been retired. Through the construction period, costs amounting to $10,960 were 

capitalized. These costs wiU be amortized againsl operations over a five year period. During 1992, 

$2,192 was charged against operations leaving a resultant balance of $7,672 which is included on the 

balance sheet in prepaid expenses. 

(10} Restatement of Special Prolects Fund for Accounting Error 

The fund balance of lhe special projects fund has been restated to reflect an error ill lhe valuation of 

hymnal inventory. The inventory was inadvertently valued at sales value instead of cost The error 

affects balances and amounts as reported for the year ended December 31, 1991. l.nventory and fund 

balance have bee a decreased by $79,724 to properly value inventory at cosl 

Administrative 
Convention 
Contact 
Totals 

*1992 
**1993 

8 

1994 

Executive Office Budget 

A-44 

1993 
$303,877.03 

85,542.60. 
86,004.00 

$475,423.63 

1994 
$326,420.46 

83,288.15-* 
85,596.00 

$495,304.61 

1994 
Administrative Budget 

Projected Expenses 1992 

Salaries $120,314.98 
Housing 25,000.00 
Social Security 16,549·19 

Retirement 5•132·47 
Employees Insurance 30,380.39 

(Dental, Hospital, Life, Travel) 
Office Rental 40,000.00 

($1.30 per sq. ft. x 2,491) 
Office Supplies/Expense 6,000.00 
Computer Supplies O.OO 
Equipment Maintenance 5,000.00 
Telephone 4,000.00 
Postage 3,000.00 
General Insurance 4,000.00 
Travel 16,000.00 
Executive Committee 7,000.0° 
Auditing/Legal 5,000.00 
Promotion/Printing 4,500.00 
Biennial All Boards/ 

Leadership Conference 3,000.00 
Equipment Purchase/ 

Computer 
Subscriptions/Dues/ 

Registrations 
Stewardship Education 
Automobile Lease 

Totals 

Projected Income 

The Together Way Plan 
Cooperative Gifts 
Designated Gifts 

Totals 

7,000.00 

2,000.00 
0.00 
0,00 

$303,8TI03 

$232,000.00 
71,8V,03 

$3038TI 03 

1993 

$125,127.40 
26,000.00 
17,211.13 
6,120.97 

30,267.21 

38,860.00 

5,000.00 
0.00 

4,000.00 
3,500.00 
3,000.00 
4,000.00 

15,000.00 
6,000.00 
6,000.00 
5,000.00 

2,000.00 

4,500.00 

2,290.32 
0.00 
000 

$303,8TI.03 

$232,000.00 
718TI,03 

$303,8TI.03 
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1994 

$125,685.64 
33,000.00 
18,071.84 
6,142.01 

27,961.53 

38,860.00 

5,000.00 
4,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,500.00 
3,000.00 
5,000.00 

20,000.00 
7,000.00 
4,000.00 
5,000.00 

2,000.00 

4,500.00 

2,500.00 
2,000.00 
6,199 44 

$326 420,46 

$226,420.46 
100,00000 

$326 420 46 
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Salary Breakdown 

1992 1993 1994 Executive Secretary 
Salary 

S23 474 55 $24 053 53 $25.106.21 Houstng and U!tl,ltes 16,000 00 (5°1o) 17.000 00 (4%) 18 000.00 (5%) Soctal Secunty 
603961 (15.3°to) 6.281 19 (15.3°/o) 6,595 25 (153%) Ret1rement 
1,17373 (5%) 1,202 68 (5%) 1 ,255 31 (5%) Insurance 
5 90483 3.878 98 3,705.24 T ravel/ltfe s 506 76 $ 526.73 $ 526.73 Hosp1tal 4,883 27 3,03120 2,906.85 Dental 51 4.80 321 05 271 66 NOTE: Office car furntshed. 

52,592 72 52,416.38 54,662.01 
Administrative Assistant/Contact Editor 

Salary 
22 539.52 23,801 10 19,441.15 Housmg and Utrlrt1es 9 000.00 (S01o) 9,000.00 (4%) 15,000 00 (5%) Socral Securrty 
4.825 55 (15.3%) 5,018 57 (15 3%) 5,269.50 {15.3°/o) Retrrement 
1 126 98 (5%) 1,1 9006(5%) 972 06 (5%) Insurance 
7.434 85 5,847 03 5.526.90 Travei/Lfe 412 92 43289 43289 Hospttal 6.326.89 4 547 09 4 360 35 Dental 695.04 867.05 73366 NOTE· Offtce car furn1shed. 

44 926 90 44 856.76 46,209.61 

Bookkeeper 
Salary 

19.624.62 (5°1o) 20,409 60 (4%) 21,430.08 (5%) Soctal Secunty 
1 501.28 (7.65%) 1,561 33 (7 65%) 1,639.40 (7.65%) Ret~rement 

981 23 (5%) 1,020.48 (5%) 1,071.50 (5%) Insurance 
7,231.45 5,623 66 5,303.53 Ute 209.52 209.52 209 52 Hospttal 6,326.89 4,547.09 4,360.35 Dental 695.04 867.05 733.66 

29,338 58 28,615.07 29,444.51 Secretary 
Salary 

19 185.84 (5°1o) 19,95327 (4%) 20,950.93 (5%) Soctal Security 
1,467 72 (7 65%) 1,526 43 (7 65°1o) 1,602 75 (7.65%) Rettrement 

959.29 (5°ro) 997 66 (5%) 1,047 55 (5%) Insurance 
2.90063 3,55389 3,380 11 ltfe 201.60 20160 201 60 Hospttal 2.441.63 3.031 24 2 906.85 Dental 257 40 321 05 271 66 

24.513 48 26,031 25 26981.34 
Secretary (Regular Part-time) 

Salary 
18,82687 (5%) 19,579 94 (4%) 20,558.94 (5%) Soctal Secunty 
1,44026 (7.65%) 1,49787 (7.65%) 1,572.76 (7.65%) Reltrement 

188.27 (1%) 979 00 (5%) 1,027 95 (5%) Insurance 
2.900.63 3,553 89 3,380 11 Lrfe 201.60 201.60 20160 Hospttal 2,441.63 3,031.24 2,906.85 Dental 257.40 321.05 271.66 

23,356.03 25,610.70 26,539.76 
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Receptionist 
Salary . 
$octal Secunty 
Reltrement 
Insurance (75%) 

Ltfe 
Hospital 
Dental 

Part-Time Help 
(1 day per week) 
Salary (52 d~ys) 
Social Secunty 

s 209 52 
3.378.48 

420 00 

1992 

$1 4 059 42 Wro) 
1 075 55 (7 65°10) 

702 97 (SDro) 
4,008.00 

19,845.94 

$157 14 
7,002.33 

65029 

2,604.16 ($6 26hr) 

199.22 (7.65%) 
2,803.38 

1993 

$1 4 621 80 {4%) 
111857 (7 65%) 

731.09 (5°'o) 
7,809 76 

24.281.22 

51 57.14 
6.046.50 

462.00 

2,708.16 ($651 hr) 

207.17 (7.65%) 
2,915.33 

1994 

$15,352 89 (5°10) 

1,174 50 (7 .65°10) 

767.64 (SDro) 
6,66564 

23.960.67 

2,845.44 ($6 84 hr) 

217.68 (7.65%) 
3,063.12 

c ention Budget 
.o~.v n of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

National Associ;;.~ 18-22, 1993 

Louisville, Kentucky 

Projected Expenditures 
Auditorium 
Printing and Promotion 
Convention Office 
Convention Personnel 

Meals 
Travel 
Lodging 

Convention Officials 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Functions 
Executive Committee 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 

Totals 

Projected Receipts 
Booth Fees 
Representation Fees 
Church Delegate Fees 
Host State (Kentucky) 
Offerings 

Totals 

1992 1993 
$27,148.00 $22,625.00 

2,295.00 
2,116.00 
5,544.00 

22,789.00 21 ,882.00 
6 232 90 7,400.00 
9:955:00 8,696.79 

2,124.00 
1,871 .00 
4,701 .79 

7,264.20 6,328.11 
750.00 875.00 

3 794 50 5,887.00 
11609.00 1,594.25 
1 :soo:oo 1,500.00 

4,500.00 
$85,542.60 

6,500.00 
$83,288.15 
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$14,725.00 
24,710.00 
1,000.00 

10,000.00 
35,107.60 

$85,542.60 

$15,675.00 
24,950.00 
1,000.00 

15,000.00 
26,663.15 

$83,288.15 



Convention Budget 

National Association of Free WiJJ Baptists, Inc. 
July 18-22, 1993 

Louisville, Kentucky 

Projected Receipts 
Booth Fees 
Representation Fees 
Church Delegate Fees 
Host State (Kentucky) 
Offerings 

Totals 

Projected Expenditures 
Auditorium 

Rental, Set-Up, Tear Down, Meeting Rooms 
Convention Banner 
Flowers 
Security Director 
Convention Tapes 
Other 

Music Stand Aentai(Decorator) 273.00 
Sound Engineers/Stage Hands/Microphones 3,500.00 
Usher Badges 200.00 
Liab. ,ASCAP,BMI ,Ins. 1,000.00 
First Aid Staff 2,000.00 
Courtesy Car 150.00 

1992 
$14,725.00 
24,710.00 

1,000.00 
10,000.00 
35 107 60 

$85 542 60 
I 

$18,000.00 
300.00 
125.00 

1,500.00 
100.00 

7,123.00 
0.00 

3,000.00 
200.00 

1993 
$15,675.00 
24,950.00 

1,000.00 
15,000.00 
26 663 15 

$83 288 15 

$14,500.00 
300.00 
125.00 

1,500.00 
225.00 

5,975.00 

Offering Buckets 0.00 
Signs 0.00 __ _ 

Totals $27,148.00 

1,000.00 
450.00 
150.00 
175.00 

1,000.00 --­
$22,625.00 

Printing and Promotion 
Publicity and Art Work 
Photos 
Convention Materials 

Programs 
Song Sheets 
Digest of Reports 

2,550.00 
1,089.00 
5,500.00 

$10,000.00 
650.00 

9,139.00 

$10,000.00 
400.00 

7,282.00 

Pre-Convention Printing 
(Sunday Conv.News pre-printed, copier reimb.) 

Totals 

Convention Office 
Registration Materials 
Paper and Printing Supplies 
Equipment Rentals 

Offset Machine 
Plate Maker 
Copier 
Typewriters (3) 
Typewriters {7} 
Miscellaneous 

Typing Stands/Chairs (Office) 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
120.00 
435.00 
200.00 
277.90 
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3 ooooo 

$2278900 

$1,000.00 
700.00 

1,332.90 

2,160.00 
350.00 

4,772.00 
4 20000 

$21 882 OQ 

800.00 
0.00 

400.00 
200.00 
500.00 
350.00 
300.00 

$1,000.00 
500.00 

2,550.00 

.. 
I 

I • • ' ,, 

T ·lephone . ) 
e During Conventio~ (Office 

Pre/Post Convention 

~~~~~lnst~ments Rental and Service 
PianoiT' u nmg 
Forklift 
Organ Shipping 
Music 

Totals 

Convention Personnel 

Me~~i Goodfellow {24 meals@ $9.00 each) 
Melody Hood (30 meals@ $9.00 each) 
Steve Pate (23 meals@ $9.00 each) 
Marilyn Pritchard (30 meals @ $9.00 each) 
Security Officer {27 meals@ $9.00 each) 
Wade Trimble (21 meals @ $9.00 each) 

. Jack Williams (36 meals@ $9.00 each) 
Anne Worthington (30 meals @ $9.00 each) 
Melvin Worthington (36 meals@ $9.00 each) 

Totals 

Travel 
Dari Goodfellow 
Melody Hood 
Marilyn Pritchard 
Steve Pate(Trans.Coord.,rental) 

Meals on road (4 each @ $9.00 each) 
Jack Williams 
Anne Worthington 
Melvin Worthington 

Totals 

Lodging 
Dari Goodfellow (7 nights @ $8?.09) 
Melody Hood (9 nights@ $87.09) 
Steve Pate {8 nights @ $76.07) 
Marilyn Pritchard(~ nights @ $87·09) 
Wade Trimble (8 mghts @ $88.00) 
Jack Williams {11 nights ~ $87.09) 
Melvin Worthington (11 mghts @ $87·09) 

Totals (Includes applicable tax) 

Convention Officials 
Moderator • Ralph Hampton . 

Travel {400 miles@ $.28 per.ml~e 
From Nashville, TN to Lou1sv1lle, KY) 

Meals (21 meals @ $9.00 each) 
Lodging (6 nights@ $76.07) 
Honorarium 

Clerk. Waldo Young . 
Travel ( 1 ,500 miles @ $.2~ p~r mile 
From Shawnee, OK to LouiSVIlle, KY) 
Meals (27 meals @ $9.00 each) 
lodging (10 nights @ $76.07) 
Honorarium 

200.00 
500.00 

750.00 
200.00 
800.00 
150.00 

168.00 

189.00 
693.00 
400.00 

420.00 

243.00 

400.00 
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1992 
700.00 

600.00 
1,900.00 

$61232.90 

$ 216.00 
270.00 
189.00 
270.00 
243.00 
189.00 
324.00 
270.00 
324.00 

$2,295.00 

$ 168.00 
168.00 
168.00 

1,000.00 
108.00 
168.00 
168.00 
168.00 

$2,116.00 

$ 616.00 
792.00 
704.00 
792.00 
704.00 
968.00 
968.00 

$5,544.00 

$1,450.00 

1,998.00 

935.00 

300.00 
500.00 

550.00 
200.00 
800.00 
400.00 

112.00 

189.00 
456.42 
400.00 

420.00 

243.00 

400.00 

1993 
800.00 

600.00 
1,950.00 

$7,400.00 

$ 216.00 
270.00 
207.00 
270.00 
243.00 

0.00 
324.00 
270.00 
324.00 

~~.1~4.00 

$ 167.00 
167.00 
167.00 

1,000.00 
36.00 

167.00 
0.00 

167.00 
$1,871.00 

$ 609.63 
783.81 
608.56 
783.81 

0.00 
957.99 
957.99 

$4,701.79 

$1,157.42 

1,823.70 

760.70 
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Assistant Moderator - Carl Cheshier 
Meals (18 meals @ $9.00 each) 
~odgrng (6 nights @ $87.09) 

Ass1stant Clerk - Keith Burden 
lodging (5 nights @ $76.07) 

Usher C_oordinator - Raymond Lee 
Lodgrng (6 nights @ $76.07) 

Musrc Coordinator- Vernon Whaley 
L_odgr~g (6 nights @ $76.07) 

Regrstr~tron Co?rdinator - George Harvey 
Lodgrng (7 nrghts @ $76.07} 

Press Officer - Thomas Marberry 
Lodgrng (6 nights @ $76 _07) 

Photographer- Jim Vallance 
Lodging (5 nights @ $76.07) 

Totals (Includes tax) 

Honorariums 
Richard Bowers 
Randy Sawyer 
James Forlines 
Ronald Creech 
Rick Bowling 
David Archer 

Totals 

Decorator Services 

$125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 

$750.00 

Booth (62} Installation & Drape T abies 
Stage 

Sk!rting/Draping/Stage Set· Up 
Skrrled Tables/Chairs 
Carpet 
Hanging Banner 

Exhibitor Badges 
Conyenti?n Office (Two-way radio) 
Regrstratron 

Totals 

Desks 
Skirted T abies 
Chairs 
Electricity 
Carpet 

Meal Functions 
Executive Committee 

Coffee Breaks (2) 
Luncheon (22 people@ $16_50) 

General Board Breakfast (So people @ $10 00} 
State Leaders Breakfast (55 people @ $8 7S) 

Totals · 

A-50 

1992 
723.00 

1993 
684.54 

162.00 
561.00 

162.00 
522.54 

432.00 
100.00 

1,182.50 
262.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

350.00 
0.00 

200.00 
390.50 

434.50 

561.00 

521.40 

608.30 

528.00 

440.00 

$7,264.20 

Nathan Ruble 
Clifford Austin 
Bailey Thompson 
Doug Little 
Wendall Walley 
Curtis Lilly 
Bobby Ferguson 

$1,218.00 
1,976.50 

250.00 
0.00 

350.00 

$3,794.50 

$590.50 

726.00 
70.00 

1,584.00 
65.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

350.00 
0.00 

250.00 
363.00 

380.35 

456.42 

456.42 

532.49 

456.42 

380.35 

$125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 
125.00 

$875.00 

$1 ,302.00 
2,445.00 

250.00 
1,540.00 

350.00 

~$5~.88~7.0-0 

$613.00 

485.00 
533.50 

$1 ,609.00 

500.00 
481.25 

$1,594.25 

1992 
Executive Committee 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
(For the meeting Friday night and Saturday 

prior to the 1993 National Convention) 
Charles Cooper $ 250.00 
J.l. Gore 250.00 
Jack Richey 250.00 
Tom Lilly 250.00 
David Joslin 250.00 
Carl VaUance 250.00 

Total $1 ,500.00 

Pre-Convention Expenses $4,500.00 

Charles Cooper 
J.L. Gore 
Thurmon Murphy 
Tom Lilly 
David Joslin 
Jim Nason 

1994 
Contact Budget 

Projected Expenses 
Printing 
Postage 
Art 
Writer's Fees and Photos 
Promotion 
Computer 
Mail Services 
Telephone 
Office Supplies 
Travel 
Bound Copies 
Other 
Books, Dues, Registrations 
Audit 
Debt Retirement 

(To reimb. Executive Office} 
Total Expenses 

Projected Income 
Convention coverage 
Subscriptions 
Total Income 

•rhree issues 

1992 
$56,261.00 
13,000.00 
1,000.00 
4,000.00 
1,000.00 
3,000.00 
6,000.00 

200.00 
600.00 

1,500.00 
500.00 
100.00 

1,100.00 
600.00 

0.00 

$88,861.00 

$ 9,373.00 
79,488.00 

$88,861 .00 

1993 
$36,000.00 

14,000.00 
1,000.00 
4,000.00 
4,000.00 
7,000.00 
5,000.00 

304.00 
2,000.00 
2,000.00 

600.00 
500.00 

1,200.00 
1,400.00 
7,000.00 

$86,004.00 

$ 9,000.00 
77,004.00 

$86,004.00 

.. Based on 6,383 subscriptions @ $12.00 per year 
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1993 

$250.00 
250.00 
250.00 
250.00 
250.00 
250.00 

$1 ,500.00 

$6,500.00 

1994 
$36,000.00 

14,000.00 
1,000.00 
4,000.00 
4,000.00 
7,000.00 
5,000.00 

296.00 
2,000.00 
3,000.00 

600.00 
500.00 

1,000.00 
1,200.00 
6,000.00 

$85,596.00 

$ 9,000.00* 
76,596.00** 

$85,596.00 
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~ ~ Hill, Neal & Allt:n, P.C. 

Certified Public AccountanlS 

Tfny A Hill 
Russell E. Nc.1l 
Nancy 5 Allen 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Bremwood Eucuuvt Center 
7M Old H1ckory Boulevard 
Sullt 103 
Brentwood, TN 37027 
TEL 6151377·34!15 
FAX 6151377-34!\8 

We have audited the balance sheets of Building Services Fund of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1992 and 1991, and 
the related statements of activity and changes in fund balances and cash flows for 
the year ended December 31, 1992. These financial statements are the 

responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. Information included 

on the statements of activity and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the 
year ended December 31, 1991 is presented for comparative purposes only and 
was extracted from the financial statements presented by fund for that year, on 

which we expressed and unqualified opinion dated June 5, 1992. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 

opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Building Services Fund of the 

National ASsociation of Free Will Baptists, Inc. as of December 31, 1992 and 
1991, and the results of its activity and changes in fund balances and cash flows 
for the year ended December 31, 1992 in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles. 

April 30, 1993 
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BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPT S S I T , INC. 

Balance Sheets 

December 31, 1992 and 1991 

Assets 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 

Accounts receivable - Master's Men (rent, interest and other charges) 
Prepaid insurance and other expenses 

Property held for sale (note 2) 

Note receivable: (note 2) 

Sale of property 

Less deferred profits from sale of property 

Net note receivable 

Property and equipment and capitalized leases (notes 3 and 4): 

Land and land improvements 
Dutldmg 

Building services equipment 

Departmental workstations 

Departmental van 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property and equipment and capitalized leases 

Uabilities and Fund Balances 

Notes payable, long- term debt and capitalized lease obligations (note 3) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Accrued realtor fee (note 2) 
Deferred rentals 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 

Plant funds 
Capital Stewardship Campaign funds 

Total fund balances 

See accompanying notes to financial statemeuts. 

2 

A-5 8 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1992 1991 

8,760 25,549 
58,930 21,756 

5,373 6,613 

135,485 

701,750 

503,145 

198,605 

271,668 189,403 

209,671 199,003 
1,299,334 1,297,509 

35,763 35,251 
64,135 64,054 

7,746 5,092 

1,616,649 1,600,909 
109,262 39,256 

1,507,387 1,561,653 

1,n9,055 1,751 ,056 

1,512, 149 1,551,232 
15,689 17,773 
51,910 

18,740 24,094 

1,598,488 1,593,099 

173,367 143,959 
7,200 13,998 

180,567 157,957 

1,m,055 1,751,056 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISfS, INC. 

Statements of Activity and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year euded December 31, 1992 

Revenues: 
Building rental and other revenues 

Sale of property: (note 2) 

lnterst income 
Gain recognized 

Contributions 

Departmental services: 

Employee benefits 

General msurance 

Telephone 
Mailroom and other 

Costs and expenses incuned for 

other departments 

Net revenues 

Expenses: 

Salaries 

(with compandve totals for 1991) 

$ 

Plant 

Funds 

325,086 

18,750 

16,670 

360.506 

47,057 

Capital 

Stewardship 
Campaign Departmental 

Fund9 Services 

57,212 

155,455 

32,332 

25,407 

69,229 

- (269,313) 

__ 57,212 13,1 10 

1992 

Totals 

325,086 

18,750 

16,670 

57,212 

155,455 

32,332 

25,407 

69,229 

(269,313) 

430,828 

47,057 

3,601 

1991 

Totals 

188,774 

22,541 

151,766 

16,332 

24,549 

56,129 

(244,914.} 

215,1n 

36,229 

2,772 
PayroU taxes 3,601 

Employee benefits 10,471 10,471 5,469 

Janitorial services 12,261 

Depreciation 66,649 

Audit and legal 8,822 

General insurance 6,300 

Interest expense 141,669 

Supplies 2,962 

Utilities / telephone 26,604 

Repairs and maintenance 7,580 

Mailroom and other 8,286 

Campaign expenses ----
Total expenses - 342,261_ 

Excess of revenues over expenses 18,244 

Transfers among funds: 

Debt service and other 11,164 

Fund balances at beginning of year 143,959 

Fund balances at end of year $ 173,367 

See accompanying notes to financial satemeots. 
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3,357 

7,393 

55,206 -

55,206 10,750 

2,006 2,360 

(8.804) (2,360) 

13,998 

7.200 

12,261 

70,006 

8,822 
6,300 

149,062 

2,962 

26,604 

7,580 

8,286 
55,206 

408,218 

22,610 

157,957 

180,567 

15,016 

42, 174 
951 

10,673 

10,322 

1,200 

17,145 

4,988 

8,399 

8,543 

164,881 

50,296 

107,661 

157,957 



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

' INC. 

Statements or Casb Flows 

Year ended December 31, 1992 

(with companllve totals ror 1991) 

Plant 

Funds 
Cash Flows from Operatine Activilles 

Capi~ 

Suwardshlp 

Cam pal en 

Funds 

Departmental 

Services 

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 18,244 2,006 
Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues 

over expenses to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 

Gain recognized on property sale 

and expenses of sale 

(Increase) decrease in: 
Receivables 

Prepaid insurance 

Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable and accruals 
Deferred rentaJs 

Net operating activities 

Casb Flows from Investing Activities 
Collections on note receivable from 

property sale 

66,649 

(31,940) 

(37,174) 

1,240 

(4,604) 

(5,354) ----

7,061 __ ....:2::!:,006 

23,250 

2,360 

3,357 

5,717 

Renovation and equiping new building 
(15,740) ------ --

Net investing activities 7,5 10 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from acquistion of debt 792,875 
Repayments of debt (829,661} 

Net fmancing activities (36,786} 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (22,215) 

Transfers among funds 5,427 

Cash at beginning of year 25,549 

Cash at end of year $ 8,761 
Supplemental disclosures: 

Interest, including finance charges paid 

Non- cash investing and financing transactions: 

Acquistion of telepbooe equipment 

Capitalized lease obligation incurred 

Note receivable acquired from sale of property 

See accompanylnc notes to lluuciaJ statements. 
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(2,296} 

(2,296) 

2,006 3,421 

(2,006) (3,421} 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

1992 
TotaJs 

22,610 

70,006 

{31,940) 

(37,174) 

1,240 

1991 

Totals 

50,296 

42,174 

(18,678) 
(3,811} 

( 4,604) (22,210) 

(5,354) _ __;:2:..:.!4,094~ 

14,784 71,865 

23,250 

{15,740) (748,478} 

7,510 (748,478) 

792,875 789,731 
(831,957) (118,513} 

(39,082} 671,218 

(16,788) (5,395) 

25,549 30,944 

8,761 25,549 

140,175 121,683 

16,783 

16,783 
725,000 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Yean eoded December 31, 1992 and 1991 

The Fund operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. and is governed 

by a management committee which is chaired by the Executive Secretary of the National Assocation of Free 

Will Baptists, lnc. The management committee is composed of the directors of the Departments which occupy 

the National Offices Facility. 

(1) Summary or Significant Accounting Policies 
Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cosl Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and 

(2) 

betterments that do not significantly extend the useful Jives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight- line method 

Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes is 

made in the accounts. 

Casb and Casb Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Fund considers aJI cash funds, cash bank accounts and 

h1ghly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or Jess to be cash and cash 

equivalents. 

Note Receivable - Sale of Property 
On May 21, 1992, a contract to seU the property which had previously housed the departments of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. was executed by the Management Committee (see note 
1) and a 6.3% deed of trust note was received in the amount $725,000. The note requires monthly 

payments of $8,400, including principal and interest, for sixty months through August 15, 1997, at which 

time the unpaid baJance of $403,160 shall be due and payable. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the excess of the sale price over the Fund's 

basis in the property and costs relating to the sale (gross gain) is recognized in. the fmanciaJ statements 

ratably over the collection of the related note receivable. Further, realtor fee payable of 6% relating to 

this transaction is payable as the note is collected. 

The foUowing table summarizes the elements of the above transaction: 
Dererred 

Profits 

Realtors 
Fee 

6.3% deed of trust note receivable 

Basis in the property sold 

Expenses of saJe: 

Realtor fee 

Expenses of sale 

s 

Gross gain from saJe of property 

CoUections on note receivable 

Interest portion of collections 

Gain recognized based on collections 

Realtor fee paid based on collections 

54,430 

15,270 

Transactions 

s 725,000 

135,485 

69,700 

s==s~J 9;;:f,s~1=5 

s 42,000 

-~18,750 

BaJancc outstanding as of December 31, 1992 
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Note 
Receivable 

725,000 

23,250 

519,815 

16,670 

54,430 

2,520 

s====m~t~,7~5~o ==~50~3~,1~4~5 ====5~1~,9=1:0 



(3) 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Notes Payable, Long- term Debt and Capitalized Lease Obligations 
A summary of notes payable and long- term debt and capilali7ed lease obligallons IS as follo"s: 

Notes payable and long- term debt: 

Mortgage note to bank a t prime mterest rate, SCCUied by a fust mterest in 

the NatJonal Office Factlily. Beg~nning May 1992, repayment terms 

requi re monthly principal payments of $4,938 plus interest at the 

Bank's prime rate. Such insullment paymenLc; continue through 

April 1997 at which lime the balance outstanding IS due and 

payable. Further, addlltonal principaJ payments in lhe amount 
$]()(),()()()were/are due in October 1991, 1992 and 1993. s 

10% mortgage note to the Free Will Baptisl~ Home Missions Church 
Extension Loan Fund, SCCUied by a second in terest in the National 

Office Facility and by lhe furniture held by the various departmeoiS 

"ilhm the National Office Facility This mortgage requires payment of 

interest only until the ftrst mortgage held by bank on lhe National 

OWce Facility is satisfied (see description above), at such tJme the 

note will be amortized over a fifteen (15) year period wilh monthly 

payments of $9,680 includmg principal and interesl Further, the note 
contains a call provision at lhe end of each sixly month period after the 

ftfteen (15) year amortu.ahon begins, whereby lhe maker may caJJ for 

immediate payment of the note and any unpaid interest. At each call 

date the remainmg balance of lhe note may, by mutual consent of the 

parties, be further financed by an extension for additional stxly month 
periods, with interest subject to adjustment a t that time. 

Obligations to the Board of Retirement of the National Association of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

11.5% mortgage note retired through a refllWICing with the Free 

WiJJ Baptists Home Missions Olurcb Extension Loan Fund (see 
descripttoo above). 

10.75% to 11.5% lflSiallment notes seCUied by equipment and renewals, 
payable monthly $1,368 maturing through 1993. 

Unsecured interest bearing notes to the following funds of the 

Executive Office of the National Association of Free WiJJ Baptists, Inc. 

Executive Office 

Special ProJects Fund 
Convention Fund 

TouJ notes payable and long- term debt 

CapiuJ lease obligallons: 15.8% oblig<~hon for telephone system 

capiUJ lease payable monthly $396 through 1996 - see note 4. 

Less current maturiles of notes p<~yable, 

long- tenD debt and capiUJ lease obligat ions 
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under 

s 

546,682 

900,824 

8.654 

26,051 

11,000 

1,499,211 

12,938 
1,512,149 

213,873 

1,298,276 

INC. 

700,000 

155,000 

650,000 

23,194 

7,804 

1,535,998 

15,234 

1,551,232 

201,791 

1.349.441 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(3) Notes Payable, Long- term Debt and Capitalized Lease Obligations, continued 
The following is a schedule, by years, of maturities of long term debt and future minimum lease payments 

under capiUJ leases as of December 31, 1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 
1999 and thereafter 

Total maturities of long- term debt 

Less amount representing interest 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 

Lolli- Term 
Debt 

$ 2 10,96 1 

59,256 

59,256 

59,256 

229,884 

29,428 

851,170 

$ 1,499,21 I 

s 

Capital 

Leases 
4,753 

4,753 

4,753 

2,m 

17,031 

4,093 

12,938 

(4) Property and Equipment and Capitalized Leases (see note 3) 
Depreciation and amorti7.atton charged to operallons computed on the stratght- line method was 

$70,006 in 1992 and $42,174 in 1991. 

Components of capitalized leases are as follows: 

Telephone equtpment 

Less accumulated amortt7..ation 

(5) Pension 

1992 
$ 16,783 

5,035 

1991 

16,783 

1.678 

s===-=11~,7~~~8 ====1~5~,1=05= 

The Fund participates in the master defined contribution pension plan of the Board of Retirement and 

Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plan IS contributory and is 

matched up to a maximum of 5% of earned compensation. Employees may participate at date of 

employment. Pension expenses amounted to $1,671 in 1992 and $1,21 4 in 1991 Under the plan, an 

account IS maintatned for each participant and upon retirement lhe participant can either receive a 

Jump- sum distribution or purchase one of several lypes of armuity contract~. 
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1994 
Projected 

Building Services Budget 

Projected Income 
Murfreesboro Road Property Payments ($8,400 mo.) 
Square Footage (20,329@ $1.30 = $26,427.70 mo.) 

Total Income 

Projected Expenses 
Aud it & Legal 
General Supplies 
Insurance (Plant) 
Janitorial Services 
Janitorial Supplies 
Marl Room 
Mall Truck 
Mamtenance (General) 
Payroll Taxes (Employer's S.S.) 
Postage Meter 
Retirement 

1993 
$100,800.00 
317,132.40 

$417,932.40 

$6,000.00 
1,700.00 
6,000.00 

15,000.00 
1,500.00 
4,000.00 
2,000.00 

10,872.03 
2,317.40 
1,000.00 
1,301.11 

Salarres (5%) 
Telephone 
UPS 
Uhlltres 
Notes Payable 

R&l (#5136) 

30,292 72 
2,50000 

600.00 
28,000.00 

291 ,347.84 
9,205.34 

(Pnncrpal-8, 926.64/lnterest-278. 70) 
HM 90,082.32 

( Pnncrpal-900,824.00/lnterest 1 0%·90,082.32 
Interest paid only on this loan) 

FANS 
1993 192,060.18 
Principal-546,682.38/lnterest 6% =32,800.94 
Principal Pymts. S4.938.27x 12 = 59,259.24 
Additional Principal Payments 100,000.00 

1994 
$100,800.00 
317,132.40 

$417,932.40 

$6,000.00 
1,700.00 
6,000.00 

16,200.00 
2,000.00 
7,000.00 
2,500.00 

15,000.00 
2,191.62 
1,000.00 
1,208.08 

28,648.55 
2,500.00 

0.00 
28,000.00 

278,079.77 
0.00 

90,082.32 

1994 187,997.45 
Pnncrpal-387 ,424.14/lnterest-6% =23,245.45 
Pnncrpal Pymts. S7,896.00x12 =94,752.00 
Additronal Principal Payments 70,000.00 

Insurance (Employee) 
Realtor's Fee 
Other 

Total Expenses 
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7,453.30 
6,048.00 

0.00 
$417,932.40 

13,087.75 
6,048.00 

768.63 
$417,932.40 

p 

Building Services 
Salary Breakdown 

Maintenance Superintendent 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Dental 
Health 
Life 

Retirement 

Receptionist 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Dental 
Health 
Lrfe (Executive Office 209.52) 

Retirement 

Part-time $6.84 per hour (5% increase) 

82 days @ 8 hrs. = 656 hrs. @ $6.51/$6.84 
Socral Secunty 

Maintenance Superintendent 0f'/ade Trimble) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Dental 
Health 
Life 

Retirement 

666 96 
3,488.28 

209.52 

246.96 
2,325.48 

52.44 

41.16 
387.58 

34.92 
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1993 

$17,680.00 (4%) 
1 ,352.52 (7 .65%) 
4,364.76 

704.62 
8,953.35 

209.52 
884.00 (5%) 

$24,281 .28 

$5,330.96 (4%) 
407.82 (7 .65%) 

2,624.88 
260.97 

2,906.85 
52.44 

266.55 (5%) 
$8,630.21 

$4,270 56 
326 70 (7.65%) 

$4,597.26 

$3,011.20 
230.36 (7.65%) 
463.66 

150.56 (5%) 
$3,855.78 

1994 

$18,564.00 (5%) 
1,420.15 (7 .65%) 
9,867.49 

928.20 (5%) 
$30,779.84 

$5,597.51 (5%) 
428.21 (7.65%) 

3,220.26 

279.88 (5%) 
$9,525.86 

$4,487.04 
343.26 (7.65%) 

$4,830 30 



Foreign Missions Board Report 
It is gr~at_ to k~o~ tha_t Free Will Baptists are being used by the Lord 

Jesus Chnst m butldmg H1s church. He has predicted that His body will b 
composed of some from every nation. Praise God that we here at homee 
and our missionaries who go abroad, are laborers together with God · ' 
fulfilling His mandate. m 

. Good News from the Foreign Fields 
Here IS a summary of some of the major happenings on the fields since 

we last met: 

Br~z~·/-Eight new Christians w_ere welcomed into fellowship at the 
mission work at Araraquara. Jtm and Vicki Sturgill assisted national 
Pastor Je~ncarlo _with this outreach. A couple who graduated from the 
Central Btble Inst1tute assumed the pastorate at Pirassununga. Curt and 
Mary Holland began language study in Campinas. Bobby and Geneva 
Poole started the fourth work in Ribeirao Preto. 

Ch_~!la-Af~liate Sarah Malone went to China to teach English at the 
BeiJing Inst1tute of Technology. 

Cub~-The C_uban Association of Free Will Baptists celebrated its 50th 
anmversary m August at the campground at Pinar del Rio. Work was 
completed on the Willey Memorial Chapel. 

Franc~-Short-term missionaries Joe and Tanya Dudley went to France 
to asst~t Ch~rolette Tallent, who coordinates the outreach to students at 
the Umverstty of Nantes. Nineteen students attended the first Bible study 
of the fall term. At St. Sebastien, Dennis and Carol Teague and Cathy 
~ra~ford saw an incr~ase in attendance. The second year of Bible 
mstttute classes began m September with six students. 

Germany-_Dennis and ~?-ry Heath and Kim Zegelien began renovation of 
part of the1r church fac1hty in Kusel, Germany, for use as a youth center. 
Attendance at the church doubled during the summer months. 

India-~he annual conference in February hosted an overflow crowd of 
700 believers. Two new pastors w~re ordained last winter. Five young 
men have recently graduated from Btble college and will begin to minister 
for the Lord. 

Cote d'lvo[r~-Thirteen young people prayed to receive Christ at the new 
youth(frammg_Center at Bondoukou during April. At Doropo the rebuild­
mg o~ the hospttal w?-S completed, and a special dedication service was 
held m December. Fifty-four people were baptized in Ivory Coast during 
1992. 

Japan-Free _Will ~aptis~ churches in Japan all experienced growth in 
199_2. The H_1gash1 Tsuk1samu church began searching for property on 
wh1ch to bwld. 
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rna-Missionaries reported 85 conversions in Panama during 1992. 
Pana · b ·1d· An d d The Las Tablas church finished work on tts new u1 mg. expan _e 
Bible institute program was developed to provide day as well as evenmg 

classes. 

S 
·n-Missionaries in Spain continued to reach out through preaching, 

pal . . . ·at h . 
home Bible studies, dtsctpleshtp classe~, c:'-nd spect . emi? asts pro-
grams. Owain and Debbie Crosby are begmnmg a work m MaJadahonda, 
an area of 300,000 people which has no Protestant church. 

uruguay-Seven students comp~ete_d l~adership traini!lg at The ~ower 
Bible Institute in Montevideo, whtch ts dtrected by t~e ~lhsons_. Oennts and 
Trena Owen continued to reach people for Chnst m Pocttos through 
independent witnessing and home Bible studies. Dave Jr. and Becky 
Franks went to the field to begin language study. 

For a summary of our overseas ministries see figure # 1. 

Financial Review 
Thanks to the Lord and to you our income during 1992 was $4,560,449, 

up almost three percent from 1991. This was $354,793 over our 1992 

budget. 
Over the past 10 years support for foreign missions has grown from $2.1 

million to $4 million. See figure # 4. . 
We salute the following states for exceeding their suggested 1992 fatth 

goal: . L · 
Alabama Arizona Arkansas California, Colorado, lndtana, Iowa, ow-, , , . . 

siana, Michigan, Missouri, Montana, New Mexico, Northeast AssocJatton, 
Northwest Association, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Tennessee, and 
Virgin Islands. (See the 1992 total gifts from all states, and the 1994 
suggested state goals on page 70.) . . 

Our expenditures last year were $_4,58~,45 ~. In vtew of a slumpmg 
exchange rate in many countries and mflat10n m others, we are grateful 
that we were able to keep our expenses at that level. The breakdown of 
our expenditures is shown in figure # 3. . . 

Our department, as well as our other natio~al offi~es, IS anx1ous to se_e 
the Capital Stewardship Campaign succeed m paymg off the debt. Th1s 
year we will have to pay $35,903 in interest. Next year we are sch~d.uled 
to pay $32,664. We deeply need these funds in other areas. of ou~ m1m~try. 
Please encourage your association and church to get ?~hmd th1s proJec_t. 

In order to meet the growing challenge of our m1mstry our board IS 

recommending a budget of $4,485,676 for 1994. 

Review of Board Meetings 
Our board had three regular meetings and one called meeting. 
The board was called into special session on July 19, 1992. The 

members present were: 
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Figure 1 Status of Free Will Baptist Overseas Ministries 
As of January 1 , 1993 

M iaionaritl llctnwd 
All. nH IO Ordained and lay 111~11 OrganizH Miuion 11192 
Eac1 Fief• 

11192 Av.S111d1y 
Flt141 Pulora ~ICMtl lnsll11ln Sl1denl1 Ch1rdla Worts Comrts BaplltlliS Alllldalltl 

Brazil 24 5 11 2 35 9 8 94 82 712 

Cuba 7 81 1 2 15 18 227 70 700 

France 15 1 6 3 3 3 150 

Germany 3 1 15 

India 2 12 8 17 so· 154 89 1,963 

COte d' lvoire 35 * * 47 1 42*** 9 31 169 54 1,807 

Japan 15 5 6 1 8 1 32 19 190 

Panama 4 3 16 1 5 5 5 85 5 448 

Spain 13 7 1 4 4 4 102 
Uruguay 8 2 8 1 2 6 5 42 4 242 

TOTALS 120+ 34 184 8 97 69 156 810 326 6,329 
'India-Total includes 15 congregattons and 65 preaching potnts. 
• ·cot.e d·lvoire-Pastor Koffi Davtd went charismatic. 
···cote d·lvotre-9 students at Bouna tnst•tute. 33 followmo extenston course 
+This total includes one m•sstonary affiliate '" China. 

Figure 2 
SUMMARY OF 1992 REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

Total Revenue $4,560,449 
Total Expenses 4,585,451 
Revenue Over (Under) Expenses <$ 25,002> 

SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 1992 
Assets: 

Cash and Investments $11194,362 
lnterfund Loan 34,233 
Other Assets 184,931 

$1,413,526 

Liabilities: 
lnterfund Loan $ 34,233 
Other Liabilities 210,581 

< 244.814> 
Total Funds Available $1,168,712 

Funds Available: 
Missionary Accounts and ADVANCE Campaign 
Fund and Plant Fund 

$1,125,859 
42.853 

$1,168,712 
Note: Rlr further information regarding these amounts, see the audited financial statements following. 
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Figure 3 Expenditures for 1992 
Total:$4,072, 171 

Missionary Travel & Shipping 
Miss. Medical to and from Fields Info. & Promo. 

& Ins. $144,389 Services 
Short Term & $288,857 2.9% $219,157 
Student Miss. 6.2% __ ....... -ltlr--- Dept. Travel & 

Board Expense 
$64,534 

$32,551 .2% 

Missionary 7 .B% 
Projects 
$64,1---

6.2% 

7.7% 

Missionary 
Children's Education 

Missionary Salaries & 
Cost of Living 
$1,026,278 

$92,391 
Note: Total expenditures shown in Figure 3 have not been changed to reflect audit adjustments. 

Figure 4 

Income for the Past 1 0 Years 
--...--r----~--.--.---r--"lr-.--,--T$4,500,000 

1-----1,.-M,OOO,OOO 

,500,000 

,000,000 

$1,500,000 

1,000,000 

,000 

1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 

• Total Giving 0 Oeslg. Giving 1m General Fund 
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Norvvood Gibson, Bob Trimble, Galen Dunbar, Dean Dobbs, Alton Love­
less, Archie Mayhew, and William Reagan. During the meeting the board 
interviewed Lonnie and Anita Sparks and Ron Callaway. 

The board met during the Foreign Missions Re treat at Free Will Baptist 
Bible College August 3- 5, 1992. All members were present: Norwood 
Gibson, Robert Trimble, Galen Dunbar, Dean Dobbs, Joe Grizzle, Alton 
Loveless, Archie Mayhew, William Reagan, and David Shores. 

The board made the following changes in personnel: Lloyd and Betty 
Plunkett were appointed to serve as short-term house parents at the Free 
Will Baptist dormitory, International Christian Academy, Cote d'lvoire, for 
two years beginning August 1993. Dr. Mark and Kathy PaschaH were 
appointed as missionaries to Cote d'Ivoire. Fred and Evelyn Hersey were 
given a medical furlough in view of Evelyn's need for continuous chemo­
therapy. 

The board approved the field of Uruguay, as well as Panama, to be on 
the TEAM (Teens Equipped and Active in Missions) schedule for 1993. 

The board changed the name of the "Doropo Hospital Fund" to "Cote 
d 'lvoire Medical Ministry Fund." This account may be used to cover any 
expenses related to the medical work except direct subsidy to missionary 
accounts. 

The semi-annual meeting of the Board of Foreign Missions was held in 
the national offices building, Antioch, Tennessee, December 7- 1 I, 1992. 
AU members of the board were present. 

The board made the following changes in personnel: Randal and 
Karolyn Richards were approved as short-term missionaries to Cote 
d'lvoire for one year. Paul and Tanya Dean were approved as affiliates to 
work with English Language Institute China in China. The following 
student missionaries were approved to serve during the summer of 1993: 
Darin Alvis, Catalina Barquero, Allen Bowen, Michelle Braswell, Shannon 
Eads, Pam Eccleston, Lisa Edgmon, Christy Edmonds, Michael Fulcher, 
Scott Gailey, Jill Goodfellow, Chris Hamm, Tanya Hart, Randy Hill, Carol 
Malone, Jonathan Miley, Bryan Pate, Cra ig Portell, Kris Shoemaker, 
Rebecca Simmons, Lee Smith, Kevin Stacy, Pamela Still, Michael Steele, 
Lea Southwell, Charity Van Winkle, John Waddell, Monica White, and 
Kevin and Sheila Williford. The board discussed at length the report of the 
committee which visited Spain for the purpose of bringing about a 
reconciliation of all the missionaries. (A de tailed report follows.) 

The board approved the installation of a new computer system which 
will accommodate electronic mail between the office and missionaries 
overseas. 

The board decided to switch to a partially self-funded health insurance 
program with Lloyds of London covering those bil1s which exceed 
$20,000 per person per year. 

Fred and Evelyn Hersey were honored for their 37 years of missionary 
service in Japan and were presented a certificate and gifts. 

In a telephone conference on March 31, 1993, the board voted that the 
general director, one other staff member, and one board member attend 
a meeting which the Contenders for the Covenant, International, had 
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A "1 29 - 30 in CookeviBe, Tennessee, provided our 

announced or P': as o~er 
annual board meetmt.ggwof the board was held April 26- 29, 1993. The 

Th annual mee m 1 · e f 11 · changes in personne : 
board made the o owmg ved to serve for three months in Doropo, 

Or. Misael Gonzalez was appro dical missionary. Mirial Gainer was 
Cote d'lvoire, as a shJort-term m~sociate missionary with full support 
a roved to return to apan. ~s ~n 
sf!tus to work in the A:~~hm~~~o:~e a~;~· guest house in Abidjan, ~ole 

The board approve e p d all im rovements needed Will be 
d'Ivoire . The total cost for p_urchase an t this 1s a special project for those 
$95,000. The board would hk~ to pr~en 
who wish to designate offenngs f?r i~he First Church in Rlbeirao Preto, 

The request for $15,000 to asstst ved as a VISION fund project. 
Brazil, in putting on a new r?of was ~ppro 
Other approved VISION proJects are. . $50 000 

. Second Church, Rlbeirao Prete, Braztl $5o:ooo 
Panama Church Loan Fund Fund $25 000 
Church Building - Agnibilekrou - Ivory ~oast Loan $1 o' 000 

. Land/Building Fund - Barbacena, Brazil . , 
. . th t "The mission will not ordam anyone 

The boa~d c~a~f~~~ ipts:Sftf~~o~f b:ptizing persons living in polygamy." 
who has a op e . t ining to the general d1rector, a 

The board rescinded the motblon p~r ~ding the meeting at Cookeville, 
staff member, and a board n:'em era e . 
Tennessee. The meeting adJourned at 10.30 p .m. 

· Situation in Spain . 
. . d 1 Spain resigned: Lonme and 

Last summer four missiona!"'e~ ass•gne ~ nations were made public 
Anita Sparks and Mark and Juh Riggs. The r~slg ortunity to deal with them. 
at the convention .before the ~~~~~~d ~ J~tional Association in In?ia· 
The board met ~th the Spar ~ _ 6 1992. The Sparks and the Riggs 
napolis and dunng the retreaht~ugu~t ti~ns until the board could send 
were asked to hold up on t elr resigna . . . 

. 5 · t seek a reconcthatiOn. 
representatives to patn ° . t mposedofReverendDeanDobbs, 

September14, 1992:acomm~ ~e~~rend Joe Grizzle, accompanied by 
Reverend No~ood Gibson, an . ~ Mter s ending ten days in Spain, the 
the general director, went tobSJ?am. bout f reconciliation between the 
committee was unable to nng a 
Spanish field :ounc~l memalbers. r g the board adopted the following 

During their semt·annu mee m h bl m 
tatement to the Spanish Field Council relative to t e pro e . 

f F . gn Missions Regarding the 
Statement of the Board 0 0~~1 the Spanish Field Council 
Treatise and Church Covenan o h Cov· 

. nceming the use of the Churc 
Since ques~o~s ha~e ~nshen clo ling of Free Will Baptist churches, the 

enant by our mtsstonanes lOt e p an 
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Bc:ar_d of Foreign Missions hereb reaffi . . . 
mJsswnary's use of the Free Wit/1 . •rms Jt~ posttwn regarding the 
enant. In accord with Section VI C aftrsf tf:ef{tse and the Church Cov~ 
should endeavor to teach new co'nv~rt~ ~ e _andbo?k, the missiona 
as the Church Covenant This B d ree WIJI Baptist doctrine as wefJ 
Baptists" (doctrinal sectio.n of the ~~~a/~x)ect~ ~e "Faith of Free Will 
~e .presented to a church for adoption wh:n ft~ t e Church C~venant to 
mdJgenous, self-governing, self-su . s formally organized as an 
(as set forth under Section III B 2 bP?r~~g, and self-propagating church 
of the Treatise). ' ' ' ' 10 apter I of the Practices section 

Statement 
The Board further clarifies its 0 ·r . 

Treatise and Church Covenant ~on regardu~g th~ translation of said 
Board expects the "Faith of Fre~ Wilen tr?-ns!,atJOn ~~ undertaken, the 
Treatise) and the Church Covena t t lbBaptists (d~ctnnal section of the 
changes are deemed necessary ~eo e trant bslated m their entirety.lf any 
Foreign Missions. ' Y mus e approved by the Board of 

We admonish all of our missi ona . t ~ II 
privately approaching any brother ne_s to o . ow the Scriptural method of 
(Matt. 18:15-17 and Matt. 5:23,24).or sts erwJth whom there is an offense 

Policy of Implementation 
I. The Free Will Baptist Church Cov . 

English version into the Ja enant Will be translated from the 
where Free Will Baptists nonguage(s) of the particular countries 
entered into in the future T~ ~ervej a~d any country that may be 
as near as possible. It m~st pre~~~ a:~on_must be word for word 

2 All . . . e e mtent of the covenant 
. mrssionanes now serving under the F . . . . 

ment must personaJly accept th F ~reign ~tssrons Departe 
enant and from the outset of th ~ r~e _WJJI Baptist Church Cov­
new converts. eJr mmlstry teach its contents to 

3· When a mission church uaHfies . . 
supporting, self-propagatin~ and )~or Indig_enous status (self-
be organized into a local atltono~~u~g~vernm~) the ~hurch wm 
Among other requirements to becom I ref Will Baptist church. 
the membership body must adopt ~a ~ca aWut?nomous church, 
Covenant. e ree 111 Baptist Church 

In a telephone conference December 19 I 
following statement which was d' d , ~3, the board finalized the 
meeting: Jscusse dunng the semi-annual board 

Public Statement of the Board of Foreign M" J 
the Treatise and Church Cove~:~ns Regarding 

ln July the Board of Foreign Missions becam . 
e aware of a senous 
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division among the missionaries in Spain. As a result, three board mem­
bers accompanied by the general director went to Spain for the purpose 
·of effecting a reconciliation. The committee reported to the board during 
the semi-annual meeting that they were unable to bring about a reconcili-
ation. 

The Board considered the question of the use of the Free Will Baptist 
Church Covenant. They concluded that: 

1. All of our missionaries personally believe in and practice the 
·Church Covenant. We commend them for the work they are doing 
among the Spanish people and are grateful for the efforts, evan­
gelism, and discipling being done by our missionaries in Spain. 

2. None of the works in this country are yet fully organized as 
indigenous, self-governing, self-supporting, and self-propagating 
churches. 

This Board expects the "Faith of Free Will Baptists" (doctrinal section 
of the Treatise) and the Church Covenant to be presented to a church for 
adoption when it is formally organized as an indigenous, self-governing, 
self-supporting, and self-propagating church (as set forth under Section 
III, B, 2, b, in Chapter I of the Practices section of the Treatise). 

· The Sparks and the Riggs followed through with their resignations 
which became effective April 11, 1993. 

During the annual meeting April 26 - 29, 1993, the board invited the 
male missionaries from Spain and France to meet with them. As a result 
the following statement was adopted: 

Board Confirms Missionaries' Stand on FWB Church Covenant 
We, the Board of Foreign Missions, met with nine missionaries from 

Spain and France, April27, 28, 1993, and upon hearing each missionary 
we confirm the following: 

Every missionary affirmed and reaffirmed his belief in the Free Will 
Baptist Treatise, our Articles of Faith, and the FWB Covenant. Each 
pledged to this board that he would make every effort to practice, preach, 
teach, and wholeheartedly endeavor to implement all of the above as he 
seeks to bring his church to a self-governing, self-propagating, and self­
supporting status. 

Furthermore, these all firmly acknowledged their commitment to 
practice, preach, and teach total abstinence. They expressed the genuine 
desire to bring every church attender to that same biblical conclusion. 

We further direct the staff to instruct and strongly emphasize to all 
missionaries during the orientation and prefield training the need to 
preach, teach, and model the Treatise, Articles of Faith, and the FWB 
Church Covenant. The missionaries must acknowledge that this board 
expects them to endeavor to implement all of these Free Will Baptist 
distinctives from the beginning of a mission church. 

Furthermore, honest misunderstandings of the board's 1989 commu­
nique to the entire missionary staff which addressed the use and transla­
tion of the Church Covenant were clarified. (1989 statement: "Motion 
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carried that if the Church Covenant is translated into another language 
the fuJI content be accurately translated in mea ning. If any changes o; 
deletions are considered, it must be by board approval.") The intent of the 
board's 1989 decision was to reaffirm that the covenant be taught and 
preached and tha t eve ry endeavor be made to implement it in all our 
mission churches. This misunderstanding was due, in fact, to poor 
w ording used by the board to communicate this intent. 

In the recent meeting, each missionary affirmed that he now under­
stands the board's intent and stated: "We regret any misundersta nding or 
offense which may have occurred. We want to assure you of our reaffir­
mation of an denominational beliefs and practices." 

Furthermore, be it known that from the inception of our work in Europe. 
our missionary efforts to finnly convince the European converts to believe 
and practice total abstinence have been frustrating. Every missionary 
currently serving in Europe has clearly affirmed that he models, teaches, 
preaches. and makes every reasonable effort to produce godly people, 
who are genuine Free WiiJ Baptists in doctrine and lifestyle. This positively 
includes the practice of total abstinence. This has also been true of every 
missionary who has ever labored in Europe. 

This process has been challenging. difficult. and slow. This board once 
again affirms that every missionary is laboring to produce total abstainers 
who adhere to the Church Covenant. but realizes that this process will in 
fact require substantiaJiy more time. It is encoura ging that through the 
instruction and life testimony of our missionaries many, though not all, 
European converts have adopted, truly believe, and practice total absti­nence. 

Once again, our European staff has a ffirmed their absolute commit­
ment to preach, teach, and model total abstinence. They have also 
promised that they wiJI faithfully endeavor to implement the Church Covenant. 

Furthermore, every board member and the entire administrative staff 
join our missionaries in mutual affirmation to model, teach, preach, and 
implement total abstinence and the Church Covenant. 

We wish to express our sincere appreciation and commendation to our 
missionary staff for their faithful service, life sacrifice, and visible commit­
ment to bring Europeans to Christ. We further commend them for their 
stated loyalty and uncompromising commitment to produce bonafide 
Free WilJ Baptist churches in Europe. 

We also wish to express our absolute confidence in and appreciation 
for our general director, R. Eugene Waddell. and the administrative staff 
for their wisdom, patience, and transparent spirit. We believe they have 
honestly endeavored to promote the worldwide spread of the gospel, 
demonstrate loyalty to our entire missionary staff, and uphold the pre­
cepts and standards set forth in our Articles of Faith and Church Covenant. 
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I ionaries submitted the following statement to the 
The m ss board for publication: 

April 29, 1993 . . 

. . . f S ain a nd France, while meetmg Wlth the 
We, the ffiiSSionane~ o f. .I 27 28 1993 with complete and full 

Board of Foreign MisslObnsl. fpn II FWB Doct;ine a nd our commitment 
· t' n reaffirm our e te m a d h th m 

conVIc IO , d will endeavor to practice an teac e ' 
to the Chur~h <;ovenantk an very effort to implement them. We regret any 
always contmumg to rna e e . h rna have o ccurred. We want to 
misunderstanding or fofiffen~~ ;~~~ll de~ominational beliefs and prac­assure you of our rea Irma to 
tices. 

Faithfully In His Service, . 
FWB Missionaries of France & Spam 

Appreciation and Challenge . . 
f person in our denommatton We deeply appreciate the efforts o eve_ry . . 

. . h f IfiJlment of our assigned missiOn . 
to help fac1htat~ t e .u. 

1 
h 1 d $145 264 into missionary accounts 

The~ om~n s Auxlha!Y c ~':l~necloset ~ontinues to bless our mission-
andproJectsm 1992. Theirprovist. . Jul ,. said one missionary. 
aries so ve ry much. "It's like C~n~tm?s t~~elpf,;g Hands" crew that went 

Our thanks go to the Mast~r s en s rainin Center at Bondoukou. 
to Cote d'lvoire and he lped bUilddhe ( ~ut~ortunitYes. Although there are 

We live in a tim~ of_unpr~ce en. e offers a wonderful challenge. Free 
limitations on pubhc Wlt!less;g, ~~;na ~e Affiliate Sarah Malone has had 
Will Baptists are acceptmg t e c a en ·ointed another couple to China 
success this pas t year. The bWioalrldBhat~ ~~ble College will be spending the and two students from Free 1 ap IS 

summer there. Woll 8 r t young people will be ministering in 
Twenty-one other Free I ap ts . . ary program 

. part of our student mtss1on · 
seven countnes as a. the most promising program of our 

The newe~t, handTEAMm so(~:e;:~quipped and Active in Missions) pro· department, IS t e 

gr~:enty-six high school juniors2~nde:::~~~~s :e~~e J~t r;~~~::.'!if~~ 
Panama and Uruguay. TwKo.o~th~ th mgroup in Panama. Since nine of the 
Spain and three other M s JOme e . · · rvice we are 
I 0 rEAM Brazi! :92 members ar~ ~rep~~! r~~~~~~;f:?'t~~ live; or this excitedly awaiting the news 0 ow 

year's TEAM members. . retirement of missionaries and the 
This is most encouragi~g. T~e. "ficance to the interest of our youth. 

challenge of open door~ ad ~:a v!1~?~ating opportunities for ministry in 
w_e have been praytng ~n 1~ We ho e to find a people withou~ a 

Russta and the fo~er SovJ~t Unw~ ostle laul we want to preach Chnst 
church or gospel Witnes~. LJkedthef bp "I ding on the foundation of others. where He is not named mstea 0 m 
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This has been a difficult year but God has worked in unusual ways to 
advance the gospel. I'm thankful for the dedicated, hardworking men and 
women in our office as well as those overseas. We are deeply indebted 
to you for your prayer support and encouragem ent. With all our hearts, all 
of us thank you. 

We appreciate the opportunities of serving you--our National Associa­
tion of Free Will Baptists. We pledge our loyalty to our Lord and you, and 
request that you continue to uphold your missionaries, staff, and board in prayer. 

Respectfully submitted, 

R. Eugene Waddell 
General Director 

BOARD 0 F FOR_E_I ~ M='I:O.:S:-:S:::I:::O"'"'-N:7S :-:0:-:F---:::T-;H~E 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Financial Statements 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of t~~e 
d f Foreign Missions of 

Boar o f F Will Baptists National Association o ree 

Me•nbe•s 
IIMEntCAIIlfiSIIlUIE or 

C1:RIIF1EO PUBLIC ACCOUWIIIH<; 
tENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

CERIIFIED PUBLIC 1\CCOIINI litH<; 

balance sheet of the Board of Foreign 
We have audited the accompanylngf F • Will Baptists (a nonprofit 

Missions of the National :sso~~at~;;2o an~~~IJe related state~~nts :frs~~:o;~ar 
organization) as of Decem er • in fund balances and cash ows o 
and revenue, expenses and changes ts are tlle r~sponsibllity of the 
then ended. These financial statemen ibility is to express an opinion on 

t Our respons Organization's managemen · b don our audit 
these financial statements ase 

1 t ed auditing lth general y accep We conducted our audit in accordance wlan and perform the audit to 
Those standards require that we p fi ial statements are free of standards. b t whether the nanc i vidence 

obtain reasonable assurance a o~ includes examining, on a test bas s, e audit 
material misstatement. An audi i the financial statements. An 
supporting the amounts and disclosures ~lnciples used and significant 

also includes assessing the ac~~u:~~~ga~ evaluating the overall finan~~=lbasis 
estimates made by management, li that our audit provides a reasona 

i We be eve statement presentat on. 
for our opinion. 

ements referred to above present 
In our opinion, the financial st~~nancial position of the Board of 

fairly in all material respects, the i tion of Free Will Baptists as of 
Forelg~ Missions of the Nation~l A~~o~ t: operations and its cash fl~wsif~:sthe 
December 31, 1992 and the resu tsh nerally accepted accounting pr nc p 
year then ended in conformity wit ge 

April 20, 1993 
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BOARp OF FOREI~N ii:RiiNS or ;HE 
NATIONAL ASSQCIATIO 0 WIL APTIST~ 

Balance Sheet 
December 31, 1992 

Cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments - Notes 1 & 2 
Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries - Note 2 

Capitalized lease costs - Note 4 
Prepaid expenses 
Equipment, at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation - Notes 1 & 5 

Due from plant fund - Note 3 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

Operating 
Unrestricted 

and 
Restricted 

Eund~ 
$ 750,170 

444,192 

34,036 
39,507 
1,884 

34,233 

~1,304,022 

Plant 
Eund 

$ 

109,504 

~109,504 

LIABILITIES AND fUND BALANCES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Due to operating fund - Note 3 
Restricted deferred revenue; - Note 6 

Missionary accounts 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances (deficit)· 
Unrestricted 
Net invested in plant 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

Commitments - Note 10 

See accountants' report and ac~om~anying 
notes to the financial statem; ts 

$ 210,581 

1.125. 859 

1. 336. 44Q 

( 32,418) 

( J2.41~) 

SL 304 ,022 

-2-

A-78 

$ 
34,233 

34,233 

Z!LVl 
z~.v1 

Sl09,504 

( 

Total 
All 
Eum:!~ 

$ 750,170 
444,192 

34,036 
39,507 

1,884 

109,504 
34. 23J 

~1 1 41) I 526 

$ 210,581 
34,233 

1. 125.859 

1.370.673 

32,418) 
z~.221 
42,8~J 

Sl.413,526 

Statement of 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTIST: 

Expenses and Cbanges n Support and Revenue, 31 1992 Eund Balances 
For the Year Ended pecember . 

Unrestricted 
Support and revenue 
Contributions - Note 1 
Investment income 
Gain on disposal of 
plant assets 

Other 

Total support and revenue 

Expenses 
Informational and 
promotional 

Travel and board 
Administrative 
Missionaries 
Depreciation 

Total expenses 

$454,636 
43,725 

13.833 
3,592 

515,786 

194,078 
45,306 

520,972 

760 ,356 

Excess (deficiency) of 
support and revenue 
over expenses ( 244,570) 

Fund balances, beginning 
of year 

Transfers among funds and 
other changes: 

Loss on decline in market 
value of common stock 
investments ( 

To plant for asset 
acquisitions, net of 
dispositions ( 

Repayment fo r inter-fund 
borrowing ( 

Informational and 
promotional material 

11,680 

5,021) 

26,585) 

17,116) 

and equipment transfers 
· Note 7 249,194 

(deficit) . Fund balances 
end of year (S 32.418) 

Operating 

( 

Restricted 
Missionary ADVANCE 

Accounts Campaign 

$3,903,631 $141,032 

3 , 903.631 141,032 

3,654,437 141,032 

3,654,437 141,032 

249,194 -0-

249 ,194) --­

;l.s __ ..... o... ~s_ ...... o ... -

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements , 

-3-
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$ 

( 

Plant 
Fund 

29,626 

29.626 

29,626) 

61,196 

26,585 

17. 116 

$ 75 , 271 

( 

( 

Total 
All 

Eunds 

$4,499,299 
43,725 

13,833 
3.592 

4 ,560.449 

194,078 
45,306 

520,972 
3,795,469 

29,626 

4,585.451 

25,002) 

72.876 

5' 021) 

·0· 

-0· 

$ 42.853 
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Operating activities 

BOARO OF fOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Ooerating 
Restricted 

Missionary ADVANCE 
Unrestricted Accounts Campaign 

Plant 
Fund 

Total 
All 
Funds 

Excess (deficiency) of support 
and revenue over expenses 

Adjustment to reconcile net 
income to net cash provided 

($244,570) $249,194 $ ($ 29,626)($ 25,002) 

by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Gain on disposal of property( 
Changes in operating assets 
and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in 
accounts receivable 

(Increase) decrease in 
investments 

11,270 
13,833) 

( Increase) decrease in 
prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in 
accounts payable 

Increase (decrease) in 
deferred revenue 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

Investing activities 
Proceeds on sale of equipment 
Purchase of equipment 

Net cash used in investing 
activities 

Financing activities 
Net cash provided by financing 
activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Transfers 
Transfer of informational 
and promotional material 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of year 

( 4,169) 

133,936 

6,431 

26,816 

( 99,202) 

( 183. 321) 

( 

( 

49. 110 
61.862) 

12,752) 

-0-

( 196,073) 

249,194 

697,049 

$750.170 

( 

$ 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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249.194 -0-

-0- -0-

-0- -0-

249,194 

249,194) 

-0- -0-

-0- s -0-

29,626 29,626 

-0-

( 

11' 270 
( 13,833) 

( 4. 169) 

133,936 

6,431 

26,816 

99,202) 

65,8n 

49,110 
( 61, 862) 

--~-0!..::.- ( 12, 752) 

--~-0!..::.- -0-

53,121 

-0- 69Z ,049 

~ -0- ~750.170 

Note 1 -

BOARD OF fOREIGN MISSIONS Of THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
oecember 31. 1992 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists. The purpose of the 
Organization is to establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission 
Churches throughout the world. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 
50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptista, Inc. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Fund accounting 

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the 
use of resources available to the Organization, the accounts of the 
Organization are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund 
accounting. This is the procedure by which resources for various 
purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds 
established according to their nature and purposes. Separate accounts 
are maintained for each fund; however, in the accompanying financial 
statements, funds that have similar characteristics have been combined 
into fund groups. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been 
recorded and reported by fund group. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

Property and equipment is stated at acquisition cost. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives range 
from 3-10 years. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at the lower of cost or market. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Board considers 
all cash on deposit, money market funds and highly liquid debt 
instruments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents. 

-5-
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Note 2 -

Note 3 -

BOARD OF fOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE ~ILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1992 

Summary of significant concentrations ----- of financial instruments 

As of December 31, 1992, the Board . 
institutions and the Board of R 1 had deposlts with financial 
A . . et rement and In f ssoclatlon of Free Will Bapti surance o the National 
d i sLs. The following i epos ts and the corresponding ri k f s summary of those 

s o accounting loss: 

Demand deposit accounts with 
financial institutions 

In~erest bearing deposit accounts 
Wlth financial institutions 

Money market accounts held by 
investment bankers 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Certificates of deposit with 
financial institutions - maturity 
of greater than three months 

Deposits held in trust by a 
financial institution 

In~erest bearing deposits on account 
Wlth the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Assoc. 
of Free Will Baptists 

Money market accounts held by 
investment bankers 

Common stock 
Total investments 

Accounts receivable from employees 
and missionaries 

$ 

Account 
Balance 

2. 241 

737,086 

10.843 

Z~O,lZO 

30,000 

222,553 

12,816 

178,173 
650 

444.192 

34 '036 

Total 
$1.228.398 

Inter-fund borrowing 

Amount 
Insured/ 
Secured 

$ 

266,939 

10.843 

277.782 

100,000 

49.648 

149,648 

$427.430 

Amount of 
According 

Risk of Loss 

$ 2. 241 

470,147 

472.388 

30,000 

122,553 

12,816 

128,525 
650 

294 544 

34 036 

s 800.968 

As of December 31, 1992, h 1 the operating fund of $34,233. t e pant fund had an outstanding debt to 

-6-
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Note 4 -

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION Of fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the financial Statements 
December 31, 1992 

Capitalized lease payments 

The National Association of free Will Baptists, Inc. purchased an 
office building to house various departments and agencies of the 
denomination. The Board entered into an agreement to lease space in 
this new building and agreed to contribute to the debt service costs 
during the construction period and to continue until the debt has been 
retired. The construction period costs of $65,844 were capitalized. 
These costs will be amortized against operations over a five year 
period. During 1992, $11,270 was charged against operations leaving a 
resultant balance of $39,507 . 

Plant funds 

A summary of plant fund assets is as follows : 

Office furniture and equipment 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Net invested in plant 

$ 31,855 
47,335 
35,200 
72 '316 

186,706 
77 '202 

$109.504 

Depreciation expense, computed utilizing the straight line method 
amounted to $29,626. 

Restricted deferred revenue 

Changes in restricted deferred revenue is as follows: 

Missionary ADVANCE 

fiS:l<Q!.!Dt~ ~gmpaign Iotd 

Balance, December 31, 1991 -
as restated - Note 11 $1,038,286 $186,775 $1,225,061 

Contributions J . §~J . 4f!Z 42 . Z8Q 3 ,696, 267 

Funds available 4,691,773 229,555 4,921,328 

Expenses and campaign 
3,795,469) expenditures ( 3,654,437) ( 141,032) ( 

Transfer ADVANCE to 
Missionary accounts f!f!.~ZJ ( 88,523) -0-

Balance, December 31, 1992 U.l~~.§~2 ~ -Q- ~1.1~5.8~9 

InfQrmational and promotional mgterial !!Dd equipment transfers 

The 
reimburse 
expenses. 
operating 

Board charges a fee against the foreign field accounts to 
the unrestricted fund for information service production 
These fees are presented as transfers from the restricted 

fund to the unrestricted operating fund. 

-7-
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Note 8 -

Note 9 -

Note 10 -

Note 11 -

BOARQ OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPIISTS 

Notes to the financial Statements 
December 31. 1992 

Pension plan 

The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of the National Associa tion of Free Will 
Baptists. The Board contributes 5% of gross salary for missionaries and 
a fixed rate based on years of service for administrative employees. 
Employees are allowed to contribute but are not required to contribute. 
Employees with two years of service may participate. Pension expenses 
amounted to $70,805. The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. 
Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon 
retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or 
purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

Lease 

The Board entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 with 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and 
storage space. The term of the lease is until all mortgages on the 
building are satisfied, which is approximately 22 years. The rent 
expense for the year was $95,381. 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Commitments 

1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 

Thereafter (estimated) 

$ 95,378 
95,378 
95,378 
95,378 
95,378 

1,621,433 

The Board has pledged its furniture and fixtures as collateral on a 
mortgage note that the National Association of Free ~ill Baptists has 
with the Church Extension Loan Fund. 

Prior period adJustment 

The beginning 
missionary accounts 
December 31, 1991. 

balance of the restricted deferred revenue-
has 
The 

been restated to record accounts payable at 
restatement of restricted deferred revenue-
1991 is as follows: missionary accounts for 

Restricted deferred revenue-missionary 
accounts per previous report 

Less: accounts payable 
Restricted deferred revenue-missionary 
accounts as restated 
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$1,124,089 
( 85,803) 

SL 038
1
286 

THONI, HINTON & WARREN 

Membets 

C{nuntO PUBllC ACCOUNIAtUS 
!HE SPENCE BlOO SUIII: ?OO 

6~0 SPENCE LANE 
NASHVILLE, IN 31?11 IISO 

81~361 87?6 AMERICAN INSTITUIE OF 
PIIWfl J THQNI, CPA 

1\1,8EAT CPA 
CAVIl C HINTON. A 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC 1\CCOUNIIINIS 
tENNESSEE SOCIETY OF 

R()I!EAT RAY WARREN, CP CERTifiED PUBLIC ACCOUNI IIIHS 

H DENNEY. CP" 
~BRUCE WAlLACE. CPA 

ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of 

1 i f Free Will Baptists The National Assoc at on o 

financial statements of the Board Our report on our audit of the basic f F "ill Baptists for 1992 
i 1 A oclatlon o ree w 

of Foreign Missions of the Nat ona ~s for the purpose of forming an opinion 
appears on page 1. That audit was m: e whole The schedule to combine 
on the basic financial statements ta en :s :ditlons to restricted deferred 
unrestricted fund support and reve~uedan :nses and schedule of restricted 
revenue schedule of unrestricted un exp of ~ddltional analysis and are not 
fund ex~enses are presented for the purpose ts Such information has been 

f h b ic financial statemen . b i a required part o t e as 11 d in the audit of the as c 
subjected to the auditing procedures app ei f irly stated in all material 

d in our opinion, s a h 1 financial statements an • financial statements taken as a w o e. 
respects in relation to the basic 

April 20, 1993 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
FREE ~ILL BAPTISTS 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF i ;ed Fund Support and 
Schedule to Combine Unrestr ~ ted Deferred Revenue 

ddi · s to Restr1c Revenue and Atlon b 31 1992 
For the Year Ended Decem er . 

Besnicted 
Missionary ADVANCE 

Unrestricted Accounts Campaign 

Support and revenue: 
454,636 $3,653,487 $ 42,780 $ Contributions 

Investment income 43.725 

Gain on disposal of 
13.833 plant assets 
~I ~22 Other 

Total support and revenue s 515 1 Z86 ~~.653,48Z s 42.780 

See accountants' report on supplementary information, 
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Total 
Funds 

$4,150,903 
43' 725 

13,833 
3 , 592 

~4.212.0~~ 
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BOARD OF fOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Unrestricted Fund Expenses 
for the Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Unrestricted fund expenses 

Informational and promotional: 
Video and audio visual 
Heartbeat 
Postage 
Data processing 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper and supplies 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 

Travel and board: 
Deparcment auto 
Board members 
Administracive - overseas travel 
Honorariums 
Department travel 
Traveler's insurance 

Administrative: 
Salaries 
Housing 
Social security 
Employer payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Hospitalization 
Auditing 
Office rent 
Amortization of capital lease payments 
Office equipment 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Estate expenses 
Miscellaneous 

Total unrestricted fund expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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$ 14,839 
39,075 
51,139 
31,222 
35,915 
11, 160 

565 
3,620 
5,943 

600 
194.078 

7,634 
12,858 
1,150 

350 
22,454 

860 
45.306 

224.213 
51,830 
25,803 
11,815 

7,625 
54,403 
13,031 
95,381 
11' 270 

726 
1,927 
2,613 

741 
19.594 

520.972 

§760.356 

BOARD Of fOREIGN MISSIONS Of THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule of Restricted Fund Expenses 
F;r the Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Restricted fund expenses 

Missionar ies - Foreign Fields: 
Ivory Coast 
France 
India 
Brazil 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Summer missionaries 
Other projects 
Special investigative commitcee 

$1,014,440 
475,671 
109,362 
594.371 
412,572 
105,637 
494,373 
257,690 
47,311 

137,061 
5 949 

3,654,437 

transferred to unrestricted funds for ( Maintenance fees 
information and promotional materials 249 194) 

ADVANCE campaign expenditures: 
General expenses 
Project expenses 

Total restricted fund expenses 

t On suoolementary information. See accountants' repor _ _ __ -

-12-

A-87 

3.405.243 

4,502 
136.530 
141.032 

$3,546.275 
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1992 1993 1994 Salaries and benefits for employees in the foreign missions office. 
Editorial Assistant $1 2,610 $13,478 $13,882 (Similar information concerning overseas personnel is ava iJable upon 

1,031 1,062 Salary . 965 
694 

request.) 
social Secunty 

300 300 
3,522 Retirement 3,013 3,202 

$18,011 $19,160 Insurance $\6,888 General Director 1992 1993 1994 Total 
Salary $191299 $18161 1 $19,60 1 Bookkeeper $181631 $171700 $18,231 Housing & Utilities 14,400 14,400 14,400 Salary . 1,425 1,354 1,395 Social Securi ty 5,443 5,432 51595 Social Secunty 

300 300 912 Retirement 960 960 1,340 Retirement 
2,699 2,782 3 ,060 Insurance 8,378 8,140 8,954 Insurance 

$23,055 $22,136 $23,598 

. ~ I 
Total $48,480 $47,543 $491890 Total Note: Office car furnished. 

'. 
. · I Accounting Clerk $14,708 • $15,083 $14,280 Director of Communications 

Salary . 
1 J 154 1,092 1! 125 Salary $22,059 $21,425 $22,338 Social Secunty 

550 600 735 Housing & Utilities 91000 9,000 9,000 Retirement 
2,767 2,774 3,051 Social Securi ty 51016 5,006 5,156 Insurance 

$19,554 $18,746 $19 ,619 
Retirement 985 960 1,477 Total Insurance 8,142 8,140 8,954 Total $45.202 $44,531 $46,925 Secretary 

$21 ,948 $21,500 $22 ,145 
Salary 

1,679 1,645 1,694 
Overseas Secretary 

Social Security 
600 600 1,107 

Salary $20,259 $19,625 $20,538 Retirement 
2,787 2,782 3,060 : I 

l 
Housing & Utilities 10,800 10,800 10,800 Insurance 

$27,014 $26,527 $28,006 Socia! Security 5,016 5,006 5,156 Total 
, I 

Retirement 960 960 1,387 Insurance 41704 41379 41817 Secretary 
$16,229 $15,898 $16,375 

Total $41 1739 $40,770 $42,698 Salary 
1,242 1,216 1,253 

I; I Note: Office car furnished. 
Social Security 

420 819 ' 420 

" Retirement 
2.775 2)82 3.060 I: 

~21 ,507 :I 
Director of Missionary-Church Relations 

Insurance 
$20,316 . I • $20,666 

: . 

Salary $18,859 $17,225 $18,138 Total 
:I 

Housing & Utilities 12,200 13,200 13,200 
! f 

Social Security 5,016 5,006 5,156 
:I 

I 

Retirement 750 780 1,267 
' ; 

Insurance 4,461 4,466 41913 
. i 
! I 

Total $41 ,286 $40,677 $421674 
i 

I 
Note: Office car furnished. 

I Treasurer 
J 
I 
li 
• 

Salary $27,989 $30,425 $31,338 
~ 

Social Security 2,678 5,040 5,192 Retirement 625 660 1,927 Insurance 8,962 8,140 8,954 Total $40,254 $44,265 $47,411 

I: 
Audio/Visual Technician 

Salary $16,333 $16,000 $16,480 Social Security 1,249 1,224 1,261 Retirement 275 300 824 
I 

Insurance 2,475 2,782 3,060 
i 

Total $20,332 $20,306 $21 ,625 

I 
I 

! 
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1994 Budget o f Expense 

Foreign Fields· 
Brazil 
France 
India 
Ivory Coast 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Other fields 

Foreign Fields Total 
·Budgets for foreign expenditures are 
subject to change where extreme fluctuation 
in the value of the dollar occurs. 

Information and Promotion 
Audio visuals, films & filmstrips 
Video 
Equipment 
Cassette ministry 
Heartbeat 
Postage 
Data Processing 
Publicity materials 
Telephone 
Services & dues 
Paper supplies 
Books and subscriptions 
Retreat & debriefing sessions 
Fund-raising expenses 
Miscellaneous projects (Together Way Fund1ng) 
Personnel 

Total 
Less: Transfer of 7% info/promo charges 

Information and Promotion Total 

Travel & Board Expenses 
Department auto expenses 
Board member expense 
Board member overseas travel 
Honorariums 
Department travel expense 
Travelers' insurance 

Travel and Board Total 

A-90 

$ 650,412 
439,287 
118,111 

1,303,705 
451 ,269 
118,656 
408,630 
255,498 
132,000 

$3,877,568 

$ 4,500 
6,350 

15,500 
800 

40,000 
51 ,200 
31 ,300 
57,710 
11 ,200 

600 
5,600 

600 
6,000 

30,000 
14,800 
40,785 

316,945 
{245,037) 

$11,400 
13,000 

0 
400 

23,700 
900 

$71 ,908 

$49,400 

Administrative 
Salaries . . 
Administrative hou?1ng . 
Administrati~e Social Secunty 
Hospitalization Insurance 
Retirement . 
Medicare supplement Insurance 

Audit .
1
d. 

Interest expense - BUI 1ng 
Office rent 
Office equipment . 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Miscellaneous expense 
Payroll taxes . 

Administrative Total 

Other 
Retired missionaries 

Total Regular Foreign Missions Budget 

A-91 

$200,000 
52,000 
24,000 
50,000 
5,800 
1,800 
4,000 

17,000 
88,000 

1,000 
2,000 
2,600 

20,000 
12,000 

$480,200 

6,600 

$4,485,676 
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State 
Alabama 
Arkansas 
Arizona 
California 
Colorado 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Iowa 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Missouri 
Mississippi 
Montana 
Nebraska 
New Mexico 
Northeast Assn.* 
Northwest Assn.** 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Pennsylvania 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
Virgin Islands 
West Virginia 
W.N.A.C. 
Miscellaneous 

Totals 

1994 State Goals 
With 1992 Comparisons 

1992 Goal 1992 Actual 
$ 199,000 $ 176,938 

235,000 234,989 
6,200 8,579 

95,000 87,140 
7,000 7,121 

95,000 66,938 
186,000 147,240 

5,000 2,569 
2,500 2,310 
1,000 764 

125,000 104,552 
47,000 41 ,804 
19,000 16,145 
85,000 74,768 

300 345 
23,000 18,104 

155,000 147,704 
313,000 325,341 
67,000 48,421 
1,250 1,406 
1,500 736 
1,000 956 
5,000 5,035 
7,500 7,846 

560,000 508,839 
130,000 139,092 
457,000 402,753 

1,000 375 
254,000 218,500 
650,000 629,260 
148,000 88,905 
150,000 119,488 

2,500 2,711 
92,500 105,491 

145,129 
162,756 469,973 

$4,290,006 $4,358,267 

1994 Goal 
$ 192,000 

255,000 
9,300 

95,000 
7,800 

73,000 
160,000 

2,800 
2,500 
1,000 

114,000 
45,000 
18,000 
81 ,000 

400 
20,000 

160,000 
353,000 
53,000 
1,500 

BOO 
1,000 
5,500 
8,500 

553,000 
151 ,000 
437,000 

400 
237,000 
683,000 
97,000 

130,000 
3,000 

115,000 
120,000 
299,176 

$4,485,676 

*New Hampshire, Vermont, New Jersey, Maine, Connecticut Massachusetts 
**Alaska, Oregon, Washington. ' · 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 
This has been another encouraging year for your college. Dr. Vernon 

Whaley has returned to the music faculty with Mr. Jerry Carraway, and 
they are making exciting contributions to our music program as well as 
challenging many of our Free Will Baptist young people to consider Free 
Will Baptist Bible College. 

All of our departments are making a vital contribution to our students 
and their commitment to serve Christ. Along with our new computer lab, 
we now have computers in every dormitory and some students have 
computers in their rooms. The addition of an Accounting Major to our 
Business Program is attracting students. So is our new Sports Medicine 
Major in the Physical Education Department. Eighty-three young men are 
in the ministerial program and about 50 students are preparing for 
missionary service. Seventy married students enrolled this year, which is 
outstanding and a great encouragement to me. All of our students get a 
major in Bible along with whatever other major they may choose. 

All of this has contributed to almost a 12% increase in enrollment. We 
started second semester with the same number of students as first 
semester. This is a first in the history of the college. 

We have employed Mr. Philip Nelson to begin a new program in 
Education/Youth Ministry this fall. His primary responsibility will be to 
prepare youth directors for local churches. We are excited about this new 
program and believe it will make a needed contribution to our pastors and 
churches. 

We are on track in our pursuit for accreditation by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) and presently we are in­
volved in a self-study. Hopefully, we will have our team visit in April 1994 
on our way to candidacy status. The pursuit of SACS accreditation is an 
expensive and time consuming undertaking. We must have greater 
support from our churches and individuals. We can only do what you 
enable us to do through faithful , generous contributions. 

Welcome Days, both in the fall and spring, set new attendance records-
346 in the fall, 419 in the spring. 

This is a new day. New doors are opening for your coJlege, and we must 
seize this opportunity to reach and equip our Free Will Baptist young 
people. 

Mrs. Fay Jennings Thompson retired from our music faculty on May 31 
after 20 years of service. Brother Ronald Creech plans to retire October 31 , 
marking the completion of 16 years as our Director of Development. We 
are grateful for the years of service to our college and our denomination 
by Mrs. Thompson and Brother Creech. 

Recently our Board of Trustees authorized us to begin repairs on 
buildings that are in desperate need. They also authorized us to borrow 
the money necessary to make the repairs in order to prevent further 
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deterioration of buildings and equipment. 
Free Will Baptist Bible College stands as a testimony to God's faithful~ 

ness and remains a service organization to our denomination. We are 
committed to teaching our students to be faithful to God's will and His 
church . 

Thank God for the dedicated men and women who serve the Lord 
through this ministry. They are good people who have a consuming desire 
to do God's will. Please stand with us and support us during these days of 
tremendous opportunity. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tom Malone, President 

Synopsis of Minutes, FWBBC Board of Trustees 

Semi-Annual Meeting, December 9, 1992 
at Free Will Baptist Bible College 

All members present except Sam Truett (absent because of illness). 
Committee assignments for year: 

(1) Plant & Finance (Price, Powell, Walker); 
(2) Student Affairs (Creech, Bowers, Montgomery); 
(3) Faculty Affairs (Little, Ketchum, Truett). 

Orientation of new board members. 
Re ports of President and other administrative offices. 
Other actions included: 

(I) to explore employment of a Director of Deferred Giving; 
(2) approval of Christmas bonuses for employees; 
(3) approval of sale of 35 I 9 Richland Avenue property. 

Annual Meeting, May 10-12, 1993 
at Free Will Baptist Bible College 

All members present except Bob Ketchum (absent because of flooding 
conditions near home and mother's iHness). 

President's report included reference to: (I) progress in enrollment; 
(2) pursuit of SACS accreditation (seJf.study proceeding; first evaluation 
team visit tentatively scheduled for April 1994); (3) impending retirement 
of Fay Thompson and Ronald Creech. 

Report relative to Graduate School closing: a system has been devised 
for those interested in completing the program to do so by external study 
by the August 31, 1994, deadline. 

Ac tions included: 
(I) approval of plan for increased help for faculty continuing educa­

tion; 
(2) employment of PhiJip Nelson to teach Christian Ed. and Youth 

Ministry; 
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·ng Joseph Jones to full-time status; (3) retumi . . . 
a1 of major m Accountmg, . 

( 4) approv I f . r in Church Music Pastoral Associate Emphasis; 
(5) approval of maJo mended adjust~ents in administrative roles to 

. (6) approva oH recotm to spend m ore time in Institutional Research, 
allow Dr. amp on . 
Assessment and Planmng. 

. ' f 1 tt f appreciation for Mrs. Thompson. 
(7) prepara~?n ~ eofe~~blic Relations indicated: (1) pleasure with 

Report from tree or. D . ($205 526)· (2) plan for a phone-a-
results of Ketteman Chnst~as nve , , 
than for the general fund this summer. 

· · luded· 
Other ac~~ns mcth . ·~g the administration to use any available a~d 
(I) dectsJOn au dodr~Izt.tional funds needed to make emergency repatrs borrow any a 

quickly as possible. . h t 
as f h d budget with expresston of regret t a 

(2) approval .o t e propots~ eluded 'promising that raises will be 
salary raises are no m ' t r . 

.d red ·In the fall if enrollment exceeds current ex pee a IOns, 
canst e · · · · ranee cover-(3) minor procedural adjustments and revisions m msu 
age for employees. 

Financial Aid Report 
~38 ..................... $1141909.75 Loans Issued..................................................... 
83 

............ : ....................... 124,000.00 
Student Workers................................................. ............ 36 375.97 

. . . t 83 ...... ~................ ........... , Scholarship Rec1p1en s ...................................... ....... 15 615.00 
40 . f............................. ' SEOG Program................................................... ............ 9 461 00 

College Work-Study Program ............................ ll ..................................... 1.9s' ogs:oo 
d 133 .. .. . .. . .... . . . .. ....... ' Pell Grant Awa~ s ............................................ ........ .... 233 243.00 

P 92 •" ••• ., ............ ' I Stafford Loan rogram ................... · ............ ·· ····· ··· ·· ......... . ..... 1 464.00 
Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program ....... ·· ....... ·· 1 ... ·· ·· · ....... ·· ... ·· ....... ..... 35 I 600.00 

12 .... ~...... . . . . . . . . • PLUS L P ...... ........ .... . . oan rogram ..... · ......... ·· · ·· ·· ..... ·· ·· ... · ·· .... · · 4 000.00 
1 .. '. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' SLS Loan Program ....................... .. ....................... ........ ......... ... $769 763.72 

Total Financial Aid Administered 92·93 ...... ·· ·· .......... ·· · .... · ......... ·· · .. ·· .. · ·· ·· ' 

Welch Ubrary 
. d d'ngs video cassettes, instruc~ Total books, bound volumes, mtcroforms, soun recor ' I 55 121 

. . I t ···················· ····························· ' t1onal matena s, e c .............. ··· ....... ···· ... ··· ...... · ... 

~~~e aJ~~::::· ~Wa~:~~:s~~~~~!d at~ ddt ~=o[~~:~:::.~!~~l~h~~ 
The audit report will be presen e 
report. 
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Registration Report 
1992-93 

Undergraduate Enrollment ....................................................................................... 343 

Enrollment Breakdowns 
By State 

Alabama 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Delaware 
Florida 
Georgia 
Illinois 
Indiana 

29 
14 
5 
3 
2 

10 
16 
23 
14 

Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 

1 
12 
3 
7 
7 

17 
1 

32 
12 

Oklahoma 3 
South Carolina 10 
Tennessee 87 
Texas 10 
Virginia 12 
Washington 3 
West Virginia 3 
Virgin Islands 1 
Foreign 6 

(The student body represents 25 states, the Virgin Islands and 5 foreign 
countries.) 

By Classification 

Freshmen ................ ........... 126 Juniors ..... .......... ................... .......... .... . 50 
Sophomores ........ .. .... .. ... ...... 84 Seniors ........................ ....... .. ........ ....... 58 

Special .................. .. .............. 25 

Others 

Male .................................... 198 
Female ................................ 145 
Free Will Baptist ................ 320 
Other ..................................... 23 

Ministerial ............................................ 83 
Missionary ........................................... 46 
Single ....................................... ......... 273 
Married ................................................ 70 

Enrollment Summary 1992-93 
Undergraduate enrollment, first semester .............................................................. 300 
Additional enrollment, second semester ......................................... ....................... ... 38 
Total enrollment, first and second semesters ....................... .. .......... .................... . 338 
Summer 1992 enrollment not already counted ................... .......... ...... ...................... .. 5 
Total undergraduate enrollment ....... .. ............ ....... .. ... .. ................... .. .. .. .. .... ... .. ....... 343 
Not counted above: students in a special Spring course-MU 231 ................ .. .. .... 22 
Students served in 1992-93 ................................................................ ..... .. ............ .. 365 
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State 
Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Connecticut 
Delaware 
Flonda 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Nebraska 
Nevada 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 

Gift Report 
June I, 1992- May 31, 1993 

June-May 1993 State June-May 1993 
$142,034.34 North Carolina $58,035.57 

Ohio 17,773.29 2,017. 71 
16,753.13 Oklahoma 39,936.34 
43,974.13 South Carolina 5,669.11 

.00 South Dakota 1,365.00 
148,419.71 .00 Tennessee 

.00 Texas 8,094.61 
.00 11 ,906.36 Vermont 

13,898.39 72,402.19 Virginia 
1,451 .08 1,113.22 Washington 

West Virginia 5,011 .26 24 .29 
2,845.84 30,087.93 W. N. A. C. 

134.95 6,482.97 Canada 
1,037.45 300.00 Virgin Islands 

24 ,827.79 303.75 College Family 
35,007.50 16,310.25 Matching Gifts 

Foreign Missionaries 1,714.99 55.00 
21836.22 2,805.91 M is cell aneous 

780,108.62 24,080.97 Total 
17,369.62 

Alumni Project 11,235.50 23,806.48 
7,000.00 190.00 Estates/Trusts 

.00 

.00 Grand Total ~798,344 . 12 

31 .27 
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Salary Breakdown 

President 1991-92 1992-93 
Salary 

$40,000 $45,000 Social Security 
3,060 3,442 Retirement 
1,600 1,930 Insurance-life 

159 159 Insurance-medica! 1,781 1,946 Total 
$46,600 $52,477 Note: resides in campus housing 

Academic Dean 
Salary 

$35,000 $38,500 Social Security 
2,677 2,945 Retirement 
1,400 1,651 Insurance-life 

159 159 lnsura nee-medical 1 781 1,946 Total 
$41,017 $45,201 

Public Relations Director 
Salary 

$29,575 $32,533 Social Security 
2,262 2,488 Retirement 
1,183 1,395 Insurance-life 

159 159 Insurance- medical 1,781 1,946 Total 
$34,960 $38,521 

Development Director 
Salary 

$28,850 $31,736 Social Security 
2,207 2,427 Retirement 
1,154 1,361 Insurance-life 

159 159 Insurance- medical 
1,781 l ,946 Total 

$34, 151 $37,629 
I. 

I Treasurer 
Salary 

$30,000 $34,000 

. . . . ' . ' 

Social Security 
2,295 2,601 . : 

Retirement 
1,200 1,458 Insurance-life 

159 159 Insurance-medica/ 
1 '781 1,946 TctaJ 

$35,435 $40,164 

• Proposed salary/benefits: no changes; insurance rate change not available at this date. 

. . 
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Proposed Gift Income Budget 
1993-1994 

$ 70,000 ................................. 00 Alabama ......................... ···.. . ................. 3,0 
Arizona ............................................ ·............ . 40,000 
Arkansas ...................................................................... 12,000 
Cal.lfornia ........ ...... ....... ................. ................ .............. 1 000 

... , , .. "•, • · • • •• • • • • I d ................. 000 Colora o ..................................... . 7 
• • • • • • • • • • ... • • • 1 Connecticut ...... ................ ................... ....... ... . 200 

Delaware ...................................... .. ........ .. .................. ::·2·6,ooo 
• 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 . 0 . .. 0 0 .. . 00 0 0 t> '" 0 0 0 0 0 I 00 o• "0 0 0 0 0 Flonda ............................ ...... 65,00 

Georgia ............. · ............ · ............................................... 1,000 
Hawa.,·, ... .. .. .. .. . . ... .. .. ... . ..... .. ... .. ........... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. 500 

,......... .. ......................................... 00 Idaho ....................................... .. ... 45,0 
.. . . . . .. .. . . . . .. . . .. . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . 0 IllinoiS...................................... 14,00 

lnd.lana ......................................................... ···· 300 
............ . ............................. ................ . 000 Iowa..................................... .2, 

Kansas .............. ................. · ......................... ::::::::::::::::·17,000 
ky .. .. ................. 200 Kentuc ...................... ........... .. .. 

Louisiana ............................................. .......................... 1 0 000 
.. 0 0 0 0 0 "0 •• 0" I 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 I 0 0 0 0" "' ' M I d ........... 35 000 aryan ............. ....... ......... .............. , 

h. ..................... 27 000 Mic 1gan ................................... , 
Mississippi ......................... · ......................................... 36 500 

• • ••, • ••,, , • , ••,, , • I . . ......................... 1 000 MISSOUri ........................... .. 
. . . . .. . . . . . .. . . ' k .......................... 300 Nebras a........ .................... .. ................. .. 

.......................... 000 Nevada................ ................ . .............. 1, 
• O O O "'. O OO OO OO O fO" I 

00
" I OO 00 New Jersey............................ .. .............. 1,0 

New Mexico ...... · .. .. ................... · .. .. ......... .. ..... 130 000 
O O O O O" O O 0 of .. 0 It 0 ' North Carolina .... ....... ............. .... .... ........... .. 20 000 

o .. <I 0 " 0 . 0 ...... 0 00 0 I 0 0" f 0" 0 0 0 "0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 , OhiO ........................................ 25,000 
Oklahoma ............................. .... ................................. :: 61 000 

+ + .I fO f 0 0 I 0 0 e ot • South Carolina ............ .... .................... ....... .. ............. 1 ,000 
South Dakota ................................................. 180 000 

. . .. .. . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . Tennessee .............. · .. · ................ · ..... .. ... 15 000 
.................................. . T ............ 1 000 exas ...... ............. .. 

t 

0 0 0 0 

oo 

0 0 0 

0 lotto If''' tt 1 ' ot 0 0 '• ' t ....... .. ......... .. 25 000 Vermon ................................ ............... , 
Virginia.......................................................... .. .. 2 000 

• • ••• ••• • •••• •• •••• • ••••••• t •• • • • • , Washmgton .... ........................... . ...... .. .... 10,000 
West Virginia .................................................. .. 12 000 ...... , . .. .. . W N A C .................................. .......... 1 000 

• • • • ••• • ••• •••• f •• •• • • • •• • • • • ' 

d ff •• fO OO O O +Off O of OO + +ff I If 00 Cana a.................................... 1 0 .. . . . . .. . . . .. .. . . ' 
Virgin Islands ...................................... :::::·.::: ............... 65,000 
0 h ..................... . t er .................. .. .. .. .. .. . .. . 

10 000 • • • • ••• •• ••• •• •• ' ' . • • • • • •• • • •• •• • • • • • • • • • t A I u m n 1 ......... • • • • .. • • • • • .. • • • • .... • .. • 30,000 
· G'ft ·· ··· ··············· ··············· Oestgnated 1 s ... ................... .. ... .... ............. 20,000 
· I G'ft .. .. ....... . Specta 1 s ... ......................... .. 

. ............ $1 ,025,000 I ................... . Tota ························ .............. 
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T<rry A Holl 

Ru=ll f l'ul 
Nancy S Alltn 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Nashville, Tennessee 

1992-93 
Financial Report 

Ceruftcd Public AccountantS 

Independent Auditors• Report 

The Board of Trustees 
Free Will Baptist Bible College: 

Br<nt wood Ex< CUllY( C<nou 
761 Old Hockory Boul<vard 
SUil< 10) 
8rtnowood. TN 37027 
TEL 6151)77.)485 
FAX tli51377· H88 

We have audited the balance sheet of Free Will Baptist Bible College as of 
May, 31 1993 and the related statements of changes in fund balances and 
current funds revenues, expenditures and other changes for the year then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the College's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aU 
material respects, the financial position of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
as of May 31, 1993, and the changes in fund balances and current funds 
revenues, expenditures and other changes for the year then ended in 
conforr01ty with generally accepted accounting principles. 

July 6, 1993 
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FREE WILL BAP'l1ST BIBLE COLLEGE 

current fullds: 
Unrestriaed: . 

() sh and U.c:test bearing d eposrt s . 
(nYestments Ill f<lir value at date or g} 1\ 

Prep! id expenses 
Receivables (noe 6): 

SnJdeniS aOOOUDIS 

Sla fhnd others 
Due frocn pR 111 funds 
Due from agency funds 

Total receivables 

1n ven 1 ori es 

Total unrestrided funds 

Restriaed: 
Due from currer& unreSiriaod funds 

Total restriaed funds 

Total current funds 

La\n funds: 
Interest bearing depoGits 
La\ns to Sludents.less allowance for doubtful 

l<llns of $32.500 1993 and 1992 
Due from currera unrestriaed funds 

Totalla~n funds 

Enda.menl funds: 
lntereSI bcaringdepoGits 

Total endONtUent funds 

Anouiy funds: 

lntcreSI bearingdepoGits 

Total aonuiry funds 

Plana funda: 

Interest bcaringdepoGiu 

lnYeSimeot in panl (naes 2and 1): 
land 
Builcinp and improvemeaiS 

Equipmenl 
utnryboou 

Total inves~ment in plllnl 

Aocumulaled depreciation (noe 7) 

Net inveSlment in pRnl 

1\ JI.Cncy funds: 
(~!oh 

Total pant funds 

Due from currer& unrestriood fund 

Total ~~~ncy funds 

Balance Sheet 
M ay 31, 1993 

(with oomparative 6gJ-U"c:a for 1992) 

Aac:ta 

Xe 80001Dpaayln& DOl C. 10 finaDOalr:talemCUIL 
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$ 156..470 

12.569 

14.365 
12.583 
4,728 
4.731 

36..407 

45.439 

250.905 

24.066 

24.068 

274 973 $====== 
$ 310,054 

296,3TI 

606,461 

162.381 

$ 162,381 

s 55.000 

s 55.000 

s 76..805 

296..519 
3.359.926 

797,185 
243.671 

4.(fl7.301 

1.641.193 

3.056.1~ 

s 3,132,913 

s &,053 

$ 6,053 

215.472 

2.<XX> 
5.056 

14.043 
12.125 

10.980 

37.146 

29,320 

288.998 

19.065 

19.065 

308,063 

25&,450 

315,671 
20 

574 341 

14&.227 

14&.227 

55.000 

ss,ooo 

46,ff72 

321.519 
3,409.926 

600.776 
229.791 

4,652.012 

l.S37 .456 

3.114.556 

3,160,628 

1.636 
4.7~ 

~405 



Current funds:: 
UoreJirictcxl: 

Note p~yable IO IDdrviduals (DOle 2) 
Acoouou payable (note.\) 
St udenls' credn baLuces and deposns 
Accrued salaries 

Deferred revenues- summer ·~bool d b 
D 

~ an ot er 
ue to other funds: 

Curren! reslricled funds 
Loiln funds 
Agency funds 

Tot<~ldue 10 otber funds 

Tot<~llillbilities 

Fund baL1oce 

TotAl unrestrictcxl funds 

Resrrictcxl: 

Fund balances _ priv.ue 

1 Olill restricted fundi 

Totalcurre01 funds 

Loan funds · 

Accrued ioreresl 

Notes p<~yab le to indi- idua Is (note 2) 
Fund balances- prrva&e 

Total loan funds 

End004 meot funds: 
Fund balances: 

F.odoowment 

Ouasi-eodcwmeot, unrestricted 
Scholarship, restricled 

Total endow meet funds 

Aoouuy funds: 
Annuity payable 
Fund bal:loce 

Total11oouily funds 

Plilo1 funds: 

Accounts payable 

Due to current unrestricted funds 
Notesaod and capilallease obli . gat10ns (note 2) 

Totalliab•lnies 

Fund bal:lnc:es· 
Uocrpended 
Net Investment in pl:lot 

Total fund bal:loces 

Total plant funds 

A~ocy funds: 

Due to current unrestricted funds 
Funds held in custody for otbers 

Total agency funds 

Liab 'til· 1 '" ud f u d Balua:a 
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s 

s 

s 

s 
63,953 
26~~-Xl 

64,1 J9 

6, 714 

24,06& 

24,06& 

135,449 

65,456 

250,\Q5 

24,06& 

24,06& 

s =====2~7~4 ~97~3 

s 3,373 

213.150 
339.433 

s ===606~46~1 

s 47,6~ 

33,471 

31,2.'>4 

162 331 

s 4,325 

50,61.S 

55 000 s=~~ 

s .5,363 
4,723 

159,436 

169~~77 

73,160 

2,335.176 

2,963,336 

3.132,913 

4. 731 
3.322 

3 053 

1992 --= 

56,07) 
47,&47 
20,911 
67,119 

9,4)1 

19.~ 

20 
4,769 

2),354 

225,233 

63,7~ 

U3,993 

19.00 

19.~~ 

30& QSJ 

6,027 

209.ZAO 
359,(174 

574 341 

47,6~ 

33,471 

67,100 

1 4& Z21 

4.617 

50.333 

5500J 

46~~ 33 

10,930 

77,673 

135,191 

3,02..\437 

3,02..\,43 7 

3.16Q623 

6.405 

6 405 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BI BLE COLLEGE 

Statement of Changes in Fund Oalanccs 

Y car ended May, 31, 1993 

CUrrent Punda 

!_Jnrearidcd Restridcd Loa n l'u nd 1 

RcVt'nues11nd 01her 11dditions: 
UnreSiridod current funds revenues $ 2.451,703 

fedet~~l p~~nu - 11udent 11id funds 
224.605 

PriiAIC !lifts 
24.23 7 1,878 

Endov.ment incane 
2.497 

[n~~eSlment incane - restri<lod 
11 8.543 

Inter~ on aaudent IO\ns 
32.381 

Additiom to phnt filc:iliti~ indudintt $21,744 from current funds 

Addition to long-term debt oblil:lllions 

Retirement of indebtedness 

Proceeds from diSlJC&ll of property 

AdjuSiment of oompued 11nnuiry liability 

Totlll revenues 11nd ~her 11dditiom 2.451,703 251.3.50 42.1102 

&penditurt$l\nd dher deduaions: 

Edu011ional and ~ner.U expend l ures l,l\67 .121 240.526 

Awtili11ry enterprises c:xpendiures 561,377 4,567 

AdminiSirlltive cost <~IIOWllnce 
1.254 

Retirement ofinclcbtedness 

ExpAnsion Cllmf'li~ expense l\nd prom01ion 

lntereSI expense 
12.124 

Deprea11ion 11nd amortill\tioo expense (nOie 7) 

Additiom to plAnt filc:ililit$ 

Renov.uion of piA nt properties 

Addition to long- term debt obligllions 

13asis of11ssets sold 

Other 
319 

Tow crpendiurea Md other dedudiona 2.428,496 246.347 12.443 

Tnlnsfers11mong funds Rod 01her c:hanges -

lldditions (dedudions): 

Mandatory tr~~nsfers for debe service (21.514) 

Tow tr~~nsfersand dher c:hanges (21.514) 

Net incre~ue (deaease) for the year 1,691 5,003 30.3.59 

Fund b\hmoe l\1 bep:jnning of year 63,76.5 19.065 359.074 

Fund b\l<~noe "' end of year $ 6.5 456 24068 389 433 

See •ooomrarryin~ notes to financia l atatemeoiL 
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II 
I 
' 

14,154 

292 

14.154 292 

'i 

14,154 292 

I 4&,227 !0,3~ 

162 331 50615 

l'laat F1111ds 

U•expe•ded 

60,211 

1,329 
. -

100,739 

99,964 

262.~) 

13,9~ 

60,1142 

s.sn 

98,546 

1&,707 

114 

20..~.657 

2 1,514 

21.514 

78,160 

78 160 

Nee . __ .. __ 
I• rJ;ut 

120.290 

1 3.9~ 

I 39.216 

118,JI3 

100,739 

60,625 

279,477 

(140,251) 

l ,02.'i,4J7 

2,11&~.1 76 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Statement or C urrent Funds Revenues, 

Expend it urcs and 0 t her C hangcs 

Year ended May 31. 1993 
(wilb mmpuali.....: figures for 1992) 

199J 

Utoreariacd R.eariacd 

Pllnd~ Pu!J!!~ T01al 

)tcw:nucs: 
1\1 irioa and rces s ~287 894.257 

fcdeflll studerd fimnci\1 aid pro~ms 
213.6.51 223.651 

Gifts 
727,167 16.934 7-16.1 01 

Endowment inocrne 
3,919 2.497 6,416 

Inwstment inoome 
~.974 11 5,95.5 

Sales and se111ioes of auxiliary enterprises 
8()6.793 806.793 

Olh« 10\lfCieS 
13.563 13,563 

Tol<'l r evenues 2.451.703 245,093 2.696.796 

Expcndirures: 
Ed11cational and general; 

InSirudion 
693.007 781 693.78S 

Acadcnric suppat 
172.J46 172.4.l6 

Sludent scrvioes 273.1 17 11.079 234.196 

OpeT"tion and maintenance of plan! 2J0.50S 8.990 249,4% 

lnSiinnionlll suppon 474.543 2,.173 471.016 

Schdarshipsand fellowships: 
Feder.\ I saud en! 6mncial aid prcgnuns 214,363 214.363 

lnSiitutioml funded aid 13.500 !.&JO 16.340 

To~<'\ educational and sen era! opendituccs t.e-67.121 2J0.526 2.107,6-17 

Mand\t ory transfers for debl service 13.264 13.264 

Total odu<ationi\J <tnd general 1.15&1.38.5 240.526 2.120.911 

Auxilial)' enterprises: 
Expenditures 561.3 n 4,561 565.944 

Manmt ory transfers for debl sef'lioc S.250 8.250 

TotalauxililtJY enterprises ~.627 4,567 574.194 

To!<'! expendiur-cs and D~and."IIOT}' transfers 2.450.012 245.093 1.69S.l0S 

Transfers and other changes: 

R~riaed reoeips OYer 
tnns!en to revenues 

5.003 5,003 

.Re"o~enues OYeT cxpendinares 

and a her dan ses s I~ S.OOl 6694 
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1992 

Total 

767.256 

19"'..37.5 

761.766 

8.901 

20,186 

708.851 

7,627 

2.466.962 

597.272 
155,033 

235.320 
:!47,741 

.506.005 

181,757 

14.473 

1.937,601 

2.1.59 

1.939.760 

49S.004 
6,675 

504.879 

2.444.639 

162 
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.... 
FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Nolc l t o Financi al S tat c mco t1 

M ay 3 1, 1 993 

Free Wall B<~pt tSI Bible Colk~ is OJXrated under the auspices oCTbe NatiOnal AssociatiOn of Free Will Baptasll. 

(1) Summary of Sigojficant J\ccouoting Policies 

fUDd Accouati.nt 

In order to ensure obse rv.~nce of limitarions and restrictions pL"lced on the usc of resources availab le to the Colle~. tbt 

a('COunts of the C'ollep;e are maintained in accordaoce wnb the principles of "fund IICX'Quntin~t"· This is tbe procedure by 

wbic-b resource& Cor Vl\110~ purposes tue classified for acoountioft and reporltD!': purposes into funds that are in 
accordance wil b aoivnies or objeoives SJXcil'ied. Separate aC'C'Ounu are maintained for each fund; hOO"e\Oe r, in the 

accompanyan,~tlanaoc"'l statements, funds that have samalar charaoeristics ba~ been combined into fund ft'OUps. ACQ)fd­

io~tly. 11lllinancsaltraosact10os have been recorded and reported by fund !tfOup. 

C urreal Funds 

Current fund b~lances are separated into tb~ Q, bicb are restriC1ed by donors or !tfantors and those • ·btCb are 

unrestJIC1ed Rem1e1ed funds may only be expeodcd for tbe purpo~e indic-ated by tbe donor or !tfilntor; 'll berc:u, 

unresttK1ed fuock are under tbe control of tbe ColleE:e to u~ in ;~cbacvao!': ns edua~t10o a l purposes. 

l..oa.a F•ads ---
The l<l<ln funds consist of loans to students from ,~tlfts res111e1ed for such purpose$ and from proceeds of notes payabk to 

indrvidua h The terms of ap:reeme!lls SJXcdY tb:u the funds Opt"rate I'D a revol>.tDft bas~ i.e .. rep~menu of loan 

pranc;pal and antcre$t are loaned to other student borrowers. 

~ado-meal Funds 

[ndo-. meat funds are sUbJCC1 to tbe re<l!ictiOns of ,~tdt in~trurnen!s requo ane tb~t tb~ princ;pal be ioHsted an perpetuity, 

aod only tbe mmme t>e utalved. Whale quasi-end""'ment lund~ have l>reo est~blisbed by tbe Collep;e Cor the same 

purpm~ as endowment fuott., any portion of quasi-endOI/o mcot funds ma} be e~oded 

AaauitJ£.u~ 

Annuny funds rons!';t of fundi acqua-ed by tbe Colle,~!( subJeC1 10 a!Ueemcots whereby the assets ~re made a\'l\IL~bk to 

the Colle$:C oo the conditaoo tb;\1 tbe Colle~ bind nself to pa} st;puL1ted amounts JXriodacally to the iodJ\iduab. Payments 

of such amount• termmat.c upon the ()('('Utence of ftn event A< 1pcctfKd 10 the li!Ueemeot, Rt whKh time the praoc;pal of 

tbe fund is transferred to tbe fund p:roup desa~tnated by the pantor. Wbeo ~tlfts of 11oouny fund s 11re recei-erl. tbe presut 

value of tbe aoouny payable is credned to a l"'bihty accouo~ aod the remaaoder to fund balance. love.-;tmeot inrome and 

pans are credited and annuity payments aod mvestme !ll losses are cbar!':Cd to the bability account. Annually tbe anouily 

payable zs adjusted to its prese!ll value. 

Pint Jluad• 

Plilnt assets, coosJStin~t of land, buUdtnp;s, equipment. li11ary books, etc. are stated at cost or estimated fair Vlllue at date 

of ~.ift. C'ertlin equipment purchases 11re funded fr<>m the current operatan~ bud!':CI 11nd are presented under tbe 

approll" i:lle fuoe110oa.l classificat ion of expcndnures. Expcndnures for ;~cquistion of ass«s in excess of $250 11re 

a~pit ahzed a~ invest ment io plan t. Deprecia tion is provided usio!': tbe straight-line method O\tr tbe resJXC1 roe assc:l 's 

estimated usefulln'e. 

lnutMiea 

I ave ntor ~. consist io~t of boob 11 ad supply ilems, are Vlllued at cost, .., it b cost be tOft deter mined oo tbe C n t -'in, 

Ca-st -out mctbod. 

lnell•em 

Jnvestme!lls to stocks and bonds ar e stated at cost, eroept tb~ reoerved by gift, wbicb Are u ated at approximate mAr ket 

value at date of ftUI. 

Tuea 

The Colleftt is exempt from income taxes unde r Internal Revenue Code Sect iOn 50J(cX3); aa::ofdaom . no pr<MSion for 

taxes bas been made in 1 be Acoompanyin~t finanCJa I statements. 
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(2) 

Statements. continued 
N o t es to Financial 

blc and C apital Lease ()blig,a~ 
~paya - s 
J..caa Cuods: - 5% dem<\nd ncses to individuals. 
- ble to indiv\dt-"ls: 
1'1 01 es pi' ya 

flaal FUD<b: . II t obli~tions consist of the CollO"'inr; 
- bl d 0\pitallc:;~se anga men 
J'IOICS Jli'Y" e an . . ble monthly at $722 tbrou~ June 1996 at 

6'll> in!Jl\llment obla~uon paya s :9.31.\7 

such time S8,().16 is duel\ nd P'yable. • . 

. !tease obli!(ltionsas fol\ONS (see ncse below )- of S688 throu~ 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

Q\ptta . . ble in monthly in51llllments 
10'11> obla~uon P'Y<' • nt with l\ 

ed by 0\mpus telephone equapme . 
July 1996 secur 

depre<:S\ted bAsis of $20.951. to•~\lm' o 
. thly i.nsral\ments ~ ., 

7 ,.._ to S% obli~tions P'Y"ble tn mon 
.,., ber 1997 secured by compUier 

$2.263 mat\lrin[l. throu~ Nove~ 
. .- •h. depreci\t ed t:Rsas of S95.556. 

equapment '"' n 1 h m pita I ense 
• 'otc: debe seMOC pa)'ments re\\tcd tO t e 

N . fu ded by bill in~ to users. 
ohlitl'tionsare substantaally n 

Other 
Total p\\nt fund debe 

f d d a are liS follO"'S for e;~ch 
Annt-"1 m;~turitic~ of phnt un e 

yen r ended :>.L\y 3\.. 

Less llmount represenunganterest 

1994 s 
1995 

1996 
1997 

1998 

%.321 

?.500 ---s 15?,-11'6 

Long-Term 

Debe 

16.055 
7,(})9 

7.685 
5,().16 

]t\888 

s 

c. r itll.t i tt'<~ 
I _,c;~se 

Ohlit:<ltton ---

35 . .10 t 

~5.-10 l 

} ~.-10 l 

:6.367 

&.5:J --
l-11.09-1 

:0.-196 

_ 1:0.598_ 

End011o1mcnt Puods ed 1 4 2 percent in 1993. 
- d bAsed on aver.<!':C co~. amount o . 
The yield on endoo.ment fun s. 

Pled&cs ()utstaodin& . . ed 'or 0\m""'i"" projeas and S3.690 is des~~;ued for 
- h'dt S-16.005 asdesa~at ,, ,--..-· . 

Pled-• outsranding amourt to S-'9.695 of w • I' ble va.1ue oft he pledges or the pericxl of col\eoaon 
.,.- . bl estimate the net rea al'l\ 

the alumni office. It is ncs pr.<CitO\ e 10 

l'c nsion C osts em I ees. except full-time Sludents. hared prior 
'on lao which COVC1'S all repl\\r p OJ . for benefit lind vesunF-

1he College ms a defined benefit pensa p f . and attllinment of age 21. Servace fi 
. lt~ion of one yt:ar o servaoe 1 OCO hours. !be bene IS on 

to attllininF- age 61 foUCJoWtn@, oomp . h' ch the ..... nicipant completes at !e;~st • 
1 

t~n venrs 
be f p\\n yen rs an w 1 r · . durin!_!. tht' l\<1 • purposes shall be the num r o . d . the thre.e consecuuve yenrs . ed 

. sed on aver<~~ compens\llon unng . . I ees ;He ncs requar to 
retirement are deterrruned bR . _._ "'hich proO;Ioes the hi~esl aver.<[(C. Emp ay ... "et~ oonsi-.1 

. . . Q!TOll.l reurement u.te . cc:rued The p .. n a~ 
pria to the f'\rllafl\111 s n • fu eli ...,J,cy is fund pensaon rosts a · 

f h \\ t'l The Colleges n np. l""' .. 
contribute tO"''ard the cost o 1 e P . . Cn the p\ln adnumstr<~tor 

cd by Prcseaave L.He lnsur-..nce • 
of investments with and fully ~ r-..nte d aunts reoo~ed in the College's 

\\ • funded sratusan am 
The CoiiO'Mnp. table sets forth the P n s 

Sliltem~nt of timncial position at !'wt\y 31· 199}. 

ACiuarial present v..lue of benefit obli!(IIIOo' ed) 
. . f h' ch !.&56,057 are vest 

Accumulated benefit obit !(IliOn (O w • 
. . rendered to G\te 

Projeaed benefit oblap.~uon for servt~ 

1'\:\n a<sets..at f;.ir value 

P\\n assets in excess of projected benefit oblip.~uon 

Unreco...-.ited nd (j:llin) or loss . (be fit) ""- . - ·odic: peosaon OOSl ne 
P . service ~ ncs yet reoo~azed m net pen 
nor . · ed over 15 yenrs 
Unreco~l.ed nd asset at June 1. 1959 beangamorttl. 

Accrued pension oo.<a. indlded in acoounls P'Yl' ble 
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s _(1175.671) 

s (1.:61.1%) 

1.'219.760 ----

-

( -ll..t38) 

7.1.702 

216.307 

( 27 .t,O"..S) 

s (2_:!~~) ==-



Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(5) Pension Cos cootinues - - --
Nel pe D\ioo oosl for I 993 included 1 be following romponenu: 

Serva cosl- beoefiu earocd dur10g periOd 

loleresl cost oo projected benefit oblig;itioo 
Actual return oo plan assets 

Ne1 ~mortitatioo and deferral 

Nel pension 0011 

s 43.0118 

&1,699 

(97,743) 

(3,072) 

s ==-=='?-4 932 

Tbe weishled-a~oerage disoouot rate aod ra1e of ioaeue in fuiUre oompensalion leveb used in dclerminin~ 1be anuaria) 

present Vlllue of the projeCied benefit oblijtalioo were 3.5 peroeot and 5 peroeot, respecti\<ely. Tbe expected Joa~-ter• 

rate of rel iED on a sse IS was 3. 75 peroeoL 

(6) Conceobtioo of Credit Risk 

Tbe College is lbe ins1itu1ioo of hisber eduauioo of 1be Nacional Auocialioo of Free Will Baptisu, Joe. and offen Bilk 

based educatioml servas to members of tbe denoounatioo. Tbe College extends credit in oerrain ins1anoes to Jludeou 

for edualliooal oosu 11nd makes loans to Sludeau from 1be Loan Funck. Tbese accouniS are not collateralized aod are 

subject to accouotiog risk of Joss amountio~t to tbe outstanding balance at any point in time. 

Further. the College bas casb funds invested at severn! financial institutions aod bas a usk of Joss amouoong to S29,1l2 

for 1 bosefunds in excess of the insurable limil of S 100,000. 

(7) Property. Plant and Equipment and Capitalized l.ea.Jes (we n~c 2) 

Depreciation aod amoflution charged to the fund balance o( tbe Plaor Funds computed oo rbe straigbr-Jioe method 

was$11&,113 in 1993. 

Compooeo1sof properly, plan1 and equipment and capitalized leases ue as follows: 

Purchased 

To1al Asseu 

Land s 296~'13 296,513 

Buildioss 3,359,926 3.359.926 

Equipment 797,136 651,862 

Li> rary Books 243,671 243,671 

4,697,301 4,551,977 

Accumul:ued depreciation 

and ~tmoniza1ion 1,641,191 1,612,436 

Net lnveatment in Plaut s ).~§J.Ql __ 2J}9.~!L 
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Asseu 

Aquired 

By CapitN 

Leases 

14.\324 

145,324 

23,757 

FREE 
WILL BAP'DST BIBLE COLLEGE 

d Budget (or the Year Ending M ay 31, 1994 
Propose 

/\s Compared to 
(or the Year Ended May 31, 1993 

Actual as Summarized 

Revenues: 
Tuition 11nd fees 

GiftS: 
Together QlmpliFI' 

leM Buildi111. Fund 

Net Operntin~ Gifts 

End~J~~oment inOCJlle 

Current Unrestricted I:unds 

InveSlment inOCJlle . 
~lennd services of;~uxiliary enlerpnses 

(inl du\le 5Ch ool 

Other 10uroes 

To~al revenues 

Expendilurcs: 
EduCl\tion<~l and r,ene1711: 

Instruaion 

ACl'ldemic suppat 
Student services 
Operntion ;~nd m;~inten~tnce of ph\Dt 

lnstitlllion~~l support 
. d ,... 1 """"" n d it u r es To~al cduaHton<~l <~n gene ~ ... -

AuxiliAry enterprises: 

Expendilurea 

Grnd111te School 

Con ingency fund 

To~al e:xpendiurea 

( de ) "'""'ndiures Excess of revenuea over un r -,..-

FToJX*>d 

Budgd 

Way ~1. 

w 
$ \,148.<XX> 

t.025.<XX> 

po.<XX>} 

955.000 

5.<XX> 

9.<XX> 

964.000 

1.500 
17.500 

3.IOO.<XX> 

786.690 

221.947 

382.579 

376.650 

554.576 

2.322.942 

546,783 

275 

2J0.000 

3,100,<XX> 

$ 

Actllill 

!day 31, 

1993 

593,132 

757.435 

(60.271} 

727.167 

3.919 

5.974 

8()6,793 

1.155 

13.563 

2.451.703 

689.52.5 

172.696 

273.997 

2~.508 

487,716 

1.864.502 

569.627 

15.883 

2.450.012 

\,691 

TillS IN FORM/\ T ION 
TOR'S REPORT 

IS NOT P/\RT Of TilE /\UDI 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL IN FOR MATION 

This · - summary ts provided to help th d . . 
flnanctaf condition of Free w ·ll B . e. enomtnatton better understand th 

I f 
t apttst Utble Coil I e overall 

e t not only provides th ege. A so, the page to the . . 
e proposed budget e d M tm medtate 

comparable financial highlignts of th n tng ay 31, 1994, but show 
e actual fiscal year ended May]} 1993 s the 

BALANCED BUDGET · · ·· 

1 >The Uibfe College end d . fi . e tls tscaf 'h expend t f s year Wit an excess of t ures o 1,691 in operating funds. revenues over 

ENROLL MENT INCREASE 

2 >Total enrollment increased for . the second consecutive year, 
prevtous year. up 11.7% from the 

UNRESTRICTED GIV IN G 

3 >The Bible College would h b . ave een requtred 1 
tuttion to balance the b d h . o more than double the cost of 

4 T . u get ad tl not been for gift revenue. 
> otal gtfts to the Together Ca . 

short of th Sl 0 mpatgn amounted to $787.438, " 'ht'ch f 
e · 25.000 gift budget. ~ ell $237,562 

5 >Unrestricted gifts wh· h · tc supports the · 
30% of the Colleg . . operattng fund. amounted to 

• . e s unrestncted fund revenue of S $737,167 or 
years gtfts supported 33% fth 2.451.703. In contrast last 

. o e operattng fund's revenues . 

6 >Shortfalls in gift income . con lt n u e 10 cause a . 
urgent needs including st ffi . stratn on the operational budget. Many 

a tng. tncreased af · f 
renovations and replac f . s anes, urther physical plant 

ement o equtp f delayed. ment, urntshtngs and vehicles are to be 

S AL E OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 

7 >The sale f 1 . o sup us prope rty helped fund several small h . I 
prOJects which included updating . p ystca plant renovati o n 
Goen Hall . porttons of Bligh ll all Coo k Hall E · · • nnts Hall and 

FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS 

8 >Current noteworthy financial b 
follows.· o ligations in the form of loan s and lea ses are as 

a. Notes payable to individuals (the 
student loans) amou t d S2 proceeds are restricted for the purpose of 

. n e to 13.150 The Colle e's L 
cash and savtngs to completely I' 'd g oan Funds has sufllcient 

tq ut ate these loans 
b Installment note payable ~ h to r t e purchase of 198 

amounted to $2 9,387. a 8 - 21 passenger mini- bus 

Lease obligations for the c 
amounted ot $120 'i99 Thampus t_elep hone system and computer 

·· · e requtred hi . equ ipmen t 
funded by billings to users. mont y tnstallments are substantially 

c. 

TillS INFORMATION IS NOT PART Of_T_ JIE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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sunday School and Church Training 

The pages that follow represent my report to you for the past year as 
well as our budget for 1994. I am pleased to report that we have decreased 
our indebtedness considerably. We were able to do so because we have 

had another profitable year. 
Randall House Publications does not cost our denomination m oney. 

We actually save our churches money on their literature. If you will check 
my comparative chart you will notice that we sell our quarterlies at a 
cheaper price then most publishing houses. 

We also save money for our other departments. They can tell you that 
we save them money on their printing jobs. We can save your church 
some money on printing jobs too . Why don't you let us bid on them? 

We are even called upon to print and mail the church directory and 
minutes to every church. The total cost for this project this year was 

$9,448.23. 
All of this is done without receiving any funds from the cooperative fund 

or with the solicitation of gifts. 
We are a service organization. W e exist to serve Free Wlll Baptists 

everywhere. Please let us continue to serve you and your church. 

Yours in His service, 

Randall House Publications 

Dr. Roger C. Reeds 
General Director 

A-111 
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Hill. ~eaJ & Allen. P.C. 
~ rill , I c~hlt< -\~u •,mr I lib 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Boa rd of Directors 
Sunday School and Church Training Board 

and Randall House Publica tions 

lire 111 1w , •d F \et uuw Ct·nter 
i rol 1 l iJ I hd<tltY Buult'\ard 
\ tltk I 1n 

llr.·nl\\ ... >r.J r'\ 17l)27 
Il l h l "iiH;.H H"> 
I \\ t>hll77- 1-!Htl 

---

We have audited the balance sheets of Sunday School and Church Training Board 
and Randall House Publications as ot November 30, 1992 and February 29, 1992, and 
the reldted statements of acti\ ity and changes in fund balances anti cash flows for the 
nine months ended November 30, 1992 and for year ended February ~9, 1992. These 
financial statements arc the responsrbility of the Board's management. Our 
re~ponsrbilit) is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit~. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditiug 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn 1he audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
rhe amounr::. and disclosures in the financial srarements. An audit also includes 
as~cssing the accounting princ1ples used and significanl estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating th~.: overall financral statement presentation. We 
he! icve that our audits provide a reason<tblc basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Sunday School and Church Training 
Board and Randall House Publications as of November 30, 1992 and February 29, 
19Y2, and the results of its activity and changes in fund balances and cash flows for 
the nu·e months ended No\'ember 30, 1992 and for the year ended February 29, 
I Y92 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Januar) 19, 1993 
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SUNDAY 
A.l'ID 

CH TRAINING BOARD SCHOOL AND CHUR 
ALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS RAND 

Balanc~ Sheets 

be 30 1992 &nd Feb ruary 29, 1992 
Novem r • Novetuber JO, 

Assets ---
Qlnent assets: . 

Cash and interest belt i.ug dep05ltS r· 

ACCA>unts receivable: (note3 3 andY) • 

Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

of$7,000 

Employees and other 

Total receivables 

f (first-in first-out method) ur mar\:el (note 8) Inventory' at lower c cost ' 
Deferred charges and prepdid o:xpenscs 

Total curre!l! l5SCts 

taJ'zed le.c.o::. (notes 2 and 3): Ptopcrty' plantl!td equipment ar.d C3pl I 

Land 

Building 
Printing service equipment 
OITicc and administrative equipment 

Automobill':. and trucks 

Less accumu13ted depreci:ltion and aruortiJ..alion 

Net property, plant and equipment and capitalized leases 

Other assets: . fi t-oul m.:thod) or market (note 8) 
Inventory • at lower of cost (ftrSHn, us 

liabil ities and Fund Balan~ 

s 

s 

Oment liabilities: $ 

Notes payable (note 3) d . 'tal'zed lease obligations (note 3) 
Current installments of long-term debt an capt I 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 
Due 10 affiliated organization 

Total current liabiliries 

Long-term debt and capitalized kase obligations (nott 3) 

Fund balance 
$ 

Commitments (notes 4,5,7 and 10) 

. g notes to fwancial stateme:lts. See accompanym 

2 
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1992 

115,135 

214,560 

1,970 

216,530 

431,289 
25,767 

788,721 

140,341 

649,308 

405,885 

3>2,765 

51,698 

1,639,997 

1,043,364 

596,633 

442,898 

1,828,252 

172,046 

60,059 

356,346 

32,979 

621,430 

201,654 

1,005,168 

1$28,252 

February 29, 
1992 

109,317 

188,388 
940 

189,328 

396,710 

33,913 

729,268 

140,341 

649,308 

405,885 

367,959 

51,698 

1,615,191 
979,042 - --
636,149 

480,643 

1,846,060 

190,000 
67,486 

406,830 

25,617 

27,019 

716,952 

236,654 

892,454 

1.846.060 



SUNOA Y SCHOOL AND CHURCH TR~INING BOARD 
AND R~NDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Statements of .-\ctivity and Changes in fund Balance 

For tht' nine nwnths ended Nt)\'fntber JO, I '>!12 and :h~ year ended February 29, 1992 

Jl~\ CIIUL'' 

Nc:• ~.de!> 
Curriculum 
Randall H0usc books 
Mcrchantlrsc 
Uullctrns 
\'awtion Dibk School 
Uuobtorc 
Pmlling 
Other >WJ)es 

Net !<.l J,·l-
1 rL'rght and handlmg 
Olht·r mcumc 

CummJs:.hlll .J;comc un hymnai ~lcs (nute 7) 

1.:.\pcu~~ 

C'u,l IJ! '.JlC!.: 
lm l!niOI) at b.:ginning of ye.u 
\.lcrchJnJJse p-.n.:ha.;cs 
Oc:prccrJLJon 
Edih>nJl Jnd pnn•u;g prepar limn 
l'rllltlllg protlut:tinn 
Sp.uu~h department 

' 

Nnvcrnber 30, 
1992 

1,321,803 
57,355 
14,6!7 
20,792 
3,631 

107,557 
26,.;62 

--~924 
1,608,14] 

62,94 I 
16,877 

_}2_09 

1,6CU.,468 - - --

877,363 
181.710 
10.123 

242,249 
·lfi6,2 I 9 

!L795 

February 29, 
1992 -
!,770,978 

!05,295 
3!,637 
34,460 

7,906 
128,917 
10,557 
84 210 

2 173,960 
87,440 
5,586 
6,657 

2,273,643 

918.507 
173,464 
37,729 

337,91 1 
635,848 

--- :.'9,475 
!..: ... , ill\ cntu1 y at end uf ycJJ 

•;clling, gcn•:rJ] a11d adrnmist·atJve: 
.-\Jn1 illJ!.tratrve 
Bookstore 
DooUecpmg 
Durlding 
Sales and promotion 
Shrppmg 
General 
DcprccJJIIon 
lnlcr~l cxpen'>C. mcludrng fmance :h:uges 

Total expcnSt;:; 

E~cess of re·.-enues ov ~r t'~pP.ns.:s fmm Opt'r<~llcms 
Ga111 n11 tlisposll!nl. nf land (net.: lJ) 
Youth Depanment (note 6) 

Ex::I!SS of re' enu;:s over e~perrY.s 
Fund h.rlance, l•egu::t:!lg of y~dt 
Fund balance, end of year 

<;cc <~Cl:umpdnymg notes t(l financr.ll slatemems. 

J 
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1 ,795,4R9 2.142,934 
-~7:!, 187 877,353 

921,302 --- _ !,265,5RI 

80,427 !29,493 
46,491\ 55,196 

108,899 J03,7R2 
91,554 136,346 
64,326 105,217 
89,493 122,524 
63,817 78,73-1 
54,199 92,183 
60,536 101,546 

__ 659,747 925,021 
I 58],049 2,!90,602 

I 10,419 83,042 

103,695 
2,295 (43,225) 

112,714 1-13,512 
-- 892,151 748 942 

I.QQ.t168 822.~.H_ 

SUNDAy SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

be 30 1992 anJ the year ended February 29, 1992 For the nine months endttl f\;o\ em r • 

Cash flows from Oper:Hin,l! Activitih 

E\~css of revenues over Iunder) e>.p~n~'!<. 
AdJustments to reconcile n:::: carnmgs to net ca~lt 

provided (used) by operatmg dt:Livitic.o. 
DcprcCJJllon and amortizauon 
(G~m) !o~.s on ·h~pusillvil of ... ~scL~ 
(lncn:JS.::) d~cr~ .. ;;e in 

R,c~•' dblcs 

'"'en tones 
D.furt.:d charges and prcpar..! c'pcn,.:s 

lncrc:~ ldecr<!«~e) m· 

A_couuLs payabk 
A :crucd expc:nscs 
0Jc from affiliated orgauizat1un 

N.:t cash pruvlc.kd b) upcrallng act I\ IIJI!~ 

Ca~h Flows from l nveshng ActiHties 

Pun:h."c of cqu1pm~nt 

Pro(cc(h lrom t11~pn~1tion of OS!>t:L~ 

Net ca:-h prov1dcd (used) hy Ill\ o.:~trng actrvJIIC' 

Cash flow~ from fiuanci.nl! Activiti~~ 

l'wc.:cth from borrowing:-. 
Rcp.1ymcnl'i of debt 

i~ct ca~h ·J-.ed h; fm~ncing 3L''" iti<'\ 

1\ct incrC.!!>C 111 w~h 

C"h and (C'J)oh o,·crdraft) at bc:ginnrng d year 

Supplcmcmal dr!>do~ures: 

Ink rl!!>t, mdudmt: finance charges paid 

:-;.,n -C.J\h '"'·cstmg dnd finanu1tg trans.~~uon' 
AujUI~trun of cqu1pmcnt 

lnstJIImcnt indcutedncs ... inturr!d 

Sec .1ccnmp<111'!ing notes to fihJncral st.J·cmcnt~ 

4 
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November JO, 
1992 

$ 

s 

s 

I 12,7 l-1 

64,322 

(26,998) 
3,!66 
8,1-16 

(50,4b4) 

7,362 
(27,223) 

91,005 

(2~.806) 

(24,806) 

(60,381) 

(60.38 I) 

5,818 

109,317 

115,135 

60,536 

11,300 

$ ---''=1,!:3=00=-

February 29, 
1992 

143,512 

129,912 
(107,269) 

4,8!!9 
41.15-l 
(6,56~) 

1311,934 
(:!67) 

(37.0 14) 

(6,1S03) 
132,056 

125,253 

300,000 

(49-1.153) 

(194,153) 

230,31S3 

__ (.!:! 1,111\6) 

109,317 

J00,64H 
=-== 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TR-\L"liNG BOARD 
A..ND RL\NDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

~otes to Financial Statements 

For tbe nine months ended November 30, 1992 and the yea r ended Febmary 29, 1992 

The Board operates under the zuspice!. of the National Association of Free Will Baptists and is govemed by 
1 Board of Directors. 

During the year t.lw BCiard approved a change in it's i~<.:al year end from the last clay of February to November 30. 

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Inventories 

Inventories are staioo ;,t the Jowt:J of cost or n.arl ct, w1th cost being determined by use of the first-in, fust~ut 
method. 

Propert.L..__flant and Equipmc:nt 

Property, plant aad "')uip!HCnt :ue stated at cost Expenditures fo1 maintenance and repairs, renewals, and 
betterments that do not signirJC.tJtlly extend lh; useful lives of 3Sl.cts are expen<;ed as incurred. D.:preciltion is 
pro,ided using the straighHine method 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from fedei.;J .1nd state income L.xes; 3C:C:Ordingly, no provisior.. for income taxes is made 
in the accounts. 

Cash and Casb Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of c!Sh t1ow.>, the Board considers all cash funds, C3!:.h bank: accounts and highly 
liquid clebt instrumc:ms purch.!Secl with a matulity M three n.onths or J~ss t·.) b.: cash and cash equivalent!:. 

(2) Property, Plant and Equipment and Capitalized Lenses (see note.]l 

Depreciation and amortiz.ark•n ch~rged to operations computed o n Ui'c straight-line method 

the nine months ended November 30, 1992 and $129,912 for the yrnr ended February 29, 1992. 
was $64,322 for 

Equipment incluJes capitialited leases a.s follows: 

Printing service equipmeut 

Office and administrarive equipmeut 
l 

Less .:ccumulated anwrtizatic.n 

$ 

5 
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November 30, 

1992 

127,250 

151,146 

278,996 

170,021 

_!~V5 

February 29, 

1992 

127,250 

140,446 

267,696 

139,5n 

128,119 

(3) 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND R~ALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Notes Payable, Long- term Debt and ('apitalizcd Lease Obligat ions 
A summnr:.• of notes payable, lcn;!~enn debt and e<tpit:tli?.cd lease obligJtions is as follows: 

Note payable on demand to Ooard of Rctir..:mcnt and 1 n~uraua: 

of the National Association of Free Will Bapt1sts at 2% above 

November 30, 
1992 

bank :>rime (see below for security agreement). S ===1~7~2~,0f,'4""'6 

Long-term debt: 

IJ.)% equipment ob1igauons, maturmg through December 

1995, payable monthly S394 mduding mtcrest, secured by 

related equipment. 

11.5% installment obligation payable to the Soard of 

Retirement and Insurance of the Nauonal Assoctoltton of free 

Wtll Bapti:.lS, pay.tble in monthly mstaUments of $2.461 

including mterest, through 200 I secured by ftrst mortgage lien 

against all real p10perty and impr•Jvcments, and a first :.ccurity 

interest in all accounts recetvJbl<, inventory, equipment aud 

trade ftxturcs. 

Total long-term debt 

C'.lpllal Jca,o,c obltg.ttions· 9 .1% to !6 X'to ollltgalt,)llf. uudcr captLll 

leases payable monthly $5,.<02 - S.!t' note 2 

Less current matut itcs c.f long-le t n. tlct,l and capit..J 

lease obligativns 

s 11,914 

--1~_,750 

171,664 

90,049 -----
261.7 13 

(..0,059 

$ ~01,654 

Fehr.wry 29, 

1992 

190,000 

17.945 

167,? 13 

J8S,fi5R 

11~,4K! 

304,140 

67,-l8fi 

236.6?.:!.. 

The Board leases certain equipment under capital leases (see note 2). The obligations are being amortized hy 

that porllon of annual remals in ex~:css of interest. Interest was imputed using rates rangmg from 9. I% to 

16.8% based on the lessor's implicit rate of return . 

The followmg is a schedule, by years, (\f maturtues of long term debt and 

under c;apital leases as of Nc•vember 30, 1992. 
fu ture minimum lease payments 

Long-Term Capital 

Leases 
54,423 
29,565 

15,930 

Total marurities r.r lor.g-term dcht 

Less amount :epre.;enting in ter~: 

November 30, 
1993 
J9')4 

1995 
1996 
19<)7 

1998 
i 99Q .tnd thcn:.after 

Fresem val~e rJf n(·t mmimum leas.:: pdymcnts 

6 
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s 

$ 

Debt 
15,119 
17,017 

19,156 
16,982 
18,605 

20,861 
63,924 

171,664 

5,155 
1,200 

106.273 

16,224 

$~~=~90~,0~4.:....9 
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SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notts to Financial Statements, continued 

QQ~raling Leases_ 

The Doard leases certain CIJuipmcnl under operating lc~s. Rent eKpense under such operating leases 

amounled to $16,815 fo1 ll1c nine mouth~ <'lld•;tl Ncwcmi.Jc1 30, 1992 and $29,185 for the year ended 
February 29, 1992 

Minimuru annual rentaJs under noncancelable op.:ratiug h:asc~ arc as follows: 

1993 s 16,895 
1994 12,!U5 
1995 1,456 
1996 ____ 2if. 

s :H:!.628 
Pension 

The Board participates in the m~ter pension plan of ll:e Doard of Retirement and lnsurance of the National 
Association of Free WilJ B:tplist:>. The plan IS contributory a.ud is matched up to a maximum of 5% of 
compensation. Employees with two yealS vi serv1ce may participate. Pension expenses amounted 10 

$14,481 for the nine months ended Noverub<!r 3:1, 1992 -.nd $20,145 fo·thc year ended February 29, 1992. The 
pension plan is a defined wnl.ribuhon plan Under the plan, an account is maintained for c.1ch 
participant and upon retirement the participant can t:ill1er re~ive a lump~um distribution or purchase one 
of several types of annuity coulracts. 

(6) Youth Department 

(7) 

The purpo!.e of llte Youth DepaP.•ne!!! is lu prv' ide ministries and services to youth and youth workers of 
the A.swcialion. The foJJowir.g i3;, summary of the depanment's activities: 

November 30, 
1992 

Revenue fl om conferences and relaled services $ 99,356 
Expenditures for ccnferences and rdated services 60,685 
GenerJ.I and adminislrative expenses 36,376 

Total expenditures 97 061 
Excess of revenue O\ er (under) expenses $ 2.225 

Agreement w i tb Affiliated 0 rga n i Z-.:..~.:..:tf:..:o.!!n.......:::to::....:Do..:.l::..:s t:.:.r :..:i b"'u:.:t.:::.e -'H:.!:..l.y.!!m.!!n:..:a:.!!:,ls 

February 29, 

1992 

75 084 
51,921 
66,388 

118,309 
(43 22S) 

The Board has agreed to warehouse and disLribute hymnal~ for the Executive Office of the National 
Association of Free Will BaptislS. Fwther, the Board will invoice the customer, collect funds and remit such 
collections, net of ccmmisiofiS of $.795 per hy10nJ.I sold, to the Executive Board. As of November 30, 1992 the 
Board was warehousing app;oxiroately 14,426 hymnals with an estimated replacement value of $138,000. The 
following summarizes the transactions under this apeement as of Novembu 3(l, I m: 

Amount due to Executive Office at '>egtr.ning of period 
Tolal sales of hyrnnaJs 
Less total commissiofiS earned 
Less remittances made to the Executiv.: Office 

Amount due from Executive Office "' end of period 
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Nine months Ended 

November 30, 
1992 

s 27,019 
54,675 
(3,509) 

(78,389) 

s (204) 

Since 
Inception 

814,519 
(71,334) 

(743,389) 

( 204) 

(8) 

(9) 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRL\INING BOARD 
. AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Inventory 
. . I rc and materials a portiOn of whtch wiU not be sold Wlthm one 

Inventory consislS of dcnommatJOn htera u h" h "11 be used on a cycle basis ranglllg 
• · • · 1 of htcrature w 1<' ""1 

year. These Jong-lerm mvenLOry Items con~•b~ k!. The following summari.tcs the inventory by major type 
0 seven years and published oo · 

from two year~ 1 
• . • d to long-lcrm a.o; of November 30. 1992. 

between that which is classified as current as compare 

BooJc,tore merchandis~· 
Pnnting production and preparation raw materials 

Work m process 
F1m:.hed liter.lture: 

Curriculum 
Shipptng misceUancou::. 
L1fequest materia! 
Randall House Boolc, and merchandl~e 

Spamsh curriculum 

Allo"' ance for ob!>Oicscnce 

Total uweniOr} 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

s 

s 

Current 
Asset 

45,613 
21,293 
67,363 

50,000 
137,020 

5,000 

65,000 

40.000 

431,289 

43!,289 

Long-{erm 
Asset 

45,935 
101,604 
370,359 

517,898 

75.000 

442,891! 
=- --

. d school and church Lraining curriculum. and other 
The Doard is a dislributor of btble based sun a~ . h"ch consist primarily of Free Will 

. . Th B ard extends credit to lis customers w I . 
denominational pubhcauons. e 

0 
' 

1 
collateralized and are subject to accountmg 

13aptbt churches and religious bookstores These accoun_ls :Ue _no 
risk of loss amounting to lhe ouLStanding balance at any poult m lime. 

(10) Disposition of Property 

During the yedr ended February 29, 1992, the Doard received $108.300 from the State of Tennessee for the 

sale of approximately one quarll:r of an acre of land This uansacuon resulted in a gain of S 103,695. 

d h . ·ed a S1 000 deposit as eame~t money on the pending sale of 3-~8 _acres 
The Boar as recelv • . d commJSStons. 

. S275 000 The Board IS re:>poCISible for 411 closmg expenses an sales pnce IS • · . . 

has the right to terminate the agreement pnor to closmg 

8 
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The contract 

The purchaser 
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Dear Free Will Baptists: 

The pages that follow list the salaries of the management of Randall 
House Publications. We have a staff of twenty-four fuU- time employees 
and nine part-time employees. Our total payroJI is $676,414.99 annually. 
Our benefit packages are nominal. Our employees have a total of 466 
years of service to Randall House Publications. 

We are a manufacturing plant which requires skilled workers. Most of 
our employees could command a higher salary working elsewhere. They 
choose to work in a Christian environment and do service for their Lord. 
All of our employees are Christians. 

We maintain high standards of morality and dress codes. All of our 
employees are expected to attend their church and participate in its 
a ctivities. 

I thank the Lord for every employee the Lord has sent our way. 

Yours in His service, 
Randall House Publications 

Dr. Roger C. Reeds 
General Director 

RCR:csl 

Genera I Director (31 years service) 

Salary .
1
.t. 

Housing and. Uti I leS 
social Secunty 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

602.00 
1,080.00 

144.00 
426.00 

Total 6 d el"ther pays mileage or furnishes a travel car . Note: The oar 

Business Manager (16 years service) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Total 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Customer Service Manager (14 years service) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Total 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

133.32 
4,567.08 

440.76 
212.15 

90.72 
4,567.08 

440.76 
184.46 

'Editor-in-Chief • Adult Curriculum ( 15 years service} 
Housing Allowance 
Insurance 

Total 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

749.76 
1,080.00 

143.76 
326.49 

Design Department Manager (10 years service) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Retirement 
Total 

85.20 
2,352.84 

143.76 
163.08 

$38,000.00 
15,000.00 
4,055.00 

520.00 
2,252.00 

$59 ,827.00 

$30 ,348.50 
2,321 .66 
5,353.31 

$38,023.47 

$26,390.00 
2,01 8.84 
5,283.02 

$33,691.86 

$15,600.00 
2,300.01 

$17,900.01 

$24,278.80 
1,857.33 
2,744.88 

1 196.00 
$30,077.01 
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Printing Production Manager (20 years service) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Retirement 
Total 

Youth Division Director (3 years service) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Retirement 
Total 

Sales Manager {8 years service) 
Salary 
Housing 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Retirement 
Total 

Shipping Manager(18 years service) 
Salary 
Social Security 
Insurance 

Life 
Medical 
Dental 
Disability 

Retirement 
Total 

*Part-time Editor 

133.32 
2,352.84 

143.76 
239.88 

85.20 
4,567.08 

440.76 
147.57 

85.20 
2,351.88 

320.00 
126.95 

85.20 
2,352.84 

143.76 
166.05 
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$34,118.24 
2,610.05 
2,869.80 

1,690.00 
$41,288.09 

$21' 112.00 
1,615.07 
5,240.61 

1,040.00 
$29,007.67 

$16,430.18 
9,180.00 
1,959.20 
2,684.03 

894.40 
$31,347.81 

$23,751.00 
1,816.95 
2,747.85 

702.00 
$29,017.81 

A Cost Comparison Report 
1993 

SP GL ST .. UGP AY DCC 

Nursery Teacher 3.99 
Teacher's Resource Pkt 8.59 
Pupil's Handwork 1.99 

Bible Lesson Cards 1.89 

Preschool Teacher 3.99 
Teacher's Resource Pkt 8.59 
Preschool Student 1.99 
Preschool Workbook 1.99 
Picture Lesson Cards 
Primary Teacher 3.99 
Visual Packet 8.59 
Primary Student 1.99 
Primary Workbook 

*Memory Verse Packet 
Junior Teacher 3.99 
Visual Packet 8.59 
Junior Student 1.99 
Junior Workbook 
Teen Teacher 3.99 
Visual Packet 8.59 
Teen Student 1.99 
*Teen Workbook 
High Teen Teacher 3.99 
Visual Packet 9.99 
High Teen Student 1.99 
*High Teen Workbook 
Bible Teacher 
Visual Packet 
Challenge {Young Adult) 
Bible Teacher 3.99 
Bible Scholar 1.99 
Bible Scholar {Lge Prt) 2.79 
Visual Packet 9.99 
Visitor's Lesson lflt 

SP =Scripture Press 
AY = Free Will Baptist Press 

RHP =Randall House Publications 
DCC= David C. Cook 

3.69 
8.69 
1.89 

3.69 
8.69 
1.89 

3.69 
8.69 
1.89 

3.69 
8.69 
1.89 

14.99 

6.99 

14.99 

6.99 

14.99 
6.99 

3.65 3.75 
8.75 8.75 
1.95 1.95 

1.99 
3.65 1.35 3.75 
8.75 6.00 8.75 
1.95 1.25 1.95 

1.99 
.75 

3.65 1.35 3.75 
8.75 6.00 8.75 
1.95 1.25 1.99 

1.20 1.95 

3.65 1.35 2.95 
8.75 6.00 
1.95 1.45 2.30 

2.30 
3.65 1.45 3.65 
8.75 
2.95 1.45 2.30 

3.65 1.65 3.65 
8.75 
2.95 1.45 2.30 

1.65 
8.75 

1.50 
3.65 3.20 3.65 
2.10 1.60 2.45 
2.95 3.15 

2.15 

**UGP = Union Gospel Press 
GL = Gospel Light 
ST = Standard 

3.99 
9.19 
2.09 

3.99 
9.19 

2.09 

3.99 
9.19 
2.09 
2.09 

3.99 
9.19 

2.09 
3.99 
9.19 
2.09 

3.99 
9.19 
2.09 

3.99 
2.19 
2.59 
9.19 
2.09 

RHP 
3.50 
8.95 
1.85 
1.85 
3.50 
8.95 
1.85 
1.85 
1.75 
3.50 
8.95 
1.85 
1.85 
8.95 
3.50 
8.95 
1.85 
1.85 
3.50 
8.95 
1.85 
1.85 
3.50 
8.95 
1.85 
1.85 
3.50 

1.85 
3.50 
1.85 
1.95 

1.85 

.. In order for a price comparison to be accurate one needs to make a visual comparison. For instance it 
may appear that Union Gospel Press has lower prices than us or others but they generally run quite a 
few pages shorter in their publications. 

•only available from Randall House. 

Please note that most companies are charging far more for their products than Randall House 
Publications. Save money, receive quality, and preserve sound doctrine by purchasing your literature at 
Randall House Publications. 
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Revenues 
Sales 
Freight and Handling 
Youth Ministries 
Miscellaneous Income 

Expenses 
Cost of Outside Purchases 
Editorial 
Preparation 
Production 
Spanish 
Depreciation 

General Expenses 
Youth Division 
Sales Division 
Bookstore 
Administration 
Accounting 
Shipping 
Building 
General 

Total All Expenses 

Net Income 

1994 Budget 

A-124 

$ 2,201 ,358.60 
84,000.00 

112,000.00 
15,000.00 

$ 2,412,358.60 

$ 220,500.00 
139,500.00 
145,325.00 
591 ,900.00 
23,700.00 
15,000.00 

$ 1 '135,925.00 

$ 107,675.00 
87,000.00 
50,300.00 
99,100.00 

149,100.00 
133,500.00 
116,400.00 
452,000.00 

$ 1 '195,075.00 

$ 2,331 ,000.00 

$ 81 ,358.60 

expenses 

cost of Outside Purchases 
Curnculum 
Merchandise 
Bookstore 

Editorial 
Salaries 
Housrng 
Travel 
Suppl ies 
Writer's Fees 
Royalties 

$ 52,000.00 
108 .500.00 
60,000.00 

$ 220,500.00 

s 41,000 .00 
28,800.00 

2,000.00 
1,000.00 

40,000.00 
4,000 .00 
1,000.00 

300.00 
Conventions and Seminars 
Dues and Subscriptions 
Postage 200.00 

400.00 Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Preparation 
Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 

4,500.00 
4,000.00 

12,000 00 
300.00 

s 139,500.00 

s 110,525.00 

Equipment Maintenance 
Art Serv1ces 

1,000.00 
4,000.00 
2,000.00 
5,000.00 

Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Production 
Sa lanes 
Travel 
Supplies 

200.00 
700.00 

8,000 .00 
1,600.00 

12,000.00 
300.00 

$ 145,325.00 

$ 135,000.00 
1,000.00 

20,000.00 
12,000.00 

180,000.00 
4,000.00 
8,000.00 

180,000 00 

Equ1pment Maintenance 
Stock 
Parts 
Ink 
Outs1de Printmg 
Plates 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

12,000.00 
300.00 
600.00 

14,000.00 
6,000.00 

16,000.00 
3,000.00 

$ 591,900.00 

Spanrsh 
Salarres $ 12,700.00 
Supplies 200.00 
T ranslat1on 3,000.00 
Postage 600.00 
Telephone 1,500.00 
FICA 2,000.00 
Retrrement 1 ' 100.00 
Insurance 1,600.00 
Miscellaneous 1,000.00 

$ 23,700.00 

Depreciation $ 15,000.00 

Total Cost of Sales $ 1,1 35,925.00 

General Expenses 
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Youth D1v1s1on 
Sa lanes 
Travel 
NYC '94 
Truth & Peace '94 
YET '94 

$ 25,675.00 
2,000.00 

40,000.00 
24,000.00 
3,000.00 

500.00 
100.00 

1,000.00 

Conventions & Seminars 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Postage 
Prrnting 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Sales D1v1sion 
Salaries 
Housmg 
Travel 
Supplies 
Advertising 
Promot1on 

500.00 
600.00 

2,600 .00 
1,300.00 
5,400.00 
1,000.00 

$ 107,675.00 

$ 22,500.00 
9,500.00 

Conventions & Seminars 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Postage 

15,000.00 
1,200.00 
9,000.00 
6,000.00 
6 ,000.00 

300.00 
8,000.00 

Telephone 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

500.00 
1,000 .00 
6,000.00 
2,000.00 

$ 87 ,000.00 



Bookstore 
Sa lanes 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
Advertismg 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Admmistrative 
Salanes 
Housmg Allowance 
Social Secunry 
Entertamment 
Travel 
Auto Expense 
Auto Lease 
Supplies 

s 33,000 00 
900.00 
900 00 

4 000 00 
200 00 

1 100.00 
3,000 00 
1,000 00 
5 200.00 
1.000.00 

$ 50,300.00 

$ 58,000.00 
15.000 00 
4.200 00 

200.00 
4.000.00 
2.000.00 
4,700.00 

Equipment Rental 
Conventions & Seminars 
Dues and Subscnptions 
Postage 

200 00 
1,600.00 

300.00 
300.00 
600.00 

1,200 00 
1 600.00 
1,700.00 
2,500.00 
1 000 00 

Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Accounting 
Sa lanes 
Supplies 

s 99,100.00 

Eqwpment Mamtenance 
Postage 

s 93 100.00 
5,000.00 
6 000 00 
5,000.00 

Telephone 
FICA 
Relirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

12,000.00 
8,000 00 
2,000.00 

16 000.00 
2 000 00 

$ 149,100.00 
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Shipping 
Salanes 
Supplies s 57,ooo.oo 

8,000.00 
1 .ooo.oo Equipment Mamtenance 

Equipment Rental 
Freight 500,()() 

44,000.00 
6,000.00 
1,000.00 
4,500.00 
1,500.00 
8,000.00 
2,000.00 

Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

s 133,500.00 

Building 
Salanes 
Supplies 
Maintenance 
Ulllitres 

s 42,000.00 

Insurance (Burldmg) 
Telephone 

8,000.00 
6,00000 

32,000.00 
12,000.00 
1,000.00 

FICA 
Retrrement 
Insurance 
Mrscellaneous 

General Expenses 

4,000.00 
1,600.00 
6 800.00 
3,000.00 

$ 116,400.00 

Automobrle Expense $ 
Automobile Lease 
Supplies 

1,500.00 
4,000 00 
1,000.00 
9,000.00 
4 500.00 

Equipment Maintenance 
Equipment Rental 
Board Travel & Expense 
Legal & Audrting 
Taxes 

16,000.00 
12,000.00 
8,000.00 
4,000.00 Payroll Servrces 

Depreciation 
Interest Expense 
Debt Retrrement 
Mrscellaneous 

Total General Expenses 

Total All Income 
Total All Expenses 

Net Income 

65,000.00 
40,000.00 

275,000.00 
12,000.00 

s 452,000.00 

$ 1,195,075.00 

s 2,412,358.60 
2,331,000.00 

$ 81 ,358.60 

Home Missions Board Report 

The Lord was good to the Home Missions Department during 1992. 
Eighty seven (87) families of missionaries, associate missionaries, 
tentmakers, and Mexican national pastors served under the National 
Home Missions Board in planting Free Will Baptist churches. 

Seven (7) missionary families were approved during 1992. They were: 
Sandy and Phyllis Adams, Louisville, Kentucky 
Dwayne and Janice Broad, Fredericton, New Brunswick, Canada 
James and Charlotte Childers, Chesnee, South Carolina 
Ken and Bonnie Doggett, Springfield, Illinois 
Joel and Hope Nason, Laconia, New Hampshire 
Frank and LaDonna Owens, Waldorf, Maryland 
Terry and Ramona Van Winkle, Overland Park, Kansas 

Two tentmakers, Don Cook, Hanover, Pennsylvania, and Jim Garrett, 
Paducah, Kentucky, were also approved. 

Fourteen (14) church loans for a total of $2,057,336.00 were approved 
from the Church Extension Loan Fund. Sixty eight (68) loans have been 
made from the Loan Fund. The Fund grew to $5,260,620.00. 

Missionary Builder, Howard Gwartney, and his "Helping Hands" crew 
of volunteer workers erected eight (8) new church buildings in 1992. 

Eight (8) Free Will Baptist chaplains ministered to the men and women 
of the military. They were: Chaplain Terry Austin, Chaplain James Bishop, 
Chaplain Bill Conlon, Chaplain Robert Cooper, Chaplain Larry Langford, 
Chaplain Gerald Mangham, Chaplain Kerry Steedley, and Chaplain Tim 
Sturgill, U.S Air Force. Several National Guard and Reserve chaplains are 
endorsed by the Home Missions Department. One police chaplain also 
serves. 

Fourteen (14) Old Time Camp Meetings were conducted in various 
parts of the country by the Home Missions Traveling Team. An Old Time 
Camp Meeting was also held at the National Association in Indianapolis, 
Indiana. 

The ninth (9th) annual Roll Call Sunday was observed on March 29 with 
a totaJ attendance of 231,117, with 2,610 churches reporting. A total of 558 
souls were saved on that day. 

The "Build My Church" Campaign grew to $329,472.00. The purpose of 
this campaign is to raise $1,000,000.00 (one million dollars) in gifts to the 
Church Extension Loan Fund. The principle will be loaned to mission 
churches to erect buildings, and the interest will be given to mission 
churches to purchase property. It will take only 650 churches and indi­
viduals giving $1,000 each to reach this goal. The money will never be 
spent, but will always be used to build churches until Jesus comes! 

Benjamin Randall Day, November 22, 1992, was observed with a 

A-127 



tremendous response of $161 050 00 . 
A .copy of Benjamin Randall's Jou~af~~~ ~YJ churches and individuals 
Missions staff was sent to . d .. d P1 ed and typed by the H · 

"th h. m lVI uals pastors d . . orne 
WI t IS genero~s offering. ' ' an auxiliaries assisting 

A new Free Will Baptist Home M. . 
Nation.al Home Missions Board. ISSlons Handbook was adopted by the 

A faithful and dedicated staff served H . . 
They are: Trymon Messer A . om~ MISSions well during 1992 

Ri h ' ssocJate Director . 
B"J~ ;rd. Adaf!Is, Director of Development 
p' amel, Director of Communications 

at Thomas, Publications Editor 
Kathy Brown, Bookkeeper 
boanl Gardner, Evangelism Secretary 

aro yn Adams, CELF Secretary 
Pam Anis, Secretary 

Pray fo Roy Thomas, General Director 
r us as we seek to plac "M. . 

Churches In Every City." e ISSionaries In Every State For 

Respectfully submitted 
Roy Thomas, General Director 

N 
• Synopsis of Minutes of 

ational Home Missi 8 
May 4-6, I 992, the Board me~~. oard Meetings for 1992 

Offices in Nashville, Tennessee :\gs ~onference room at the National 
Interest rates in the Church ~t J • a members present. 

Loans were approved to: ensJOn Loan Fund were lowered to I 0%. 

Oregon Trail Free WiJI Ba tist Ch 
Heritage Free Will Ba tist~ urch, Portland, Oregon, $1 OS 000 
East VaHey Free WiltBapti~~~~h , Shreveport, L?uisiana, $201 :ooo 

$ 
Keystone Free Will Baptist C~rchh MHesa, Arizona, $300,000 

I 30,000 . urc , anover, Pennslyvania, 

Watpahu Free Will Baptist Ch . 
Manomet Free Will Baptist C~rchh Waipahu, Hawaii, $40,000 

$13I,OOO urc ' Plymouth, Massachusetts 
I 

Cathedral of the Cross FWB Ch 
Good News Free WiJI Bapt· ~r~hh, Chandler, Arizona, $250,000 

$230,000 IS urch, Chesterfield, Virginia, 

Grace Free Will Baptist Chur h . 
These applicants were approved c h NashvJI.Ie,. Tennessee, $75,000 
Joel and Hope Nason La . ~ orne mJssJOnaries: 

Doggett, Springfield liJin~is· ~~;;;'an~~ Hampshire; Ken and Bonnie 
Par~, Kansas; Don a~d Bon~ie Cook as t a;nonka Van Winkle, Overland 
van1a. en rna ers to Hanover, Pennsyi-

June 5, I 992, a committee consisting of Earl Hendrix J D N . 
' · · oms, and 
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Wendell Walley met in Nashville, Tennessee, and approved James and 
Charlotte Childers as missionaries to Chesnee, South Carolina. 

June 30, 1992, the Board had a telephone conference call with all 
members on line. They approved a Joan for the Clovis, California FWB 
Church for $120,000, which did not materialize, and voted to transfer 
$100,000 undesignated money in the Church Extension Loan Fund to the 
General Fund. 

July 20-21, 1992, all members were present in Indianapolis, Indiana. 
They met with Rev. Joe Rager and a delegation from Heri tage Free Will 
Baptist Church, Elkhart, Indiana, concerning their church loan. They met 
with Dick Byers, an architect from New Castle, Indiana, about drawing 
plans for home missions churches. 

The following loans were approved: 
Free Will Baptist Church, Paducah, Kentucky, for $35,000; 
Exchanged a note of $42,000 with Heritage Temple FWB Church, 

Gilbert, Arizona for church bonds; 
First Free Will Baptist Church, Antioch , California, $70,000. 

September 22, 1992, all Board members except Wendell Walley were 
on line for a telephone conference call to approve a loan to Victory Free 
Will Baptist Church, Hanover, Pennsylvania, for $156,000. 

October 9, 1992, a committee consisting of Rue Dell Smith, Wendell 
Walley, and Glenn Thomas, along with Murray Southwell, David Nobles, 
and Lonnie Salyers, members of the Maryland State Mission Board, met 
in Nashville, Tennessee, to approve Frank and LaDonna Owens as 
missionaries to Waldorf, Maryland. 

October 12, 1992, all members were on line for a telephone conference 
call to approve a loan to the National Offices for $260,824. 

November 16-17, 1992, the Finance Committee of Earl Hendrix, Lynn 
Wood, and J.D. Norris met in Nashville, Tennessee. They voted to receive 
an irrevocable trust of $150,000 from Philadelphia Free Will Baptist 
Church, Columbus, Ohio. The following loans were approved: 

Free Will Baptist National Offices, an additional $640,000, bringing 
their total to $900,824. 

Goodlettsville, Tennessee, Free Will Baptist Church, $70,000 
Smyrna, Tennessee, Free Will Baptist Church, $50,000 

November 19, 1992, all members were on line for a telephone confer­
ence call to approve the actions recommended by the Finance Commit­
tee, November 16 and 17. 

December 9-10, 1992, all members were present in the conference 
room in the National Offices building in Nashville, Tennessee. Dwayne 
and Janice Broad were approved as missionaries to Fredericton, New 
Brunswick, Canada. Sandy and Phyllis Adams were approved as mission­
aries to Louisville, Kentucky. Loans were approved to: 

Ambassador Free Will Baptist Church, Cincinnati, Ohio, $35,000 
Heritage Free Will Baptist Church, Davenport, Iowa, $100,000 

A new Home Missions Handbook was adopted. A new copier, FAX, and 
labeling machines were purchased. The General Director's car was 
replaced. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To t he Boar d of Trustees of the 
Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Yill Baptists of the 
Uni ted States of America, Inc. 

Ye have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Board o f Home 
Missions o f the National As soc iation of Free Yill Baptists of the United 
States of America, Inc . (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 1992, 
and the related statements of support and reve nue , e xpenses and changes i n 
fund balances and cash f l ows fo r the year then ended. These financial 
statements are the re s ponsibility of the Organization's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements base d on 
our audit. 

Ye conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that ~e plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assuranc e about whethe r the f inancial statements a re free of 
mate r ial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the f inancial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting p rinciples used and significant 
est ima tes ma de by management , as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referr ed to above present 
fairly, in all mate rial respects, the f i nancial position of t he Boar d of 
Missions of the National Association o f Free Wil l Baptists of the United 
States of Ame rica, Inc. a s of December 31, 1992 and the results of i t s 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended i n conformity with 
generally accepted accounting pri nciples. 

February 10 , 1993 
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Home 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NATIONAL AS SOCIATION OF AMERICA ' INC ' 
OF THE UNITED STATES OF 

Balance Sheet 
December 31, 1992 

e,SSETS 

Oper ating 
Fund 

Msets $113.607 $ 
cash Note 2 
Inves t ments, at cos t . 
Investment s in Church Extension 
Loan Fund - Note 7 

t ry - Note 1 Inven o . t cost , less 
Property and equ l pment, a of $24,819 . 
accumulated depreciat ion 
Notes 1 & 3 

Capi talized l ease - Note 4 at cos t 
Real property held for sale, 

Total assets 

217,786 

173 '069 
7,810 

17,392 
31 . 204 

$560 1868 

LIABILITIES AND fUND BALANCES 

Uabiliti!l ~ 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Note 7 
Deferred compens ation · Note 5 
Notes payable - related party . 

Note 8 
Restricted deferred revenue 
missionary accounts 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Note 10 

Fund balapces (deficit} 
Unres tricted 

- Notes 

Net investment in property 
and equipment 

Total f und balances 

Total liabilities and fund 
balances 

-
1 & 6 

-
$ 14,085 

153,697 

30,401 

410 .641 

608.824 

( 47,956) 

( 47,956) 

$5601868 

• t and a ccompanying See accountants repor 
notes to the financial statementsb 

· 2-
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s 

$ 

Plant 
Fund 

74 , 310 

74 .310 

19,245 

19 , 245 

55 ,065 

55 ,065 

s 74.310 

Total 
All 

Funds 

$113,607 
217,786 

173,069 
7,810 

74,310 
17.392 
31.204 

$635.178 

$ 

( 

14,085 
153, 697 

49,646 

410 ,641 

628,069 

47 , 956) 

55,065 

7 .109 

~635 1 178. 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCI ATI ON OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA. INC. 
Support and Revenue. Expenses and Channes F h - - · = in Fund Balances 

Statement of 

or t e Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Support and revenue; 
Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Notes 6 & 7 

Management fees . Note 7 
Interest income 
Cain (loss) on disposal of 
property and equipment 

Cain (loss) on disposal of 
inves tments 

Total support a nd revenue 

Expens es: 
Administrative expenses 
Mi s siona ry expenses 
Plant f und 

Tota l expenses 

Excess (de ficiency) of support 
and revenue over expenses 

Transfer of equipment loan to 
Plant Fund 

Equipment purchases and 
dispositions 

Fund balance (deficit) 
beginning of year 

Fund balance (deficit) 
end of year 

Operating Fund 
Unrestricted Res tricted 

$ 60,41.5 

569,822 
60 , 000 
24,065 

370 

( 7 047) 

707.625 

574,994 

574 994 

132,631 

19,245 

( 40,508) 

( 159 . 324) 

$ 244,605 

1,460 , 556 

l. 705 .161 

1 , 705 ,161 

1. 705 . 161 

-0 -

cs 47. 956) "'s __ ...;-~o~-

See accountants' report and accompanying 
Dotes to the financial statements. 
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$ 

Plant 
Fund 

8.462 

8.462 

( 8,462) 

( 19,245) 

40,508 

42 '264 

s 55 . 065 

( 

Total 
All 

Funds 

$ 305,020 

2,030,378 
60,000 
24,065 

370 

( __ .._7 ·o...l<0:.::::4.L7) 

2 . 412.786 

s 

574 ,994 
1.705 ' 161 

8.462 

2.288.617 

124,169 

117' 060) 

7 . 109 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NAJI ONAL ASSOCIATI ON OF fREE WILL BAPTI STS 

Of THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. I NC. 
Statement of Ca sh f1o~s 

For the Yea r Ended December 31 . 1992 

Operating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of support 

and revenue over expenses 
Adjustments to reconcile net 

income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 

(Gain) loss on disposal of property 
and equipment 

(Gain) loss on disposal of inves t ments 
Changes in operating assets 

and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in i nventories 
Increase (decrease ) in accounts payable 

and accrued expenses 
I ncrease (de c rease) in deferred 
compensation 

Increase (decrease ) in restricted 
deferred revenue 

Net cash provided by operating 
activities 

Investing activities 
Disposition of investments 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on sale of property and 
equipment 

Purchase of property and equipment 

Net cash used in investing 
activities 

Financing activities 
Payments on notes payable 

Net cash used by financing act ivities 

Increase (dec rease ) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of year 

Supplemental disclosures 
Cash paid during the year for interest 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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Operating 
Fund 

$132,631 

940 

( 370) 
7,047 

1,251 

562 

13, 380 

92 , 386 

247,827 

55,467 
( 173,069) 

1,000 
( 41.138) 

( 157 , 740) 

( 4,807) 

( 4 807) 

85,280 

28 . 327 

$113.607 

~ 7 ,445 
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{$ 

Plant 
Fund 

8,462) 

8,462 

·0-

-0-

·0-

-0-

-0· 

-0-

s -0-

~ -0-

Total 
All 

Funds 

$124,169 

8,462 
940 

( 370) 
7 , 047 

1 , 251 

562 

13.380 

92 I 386 

247.82] 

55,467 
( 173,069) 

1,000 
( 41,138) 

( 157,740) 

( 4 807) 

( 4 807) 

85,280 

28,327 

Sll'3.607 

s 7,44S 
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Note 1 -

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE ~ILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 1992 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free 
~Ill Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit 
organization affiliated with the National Association of Free ~ill 
Baptists. The purpose of the Organization is to establish and support 
Free Will Baptist Mission churches in the United States and Mexico. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 
50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free ~ill Baptists, Inc. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Fund accounting 

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the 
use of resources available to the Organization, the accounts of the 
Organization are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund 
accounting. This is the procedure by which resources for various 
purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds 
established according to their nature and purposes. Separate accounts 
are maintained for each fund; however, in the accompanying financial 
statements, funds that have similar characteristics have been combined 
into fund groups. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been 
recorded and reported by fund group. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

Property and equipment is stated at acquisition cost. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives range 
from 3-20 years. 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out 
method) or market. 

Restricted deferred revenue 

Deferred revenues in the restricted funds result from 
contributions which have been restricted by the donor for a specific 
purpose. Revenue in the restricted funds is recognized only to the 
extent that related expenses have been incurred. 
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Note 2 • 

Note 3 -

Note 4 -

Investments 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ~E~~!~~AB~:~~STS 

OF THE UNITED STATES 
t t he Financial Statements Notes o 

December 31. 1992 

overnment securities mutual funds. 
The Organization invests in g h h intention and ability to 

Management believes that the.Fund hafs botth~s: funds are valued at 
ity there ore, . 

hold these funds to matur ' comprised of the following. 
amortized cost. Investments are 

Cost 

Mutual funds $217.786 
Market 
~193.287 

The following 
carrying values and 

tabulation summarizes the relation~hip 
l Of investment assets. 

between 

market va ues 

Balance at end of year 

Balance at beginning of year 
Increase in unrealized 
appreciation 

Realized gain (loss) for year 

Carrying 
Value 

$217.786 

$280.300 

Total net gain (loss) for the year 

Market 
Value 

$193.287 

$253.396 

Excess 
of Market 

Over(Under) Cost 
($ 24,499) 

($ 26.904) 

2,405 
( 7 047) 

($ 4,642) 

The average annual yield exclusive of net gains (losses) was 7.3X. 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Automobile 
Office furniture & equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

~apitalized leases 

$ 27,460 
71.669 
99,129 

( 24.819) 
$ 74.310 

Will Baptists purchased an office 
The National Association of Free d ncies of the denomination. 

i departments an age hi building to house var ous t to lease space in t s new 
The Board has entered into an agreeme~h debt service costs during the 
building and agreed to contribute to tell the debt has been retired. 

i d d to continue un d d ill be construction per o an f $18 802 were capitalize an w h 
The construction period costs ot ye~rs Amortization expense forte 
amortized over a period of twen y . 
year amounted to $940. 
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Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES Of AHERICA. INC . 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31 . 1992 

Deferred compensation 

The Board of Home Missions provides deferred compensation for each 
employee based on a formula combining a percent of salary and years of 
service. The compensation is payable to the employee when employment is 
terminated. The following is a summary of the deferred compensation 
account. 

Balance at beginning of year 
Contribution for the year 

Missionaries 
Administrative employees 

Transfer and terminations 
Balance at end of year 

Restricted deferred revenue 

$140,317 

23,735 
10,902 

( 21.257) 
$153.697 

Change in restricted deferred revenue is as follows: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 

Revenue recognized in the current year 
(expenses) 

Increase in deferred revenue 
Balance, December 31, 1991 
Balance, December 31, 1992 

Related party transactions 

Missionary 
Accounts 

$ 244,605 
1. 552 0 942 
1,797,547 

( 1.705.161) 
92,386 

318 . 255 
s 410 . 641 

The Board of Home Missions provides office space f or and pays the 
salaries of the employees of a related party, the Church Extension Loan 
fund. Dur ing the year, the Church Extension Loan Fund paid the Board of 
Home Missions a management fee of $60,000 to reimburse the cost of the 
office space and salaries. Included in the designated contributions of 
the Board of Home Missions is a $170,000 transfer of excess funds from 
the Church Ex tension Loan fund as authorized by the Board of Trustees. 
The Board of Home Missions then invested the money in a demand note of 
the Church Ext ension Loan Fund. The balance in this investme n t at year 
end was $173,069. The Board of Home Missions is liable to the Church 
Extension Loan Fund in the amount of $10,267, which is included in 
accounts payable at December 31, 1992. 
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Note 8 -

Note 9 -

Note 10 -

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION Of FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES Of AHERICA . INC, 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 1992 

Notes payable - related party 

Note payable to Church Extension Loan Fund, 
secured by office furniture, payable in 
monthly installments of $544, which inclu~es 
both principal and interest at 10%, matur1ng 
in 1995 

Note payable to Church Extension Loan fund, 
secured by a mortgage on property in Arkan~as, 
payable in monthly installments of $355 whtch 
includes both principal and interest at 10%, 
maturing in 2006 

$ 19,245 

30 401 
$ 49,646 

The aggregate maturl.ties of these notes are as follows: 

1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
Thereafter 

$ 5 , 708 
6,306 
6 ,966 
5,172 
1 , 564 

23 ,930 
s 49.646 

See Note 7 for other related parties transactions . 

Lease 

The Board of Home Missions entered into a lease a~reement_on 
October 1, 1990 with the National Association of Free W1l l Baptlsts, 
Inc for office and storage space. The rent expense for the year 

· d $63 180 The term of the lease will expire when all amounte to • · · t 22 years 
mortgages on the building are satisfied, which approx1ma es · 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
Thereafter 

$ 63,060 
63,060 
63 ,060 
63,060 
63,060 

1,072,020 

Commitments 

The Board has pledged its property and equipment as collateral on 
t note that the National Association of Free Will Baptists, a mor gage 

I has with the Church Extension Loan Fund. nc. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORHATION 

To the Board of Trustees of 
the Board of Home Missions of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
of the United States of America, Inc . 

Our report on our audit of the basic financial statements of the 
Board of Home Missions for 1992 appears on page 1. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 
schedule of functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

February 10, 1993 
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BOARD Of HOME MISSIONS Of THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF fREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA , INC. 
Schedule of functional Expenses 

For the Year Ended December 31 , 1992 

Operating Fund Plant: 

Administrative expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Housing allowance and 

employee benefits 
Employee savings 
Cost of literature 
Promotion expense 
Utilities 
Office expense 
Printing and postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Auto and travel expense 
Board meeting expense 
Insurance expense 
Telephone 
Interest expense 
Amortization 
Miscellaneous 

Total administrative expenses 

Missionary expenses 
Salary and wages 
Employee benefits 
Employee savings 
Promotion expense 
Printing and postage 
Auto and travel expense 
Insurance expense 
Missionary land & buildings 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous other expense 

Total missionary expenses 

Plant; fund 
Depreciation 

Total plant fund 

Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 199,944 $ $ 
10,044 

67,788 
8,220 
5,033 

86 
7,606 

ll, 880 
81,760 
63,180 

2,200 
37,629 
11,548 
38,266 
10,001 

7,514 
940 

11.355 

574 994 

1,352,159 
3' 775 

23,734 
3,705 

38,521 
70,766 
29 '971 
45,934 
80,347 
56 249 

1.705,161 

Fund 

8 462 

8 462 

Total expense s 5741994 $1.705.161 s 81462 

See account:ants' S upplement:ary informacion, report: on __ 
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Total 
All 

Funds 

$ 199,944 
10,044 

67,788 
8,220 
5,033 

86 
7,606 

ll '880 
81,760 
63,180 
2,200 

37,629 
ll' 548 
38,266 
10,001 

7 514 
' 
940 

11 355 

574 994 

1,352,159 
3,775 

23,734 
3 , 705 

38,521 
70,766 
29.971 
45,934 
80,347 
56 249 

l, 705,161 

8 462 

8 462 

§2.288.617 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund 

l.t•mbefs 
AMERICAN INSnlV~ ~ 
~RTIFIEO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

TENNESS!OE SOCIETY OF 
~RTII'IEO PU8LIC ACCOIJNT~S 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Church Extension 
Loan Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 1992, and the related 
statements of support and revenue, expenses and changes in fund balances and 
cash flows for the year then ended . These financial statements are the 
responsibi lity of the Fund's manageme nt. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The comparative 
totals of the Church Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 1991 were 
extracted from the financial statements for that year which were prepared by 
another audito r whose report, dated April 22, 1992, expressed an unqualified 
opinion on those statements. 

We conduct ed our audit in accor dance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain re asonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financ ial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonab le bas is 
for our opinion . 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Church 
Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 1992 and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

February 11, 1993 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FQNO 
Balance Sheet 

Decembe r 31. 1992 1991) 
(With Comparative Totals for 

&sset!J 
Cash 
Investments - Note 2 
Accounts receivable - Notes 

ASSETS 

Unrestricted 
Operating 

Fund 

$ 115' 213 
673,677 

1 & 6 
Notes receivable 
Bonds receivable 

Notes 1 & 6 
10,267 

4 391,073 • 

Accrued interest receivable 
Prope rty and equipment - at 

t less accumulated cos ' 0 
deprec iation of $8,87 -
Notes 1 & 3 

Total assets 

43,785 
47,387 

ss 1 2BL 402 

$ 

Plant 
Fund 

3 801 

s 3.801 

LIABILITIES AND fUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accrued int:erest 
Revocable and irrevocable 

trusts 
Deferred compensation 
Notes payable - Not:es 
Note payable • other 

Note 5 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances 
Unrestr icted 
Restricted 

4 & 6 

Net investment in property 
and equipment 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund 
balances 

$ 49,158 

285,000 
113,472 

4,327,993 

30 170 

4.805 , 793 

475,609 

4Z5, 609 

$5.281.402 

, t d accompanyin& See accountant:s repor an 
h financial statement:s, -2-notes to t e _ 

$ 

3 801 

3,801 

$ 3.801 
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Total All 
1992 

$ 115 '213 
673,67 7 

10,267 
4' 391,073 

43,78 5 
47,387 

3,801 

$5.285,203 

$ 49,158 

285,000 
113,472 

4,327,993 

30, lZO 

4.805,793 

47 5,609 

3,801 

4Z9 ,410 

$5.285 . 203 

Funds 
1991 

$1,023 ,534 
713,803 

8,334 
2 553,690 • 

20,572 

6,335 

54,326 .268 

$ 66 , 652 

245,000 
82,909 

3 480 ,751 
' 

3 .875.312 

444,621 

450,956 

$4,326.268 

I 

l· 
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Statement of 
CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN fUND 

Support and Revenue. Expenses and Changes 
For. the Year Ended Qecember 31. 1992 

(Wlth Comparative Totals for 1991) 

in Fund Balances 

Support and revenue: 
Designated contributions 
Undesignated contributions 
Loan origination fees 
Investment income 

Unrestricted 
Operating 

fund 

$ 79,773 
59,830 
13,260 
94.081. 

In~eresc income on notes receivable 
Ca1n on sale of investment 

320,175 
2 945 

570 067 

Expenses: 
Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto and travel 
Management fee - Note 6 
Promotion 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Transfer to Free Will Baptists 

Home Missions - Note 6 

Excess (deficiency) of support 
and reve~ue over expenses 

Fund balance - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

270,763 
3,039 
6,038 

60,000 
18,793 
10,446 

170.000 
539 079 

30,988 

444 621 

$475.609 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 

Plant 
fund 

2,534 

2 534 

( 2,534) 

6.335 

$ 3.801 

Total All Funds 
1992 1991 

$ 79,773 
59,830 
13.260 
94,084 

320,175 
2 945 

570 067 

270,763 
3,039 
6,038 

60,000 
18,793 
10,446 

2,534 

170,000 
541.613 

28,454 

450.956 

$479,410 

$119,836 
350 

3,500 
110.306 
230,181 

464 173 

283,337 
1,116 
3. 777 

57,638 
10. 721 

9,981 
2,535 

369,105 

95,068 

355.888 

$450.956 

CHURCH EXTENSION LQ&~ fUND 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended December 31. 1992 
(Yith Comparative Totals for 1991) 

Qperating activities 
Excess (deficiency) of support 
and revenue over expenses 

Adjustments to reconcile net 
income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Cain on sale of investments 
Changes in operating assets 

and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in 
accounts receivable 

(Increase) decrease in 
accrued interest 
receivable 

Increase (decrease) in 
accrued interest 
payable 

Increase (decrease) in 
deferred compensation 

Net cash provided by operating 
activities 

Investing activities 
Sale of investments 
Collection on notes 

receivable 
Additions to notes and 

bonds receivable 
Net cash used in investing 
activities 

financing activities 
Additions to trusts 

of trusts Repayment 
Additions to notes payable 
Repayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided by 
financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of year 

Supplemental disclosures 
Interest received 
Interest paid 

Operating 
Fund 

$ 30,988 

( 2,945) 

( 1,933) 

( 26,815) 

( 17,494) 

30 S63 

12,364 

4 3. 071 

914,438 

( 2,795 ,606) 

( 1.838,09Z> 

50,000 
( 10,000) 

2. 041.053 
( 1,16~.641) 

9!Z . 412 

( 908,321) 

!. OZ3 , ~34 

$ 115' 213 

i 389 16ZJ 

i 288.25Z 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements, 
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Plant 
fund 

($ 2,534) 

2,534 

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$ -0-

i 
i 
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Total All Funds 
1992 1991 

$ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

28,454 

2,534 
2,945) 

$ 

1,933) ( 

26,815) ( 

17,494) 

30 563 

12 364 

43,071 

914,438 

( 2,795,606) ( 

( l.838,097) ( 

50,000 
( 10,000) 

2,041,053 
( 1,163,641) 

91Z,412 

( 908,321) 

1,023,534 

s 115.213 

s 3891677 
s 288.257 

95,068 

2,535 

8,334) 

10,251) 

32.640 

24 118 

135 776 

91,954 

934 989) 

843 035) 

1,310,956 

1.310,956 

603,697 

419 837 

$1,023.534 

i )26 I 036 

~ 250.698 



Note 1 -

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31 1992 

Or anizarion and summar 
ccountin olicies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization under 
the direction of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. The purpose 
of the Fund is to loan money co Free Will Baptist churches, primarily 
Home Mission churches, for purchase of land and buildings . 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 50l(c)(3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements: 

Fund accounting 

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the 
use of resources available to the Fund, the accounts of the Fund are 
maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. This 
is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified 
for accounting and reporting purposes into funds established according 
to their nature and purposes. Separate accounts are maintained for each 
fund; however, in the accompanying financial statements, funds that have 
similar characteristics have been combined into fund groups. 
Accordingly, all financial transactions have been recorded and reported 
by fund group . 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

Property and equipment is stated at acquisition cost. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are 
five years on all assets. 

Notes receivable 

The Fund loans money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home 
Mission Churches, for the purchase of land and buildings. Each church 
is required to give a first mortgage on the property or sign a deed of 
trust. Principal and interest on the loans is payable monthly at 11% 
(10% beginning with the January 1993 payment) over a fifteen year period 
except for churches still under construction which are required to pay 
interest only. The current year maturity on the loans is $111,828. The 
carrying value of these loans approximates market value. The churches 
are located throughout the United States. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Management considers accounts and notes receivable to be fully 
collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is 
required. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to 
operations when that determination is made. 
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Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN fUND 
to the Financial Statements Notes - -

2 December 31, 199 

Organization and 
i policies (Continued) Of si~nificant account ng -summary -

Cash equivalents 

The Fund considers all 
of three months or less when 

Comparative data 

ith a maturity highly liquid investment~ w 
purchased to be cash equtvalents. 

The 
presented 
financial 

financial information for 
for comparative purposes, 
statement presentation. 

the year ended December 
is not intended to be a 

31, 1991, 
complete 

Investmen~s 

securities mutual funds. . . 
The Fund invests in government b h the intention and abtllty to 

b 1" s that the Fund has ot h e funds are valued at Management e Leve . . therefore, t es . . 
hold these funds to maturity, . d of the followtng. 

. d cost Investments are comprise amorttze · 

Cost 
Mutual funds $673.677 

Market 
$629.489 

The following 
carrying values and 

i ununarizes the relationship tabular on s . 
market values of investment assets. 

between 

Balance at end of year 

Balance at beginning of 
Increase in unrealized 
appreciation 

Realized gain for year 

year 

Total net gain for the year 

Carrying 
Value 

$673.677 

$713.803 

Market 
Value 

$629.489 

$652.482 

Excess 
of Market 

Over(under) Cost 
($ 44,188) 

($ 61. 321) 

17. 133 
2 945 

s 20.078 

The average annual of net gains (losses) was 7.75X. yield exclusive 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

Less· Accumulated depreciation 
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$ 11,821 
850 

12,671 
( 8 870) 
s 3,801 



Note 4 -

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Notes payable 

CHURCH EXTENSI ON LOAN fUND 
Notes to the financial Statements 

December 31. 1992 

Notes payable consist of 5 1/2 - 7% unsecured demand notes from 
individuals and churches. The proceeds of these notes are then loaned 
to churches to help them purchase land and buildings. The carrying 
value of these notes approximates fair value . 

Note payable - other 

The Fund entered into an agreement with a contributor to pay the 
contributor $500 per month for 72 months in exchange for his $90,000 
contribution. This agreement resulted in a notes payable with an 
unstated interest rate . Using an imputed interest of 6 l/2%, the note 
was discounted to a present value of $30,170. The amount of the 
contribution was then reduced by the present value of the note payable 
to $59,830. 

Related party transactions 

The Fund paid the Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free ~ill Baptists, Inc. a management fee of $60,000 to 
reimburse the Board of Home Missions for salary, rent and other expenses 
paid by the Board. Additionally, at the direction of the Board members, 
the Fund transferred $170,000 to the general fund of the Board of Home 
Missions. This money was subsequently invested by the Board of Home 
Missions in the note payable of the Fund. The balance of this note 
payable to the Board of Home Missions at year end was $173,069. The 
Fund holds notes receivable from the Board of Home Missions in the 
amount of $19,245 for furniture and equipment and $31,402 for property 
held for sale. The Fund had accounts receivable from the Board of Home 
Missions in the amount of $10,267. 

The Fund holds a note receivable from the National Association of 
Free ~ill Baptists, Inc. in the amount of $900,824. This note is 
secured by a deed of trust note. 
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Salaries-Home Missions Department 

General Director 
Salary 
Housmg 
Utllittes 
Soctal Secunty 
Retirement (Savmgs Bonus) 
Insurance: 

Travel 
Life 
Health 
Dental 

Total . 
Note: Office car furntshed 

Associate Director 
Salary 
Housing 
Utllittes 
Soctal Secunty 
Retirement (Savings Bonus) 
Insurance 

Total 

Travel 
Ltfe 
Health 
Dental 

Note: Offtce car furnished 

Director of Development 
Salary 
Housing 
Uttlities 
Social Security 
Retirement (Savings Bonus) 
Insurance: 

Total 

Travel 
Ltle 
Health 
Dental 

Note Office Car Furntshed 

Bookkeeper 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement (Savings Bonus) 
Insurance: 

Total 

Life 
Health 
Dental 

1992 
529.159 16 

16 800.00 
2 017 14 

00 
2 .366 75 
3,19410 

1993 
S30 732 90 

16.800.00 
1.843.48 (est) 

.00 
2 330 76 (est) 
3,176 76 

1994 
S31 ,257.48 

16 800.00 
2,000 .00 (est) 

.00 
2,400.00 (est) 
3,170.28 

60.00 60.00 60.00 
310.32 

2,329.86 

310.32 
2,325.48 

310.32 
2,325.48 
474.48~-~ 

$55,627.76 
4 93 0 92. ____ -:---:-:: 

$53 ,534.18 

480.96 __ ~ 
$54,883.90 

$28,829.76 
10,800.00 
2 ,694.91 

.00 
2,019 56 
4,532 70 

$29 ,979.15 
10,800.00 
2 ,150.36 (est) 

00 
1,981.44 (est) 
4,507.96 

$30,362.28 
10,800.00 
2,300.00 (est) 

.00 
2.000.00 (est) 
4,499. 16 

60 00 
310.32 

3,495.39 

6000 
310.32 

3,488 28 

60 .00 
310.32 

3,488.28 

666. 96.__--:-: 
$48 ,876 90 

$23,252.40 
14,400.00 
3 ,136.45 

.00 
767.49 

3,194. 10 

649.36. __ ~ 
$49,418.91 

640 .5 6-:_,__:-:-: 
$49,061.44 

$22,164.51 
16,800.00 

1,747.84 
.00 

753.00 (est) 
3,176.76 

$22,601.88 
16,800.00 
2,500.00 

.00 
780 .00 (est) 

3 ,170.28 

60.00 
310.32 

2,329.86 
493. 92._--::-:-:-: 

$44 750 44 

60 .00 
310.32 

2 ,325.48 
480.96 

$:..._4_4_6--:42:-. ::-:11 

60.00 
310.32 

2,325.48 
4 7 4 0 48._~:::-:-;:: 

$45,852.16 

$22,838.30 
1,746.97 
1,207.40 

209.52 
209.52 

.00 
0 oo, ~--::-::-:::-:-; 

$26,002.19 
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$23,340.16 
1,785.63 
1,047 .56 (est) 

209.52 

$23,651 .16 
1,809.60 
1,200.00 (est} 

209.52 

209.52 
.00 

209.52 
.00 

. 00.~=-:::--;::-.::; 
$26,382.87 

0 00. -~:-::-::: 
$26 ,870.28 



Director of Communications Home Missions Department Salary $30 445.99 $31 ' 113 68 $31 ,529.16 Proposed Faith Budget for 1994 Soc1al Secunty 2,329.29 2,380. 14 2,411.76 Rellrement (Sav~ngs Bonus) 1,609 59 1,396.52 (est) 1 .450.00 (est) Insurance: 8,053.56 8 021.56 8,012.76 
1993 Budget 1994 Budget L1fe 209 52 209.52 209.52 Missionary Maintenance s 1 518,000.00 $1 ,577 ,000 .00 Health 7,1 77 .08 7,1 62.68 7,162.68 Salanes 

75,000 .00 75,000.00 Dental 666.96 649 .36 640.56 Travel and Promotion 
25,000.00 27,000.00 Total $42,438.43 $42,91190 $43,403.28 Employee Savings 
40,000.00 50,000.00 Postage and Printing 
25,000.00 25,000.00 

Miscellaneous 
75,000.00 75,000.00 Evangelism Secretary 

Land and Building Fund 
$1 ,829,000.00 $1 ,758,000.00 Salary $15,966.19 $16,316.50 $16,534.44 Total Social Security 1,221. 41 1,247.98 1,264.64 

Retirement (Savings Bonus) 841.03 732.36 (est) 800.00 (est) Insurance: 2,786.64 2,775.48 2,772.24 Missionary Assistance 
$ 40,000.00 $ 80,000.00 L1fe 209 52 209 .52 209.52 Prinllng and Postage 

9,000.00 10,000.00 Health 2,330.16 2,325.48 2,325.48 Telephone 
15,000.00 13,000.00 Dental 246.96 240.48 237.24 Board Member Expense 
4,000.00 3,000.00 Total $20,815.27 $21 ,072.32 $21 ,371.32 Auditing 
6,000.00 4,000.00 Literature 

15,000.00 12,000.00 Miscellaneous 
$ 122,000.00 $ 92,000.00 Publications Editor 

Total Salary $24,692 05 $25,233 .54 $25,570.48 
Soctal Secunty 1,888.93 1,930.40 1,956.24 
Rellrement (Savtngs Bonus) 1,295.96 1,132.60 (est) 1,200.00 (est) Administrative 

$ 220,000.00 $ 230,000.00 Insurance 2.539.68 2,535.00 2,534.00 Salaries 
45,000.00 45,000.00 L1fe 209.52 209.52 209.52 Hous1ng 
15,000.00 10,000.00 Health 2,330.16 2,325.48 2,325.48 Social Security 
10,000.00 9,000.00 Dental .00 .00 .00 Payroll Taxes 
12,000.00 12,000.00 Total $30,416.62 $30,831 .54 $31,261 .72 Employee Savings 
40,000.00 40,000.00 Insurance 

8,000.00 8,000.00 Utilities 
$ 354,000.00 $ 350,000.00 Loan Fund Secretary Total 

Salary $15,660.16 $15 ,993.90 $16,201.64 
Social Secunty 1,197.94 1,223.70 1,239.68 
Retirement (Savings Bonus) 320.38 287.36 (est) 300.00 (est) Evangelism 

$ 40,000.00 $ 40,000.00 Insurance: 2,539.68 2,535.00 2,535.00 Auto and Travel 
4,000.00 4,000.00 Life 209.52 209.52 209.52 Promotion 
9,000 .00 12,000.00 Health 2,330.16 2,325.48 2,325.48 Revivals 
6,000.00 6,000.00 Dental .00 00 .00 Roll Call Sunday 

$ 62,000.00 $ 59,000.00 Total $19,718.16 $20,039.96 $20,276.32 Total 

Secretary Plant 
$ 63,000.00 $ 63,000.00 Salary $15,660 16 $15,993.90 $16,201 .64 Office Space 

10,00.00 10,000.00 Social Secunty 1' 197 94 1,223. 70 1,239.68 Equipment and Supplies 
8,000.00 10,000.00 Rellremenl (Savings Bonus) 323.97 287.36 (est) 300.00 (est) Interest 

101000.00 101000.00 Insurance· 2,778.72 2,767.56 2,764.32 Depreciation 
$ 83,000.00 $ 91 ,000.00 Life 201 .60 201 .60 201 .60 Total 

Health 2,330.16 2,325.48 2,325.48 
Build My Church Campaign: $ 150,000.00 $ 150,000.00 Dental 246.96 240.48 237.24 Total 

$2,600,000.00 
$19,960.79 $20,272.52 $20,505.64 

$2,500,000.00 Total Faith Budget: 

A-148 A-149 



Proposed State Goals for 1994 

State 1994 Goal 

Alabama 
Alaska 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Canada 
Church Extension Loan Fund 
Colorado 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maine 
Maryland 
Massachusetts 
Mexico 
Michigan 
Minnesota 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 

$200,000 
500 

35,000 
155,000 
65,000 
5,000 

60,000 
27,000 

120,000 
80,000 
2,000 
4,000 

75,000 
25,000 
2,500 

12,000 
12,000 
60,000 
9,000 

30,000 
1,000 

500 
80,000 

500 
80,000 

150,000 
1,000 

A-150 

State 

Nebraska 
New Hampshire 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
New York 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Oregon 
Other Income 
Other States 
Pennsylvania 
Puerto Rico 
Rhode Island 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Vermont 
Virginia 
Virgin Islands 
Washington 
West Virginia 
Wisconsin 
WNAC 
Wyoming 
Total1994 Goals 

1994 Goal 

1,000 
25,000 
1,000 
2,000 
1,000 

190,000 
105,000 
220,000 

5,000 
40,000 
6,000 
2,000 
2,000 
4,000 

95,000 
7,000 

330,000 
40,000 

500 
70,000 
35,000 
5,500 

55,000 
1,000 

90,000 
6,000 

$2,600,000 

Master's Men Department Report 

One of the greatest blessings of the Free Will Baptist denomination is 
the laity in every church. More is done for the work of the Lord through 
these committed lives than will ever be done by "professional" leaders. 
Thank God for the laity. 

Praise Him! 
Master's Men in 1992 continued to show expanded faithful involvement 

and active, dedicated service through several channels: 
By year's end the Master's Hands ProjecVHelping Hands volunteer 

crew members helped construct eight new churches, achieving a total of 
41 structures. Dollar savings in construction costs climbed to $1.8 million. 

The Department received gifts totaling $3,500 from two MHP works. 
Both donations were gestures of appreciation for the help of our men. 
Brother Gary Wilson, a Free Will Baptist contractor, built an addition to a 
Kentucky home and donated $1,200 from his income. The Peace fWB 
Church at Indianapolis, Indiana, donated $2,300 for help of the volunteer 
crew with Brother Howard Gwartney. 

Brother Gary Wilson declared his interest to the Master's Men Board to 
build churches and other structures, using our men as volunteer labor, 
and donating to the department a gift from his income on each job. A 
significant portion of our operating budget could be met as men become 
involved in this effort. 

Master's Men began sponsoring the annual National Free Will Baptist 
Softball Tournament. Randall House Publications sponsored it in previ­
ous years. Thirty-three teams competed for the championship. The victory 
was earned by the team from Kirby fWB Church, Taylor, Michigan. An 
estimated 1,100 people gathered in Nashville to play and cheer. The 
tournament was a great success, and helped the department financially. 

LifeMembership reached a total of 727 by year's end. Forty-nine 
women are LifeFriends and we have two LifeFriend churches. Another 
143 men are making installment payments to achieve the $200 deposit for 
LifeMembership. 

The Endowment Trust Fund continues to show growth from the 
deposits of LifeMembers, LifeFriends and LifeFriend churches. It already 
provides monthly support from the interest generated. Free Will Baptist 
Foundation invests the principal in loans to our churches. My goal is to see 
the Endowment grow to at least $1 million. A group of 14 people I call 
"Endowment Builders" provide hope for continued growth. They desig­
nated insurance policies, portions of estates and living trusts, promising 
at least $450,000 in future funds for the endowrnent.Amen! 

The 1992 Layman of the Year was Ed Hall from Clinton, Tennessee. Ed 
and Betty are members of First fWB Church in Oak Ridge. His selection 
was based on his efforts for the Master in the previous year. For almost %of 
1992 Brother Ed was in the hospital fighting for his life against a number 
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of problems. He could not attend the National Convention to receive the 
award. I was able to take it to him in October and presented it while he 
was still in the hospital. God has delivered him for further service. He and 
Sister Betty are worthy examples of lay people sold out for the Lord. 

Runner-up Layman of the Year 1992 was A. V. Jennische. He and Ruth 
are members of the Eastside FWB Church in Houston, Texas. A. V. is 
typical of our many unsung heroes of the faith, working where needed, 
doing what must be done. This giant of a man also has a big heart. For 
many years, he has traveled into Mexico to help build churches. Each 
year, the Master's Men Board must choose two men for these honors. 
Their task is never easy. 

Concern 
"We've never been better off, but we've never been worse off!" The 

financial picture continues to hamper focusing all our abilities toward 
accomplishing the Master's work. So much needs to be done. The total 
income for 1992 shows one of our best years at $107,910.96. But, after 
subtracting designated funds we still lack sufficient operating cash. 

Only $78,329.88 was available for ministry. We received $26,138.80 
from the Cooperative Plan of Support. About 25 churches added our 
department to their national giving, providing funding for at least one 
day's operating needs ($305 in 1992). We need about 60 more churches 
to decide to provide funding for at least one day's operating needs ($403 
in 1993). 

Master's Men must overcome a large deficit to be able to minister 
effectively for our denomination. The deficit results from lack of funding 
and the cost of rent to maintain office space in the National Offices 
building. Master's Men Department needs prayer support, lay involve­
ment and most of all fiscal involvement from our church groups and men. 

Master's Men Board requests the denomination to designate 1996 as 
the Year of the Laity. The department will be celebrating 40 years of 
ministry. The Board believes such an emphasis can challenge more men 
from more churches to be all God wants them to be. It is also suggested 
that special effort be made to include special appropriate material in 
denominational publications. 

The Together Way plan holds promise of a brighter tomorrow. As our 
pastors, churches and families learn the full meaning of stewardship, the 
department ministries should show fantastic growth. 

Please pray for the director, the ministry of Master's Men, and the 
financial needs of the department. There is great potential for ministry, 
limited only by the willingness of men to become involved and the 
financial ability to serve. 

Respectively submitted, 

James E. Vallance 
General Director 
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Synopsis of 1992 Board minutes: 

July 21, 1992 
During the National Convention 

. . n noted and praised the Michigan State Master's Men growth 
in~~~~~~~~ and giving. This state association with less than 50 churches 

· · · to the department 
was #3 ~n gtvmg d to b. e in as many churches as possible to 

The dtrector was encourage 
ote the work of Master's Men. . . . ffi . 

pro~e board discussed obligations and options of mat_n~ammg o 1ces m 
th National Office building. The conclusion was tha~ It IS a~vantageous 
to ebe there. Wayman Ray (OK) was elected board vice-chairman. 

December 9, 1992 
The National Offices Building, Nashville, Tennessee 
New board member George Brunkhorst (CA) was welcon:ed. 
Oklahoma Master's Men asked the Board to reduce the p~ce of dues 

to the 1984 level of $1 o per man. Board action referred the 1tem to the 
Master's Men Congress for discussion. . M , 

The board expressed appreciation to volunt~er laborers~~~~ ast~~~ 
Men office during 1992: Recardo Deel , Rev. Eddie Hodges, lC 

1 amp 

Pate and John Marin. · · " dded to 
The statement, "Take a more active role in fund ra•smg, was a 

the board member guidelines. th N t' a1 
The Budget for 1994 was adopted to be recommended to e a JOn 

Association, totaling $153,600.00. 
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THE t1ASTER S t1EN. H DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATI~L ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Nashville. Tennessee 

F 1 n ar. c 1 a 1 Stat erne n t s 

Dect>mber 31 . J 992 

THE t1ASTER S t1EN. A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATJCJ-IAL ASSOCIATI~ OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

CONTEfHS 

OoHrloro of Certlf•ed Public Accountant 

Balance ShHt 

Statement of Act 1 v 1 t~ and C hangt>s 1n Fund Balance 

Statt>ment of Cash Flows 

I 

2 

Noll'S to F•nanclal Statemt>rots 5-6 
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RR 4. Box 665 
sutoa. IllinOIS 62812 

MI C HAEL JOHN S TON 
Cert1f1ed Public Accountant 

ItiDEPENDEtH AUOlTOR S OPIIliCJ~ 

Thl' Board of D1rectors 
Thl' Has•~~ 's t1en, a D~.>oartment of the 

Nat1onal Associat1on of Free W1ll Ba~t1sts 
Nashv•llP. T~.>nnPSSl'l' 

lPl tohont: (6181 439-0610 

I havl' aud1led thP balance sheets of The Haster s Nt>n. a Deoartment of the 
Nat1onal Assoc1al1on of Fret> W1l 1 Baot•sts. as of Dec~mbt>r 31. 1992 and 
1991 . and the r~.>latl'd statemt>nts of act1v1tY and changes 1n fund balance 
and cash flows for thl' >'ears then t>ndt>d. Tht>se finanCial statl'mt>nts are 
the resoons1bility of the Board of D•rectors. t1·, resooros1billty 1s to 
express an op1nion on these f1naroc1al statements based on mY aud1t. 

I conducted mY aud1t 1n accordance w1th general 11 acceoted aud1t1ng 
standards . Those standards rt>qulrl' that 1 plan and oerform the aud•t to 
obta1n reasonable assurance about whether the f1nanc1ai stat~.>ments are 
free of ma te r1al misstatem~.>nt. An aud•t 1ncluoes e ' am1n1ng. on a test 
bas1s, ev1dence suoport1ng the amounts and d1sclosures 1n the f1nanc1al 
statt>ments. An aud• t also 1ncludes assess1ng the account•ng or•nc•oles 
used and s1gn1 f icant est1mates madl' bY managt>ml'rt, as wt>ll as eualuat•ng 
thl' overall f1nanc1al statement prest>rrtat1on. 1 oelll''Je that my audit 
orov1des a reasonable baSIS for my op1n1on. 

In my op1n1on, the af orementioned f1nanc1al statements present fa1rlt the 
f1nanc•al pos1t1on of Thl' Hastt>r ' s Nt>n, a Department o4 thl' Nat1onal 
AssoCiation of Frt>e Will Bapt1sts, at December 31. lq-;.2 and 1991 and thl' 
rt>sul ts of Its opt>rat 1ons and the cash flows for the )'t>ars thl'n ended. 1 n 
conformitY with gt>nerally accepted account•ng pr1nc1plt>s appl 1t>d on a 
cons1stent bas1s. 

Benton, I 11 ino1 s 
May 27 , 1993 

count ant 

H"'btr of Antr1c1n Institute of Certif1td Publ•c Accountlnts 
& lll1no1S Society of Certified Public Account•nts 
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THE MASTER 5 MEN, ..., DEPARTMENT OF THE 
r~ATI(J--!AL ASSOCIATJ(J-~ OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 

ASSETS 

BHLMNCE SHEET 
Dt>cember 31. 

Trust account - Ltfet•me membership 
14ccrued •nterest recetvablt> 
lnventortes 
C;.sh value of endowment Insurance 

Totai cur-rent assets 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net (Note 21 

(,.;PJTALJZED LEASE, net <Note 3 I 

Total assets 

LlA81LlTIE5 AND Flt~D BALANCE 

CURRENT Ll riB I L1 TJ ES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue <Note 41 
Accrued expenses 
Notes payable - Bank 

Total current l•ab1l1ttes 

FUND BALANCE <DEFICIT) (Note SJ 
Unrestr 1 c ted 
Restrtc te d 

Total fund balance (defictt) 

Total ltabtllttes and fund balance 

1992 

* 4' 146 
61,789 

I , I I 4 
820 

I I 382 

$ 69,251 

10.780 

3,716 

t. 83,747 

f 61,462 
100 
717 

6 ,995 

$ 691274 

$( 76,256) 
90 , 729 

$ 141473 

$ 831747 

* 

$ 

'* 

$ 

l1f! 

3,654 
53,806 

976 
I I 065 

59,501 

11,876 

3 917 

75 ~,94 • , L. 

19,4:'1 
410 
651 

9 , 221 

29,753 

32,186J 
77 727 

$ 451541 

$ 75,294 

The accompanYing nott>s are an 1ntegral part of the f1nanc1al statements. 

- 2 -
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DEPARTMEtn OF THE 
THE t1ASTER 5 HEN, rl OF FREE WILL BAPT I SiS 

NATJO!-IAL ASSOCIATICJ~ 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITl' AND CHANGES 
Years ended December 

IN FUND BALrll'KE 

31 ' 

Unrestr•cted Restr•cted Tot a 1 

REVENUE 
Dues from members 
Cooperattve program 
Me rchandise sales 
Gain on disposal of 

propertY and equipment 
Gifts and other 1 ncome 

EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and emp 1 o>·ee 

benef1ts 
Cost of sales and printing 
Travel eJ<pense 
Conferences and conventions 
Off ICe expense 
Postage 
Promot1on e~pense 
Rent expense 
Profess 1 on a 1 fees 
Boo~keep1ng expense 
Oe pre c 1 at 1 on 
Amort 1 z at 1 on 
Interest expense 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
M1ss1ons proJects 

* 9,900 -$ 

26' 139 
609 

55 194 

91 I 842 $ 

30,400 $ 

121020 
9,292 

13,312 
15,500 
101062 
6,462 
2,244 

26,380 
500 
900 

I , 096 
201 

6,250 
I I 062 

231 

$ 91900 
26 1 139 

609 

15,517 70 71 I 

151517 * 1071359 

30,400 

12,020 
9,292 

180 131492 
15,500 
10,0.:.2 
6.462 
2,244 

26,380 
500 
900 

I 1096 
201 

6,250 
600 I , 662 

231 

I 735 I 735 

$ 

$ 

* 

1351912 21515 138,427 

1991 
To ta 1 

9' 158 
? ' ".82 _v'-

532 

j-
~" 

7'> ... 174 

108,483 

"5 4"'3 
- I -

9' 160 
7,60::! 
7,498 

11 . 78-
9,09¥ 
.., 9~'6 
~I ._ 

I , 233 
I I , 056 

300 
825 

I 1 I 2o 
I 0 I 

5.227 
I , I I 7 

94 
7 430 

$ 102 , 004 

REVEt~UES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENSES $( 44,070) $ 13,002 $( 31,068) $ 6,479 

FUND BALANCE <DEFICIT) AT 
BEGit-I'IING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE \DEFICIT> AT 
END OF YEAR 

( 

$ ( 

321186> 

761256> '$ 

77 727 

90 I 729 -~ 

45,541 39 1062 

7~ $ 451541 1414.3 ~=~~== 

The accompanying noll's are an 
Of the f I nanc I a 1 statements. lntl'gral part 

- 3 -
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THE MASTER'S HEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATI()'-IAL ASSOCIATI()'4 OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

STHTENENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31 

CASH FLO!.~S FROM OPE RAT lNG ACTIVIT 1 ES 
Revenue over (under! ~xpenses 
AdJustments to reconc1 le to net cash 

De pre c 1 at i on and amor t 1 2 at 1 on 
Ga~n on d1sposal of propertr and pqu 1pment 
Chdnges 1n assets and l1abillt 1es 
Chang~ 1 n 1 nven tor 1 es 
Chang~ 1n prepaid ~xpenses and depos 1ts 
Chang~ 1n accrued Interest rec~1vable 
Change 1 n accounts payable 
Change 1 n defe-rr e>d reve-nue 
Change 1 n accrue-d expense-s 

Ne-t cash prov1de-d by <used for 1 

OC1erat1ng act1u1tl~s 

CASH FLOWS FROt1 1I.J'v'EST!t4G ACTIVITIES 
Add1 t1ons to trust account 
Addtt 1or.s to cash value of 1nsurance 
Add1 l1ons to oropertv and equ 1pment 
D1spos1t1on of property and equ1pment 
Cap1 tal 1zatlon of lease costs 

Net cash prov1ded by (used for 1 

InVE-Sting aCtiVI t ieS 

CASH FL~S FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
R~pa;IJ1ll'nt of r.otes pa;,able 
Proceeds from notes pa>·abl e-

Net cash provided by Cused for> 
financing act1v1t 1e-s 

I 

$( 31,068) 

I I 297 

156 

\ 1,114> 
41 1 991 

( 310> 
66 

$ 11,018 

,,. 7,983) 
( 317) 

H 8,300) 

$( 2,226) 

$( 2,226> 

NET INCREASE C DECREASE' IN CASH AND CASH 
EIJUI'JALENTS $ 492 

CASH AT BEG!t..t~ING OF YEAR 

CASH AT END OF l'EAR 

3,654 

41 146 

I 991 

$ 6,479 

1 1227 
( 37) 

738 
454 

7,275 
( 30) 

82 

$ 161 188 

" 9,890J 
( 401) 
( 10,820J 

132 
'• 4,018J 

$( 24,997> 

·H 779> 
10, 000 

9 , 221 

412 

3,242 

31654 

Thl' accomCian .nng notes arp an 1ntE"gral t f t par o he f1nanc1al statements. 
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THE t1ASTER ' S MEN, A DEPARTt1ENT OF THE 
UATJ()'~L ASSOCIATI()'4 OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATH1ENTS 
December 31, 1992 

NOTE I - SUt1t1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUtHING POLICIES 

Follow1ng 1S a summary of the s1gnlf1cant account1ng pol1C1es of tr.e­
Master's Men, a Department of the Nat1onal Assoc1at1on of Free W1ll 
Bapt1sts, ht>reatter referred to as thc D~partment. 

GO'JERNt1ENT- The Department opl:'rates under the ausp1ces of the- Nat1onal 
Assoc1at1on of Free W1 II 8apt1sts and 1s governed by a Soard of D1rectors . 

RECEI'JABLES AND ALL().W.jCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - Rece 1 vabl es are 
presented 1n the f1nanc1al statements at the amount deemed collectible- bt 
management. Any prov1s1on for doubtful accounts IS recognized us1ng the 
d1rect write--off method. 

lt-IVENTORIES- The 1nventor1es are valued at the lower of cost or marke-t, 
w1th cost be1ng determined by us1n0 the f1rst-1n, first-out method. 

PROPERTY ~4D EQUIPMENT ~~D DEPRECIATI~~ - Property and equ1pment are 
presented 1n the f1nanc1al statements at cost and are depreciated by the 
straight-! 1ne method over the est1mated useful 1 1ves of the assets of 
3-20 ·:e-ars. 

INCOt1E TAXES - Th~ De par tmen t 1 s exempt from Feder a 1 and State 1 ncome 
taxes; accordingly, no prOVISIOn for 1ncome taxes 1s made 1n the f1naroc1al 
statements. 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The follow1ng is a surr~ary of property and equ1pment owned bY the 
Department at December 31,: 

Equ1pment and furniture 
Less accumulated deprec1at1on 

Property and equipment, net 

- 5 -
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1992 
$24,602 

131822 

$1 01780 

1991 
124,602 

121726 

$ 11,876 



THE MASTER 'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATI{)"-IAL ASSOCIATI{)"~ OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEt1ENTS <CONTINUED .r 
Dec~mber 31 1 1992 

t~OTE 3 - CAP !TALI ZED LEASES 

Th~ National Assocratron of Fr~e Wrll Baptrsts purchased an oHrce 
burldrng to house varrous departments and agencres of the denomination . 
The Board of Directors has entered rnt o an agreem~nt to lease space rn 
thrs new bui ldrng and agreed to contr 1bute to the debt service costs 
dur1ng the construction perrod and to contrnue untrl the debt has been 
ret1red. Th~ constructron perrod costs of i4

1
018 were caprtal1zed and 

wrll be amortrzed ov~r a p~rrod of twenty years. 

NOTE 4 - DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue cons1sts of dues recerved for future years as of 
Dec~mber 31, 1992 and 1991. 

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 

Th~ restrrct~d fund balanc~ rs revenue desrgnated for specrfrc prOJfCt£ 
and consrsts of th~ followrng as of Dec~mber 31,: 

Mrss rons proJects 
L1fetrme Memb~rshrp 
Endowment rn~uranc~ 

- 6 -
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1992 J091 
* 4,209 $ 5.655 

86,435 71,944 
85 128 

--~ 

•90 7'>0 ~ I ( L I" £77,727 

Salary Breakdown Disclosure 

Total salary package for Department 

General Director 
Salary .

1 
•• 

Housing and Ut1 IlleS 

soc1al Secunty Tax 
Medicare Tax 
Income Tax 

Retirement 
Insurance (family) 

Travel/Life 
Health 
Dental 

Total . 
Note: No office car furn ished. 

.00 
7,172.96 

666.96 

$28,832.00 
.00 

1.753.92 
410.16 

2,580.00 
1,441 .68 
7,839.92 

$42 ,857.68 

Secretary 1 
not to exceed a total in the calendar year o 

#1 Salary. half-time 6.50 per hour /wk 
#2 Coordmator of Membership 6.00 per hour, 3 hours 
#3 Casual Labor $1 ,000 
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$6,168.00 



Proposed Income 
Miracle Money 
Gifts 

1994 Proposed Budget 

Dues 
National Ministries Sunday 
Promotional Items 
Together Way Plan 
Travel 
Master's Men Conference 
Mast~r's Hands ProJect. 
Specral Projects 

Heritage Hikes 
Softball Tournament 
Golf Tournaments 
Missrons Projects 

Interest Income 
~ank (Savings) 
lrfeMem bership 

Master's Men Dinner 
Endowment Insurance 
Endowment Trust 

Total 

Proposed Expenses 
Audrt 
Booth 
Master's Men Dinner 
Master's Men Conference 
Softball Tournament 
Golf Tournament 
Missions Projects 

E
leaddershrp Conference/All Boards Conference 
n owment Insurance 

Endowment Trust 
Cost of Sales 
Equipment Maintenance 
Promotion 
Postage 
Printing 
Ottice Supplies 
Office Equipment 
Telephone 
Rent 
Travel 

Director 

9,500.00 
10,000.00 
6,000.00 
1,000.00 

100.00 
6,100.00 

Board 10,000.00 
D!rector's Health Insurance 3,000.00 
Drrector's Retirement 
Payroll Taxes 
Salaries 
Casual labor 
Bookkeeping Fee 
Debt Retirement 
Miscellaneous 

Total 
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$25,179.60 
35,000.00 
15,000.00 

1,500.00 
1,500.00 

26,000.00 
1,000.00 

10,000.00 
10,000.00 
26,500.00 

6,100.00 

4,000.00 
1,000.00 

15,000.00 
$178,779.60 

$600.00 
400.00 

4,000.00 
10,000.00 
6,000.00 
3,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,500.00 
1,000.00 

15,000.00 
1,000.00 

500.00 
1,500.00 
5,000.00 

10,000.00 
3,500.00 
6,000.00 
2,000.00 

26,379.60 
13,000.00 

8,000.00 
1,600.00 
3,500.00 

44,000.00 
1,000.00 

900.00 
7,800.00 

600.00 
$178,779.60 

Board of Retirement Report 

This is my twenty-fourth time to make a report to this body. As I reflect 
on those years, I rejoice as the Psalmist, "The Lord has done great things 
for us; whereof we are glad, (Psalm 126:3). To God we must give all the 
honor and glory. He is the Head, the Provider, the Sustainer of all 
ministries. 

From the beginning our primary interest and focus have been people­
people who serve us-and meeting their retirement needs. Over the years 
our Board and staff never lost sight of that objective. As of May 1993, we 
have ministered to 1,143 plan members. In all practicality, we have 
ministered to 2,286 of our people since we minister to spouses as well. For 
some we have already ministered to their widows and children. 

You can be confident of this: your support makes a difference to those 
who serve in the church and in the Lord's ministries. You have the 
assurance that those who choose an annuity receive lifetime financial 
assistance from Free Will Baptists for as long as they or their spouse lives. 
It is honorable before God and the world when God's people care for their 
own servants of the church . 

To date about 120 of our members (240 including spouses) received or 
are receiving some type of retirement benefit from our plan. Eight 
annuitants receive monthly checks. On August 1, Vemie and I plan to 
make that ten. 

In behalf of our lifetime annuitants, I thank those of you who generously 
contributed to our Memorial Endowment Fund. The earnings now pro­
vide extra benefits to annuitants. These extras include a birthday check for 
the annuitant and spouse, a Christmas check, and a newly instituted 
death benefit. 

For most of our older pastors, missionaries and staff members, our plan 
offers their only hope for a small benefit in old age. I would like to express 
my gratitude to those of you who supported this program knowing that it 
would benefit future generations far more than yours. We are all grateful 
that our younger people will receive a far more adequate benefit in the 
future. Plan finances look good. Last year assets increased 15.2% or 
$2,009 a day. It took nine years to reach the first million dollar mark and 
three more years to top the second million dollar mark. Today, assets 
exceed 1 0.3 million dollars. 

Over the years Plan earnings have been excellent. One hundred dolJars 
deposited in 1969 is worth $659.46 today. This represents compounded 
earnings of 8.34 percent a year, or average yearly increase of 24.32 
percent. 

Our investment guidelines do not violate our church covenant or our 
Christian convictions. Our Board refuses to permit our managers to invest 
in alcoholic beverage, tobacco, gambling, entertainment or pornographic 
publishing stock. This sometimes limits investments, but our Board will 
not sacrifice integrity of principles for a few extra dollars. 

The future looks good. Our Board faithfully oversees the numerous 
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federal guidelines as well as Plan policies to better meet our members' 
needs. On April 20-21 , 1993 all members m et at the National Offices for 
their annual meeting. They approved the final draft of an amended 
Pension Plan Agreement. This year they submit a revision of our Charter 
of Incorporation for your consideration. 

Vemie and I will be leaving the department July 31 of this year. It has 
been a joy to serve in developing and managing the pension plan. We are 
thankful for the established and functioning Free Will Baptist retirement 
program God has given to our people. We look forward to greater 
challenges of service. 

I commend Bill Evans to you as my successor. Give him your prayers 
and support. A good staff stands ready to work with him: Ray Lewis, 
business manager for ten years; David Brown, our new member service 
manager, and; Audra Kite, receptionist-secretary. 

May the Lord bless you. 

Herman L. Hersey 
Director 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND 
INSURANCE OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Financial Statements 

Dttember 31, 1992 and 1991 

(With Independent Audlton' Report Thereon) 
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Ccruhcd Public Accountants 
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Russdl E Nc31 
N3nn S Allen 

Independent Audit ors' Report 

Board of Directors 

llrrniW<l<>d ExecUII\'f Lemer 
7tll Old Hrckory Boult•, Jrd 
Sune 103 
Brentwood TN 37027 
TEL ol '\!377-34!\5 
fAX (ll 'i/3 77 · 34P.8 

Board of Retirement and Insuran~e 
National Association of Free Wtll 

of The 
Baptists: 

f B d of Retirement and Insurance of 
We have audited the balance sheet o oar_ f December 31 1992, and 

. . f Free Will BaptiStS as o • 
The National AssociatiOn ° · fu d balances and 

f fu d transactions and changes m n 
the related statements o n d These financial statements are the 
cash flows for the year then ende . 0 r responsibility is to express an 

. . . f h Board's management. u . d d 
responsibility o t e d audit Information mclu e 

fi .al t tements base on our . 
opinion on these mancl s a f fu d transactions and changes in fund 
on the balance sheet and statements o n d d December 31, 1991 is 

fl of and for the year en e 
balances and cash ows as I d as extracted from the financial 

~ ative purposes on y an w 
presented LOT compar on which we expressed an 
statements presented by fund for that year, 

unqualified opinion dated April 3, 1992. 

II Pted auditing 
d. . accordance with genera y acce 

We conducted our au 11 10 

1 
d perform the audit to 

Th standards require that we p an an f 
standards. ose h the the financial statements are free o 
obtain reasonable assurance about w e r . . g on a test basis evidence 

. An audit includes exammm • • . 
material miSStatement. . h fi c· al statements. An audit 

d disclosures m t e man 1 
supporting the amounts an . . I sed and significant estimates 

. the accounting pnnc•p es u 
also includes assessmg . th overall financial statement 

well as evaluallng e 
made by management, as d't ovides a reasonable basis for our 
presentation. We believe that our au I pr 

opinion. 

referred to above present fairly, in all the financial statements 
In our opm•on, . . . f Board of Retiremc:nt and Insurance 
material respects, the financial poSitiOn o . be 31 1992 and 

. . f F Will Baptists as of Decem r • • 
of the National AssociatiOn o ree ba1 d cash flows for the year 

d h in fund ances an fund transactions an c anges . 'nci les 
. . ' th enerally accepted accountmg pn p . ended then m confonmty WI g 

March 29, 1993 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE WILL BAPTisrs 

As:sds 

Ctsb and cash equivalents (notes 2 and 10) 

lnveslmeniS, fair value (notes 2 and 10) 
Funds invested with retirement fund 

Acaued investment income receivable 

Notes receivable from participants of the retirement 
fund and churches and denominational agencies 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 
( noles 3 and 1 0) 

Office furniture, equipment, and automobiles, at c:osl, 

net of accumulated depreciation (note 4) 
Due from plant fund 

Propertics held for sale (note S) 
Lease COSts (DOle 6) 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Balaoce Sheet 

D~umber 31, 1992 

(wllb comparatln totals for 1991) 

$ 

Unrestricted 

Operations 

11 ,087 

3,974 

11 ,058 

$===26:!,.1=1=9 

1992 
Retirement 

~ 

933,843 

4,859,471 

70,9n 

4,127,329 

22,311 

3.200 

10.017,131 

45.288 

45.288 

Notes p.~yable, accounts p.~yable and accrued expenses S 
Due 10 reliremeal fund 

15,187 2.519 

Unearned Joan origination fees (note 7) 
Annuities p.1yablc (note 8) 

Funds held for Free Will Baptist Foundation (note 9) 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Oper.rions 

Retirement fund 

Designated as reserve funds 
Net invested in plant 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

15,187 

10,932 

10,932 

$.===26~,1=1-.9 
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60,290 
176,433 

906,888 

1,146,130 

8,712,885 

158,116 

8.871,001 

10,017.131 

22,311 

22.311 

22,9n 

22.m 

45.288 

Total 

All Funds 

944,93() 

4.&59,471 

3,974 

70$71 

4,127,329 

45.288 

22,311 

3.200 
11,058 

10,088,538 

17,706 

22.311 
60,290 

176,433 

906,888 

1,183,628 

10,932 

8,712,885 

158,116 

22,9n 

8.904,910 

10,088.538 

Total 

All Fullds 

293,714 
3.603,147 

3,792 
61.22S 

5,278,084 

54.821 
34,311 

65,300 
14,218 

9.408.612 

5,685 
34,311 

69,860 
134,6l12 
9J1,604 

1,156,062 

26,644 
8.024,058 

181,338 

20,510 

8,252,550 

9,408,612 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE Wll.L BAPTISTS 

Or ""'·od Traosactioos aod Cbaoges i.a Fund Bmoca Statement ru 

Addilioa.s: . . 
Contributions from parucapants 

Gitls . abl 
{JiteteSl income - notes recerv e 
(lid of wri&e- downs) (note 2) 

IAvcsbDenl income (net of investment 

fees) (note 2) . ) 
Gains (losses) of investment portfoho (note 2 

Net rcaliz.ed gains 
Net UJlleal iz.ed pins (losses) 

Fodeitures and late charges 
Amortiullon of Joan origination fees (note 7) 
Gain on disposition of property (note S) 
Proceeds f.rom sale of computer 

Tolal additions 

Dedllc:tioos: 
Salaries 
fria&c benefits 
Travd and promotional 
Office supplies 
Housing 
Oc:arpancy 
Board members expense 
Lepl and auditing 
Miscellaneous 
lnsurance 
Dcpreciatioo (note 4) .. 
lllterest expense _ trusts and annu1tJes 

llllercst expense - other 
Participants accounts trans!emxl to 
annuity liability (no1e 8) 

Withdrawal of funds 

Total deductions 

Net increase (decrease) ia funds for the year 

Fund balances, beginning of ye~tt 

Trans!ers among funds and olber changes: 
To plant fund for asset acquisition 
To plant fund for debt retirement 
Net assets retired 
nans!er EAdowmenl Funds 10 Free Will 

Baptist FouDdation., 1.oc. 
Earollmeat ud admiaistrative fees 

F\lnd balance, ead of year 

See acxompaayill' DOCes to fiDucial stacmeata. 

Year mded December 31, 1m 

(with comparatln toeab for 1991) 

1991 

s 

Uarutrlded Retlrtmmt 
Operadom ~ 

731,101 

558,614 

347 214,891 

2,Sl3 

127,()78 
(116,811) 

2,742 
13,915 
9,604 

__ _:3:::5.!:,088;.::;..;;.. 1.541,128 

118,282 
64,008 
21,4n 
17,989 
45,600 
63,561 

8,340 
20,031 

5,494 611 
2,046 

366,828 

(331,740) 

26,644 

(7,461) 
(12,000) 

69,456 
135 

38,985 
430,845 

540,032 
• 

1,001,096 

8,205,396 

Plut 
f\Jad 

15,740 

15,740 

(15,740) 

20.510 

7,461 
12,000 
(1,254) 

1991 

ToCal Total 

All Fnnds All Fuads 

731,101 
32,228 

558.614 

215,238 

127,()78 
(116,811) 

2,742 
13,915 
9,604 
2.513 

1,576,216 

118,282 
64,(108 
21,471 
17,989 
45.600 
63,561 
8,340 

20,031 
6,105 
2,046 

15,740 
69,456 

135 

38,985 
430,845 

922.600 

653.616 
8,252,.550 

(1,2S4) 

634,627 
116,848 

557.559 

193,026 

99,265 
417,221 

7,361J 
13.693 

687 

2.040.286 

106,751 
52,180 
21,126 
22,988 
38,400 
42.,832 
10,978 
4,9U 

10,170 
1,S13 

17,039 
125,980 
18,368 

85,166 
320.030 

879,633 

1,160,653 
7,192,662 

(100.765) 

335.489 (335.489) _.__::_ __ --~-- --==---
S·===-~10a..93==2 8,.904..912 8,252,S50 8,871,003 -

3 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE WILL BAPT 

Slaltment or Casb Flows ISTS 

Opentlng cash flows· 
Cas.b received frOID: · 
Conltibutions from pmc· 
Gifts •pants 

Interest inrome - llOie.s reccivabl 
lnvutrncot income e 

MF~rfeitures md late charges 
•scclla.neous 

Clsb paid for: 
Suppliers and employees 
Interest 
Aluluitants 
W '•L l<A<hawal of fllnds by..-; . ,.-.-CIJIM\5 

Net opcralin& cub flows 

Flnandng nsh ftows: 

fnlerfund transfers and repa)'l11cals 
Net activity - revocabl . c uvm~trusb 

Net f111ancing eash now5 

Investing ash l!ows: 

Purch~ of office furniture &ad M • Proceeds fr ..,uzpmeat 
0111 lo3le of assc: ~ 

fnveslrllenls: 
Ne I activity funds invested . •L • I'll reb • WI U> $& y utgS lrusl 
~ of mvcshuent securities 

Proceeds from sale of illlves~mel\t a«ur'r 
Notes recci v •ble· I •es 

New loans made 
Collection of notes receivable 

Net ill vcstin& ash flows 

Net decrease ia cash md ash equivalents 

T rans!ers for enrollment and administrative fees 

Cash and c:asll eqvivalca\S.: 
Beginnine o1 yur 

End ofye. 

See 8CCOmpanyina: notes 10 f~J~allcial state~~~ents. ' 

Year mdrd Detclll~r 31, 1992 

(with comparative totals Cor 1991) 

Unr~lricl~ 

Oper-ation~ 

s 

165 

(353,869) 

(321,476) 

(19,461) 

731,10! 

558,674 
205,137 

3.237 
6,561 

{613) 
(55,521) 
(11.218) 

{430,3-45) -~-­

1,006,.513 

12,000 
(4,716) 

7,461 

- ---
(19,461) ---..!..!7 ,28~4 ----='~·46~1 

(7,461) 
2.513 3.S82 

(2.163,305) 
917,!84 

(232,.354) 
1,450,136 

2,.513 (UI.157) (7,461) 

(338,424) 989,640 

335,489 (335,489) 

14,022 27'9,692 

IJ ,067 $==~?4: 933,843 

1991 
Tot.! TObJ 

All fund$ Al/Fug«!t 

731,1()1 ~,627 
32.228 Il6,8q 

SS8,674 .5S7,SS9 
205..302 IS8,672 

3.237 7,360 
6.S67 10,186 

(354,482) (338,G40) 
(55,521) (123 .~ 
(11.218) (8,923) 

{-430.845) mo,ow -...L!;~!:l:!i 

~5,037 694,630 

(4,716) {-464.25!) 

(4,716) (464,257) 

(7,461) (46.251) 
6,09S 

(3.204) 
(2.163,305) (1.203.227) 

917,184 U l32,37S 

(232,354) (l,I2J.S02) 
11450,736 499,!57 

(29,JOS) (842.652) 

651.216 (612.279) 

2931714 905,993 

944,930 293,714 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE \VILL BAPTISTS 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 199l 

11t !l03fd or Retiiement and Insurance is operated under the auspices of The National A<;SOCiation of Free Will 
8IJllisiS. tnc:. Tbe purpose of t}ae Board is to maintain contributory retirement accounts for licensed or ordained 

miaisttl' and lay employees o[ churches, schools and denominational agencies of the National Association of Free 

Jill Baj:tists. Inc. 

01 ~urnmary or Significant Accounting Policies 
The major accounting principles and practices foUowed by the Board of Retirement and Insurance of The 
National AssoCiation ol Free Will Baptists are ptcsent.ed below 10 assist the reader in evaluating the fmancial 

slaternents. 

Fund Accounting 
Ia order 10 ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to t}ae 
Board, the accounts of the Board are maintained in accordance with the principles of ~rund accounting". This 

is the procedure by which resources for various purposes arc classified for acwunting and reporting puf1>0SCS 
into funds that are in accordan~ wilh activities or objectives specified. The accompanying financial 

statements are presented on the accrual method of accounting. 

Plant Assets and Depreciation 
Uses of operating funds f01 plant acquisilions are acwunted for as transfers 10 plant funds.. Depreciation of 

equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on lhe straight line basis. 

Income Taxes 
The Board is e:otempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in the 

accompanying fmancial statements. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of the sta~mcnt of cash flows, the Board consider.; all ~ on hand, demand deposit 

accounts and highly liquid dcbl inslnlments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash 

equivalents. 

loan Origination Fees 
Loan originttioa foes are amortized 10 revenue over the life of ttae related loan. 

Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses on Innstment Portfo1io 

The excess (deficit) of proceeds from sale of investmeniS as compared 10 rost is recognized as a realized gain 

or (loss). 1\e measurement or increase (decrease) in market values of investments from the beginniug of year 

t.o tile end of y«t: is recognized as unreaHzed gains or (losses). 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Dtcrmber 31, U9.Z 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 

IDvrstmrot 

Income 

Money market, checking 
and savinp accounts s 9,122 

Money market accounts held 

by investment bankefS 6,794 

1 
s====t~s~.9~I6g, 

nvestroents consist of the following: 

Oturcb bonds (stated value) 

Bond and U. S. Government 

Securities Funds 
OllliJ!Jon stocks 

Fixed income bonds 

U.S. Treasury notes and bills 

Total umings 00 cash and cash 

equivalents and investments 

UM inveslment fees paid 

Net investment income 

s 

s 

s 

s 

JovGtment 

Income 

4,371 

56.251 
35,549 
26,373 

110,423 

232,973 

248,889 

{33,998} 

214,891 

Unreal ' d · IZe gams (losses) are r~nciled as follows: 

As of December 31, 1991 

As of December 3 J. 1992 

Account 

Balances 

711.584 

222~9 

933,843 

Markd 
/Stated 
Value 

22,250 

1,029,343 

2,067,996 

201.534 

1,538,348 

4,859,471 

s 

Net unrealized Joss for year mded "---. .....,.,.,mbet 31 1992 
Yield earned on average 1olal • • assets .., computed as follows· 

Interest income - notes receivable . 

Investment income 

Net realized gains on dispositioll of investments 

Net unrealized losses of investroeDt ~ .. ror 
Amo ... :. . . r ~""" ... Jo 

•~UAII<ln o lou origi11ation fees 

Average as.se1s (beginning and end of year) 

Yield u oomputed 
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$ 

Uonalized Uonaliztd 
Cumulallve Cumulative 

~ Gains usses 
22,2.50 

1,007,522 21,821 
1,982,169 244,819 158,992 

202.,671 3,454 4,592 ' 
1,400,067 138.281 

4,614,679 408,375 163J84 

Net 
U•m~alized Unnalized Uoreallud 
CwnuJative Cumulative Gaild 

Gains ~u (Losses} 

468,035 106,367 361,668 
408,375 16.3.584 244,791 

s (1 16,871) 

SS8,614 

214,891 

127,()78 
(116,817) 

13,915 $ 797,681 

s 9,669,446 

8.25% 

(3) 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1991 

Notes Receivable 
from Partici ants of the Retirement Fund and Churches and 

endes of the National Association of Free Will Ba tists 
I>enomlnational 

Following b a summary of notes receivable: 

Participant notes at 10.25% - secured by retirement accoUAt balances 

Qlurches and agency notes at 8.5% 10 15.5%: 

Office Furniture. EQuipment, and Automobiles 

A summary of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as foUows: 

Office furniture and fixture5 

Olmputer equipment 
Automobiles 

Accumulated depreciation 

Depreciation expense amounted 10 $15,740. 

$ 71,920 

4,055,409 

s 4.127,329 

s 36,799 
54,465 

15,594 

106,858 

61,570 

45,288 

(5) Properties held ror sale 
nc Board sold !01 $68,484 a property which was surrendered in lieu of foreclosure due to disbandment of 

the church. Consideration for the sak consisted or cash and a 20 ycu 9.00% second mortgage note In the 

principal amount of $64,900. A gain of $9,604 has been recognized from lhe sale. An additional property 

recorded at $3.200 in the fm.ancial statement$ remains unsold. 

(6) Capitalized Lease Payments 
The Board entered into art agreement 10 lease spat(. in lhe National Headquarters Building and funher 

agreed 1D contribute 10 the debt service costs during !he construCtion period and 1D continue UAlil the 

debt has beea retired. 'Ibtough the cons~Nctioa period costs amounting 1o $15,797 were capitalized. These 

costs wiD be amortized against operations ovc:r a five yUII period. During 1992. $3,160 was charged 

against operations leaving a rcsulla.RI balance of S 11.058. 

(7) Unearned Loan Origination Fees 
l.oiUI origination fees arc amortized 10 revenue over the 

summary of the transactions ret.ting 10 loaa orig,lnation fees: 

Balance December 31.1991 
Net fees charged oa new loans 

Revenue recognized: 
Fee charged Oft short term line of a~l 
AJD~tion of long- krm lll'iginatioa fees 

Balance December 31,1992 

7 

life of the related 

A.:171 

}()an. The following is a 

s 69,860 

4,345 

s l.SOO 
12,41S (13,915) 

s 6(),290 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

AND INSURANCE OF 
OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31 , 1992 

Annuities payable 

Upon attaining retirement age, the retiree has the option, among others, to convert h is participant 

account into an annui ty to provide retirement benefits over h is remaining life. The periodic benefit is 
c.tlculatcd based on mortal ity tables considering li fe expectancy. Further, the liability for annuit ies is 

determined annually by an ac tuary and such liabi lity is adjusted as necessary. As of December 31, 1992, 

the recorded liabili ty amounts to $ 176,433 and is sufficient to provide benefits over the life expectancy of 
the annuitants . 

(9) Interest- Bearing Revocable Trusts 

(10) 

(ll) 

The Board lla.nsferred all revocable trusts which it held for grantors to the Free WiJJ Baptist Foundalion 

during 1991. The Board maintains all investments relating to these trusts and accrues interest 10 the 

Foundation. The rate of interest paid is dependent upon the amount of income earned from such 
mvestments. 

Infonnation Regarding Financial Instruments (see notes 2 and 3) 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash equivalents, investments and notes 

receivable 10 the extent cash funds are not insured by a governmental agency, investments ace not secvred 

by mortgages or guaranteed by the United States Government. and for unsecured notes receivable. The 
following table summarizes the Board 's accounting risk of Joss: 

Amount Amou.nc er 
AccouRI Insured I Accounlln& 
Balance Secured IUsk or loss 

Notes receivable $ 4,1 27,329 3,733,650 393,679 
Cash and cash equivalents 944,930 543,355 401,575 
Church bonds (mortgage bonds) 

22,250 22.250 
Bond and U. S . Government 

Securities Funds 
1,029,343 1,029,343 

Common stocks 
2,067,996 2,067,996 

Fixed income bonds 
201,534 20 1,534 

U.S. Treasury notes and bills 1,538 ,348 1 .538,3'"' 

s 9,931,730 5,837,603 4,094,127 
Related Party Transactions 

The Board provided office space and certain administrative services 10 the Free Will Baptist Foundation. The 

Foundation re imbursed the Board $15,000 fo r these services durin& the year ended December 31 , 1992. 

8 

A-172 

Director 
Salary .. . 
Housing/Ut1lt!1es 
Social Secunty 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Salary and Benefits Breakdown 

1992 
$29,000.00 

12,000.00 
7,672.96 
4,270.70 
2,829.98 

Proposed 
1993 1994 

$30,477.11 $23,026.91 
12,000.00 19,200.00 
7 672.96 7,672·77 
4:270.70 2,111 .35 
2,779.80 8,139.96 

.00 .002 
Travel 
Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

50.00 
207.36 

2,325.48 

207.36 310·3 
2 325 48 7,162.68 
1246.96 666. 9.~6--::-::-::~ 

Total 
Note: Office car furnished . 

Administrative Assistant 
Salary 
Housing/Utilities 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Travel 
Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

246.96 --==-=-=:-: 
$55,773.64 

$17,000.00 
15,800.00 

6,934.33 
1,885.58 
8,189.96 

50.00 
310.32 

7,162.68 
666.96 

-:.,_$_4_9 -=-.8-=-=09::-:. 8~7 

• Note: Transition. . . _
1
_
93 Evans moves to dlrector~hlp 8 . 

Hersey directorship term mates 7-31 -93. 

Business Manager 
Salary 
Housing 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Travel 
Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

50.00 
310.32 

7,162.68 
666.96 

$16,700.00 
16,800.00 

6,065.82 
1,690.54 
8,189.96 

~$4-:-::9-:, 4-:-::46:-;. 3~2 
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. $57,200.57 $60,150.99 
• 7 months 

$33,366.97 

$20,588.10 
16,800.00 
6 934.33 

I 

1 885.58 I 

8,139.96 
.00 

310.32 
7,162.68 

666.96 
~$5....ooo-:4-=, 3-:::4 7;-;.9;:;7 

$16,780.07 

.00 

16,800.00 
6,065.82 
1,690.54 
8,139.96 

310.32 
7,162.68 

$18,046.90 
16,800.00 

6,672.40 
1,742.35 
8,139.96 

.00 
310.32 

7,162.68 

666.96 
·~$4_9_,4~76:--:::.3~9 

666.96 
~$5:....1-,4-:-0:-1 . 6-::-:1 



Member Services Manager 
Salar 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Travel 
Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Member Services Manager 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

209.52 
2,325.48 

246.96 

1992 

$23,598.45 
1,805.44 
1,179.92 
2,781 .96 

~$2::::-:::9:-=,3~65-. 7-7 

• Note: Position terminates 7-31 -93. 

Secretary 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Grand Totals 

209.52 
2,325.48 

246.96 

$13,780.00 
1,054.17 

413.40 
2,781 .96 

-=s-:-:18-, o-29-. 5_3 

$202,425.13 
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1993 ProPGttcl 
$26,000.00 1994 

4,696.58 s28,600.oo 
780.58 51166.23 

71271.32 
1

l430.oo 
50.00 8,139 96 

310.32 .oo 
6,244.04 

31
0.32 

666 96 7,162.68 
. 666.96 

$38,748.48 $43 336 
I .19 

$23,598.45 
1,805.44 
1,179.92 
2,781 .96 

209.52 
2,325.48 

246.96 
-;::52~9:-=, 3~65-. 7-7 

* 7 months 
517,130.05 

$13,780.00 $14,872.00 
1,054.17 1,137.71 

413.40 743.60 
2.781 ·96 2 781 96 

209.52 209 52 I • 
2,325.48 2 325.48 

246.96 1246:96 
$18,029.53 =::$1:......9-IS-35-.2-7 

$247,168.71 $174,424.06 

Proposed Budget for 1994 

1992 1993 1994 

Actual Budget Proposed 

Salaries 
$118,282.20 $126,500 $87,167 

Em~oyee Benefits 
64 ,007.65 56,447 53,315 

Housing 
45,600.00 45,600 361000 

T raveVPromotion 
21,477.47 32,000 261000 

Auto!T raveUMaintenance 4,151.05 41000 41000 

Auto Fund 
6,000.00 6,000 61000 

Fumiture Fund 
6,000.00 61000 

Plant Fund 
63,560.76 48,000 65,000 

Office Expense 
17,988.90 15,500 18,000 

Equipment 
5,000.00 51000 5,000 

Publications 
.00 61000 5,000 

Dept's Share of Ins. Premium 196.60 250 200 

Alert Ministers .00 2,000 21000 

Board Expense 8,339.96 8,500 9,000 

Insurance 2,045.84 2,000 2,200 

LegaVAuditing 20,030.76 7,500 15,000 

Miscellaneous 1,203.69 1,500 1,500 

Education/Training .00 5.000 3.400 

Total $383,838.58 $371,797 $344,882 
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Free Will Baptist Foundation Report 
Thank you for the privilege these past 12 years to help lay the ground­

work of our first denominational service program for all our laypeople. 
God has blessed the department and used it for His glory. 

You chartered the Foundation in 1980 to assist our families in financial 
planning that would benefit them and the Lord's work as well. These first 
years we worked toward education, training and establishment of the 
ministry. We experienced steady growth-not explosive--but stable growth 
that developed into a permanent base on which to build. 

We are just beginning to see what the Foundation can achieve. In 1992 
alone the Foundation provided $43,419.89 in income for ministries and 
individuals. For example, endowment trusts generated $14,721.87 in gifts 
to 13 different ministries that included local churches, national agencies, 
and state and associations. Gift annuity, revocable and saving trusts 
provided an additional $28,698.02 to individuals and ministries. 

Yes, the Foundation is off to a good start. The real potential and impact 
lie just ahead. The trustees met April 20-21, 1993. They voted to add the 
fo11owing to our existing planned giving vehicles: Charitable Gift Annu­
i ties, Deferred Payment Gift Annuities, Charitable Remainder Unitrusts 
and Charitable Remainder Annuity Trusts. 

I extend my gratitude to the Retirement Board of Trustees and staff for 
their extra effort and work to make the Foundation possible. We appre­
ciate the churches for their gifts made directly and through the coopera­
tive channel. 

Thank you for the confidence you placed in me during the founding 
years of this department. July 31, 1993, will be my last day with the 
department. Bill Evans will succeed me as Executive Secretary-Trea­
surer. I know you will join me in giving him your support and encourage­
ment. 

May the Lord bless you. 

Herman L. Hersey 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

FREE WILL BAPTIST 
FOUNDATION, INC. 

Financial Statements 

December 31, 1992 and 1991 

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon) 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Directors . 
W'll Baptist Foundation, Free I 

Inc.: 

Brent"''"><! Exec '''""e t en•tr 
7n l l1ld H••KO" &•ull\ard 
'UIIC Ill) 
Brent\\\J,,d. l'\j \7027 
lfl ~,,,\; - .\4~, 
FA>. ~l'l/~77 Ht\R 

d · Inc as of 
F 

w ·ll Baptist Foun auon, . 
b 1 ce sheets of rcc 1 rt and 

We have audited the a an d the related statements of suppo 
b 31 1992 and 1991 an d cash flows for the year 

Decem er • in fund balances an "b"l"t of 
Scs and changes the rcspons1 1 1 y 

revenue, expen , .., These financial statements are . . on 
ended December 31, 199-. s onsibility is to express an opmlon 
the Foundation's management. Our re p dits Information included on the 

t based on our au . b I ccs and 
h se financial statcmen s d changes in fund a an 

t e d revenue, expenses an f parative 
statements of support an be 31 1991 is presented or com 
cash flows for the year ended Decem r h , financial statements presented by 

purposes 
fund (or 

2, 1992. 

only and was extracted from t e ualificd opinion dated April 

O
n which we expressed an unq 

that year, 

. lly accepted auditing 
d e w 1th genera 

W 
conducted our audits in accor anc I and perform the audit to 

e d quire that we p an fr of 
Standards. Those standar s re h fi ncial statements arc ee 

b t whether t e ma "d 
Obtal

·n reasonable assurance a ou . . on a test basis, evl ence 
d"t includes cxammmg, d"t 

material misstatement An au I . the financial statements. An au I 

rt
. g the amounts and disclosures ~n . d and significant estimates 

suppO 1n · pnnc1ples use 
also includes assessing the accountmg . I t" ng the overall financial statement 

as well as e"a ua 1 b · for our 
made by management, . vide a reasonable asiS 

We believe that our auditS pro 
presentation. 

opinion. . 
above present fairly, m all 

. l statements referred to . lnc as 
In our opinion, the financla . . f F Will Baptist Foundation, . 

. I respects the financial position o rec d revenue expenses and 
matena , 991 arJd the support an , 1992 

D bcr 31 1992 and 1 • ded December 31, 
of cccm , d h flows for the year en 

· fund balances an cas . . 1 changes m . ted accounting pnnclp es. 

in confonnity W>lh generally ~ 1A r" ~I /e. 

March 29, 1993 

A-177 



FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION IN ' c. 
Balance Sheets 

Dectmlxr 31 , 1992 and 1991 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2 and 3) 

Interest b~ring accounts with the Board of Retirement and lnswance 

of the NatJonal Association of Free Will Baptists (note 4) 

Land held for investment, at contributed value 
Accrued interest income 

Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $3,236 
in 1992 and $1,600 in 1991 

Total assets 

UabUities and 1'\Jnd Balancts 

Uabilities: 

Inte rest- bearing revoable trusts (note 5) 
Gift annuity payable 

Accrued earnings payable 

Restricted deferred. revenues - Benevolent F~md (note 2) 
Funds held fo r Nat1onal Ministries Offering (note 3) 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 

Operations 

Endowment funds (note 6) 

Equipment funds 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund bala~ 

See accompaayla& aotes to ftaaaciaJ itatemeats. 

2 

A-178 

$ 

s 

s 

s 

1992 

23,248 

868,642 

4,000 

38,246 

3,271 

937,407 

600,455 

6,000 
7,444 

613,899 

29,178 

291,059 

3,271 

323,508 

937,407 

1991 -· 
17.217 

869,022 

4,000 

47,670 

2,400 

940.309 

612,333 

6,000 

8,546 
1,031 

4,829 

632,739 

34,604 

270,566 

2.400 

307,570 

940.309 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statement of Support and Revenue, Expenses 

and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year ended Dectmlxr 31, 1992 

(with comparative totals for 1991) 

1992 
1991 

Total T otal 

Operations Endowments Equipment All Funds All Funds 

Support and revenue: 
$ 12,095 3 1,005 43,101 23,3&5 

Contributions 
37,2(11 12 37,214 78,429 

Investment income 236 394 

Endowment income 
236 ----

Total support and revenue 49,533 31,0!!_ 80,551 102,208 

Payments of earnings to revocable trusts, 
28,961 

28,%1 35,071 

beneficiaries and annuitants 

w.sn 3 1,018 5 1,590 67,137 

Net support and revenue 

Expenses: 10,000 6,000 

Sal.uies 
10.000 

Travel and promotion 
3,022 

3,022 4,140 

5,361 454 

Office expense 
5,361 

281 1,996 

Publications 
281 

1,1n 
l.ln 2,897 

Tl3lning and education 
2,918 

2,918 1.560 

Legal and auditing 737 499 

Miscellaneous 
737 

1,636 1,636 800 

Depreciation 

Total expenses 
23,491 1,636 25,127 18,346 

Ex:cess of support and revenues over 
3 1,0 18 (1,636} 26,463 48,791 

(under) expenses 
(2,919) 

Fund balance al beginning of year 34,604 270,566 2,400 307,570 158,014 

Transfers among funds and other changes: 

Transfers for asset acquistion (2,507) 2,507 

Free Will Baptist Board of Relirement 
(!_Q,525) ( 10,525) 100,765_ 

(Note 6) 

Fund balance at end of year s 29,178 291,059 3,271 323,508 307,570 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 

3 

A-179 



FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION 
' 

INC. 

Operating cash nows: 

Cash received from: 

Contributions 

Investment income 

Denevolent Fund (note 2) 

NatiOnal Ministries Offering (note 3) 

Cash pa1d to suppliers and employees 

Claims paid from Benevolent Fund (note 2) 

Distribu tions and expenses of National 

Mmistries Offering (note 3) 

Interest paid on revocable trusts 

Payments made to endowment beneficiaries 

Payments made to annuitants 

Net operat ing cash flow 

Financing cash Oows: 

Proceeds from additions to revocable trusts 

Withdrawals from revocable trusts 

Net financing cash Dow 

Investing cash Oows: 

Deposits made with the Board of Retirement 

and Insurance of the National Association 

of Free Will Baptists (net of distributions) 

Purchase o f computer equipment 

Net investing cash Dow 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

and cash equivalents 

C ash ana ca sh equivalents: 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 3 1, 1992 

(with compantjve tota ls for 1991) 

$ 

1992 

Operations Endowm•nts Ea ~ uipmenl 

12,095 

46,862 

942 

(23,491) 

(1,031) 

(5,n J) 
(29,617) 

31,006 
14,471 

(14,459) 

----~(~44~6) -------- -------
___ --.J..:( 4~51)!.1 3 1,0 18 

231,067 

(253,470) ---- ------

(22,403) ------ -------

31.398 (31,018) 

Total 

All Funds 

43,101 

61.333 

942 

(23,491) 

(1,031) 

(5,nt) 
(29,617) 

( 14,459) 

(446) 

30,561 

231,067 

1991 

Total 

All Funds 

124,150 

41,719 

250 

5,446 

( 17,546) 

(12,101) 

(27,701) 

(10,505) 

(446) 

103,266 

309,108 

(253,470) -----­

(22,403) 309,108 

380 (414,906) 

---~(.:!2,5~0:..:.~7) ------- -- --~(!::.!:2,5~0~7) ---­

28,891 (31 ,018) ----- (2,127) (414,906) 

6,031 6,031 (2.532) 

17.217 17,217 19,749 

$.==~23~,2~48~ ====== ==~= ==~~ ==~~ 23.248 17.217 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTISf FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1991 aDd 1991 

Free WiU Baptist Foundation, Inc. is opera led under the &~~Spices or the National Association of Free Will 

Baptists. Inc. 

(1) Summan of Significant Accounting Policies 
The major accounting principles and practices followed by the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Lnc. are 

presenled below to assist the reader in evaluating the financial stlltemenls. The fmancial statements are 

presenled in accordance with standards recommended in "Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organizations, " an 

Audit and Accounting Guide (American lnstitule of Certified Public Accountants). 

Fund Accountinc 
In order to ensure observance o r limitations and restrictioiU placed on the use of resources available to 

the Foundatio11, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles ol "fund accounting". This 

is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting 

purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. 

Basis of Financial Statements 
The accompanying fmancial statements have boca prepared on lhe eccrval ba.sill of accountin&. 

Equipment Fund and Depreciation 
Uses o f operating funds for the acqu.istioft o r computer and otfiCC C4t• ipmeat we accovnled for as 

transfen to equipment funds. Depreciatio11 of equipmelll is provided over ~ estimated useful lifes of 

the respective assets on a straight line basis. 

Income Taxes 
The Foundation is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, 110 provision for illcome taxes has bee• made in the 

accompanying fmancial ~>tatemcnts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash Dows, the FoundatiOII considers all cash on lund, deposits in 

financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with a lllllturity of three months or less to be cash 

and cash equivalents. 

(2) Restricted Deferred Revenues - Benevolent Fund 

Due to lack of fmanciaJ support the Benevolent Fund was discontinued durin& 1992. 

The purpose o f the Benevolent Fund was 1o pay a~edical cla illiS which were defaulted oa by u insurance 

company which bad contracted 1o provide coverage to participants IIAder the Free Will Baptist 

Hospitalization Plu in prior periods. Claims paid were fuaded by voluntary contributiou. 

The Benevolent Fund, since its inception, has paid medical claims amoWIIing lO $52,553. As of December 

31, 1992, $14,075 remained unpaid on these medical claims The following wmmarizes the annual 

activity: 

Beginning cash baluce s 1,031 

Contributions made to the FIIAd 

Claims paid 
1,031 

Balance avai I able $ 
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(3) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1992 and 1991 

Funds Held for the National Ministries Offering 

INC. 

The Foundation became the custodian of funds received through the Nauonal Ministries Offering (an 

annual fundraising appeal to fund the operating budgets of certain depar1Illents of the National 

Association of Free Will Baptists) by action of the National Association of Free Will Baptists at iiS 

Nattonal Convention in July 1990. This fund raising appeal will be replaced by the "Together Way Plan" 

effective December 31, 1992. The following summarizes the activity: 

Cash balance at beginning of the year 

Undesignated and designated gifts 

Distributions du.ring 1992 

Expenses of the fundraising appeal 

Funds available for distribution at end of year 

s 4,830 

942 
5,178 

594 

s 
(4) Concentration of Credit Risk and Interest Bearing Deposits Held by the Board 

of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

The Foundation has interest bearing accounts amounting to $868,642 with the Board of Retirement and 

Insurance. These accounts earn interest at rates established by the Board of Retirement. The rate of 

return will vary based on market condi tions and the performance of the investments of the Boud of 

Retirement. These accounts are uninsured and are not collateralized, accordingly the risk of accountillg 

loss is the balance in the accounts at any point in time. Withdrawal from the accounts is without penalty, 

but withdrawal requires a 90 day notice. 

(5) Interest- Bearing Revocable Trusts 

The Foundation maintains for grantors revocable trusts amounting to $600,455 as of December 31, 1992 

and pays interest to the trust beneficiaries. The rate of interest paid (see note 4) is dependent upon the 

amount of income earned from the investments of the Foundation. Withdrawal from the liCCOWits is 

without penally, but withdrawal requires a 90 day notice. The trusts are without maturity. 

During 1991, the Board of Retirement and lnsurance of the National Assocation of Free Will &Jtists 

transferred revocable trusts which it held for grantors to the Foundation. 

(6) Endowment Funds (see note 4) 

Endowment funds are subject to restrictions by the donor requiring that the principal be invested in 

perpetuity, and onJy the the income be distributed to the beneficiaries of the endowment. The me of 

interest paid is dependent upon the amount of income earned from the investments of the Foundation. 

As of December 31, 1992. the Foundation held $291,059 of endowment funds which were invested ill 
interest bearing accounts with the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free 

Will Baptists. 

During 1991, the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Assocation of Free WiJl ~isiS 

transferred an endowment type fund whjch bad been established to provide supplemental retirement 

benefits to the Foundation. Further, during 1992 the amount representing earnings was transfened to a 
revocable trust to be used to ~y the supplemental retirement benefits. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Decembu 31 , 1992 and 1991 

INC. 

R 1 ted PartY Transactions . Ui 
e a . r th National AssOCiation of Free Will Baptists provided 0 ICC 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance o e . of $1 5,000 for the year ended 

d certa·m administrative services to the Foundation for a cost 
space an t of the following accounts in the 

31 1992. These expenses have been included as a componen 
December • · f d baJ ces· 
statement of support and revenue, expenses and changes m un an . 

s 10,000 
5,000 

Salaries 
OUice expense 

s 15,000 

7 

Proposed Budget 

1992 1993 1994 

*Salary/Honorariums $10,000 $15,000 $15,000 

3,022 5,000 7,500 
Travel & Promotion 

5,361 6,000 7,000 
*Office Expense 

281 6,000 7,400 
Printing and Publica~ions 

1,172 4,500 4,500 
Training and Education 

2,918 1,500 3,500 
Legal and Auditing 

737 500 1,000 
Miscellaneous 

$23,491 $38,500 $45,900 
Total 

· d f R r t operating account to help defray the office 
• Salary and office_expense ar~ prud tot thteffB~~rre~re~~~~~t~~ members share in the work of the Free Will 
expense and salaries of the ret1remen s a . 
Baptist Foundation. 
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Commission for Theological Integrity 
The purpose of this Commission is: 
1 )To alert our people of theological trends that could threaten our 

theological integrity as a denomination, 2)To prepare materials that Will 
contribute to the continued preservation of the theological integrity of the 
denomination, and 3)As need and opportunity arise, to conduct seminars 
on subjects which are pertinent to the purpose of this Commission. 

In keeping with our purpose, we have prepared materials on current 
concerns and have made them available to our people for a modest cost. 
These booklets are available at our booth. 

The Commission will also conduct seminars on subjects of concern. If 
you would like to have a seminar conducted in your area, please contact 
our secretary, Reverend Fred Hall, 210 South 1Oth Street, Nashville, 
Tennessee 37206. 

Dr. Robert E. Picirilli, academic dean, Free Will Baptist Bible College, 
wil1 conduct a seminar on "Conditional vs. Unconditional Election" at this 
year's convention. This seminar will deal with one of our important 
distinctives as Free Will Baptists. This subject has become increasingly 
important in recent years. 

Leroy F orlines, Chairman 

1994 Recommended Budget 

Anticipated Income 
Gifts from the Cooperative Program 
Sale of literature 
Interest on bank deposit 

Total Anticipated Income 

Anticipated Expenditures 
Office expense 
Shipping materials 
Bookkeeping setVices 
National Convention Booth 
Annual Meeting expense 
Seminar expense 
Printing costs 
Writers honoraria 

Total Anticipated Expenditures 
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$2,200.00 
400.00 
100.00 

$2,700.00 

$ 175.00 
75.00 

200.00 
500.00 
700.00 
200.00 
600.00 
250.00 

$2,700.00 

Financial Report 

. Bank January 1 J 1992 
Balance'" 

Income: 
Gifts: 

Alabama 
Arkansas 
Arizona 
California 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
North Carolina 
New Mexico 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
Washington (Northwest) 
West Virginia 
Canada 
Miscellaneous Gifts . 
Special Ministries Offenng 

Sales of Literature 
Refund on National Association Booth Expense 
Interest on Bank Account 

T otallncome and Balance 

Expenditures: . 
Salary/Bookkeepmg 
Nat'l. Assoc. Booth Expense 
Digest of Reports 
Annual Meeting Expense 
Bank Sef'Vice Charge 
Nattonal Assoc. Seminar Speaker Expense 
Shipping Literature 

Total Expenditures 

Balll'tce in Bank December 31, 1992 
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$ 581.51 

$1,667.49 
.35 

269.40 
.25 

13.65 
15.57 
19.49 

.16 
17.54 

154.31 
.86 

1.38 
7.15 

23.10 
6.06 

165.84 
16.80 

.04 
27.70 

563.71 
2.30 

62.40 
29.28 

.49 

.27 
107.64 

.22 
160.00 

1.53 

200.00 
609.00 

82.66 
507.62 
64.00 

100.00 
30.« 

545.72 
50.00 
22.84 

$2,867.56 

{1 ,593.72) 

$1 ,273.~ 



Radio and Television Commission 
Report 

The Free Will Baptist Radio and Television Commission has been 
charged to use the media to win the lost to Christ and strengthen the saved 
who are in the churc h. W e are also to encourage active involvement in 
Free Will Baptist churches across our natio n. 

The Commission has, for the past seven years, produced a forceful 15 
minute radio broadcast to fulfill this responsibility. As Jim Vallance opens 
the broadcast with a musical selection from one of our Free Will Baptist 
musicia ns, he then turns the microphone over to the Rev. Bob Shockey, 
speake r for "Vic to rious Faith." The program moves briskly with compas­
sionate preaching with an urgent invitation to respond to the call of Christ. 

We are currently producing radio spot announcements, three- to five­
minute messages and special messages for special days for radio stations 
across the country. These should be ready for use in a short time. 

The Radio/Television Commission has no building. We have no full­
time employees. The only funds we have are donated by Free Will 
Baptists. While the amount o f support that we receive is not sufficient to 
allow us to develop a well-rounde d media ministry; we are still commit­
ted to using the media to spread the Gospel. 

I would like to continue making some suggestions to our pastors and 
churches that would help us fulfill our responsibility to our Lord and Free 
Will Baptists. 

1 .I would like to encourage our churches to buy radio time in their areas 
of service. 

2. Perhaps churches that are on the radio daily could give us one day a 
week. 

3.1f a church has a 30-minute program-they could share IS minutes 
with us once a week. 

4. Churches could use our tapes before and during revival time. 
5. Pastors could substitute their radio time with our tapes during vaca­

tion time. 
6. Churches who want special tapes made could call and we will 

produce special services or advertisement tapes. 
7. We would be glad to send tapes that help explain Free Will Baptist 

Doctrine and our belief. 
We would like to challenge every FWB pastor and leader within our 

fellowship to please make room for us in your system of giving. Please put 
us in your church and state budgets. Give a gift at the convention and let 
God use you to spread the Gospel. 

Until He Comes, 

Bob Shockey, Chairman 
Psalm 126:5-6 
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Year End Statement 
Ending December 31, 1992 

Income · d C op Gifts Co-op, Oestgnate o-
Nali~nal Ministries Sunday 
Interest 

Expenditure_s 
PromotiOn 
Travel Expense 
Part-time help 
Production Costs 
Supplies 
Postage 
EquipmenVMaintenance 
Phone 
Printing 
Convention 
Broadcast 
**NAFWB-insurance 
**Service fees 

Total 

Checking Account 
Beginning Balance 1/1/92 

Income 
Expenditures 

Ending Balance 12/31/92 

Savings Account 
Beginning Balance 1/ 1/92 

Interest added 
Ending Balance 12/31/92 

$1,822.34 
.00 

111.86* 

.00 
38.94 

365.00 
790 .02 

.00 

.00 
500.00 

.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

61.17 
67.15 

$1,822.28 

$2,429.50 
1,822.34 

(1 ,822.28) 
$2,429.56 

$3,399.29 
111.86 

$3,511.15 

* 
** 

Not included in spendable income; ~eld in savings account 
Not budgeted, but necessary expendttures 
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1992 Gifts by State Proposed Budget 
1994 

State Co-op Co-op Designated Gifts Income $2,500 
Total Coop 8!400 Alabama $0.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.35 Gifts $10,900 Arkansas 35.27 234.13 .00 269.40 Total Arizona .25 .00 .00 .25 California 13.65 .00 .00 13.65 Colorado .00 .00 .00 . 00 Expenses . $2,000 Florida 15.57 .00 .00 15.57 PromotiOn 500 Georgia 19.49 .00 .00 19.49 Commission Expenses 200 Hawaii .16 .00 .00 .16 Bookkeeper 200 Idaho .00 .00 .00 .00 Other help 1,800 Illinois 17.54 .00 .00 17.54 Production costs 500 Indiana 1.13 .00 .00 1.13 Supplies 1,000 Kansas .86 .00 .00 .86 Postage 500 Kentucky 1.38 .00 .00 1.38 EquipmenVMaintenance 250 Louisiana .00 .00 .00 .00 Telephone 600 Maryland 7.15 .00 .00 7.15 Printing 500 Michigan 23.10 .00 .00 23.10 Convention Booth 150 Missouri .00 168.01 .00 168.01 Digest of Reports . 200 Mississippi 23.10 .00 .00 23.10 Convention Matenals 

2!500 North Carolina 8.48 8.31 40.00 56.79 Broadcast time $10,900 New Jersey .00 .00 .00 .00 Total 
New Mexico .04 .00 .00 .04 
Ohio 27.70 .00 .00 27.70 
Oklahoma 101 .37 462.34 .00 563.71 
South Carolina 2.30 .00 .00 2.30 
Tennessee 19.25 43. 15 372.50 434.90 
Texas 8.39 20.89 .00 29.28 Commission Members: Virginia .49 .00 .00 .49 Bob Shockey, Chairman Washington .27 .00 .00 .27 Jim Vallance, Secretary(freasurer West Virginia 2.05 105.59 .00 107.64 Sandy Goodfellow Canada .22 .00 .00 .22 Bill Gardner Total $312.52 $1 ,042.42 $412.50 $1,767.44 Terry Boyd 
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Music Commission Report 

The ~usic Commis~ion has accepted_ the responsi_bility_ o~ educating, 
promoting , encouragmg, and developmg the mus1c mm1stry in and 
among Free Will Baptists. This year the commission has investigated the 
possibilities of a National Music Forum and Music Workshop to be held at 
Free Will Baptist Bible College in May, 1994. This two-day forum will 
include a time of brainstorming with ministers of music and pastors from 
across the country and special instruction and music training specifically 
designed for m inisters of music in worship and praise, presentation by 
publishers of new music, church music education, and church music 
administration. 

The Executive Office asked the Music Commission to investigate the 
possibilities of reprinting Rejoice: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book 
(1988). Of the 100,000 books originally printed, there are now less than 
9,000 books on hand. The supply of shaped-note hymnals is completely 
gone and there are limited supplies of certain colors in the round-note 
editions. Discussions are in progress as to the possibility of audio record­
ings to supplement the present hymnal. We will present a costs analysis 
for reprinting the hymnal and a projected time line at the 1993 National 
Convention in Louisville. 

Blaine Hughes submitted his resignation of membership on the com­
mission to Dr. Worthington, executive secretary, in September 1992. We 
need to elect a person to fill the unexpired term held by Mr. Hughes. We 
express regret at Mr. Hughes' resignation and appreciation to him for the 
more than 20 years of service he provided as coordinator of the National 
Convention music program. 

We are funded by the National cooperative giving program. Last year 
we received through the Cooperative Plan of Support $1,232. 78. Further 
gifts may be sent to the Executive Office in Nashville and designated to the 
Music Commission. 

Vernon M. Whaley 
Chairman 
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January _ December, 1992 

Assets t Cash and Bank Accoun s 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Equity 
Liabilities 
Equity . 

Total liabilities and Equity 

1993 Budget 

Commission Expense 
Postage 
Telephone 
Digest of Reports . 
National Convention Booth Matenals 
Speakers 
Music Conference 
Total Budget 

A-191 

$3,067.83 
$3,067.83 

.00 
$3,067.83 

$3,067.83 

$ 225.00 
100.00 
300.00 
75.00 

150.00 
150.00 
500.00 

$1 ,500.00 



1993 Historical Commission Report 
Commission members agreed to write 25 historical sketches for 1993-

94 Free Will Baptist Bulletin Service sponsored by Randall House Publi­
cations. Each member will prepare material for bulletin back covers. Jack 
Williams will edit the 25 articles. 

The Commission purchased all remaining copies of History of Free Will 
Baptist State Associations from Randall House. We are working w ith state 
association clerks to distribute the book among our people. 

Thanks to the efforts of Tim Thompson and Herbert and Geraldine 
Waid the Commission secured Laura Belle Barnard's papers and mate­
rials after h er death. The materials were placed in the Historical Collec­
tion as well as with Free Will Baptist Bible College, WNAC and the Foreign 
Missions Department. 

The Commission commends Free Will Baptist Bible College for start­
ing an annual "Heritage Week, on campus. Three Commission members 
gave reports on the history of education among Free Will Baptists during 
the 1993 Heritage Week. We encourage other Free Will Baptist colleges 
to consider a Heritage Week emphasis. 

I 992 Financial Report 

Balance on hand, December 31, 1991 

Income for 1992: 
Co-op gifts (designated & undesignated): 
Interest (First American Bank, Nashville): 
Ruth's Chapel FWB Church (direct) 
Georgia State Association (direct) 
Sales 

Total 

Expenditures for 1992: 
Matt Pinson (research award) 
National Convention Fund (Digest fees) 
Randall House (History of State Associations) 
Book purchase for collection 

Total 

Balance on hand, December 3 1, 1992 
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$ 12,968.21 

1,5 12.70 
465 . 11 

40.00 
18.00 
1 6. 0 0 :---:-::-:--::-: 

$2,051.81 

200.00 
41 .33 

500.00 
23.50-----: 

($ 764.83) 

$14,255.19 

1994 Budget 

Income 
Gifts (Together Way Plan) 
Interest (First Amencan Bank) 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Expenses . . . 
Books and Materials for H1stoncal Collection 
Travel 
Executive Office (Digest fees) 
Other Historical Projects 

Total 
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$1 ,600.00 
500.00 
250.00 

$2,350.00 

$1,500.00 
400.00 
50.00 

400.00 
($2,350.00) 



Minutes 
of the 

Fifty-Eighth Annual Session 
of the 

Woman's National Auxiliary 
Convention 

of the 
National Association of 

Free Will Baptists 
when convened in 

Louisville, Kentucky 
July 20, 1993 
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WNAC Officers 
1993-1995 

President 
Mrs. Mary Neal 
138 N. 24th Street 
New Castle, IN 4 7362 

Vice President 
Mrs. Barbara Fletcher 
Route # 1, Box 96 
Richton, MS 39476 

Secretary 
Mrs. JoAnn Wood 
2332 S. Nogales 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Mary Ruth Wisehart 
P .0. Box 5002 
Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

Theme: The Grace of Giving 
Scripture: Acts 20:35 
Hymn: "Something for Thee" 
Music Coordinator: Debbie Burden 
Organist: Carol Reid 
Pianist: Marian Pilgrim 
Registration Chainnan: Diane Patton 

Members at Large 

Mrs. Everyl Getz 
4304 N. 3rd 
McAllen, TX 78504 

Mrs. Diane Thomas 
Rt. # 1, Box 1178 
Grifton, NC 28530 

Mrs. Marjorie Workman 
3601 Central 
Nashville , TN 37205 

Tuesday Morning, July 20, 1993 
The fifty-eighth annual session of the Woman's National Auxiliary 

Convention convened in the Commonwealth Convention Center, Louis­
ville, Kentucky at 9:00A.M. Opening prayer by Cleo Pursell. The meeting 
was called to order by President Mary Neal reading the scripture Acts 
20:35. She then introduced the musicians. Opening songs: "Something for 
Thee" and "Tis so Sweet to Trust in Jesus." 

Devotion: Psalm 24:1 Matt. 6:1-4,12 entitled "Giving from the Heart" by 
Susan Turnbough. Her thoughts were give not that men might see, give 
willingly and joyfully, give liberally, give our very best. We ended with the 
chorus "Freely, Freely." 

Special music by Terry and Ramona VanWinkle, "No Wonder They Call 
Him Savior." 

A-195 



: i 
' 

i j 
i 
' i 
I 

• I 
• I 

: 

: I 

: 

W~~~me: Phyl!is York, Kentucky State President 
to receive the Credentials Co ·n . . 

Love less and seat the delegates. (See r:~~seJ report gtven by .Delois 
MSC to receive the Exec r s · 

the 1994 _budget. (See repo~;.)e ecretary-Treasurer's report and adopt 

Dr. Wisehart introduced Melissa Riddle t 
Awards. Awards ~ere presented as follows: o present the Creative Arts 

Programs: 1. Diane Thorn 2 M . . . Grindstaff. as . alzle Sevitts 3. Betty Payne 4. Eleanor 

Articles: L Barb Eubanks 2. Che J Ak . . Glenna Price. ry e rs 3· Dentece Hammonds 4. 

La~!~ys: 1. Suzy Virden 2. Sara Kilgore 3. Lavonda Carswell 4. Carolyn 

~~\~ f~~a2'o~~~~~r 2. Carol Reid 3. Patricia Collins 4. Cheryl Akers. 

MSC to accept the Resolutions c · . 
Worthington and act on it item by ite;(;tttee repo)rt gtven by Anne 

MSC to adopt Item #1. · ee reports. 

MSC to amend Item #2 b dd" " adopt Item #2 as amended y a mg to begin January 1994." MSC to 

MSC to amend Item #3 by dd' f 11 . 
with the National Association aof ~~;e ~fi~~g t~~~~~h "in good standing 

MSC to adopt Item #3 as amended p 
MSC to adopt Item #4. · 
MSC to accept the Apprecia tion Com . . Lee . (See reports.) mittee report given by Maurine 

WNAC Missionary Service 
Opening songs led by o bb · B " Calvary." Offerto ra erb e !e urden, Trust and Obey" and "At 

for which w ryp y yDeiOisLoveless. Theofferingtota led$1297 63 
e are very thankful Spe ·a1 M · · ' 

"How Beautiful." Message and .ra ere~ usic was by. D? nnell Wilson 
Coast. Philippians 4: 1 0-20, Lukep6·/s 2!, Ro~ Moor~, m•s.sJOnary to Ivory 
Fold Partnership in Missions , He ~h '

11 
or. 9. 7- 9. ~Js subject was "Three 

~ork and to bring honor and. lo 
1 
~ en?ed us to give ourselves to God's 

Is to first give ourse lves. g ry 0 od mall the world. The key to giving 

. Tuesday Afternoon, 1 :30 p.m. 
Openmg songs "Leaning on the E J • 

Better E~ery Day," Jed by Debbie Burdver ~stin~ Arms". and "I Love Him 
and Emtly Pilgrim, "The Master Of Th:~i~dec!,al mustc by Jeny, Marian 

MSC to accept the Study Co · s. (See reports.) mmtttee report and act on it item by item. 

MSC to accept the report of the Nomi . . 
each office separately The s· . natmg Committee and vote on 

Pa~; (~:~~:~~~:.)~port of:eo~~:~~~~~~~~~~~~~~!~eb~g~~e . 
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MSC that the Executive Sec retary and the Executive Committee work 
closely togethe r to curtail expenses. 

The following items were mentioned from the floor. 
Discussion on when the study committee report goes into effect. 

concern stated by Joan King from North Carolina concerning the opinion 
of a book editor Melissa Riddle mentioned in the latest issue of the Co-

Laborer magazine. 

WNAC Special Feature: Celebrating the Grace of Giving 
· Mary Ruth Wisehart presided over a panel consisting of Cleo Pursell, 
Jane Greenway, Dr. L.C. Johnson and Lucille Steward. 

Mrs. Frazier we nt to be with the Lord on May 15, 1993. Cleo Pursell and 
Jane Greenway shared memories concerning Mrs. Frazie r. Jane urged 
each woman to share her abilities and gifts, time and funds . 

Dr. Johnson m et Mrs. Fannie Polston in 1936. She was loyal to Free Will 
Baptists and the Woman's Auxiliary. She was the first Field Secretary. She 
was a tremendous motivator, a practical woman with common sense. 
She promoted education. She gave the last $1,000 she had to FWBBC. She 
had made a promise and this she kept. 

Lucille Steward challenged us to get involved . There is no place to quit. 
She is instrumental in raising approximately $30,000 in equipment, e tc. 
for the Provision Closet. She also has worked in the Veterans' Hospital for 
18 years and the Rescue Mission for 26 years. She conducts a VBS for street 
children. She m akes crafts to sell with proceeds going to our hospital in 
Africa. She was a blessing and challenged each of us to continue to serve 
the Lord in any way that we can . 

Mary Ruth Wisehart presented a tribute to Lorene Miley. She spoke 
concerning the dedication of Mrs. Miley not only to WNAC but to the 
mission field of Africa. Lorene served as editor of the Co-Laborer maga­
zine for 14 years. Her experience and wisdom will be missed. She is loved 
by all the women of our denomination. Lorene was unable to be with us 
during this session. But we still want to say THANK YOU LORENE! 

Adjourned with prayer by President Mary Neal. 

JoAnn Wood 
Recording Secretary 

WNAC Seminar, July 19, 1993 
I :30-2:30 Seminar 

Theme: "Giving Yourselr' 
Presiding: Mary Neal 
Speakers: June Wilkinson, Gladys Gragg 
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State Officers Meeting, July 19, 1993 
3:00-4:00 State Officers Meeting 

Presiding: Mary Wisehart 
Speakers: Lucille Steward, Mary R. Wisehart 

Both seminars were well attended. 

WNAC Fellowship Dinner, July 20, 1993 
The WNAC Fellowship Dinner was held at 5:00 P.M. in the Hyatt 

Regency Hotel, Regency Ballroom. 
Invocation : Raymond Getz 
Mrs. Darlene Spangler was our speaker. Mrs. Spangler is from Califor­

nia and works with the Billy Graham Association. She is involved in 
ministry to children. She challenged us to Lake our rightful role as Christian 
parents. She stressed the man's role as Priest, Provider and Protector. 

Benediction: Alton Loveless 

Meeting of the WNAC Executive Committee 
December 9, 1992 

The executive committee attended the All-Boards Conference Decem­
ber 7-8, 1992, at the Doubletree Hotel in Nashville, TN. 

The committee met for their business meeting December 9, 1992, in 
the WNAC conference room. A devotion was given by Mary Neal using the 
scripture Hebrews 2:1, reminding us that He is always there. Prayer by Jo 
Ann Wood, Pam Wood, and Mary Neal. 

Members present were Mary Ruth Wisehart, Mary Neal, Every! Getz, 
Pam Wood and JoAnn Wood. Minutes of the last meeting were read by 
JoAnn Wood. 

Melissa Riddle gave a report regarding thoughts and changes she 
would like to make in Co-Laborer magazine. The committee feels Melissa 
will be an asset to the WNAC staff. 

Executive Secretary report was given by Dr. W isehart. We reviewed the 
financial report. MSC by Pam Wood and Every! Getz to accept the report 
and give Dr. Wisehart authority to readjust as needed. 

Approved the sale of a book of missionary stories by Lorene Miley. The 
book will go on sale 1993 or as soon as Melissa Riddle can get the book ready. 

We were given a report on balance owed on the furniture for the new 
office. A good report on the Endowment Fund. Report on the Eunice 
Edwards Fund showed funds available to pay the $5 732 needed on the 
computer by March. This will be considered a loan. 

MSC by Everyl Getz and Pam Wood to amend the budget. Also to give 
all employees a 4% raise in place of the 5% proposed for the staff and the 
following Christmas bonuses: staff, $1 00; Executive Secretary-Treasurer, 
$200. 
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f th WNAC meeting when convened July 19-20, 
re made or e · ·11 KY Plans we lth Convention Center in Lowsvt e, . 

3 in commonwea 
t99 ' • The Grace of Giving 
Theme. 

ri ture: Acts 20:35 
SC p • something for Thee 
H~· d' ator: Debbie Burden . 
MusiC Coor m . t· To be selected by music coordmator 
. ·st & Organ1s · 

PtaDl · • o· Patton 
Registration C~atrman. tTane bough (to share concerning the loan on 
Morning Devotion: Susan urn 

their church) . d. t 
'al M . . To be selected by mustc coor ma or 

Spect ustc. M.l 
Missionary Service (11 :00): Lor~~e y "~~~ssed by Giving." (Dr. Wisehart 
Special Feature: Honor ~orene t e . g honoring Mrs. Miley on Tuesday 

will contact Dr. Mtley concemm 
afternoon) 

Seminars, Monday, July 19, 1993 

Presiding: Mary Neal 
Theme· "Giving Yourself' . . . 

• J . Little Sharing time-pnson mtmstry 
Speakers: amce -

Gladys Gragg - Recognizing your resources 
Alternate: Shirley Lauthem 

State Officers Meeting- Mary R. Wisehart 

National Retreat, 1994 
B . , focusing on Bible study and 

Selected theme: "Back to the asl~~ a chorus. We selected key note 
prayer. We will ask Beverly Welch to ~r~lice Wood on Bible Study. We 
speakers: Pam Wood on prayer. an . 

. K s Mustc Coordmator. 
selected Marguente em a . ut on hold for the time being. Pam 

Discussed check plan. Tht~ wasP 
Wood will send idea for offenng envelop~. we make change in 1993. 

Discussed copyrigh~ on 'J.(NAC l~f~dw C~~mittee. 
Dismissed for me~tmg wtth the Ex y tive Committee met in the Na­
The Study Commtttee and the ecu se resent were: June Rolen, 

tional Office Building Oecembder ~~ 199~.r~~~er~ Diana Bryant, and Mary 
Diane Thomas, Peg~ Outlan '. tt argu embers p~esent were: Mary Neal, 
R. Wisehart. Executive Commt ee m 
Pam Wood, Every\ Getz and JodAnthn ~~~t?~g. Prayer by Marguerite Kern. 

Chairman June Rolen opene e 
Suggested changes were ~ follows:. 

1 Women Nationally Active for C~s~ia name for Free Will Baptist 
2~ Local names: W~A~ is a~ uml r~istrict and state groups should 

women's orgamzatlOns. ocad •. d tify themselves with the na­
choose their own names an 1 en 

tional organization. f this organization is to provide opportuni-
3. Purpose: The purpose o 
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ties for women to understand and fulfill their responsibilities in 
the family, in the church, in the community, and around the world 
through the great commission. 

4. Song: "People Need the Lord" 
5. Officers: Coordinator, Assistant Coordinator, Secretary-Treasurer 

Missions Chairman, Study Chairman, Prayer Chairman, Servic~ 
Chairman. 

6. Will be presented without change. 
7. Will be deleted. 
8. Revise current manuals into one enlarged edition, with officers 

guides included. 
These changes can be completed in approximately two years. 

JoAnn Wood 
Recording Secretary 

WNAC Executive Committee Meeting, July 19, 1993 
The Executive Committee of WNAC met in the Cherokee Room of the 

Hyatt Regency Hotel, Louisville, Kentucky, July 19, 1993. Those present 
were Mary Neal, Mary Ruth Wisehart, Delois Loveless, Jo Ann Wood, 
Everyl Getz, Gwen Hendrix. 

Devotion and prayer by Delois Loveless. 
MSC to receive the report of the Executive Secretary, Dr. Wisehart. 
MSC to accept the 1994 proposed budget. 
The committee approved by consensus that Dr. Wisehart be allowed 

to teach at Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
The committee discussed the retreat program for 1994. 
The committee selected Rose Mary Jenson of Bible Study Fellowship 

as the WNAC Fellowship Dinner speaker in Little Rock, Arkansas, 1994. 
The committee approved a price increase for the Co-Laborer maga­

zine: Group rates $6, individual rates $6. 75. 
Dismissed for afternoon seminars. 

JoAnn Wood 
Recording Secretary 

Report of the Appreciation Committee 
We the appreciation committee submit the following recommendations: 

1. That we give a rising vote of thanks to President Phyllis York and the 
Kentucky State Woman's Auxiliary Convention for arranging the 
WNAC registration and executive luncheon, and for the banquet 
favors and decorations and for all they have done to make our 
58th session a comfort and blessing. 

2. That we express our thanks to our missionary speakers, Susan 
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nd to our seminar speakers, Ju~e 
Turnbough and Ron Moore, a to those who provided spectal 
Wilkinson and Gladys Gragg, ban uet speaker. 
music, and to Darlene_ S~anr~e~,r~~~ent ~ary Neal, Dr. Wisehart 

3 That we express apprectatt<~~t for planning our convention and 
. and our executive commt ee f l bor on behalf of the WNAC as 

seminars and the many hours o a 

a whole. . ks to our Study Committee who have 
4 That we also gwe our_ than h r and concern to present a 
· 1 d wtth muc praye 

labored ong an C for us to consider. . 
program of work _for WNA Dr Johnson, Mrs. Pursell, Luctlle 

5. That we give spectal than~atofor their preparation and pre~~nta~ 
Steward and Jane Green y "Celebrating the Grace of Gtvmg. 
tion of our afternoon program 

Respectfully sub~itted, (North Carolina) 
Maurine Lee, Chatrperson 
Mary C. Kelton (Ar~~sas) 
Suzanne Lewis (IlhnOls) .. 
Myrtle Samms (West Virgtma) 
Sandy Mounts (Ohio) 

Re ort of the Credentials Committee 
P . t wish to submit the following report. 

We your c:edentials comm_tt ee, ve submitted reports ~d paid dues: 
The followmg state c~nve~tlO~S ~~a Georgia, Illinois, lndtana, Kansas, 

Alabama, Arkansas, C~tfo~ma, <_>nsis~i i Missouri, New Mexico, N?r:th 
Kentucky, M~ryland, Mtchtg~,:s CarcRfn~, Tennessee, Texas, Virgmta, 
Carolina, 0~10, Oklahoma, . . . t 
West Virgima. . . h submitted reports and patd dues. Ftrs 

The following dtstncts ave 
Arizona District. . . . ve submitted reports and paid dues: 

The following local Awohartes hda rf) Nebraska (Maranatha-Omaha) 
. . I (Riverview Betten o 

Hawau , owa_ D 'h m 1st) Virgin Islands. 
New Hampshtre (New ur a 

f 22 states 
Reports and dues received rom 1 district 

5 locals 

Respectfully submitt~d , (Ohio) 
Delois Loveless, chauperson 
Gaye Nobles (Maryland) 
Peggy Outland (Illinois) 
Treva Wallace (Michigan) 
Rhetta Butler (Alabama) 
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Report of the Resolutions Committee 
We, the resolutions committee, submit the following resolutions: 
1. Whereas, the Free Will Baptist Bible College is seeking regional 

accreditation, and one area of need is the library, therefore, 
Be it resolved that we encourage each local Woman's Auxiliary to give 

in addition to regular support, money for one or more books (ranging fro~ 
$9.95 to $99.95 or more) to the Welch Library at Free Will Baptist Bible 
College during 1993-1994. 

(If any Auxiliary or individual wishes to give a book in memory or honor 
of someone, the library will recognize this gift with a nameplate.) 

2. Be it resolved that we raise our representation fees (dues) from $2.50 
to $10 per member per year to WNAC and that the local Woman's 
Auxiliary delegate fee be raised from $3 to $5, beginning January 1994. 
Adopted as amended and here written. 

3. Be it resolved that the Constitution and By-laws for the Woman's 
Auxiliary, Article IV, Section II , be changed to read that all officers and 
delegates of the national, state, district and local Woman's Auxiliaries be 
members in good standing of a Free Will Baptist church in good standing 
with the national association and shall perform the duties set out for them 
in the present manual and that this be included in any future printings. 

Adopted as amended and here written. 
4. Be it resolved that we request that the Home and Foreign Missions 

Departments share with us in the rent of the provision closet in the amount 
of one-third of the total each. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Anne Worthington, chairperson (Tennessee) 
Mary Alice Bridgman (Oklahoma) 
Yvonne Brown (California) 
Shirley Jackson (Missouri) 
Shirley Sharpston (Ohio) 

Report of the Nominating Committee 
We the nominating committee submit the following names for WNAC 

officers for the years 1993-1995. 
President- Mary Neal (Ohio) 
Vice President - Barbara Fletcher (Georgia) 
Secretary-JoAnn Wood (Oklahoma) 
Members at Large: Diane Thomas (North Carolina) 

Every] Getz (Texas) 
Marjorie Workman (Tennessee) 

Respectfully submitted, 
Debbie Burden, chairperson (Oklahoma) 
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R Ort of the Registration Committee 
The ep . . 

. t' Committee submit the followmg report. 
We your Regtstra ton 

N rnber Of Persons Registered: ............................ 6 u ........ 19 
WNAC of~cers ........... ~~·~tri~·~~·i~·~·i~di~·g .. the USA ................... . 
Missionanes from 5 c p .d ts & Field Workers) ......... 31 

· D legates (State rest en 170 Standmg e t t District & Local) .......................... .. 
Elected Delegates, C? a e, ntation fee of $3 .................... 112 
Local Delegates ~aymg represe ......................................... 7 86 
Ministers and Vi_sttors ............................................................ 1124 

Total Registration ·················· 

Res ectfully submitted, ) 
Oi~e Patton, chairperson (Kentucky 
Rhonda Collins (Kentucky) 
Dreama Harris (Kentucky) 
Nancy Smith (Tennessee) 

Creative Arts Contest 1992-1993 
157 Entries From 26 States 

Programs: . NC 
M. h n Thomas Gnfton, 

First Place: DianeM ~t~e ~evitts Kirksville, MO 
Second Place: atzt ' r ton VA 

Third Place: Betty Pa~e, Ar •rrgE \n TN 
Fourth Place: Eleanor Gnndsta ' rw ' 

Articles: IL 
First Place: Barb Eubanks, Sesser, 'll FL 

Ch 1 Akers Jacksonvt e, 
Second Place: . ery ' ds Moore, OK 
Third Place: Demece Ham~on , WV 

Fourth Place: Glenna Pnce, Lenore, 

Plays: IL 
First Place: Suzy Virden, W ~odlawn, TN 

Second Place: Sara Kilgore, Ltmeston~n NC 
Third Place: Lavonda Carswell, Mo~gan TN 

Fourth Place: Carolyn Lane, Antwch, 

Poetry: rf d MI 
First Place: Katy T~y~r.,dw~~h~~~~ TN 

Second Place: ~~0 e.• ' Smithvill'e, MS 
Th' d Place: Patncta Colhns, . FL 
Fo~rth Place: Cheryl Akers, Jacksonvtlle, 

Art: 
. C Southgate Ml First Place: Tern ooper, 
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WNAC Annual Report, 1993 

Organization Districts Locals Auxiliary Actionettes 
Members 

Alabama 8 
Arkansas 

46 514 
12 

1 

California 
88 961 

4 
Florida 

27 324 
7 

Georgia 
20 223 

10 
I 

Illinois 
59 547 

2 
1 

Indiana 
27 300 

I 
1 

Kansas 
8 109 

2 5 
Kentucky 

39 
5 

I 

Maryland 
22 320 

2 
Michigan 

10 108 
5 

Mississippi 
30 266 

4 23 321 
Missouri 

I 
8 

New Mexico 
53 964 

2 
2 

3 
North Carolina 

22 
7 70 

Ohio 
1, I 02 I 

4 
Oklahoma 

30 331 
13 112 

South Carolina 
1,229 

4 49 
5 

Tennessee 
682 

3 
2 

Texas 
46 1,5 13 

3 
Virginia 

17 242 
3 

West Virginia 
19 262 

1 10 165 

Districts 
Arizona (district) 
Northwest (OR, WA) 
Rocky Mounta in (CO) 

1 4 26 

Locals 
Canada 
Hawaii (Waipahu) 
Idaho (Rupert 1st) 

I 8 

Iowa (Riverview, Bettendorf) 
Montana (Billings) 

I 8 

Nebraska (M~ranatha, Omaha) 1 8 
Ne~ Hampshrre (New Durham 1st) I 13 
Virgm Islands 
Wyoming I 

12 

Totals III 783 10,619 16 
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Actionette 
Members 

7 

5 
25 
8 

5 

8 
14 

7 

28 
13 

120 

Woman's National Auxiliary 
Convention Report 

WNAC women can praise the Lord for His blessings in 1992. Several 
changes took place, and through them all the Lord blessed and provided. 

Mrs. Lorene Miley retired as editor of the Co-Laborer magazine after 14 

years. Melissa Riddle became the editor in October 1992. We pay tribute to 
Mrs. Miley for her years of faithful service, and we welcome Melissa with 
expectancy for the years ahead. 

In 1992 w e added 57 new Auxiliaries. From January-May 1993, we have 
sent materials to 20 new or reorganizing Auxiliaries. In 1992 we added 12 
Actionette groups. From January-May 1993 we have sent materials to 10 

Actionette groups. 
Thefirstissueofthemagazinein 1992 had 13,131 subscribers. W e have 

added 431 new subscribe rs and in May had 13,562 on the subscription list. 
WNAC' s theme for 1993 is "The Grace of Giving." We have emphasized 

faithfulness in finances and in the stewardship of life . Women are 
gradually giving more to the support of the national office, also other 

ministries. 
In Janua ry, we will introduce the theme for 1994, "The Bible: Light on 

the Way." Our retreat at Ridgecrest, September 15-17 will emphasize the 

Word and prayer. 
We're going West of the Mississippi for a retreat at Glorieta Baptist 

Conference Center, Glorieta, New Mexico, Octobe r 20·22, 1995. This 
retreat is an experiment for us to see how well this site may benefit our 

women in the West. 
Apprecia tion goes to the staff: Yvonne Wolfenbarge r, executive assist-

ant; Sue Hayes, bookkeeper; and Melissa Riddle, editor. 
l also want to thank the executive committee ofWNAC. These women 

have given time and thought to the work for the past two years: president, 
Mary Neal; vice president, Delois Loveless; secretary, JoAnn Wood, and 
members a t large of the committee, Gwen Hendrix, Everyl Getz, and Pam 

Wood. 
Our theme for this last decade of the 20th Century is "Our Faces Toward 

Tomorrow.'' We look at our past and thank God for those noble Christian 
women who founded our work and kept it true to its purpose and intent 
through the years. We look ahead and although we cannot see into the 
future, w e want to be always prepare d to seize the opportunities God 
places before us. We know that as God led those women in the past, He 

will continue to lead us. 

Mary R. Wisehart 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
1993 

A-205 

i 
; . 

I . 

! ; 
' i . 

I 
I ; 

. . 

... 
I 
I 

' ; . 
'. 

. i 

c 



~.;m!A.'< 'S :-IATIOXAL 
(An Aux il ia rv -:o~f[jt~h~eb~~· a~t~i~o~n~a~lMA~U~X~I~L~!~A~R~\~· JC~O~~~~~· E~· ~~T!JI~O~N 

~ Associa~· ~lon of free :-'ill Baptists) 

Antioch ! Tennessee 

financial Statements 

December 31' 1992 

VhOLI\L <J.ii"to" g CWalllte" 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

NA$H\IILLE. TENNESSEE 

(An 
WOMAN'S NATIONAL 

Auxiliary of the N t' AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
a tonal Association of Free Will 

December 31 . 1992 

Contencs 

Financial Statements 

Baptists) 

Independent auditor's B 1 report a ance sheet "· ........ 
St:atement of s~~~~~·t· ~~d .. r~~~· .. ·.... .. :::::::::::::: · .... · .. · .... 1 

and changes in fund bal nue, expenses ·· · · · · · · · ·· 2 
Statement of cash flows ances . . . .......... . 
Notes to the finan . 1 . . .. . .. .. .. . . .. . . .. . .. . .. . .. 3 Cla statements .... · .. · · .. · · ......... 4-5 . . . .... . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6-9 
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THONI, HINTON & WARREN 
Cf:OtlriEO ruf'~IC AC':COUNIAUI~ 
I liE SPENCE BlDG SUIIE ?00 

s•o SPENCE LANF 
tlASH\IILLF, ttl 31217 11<;0 

61~3618776 
MembeiS 

IIMERlCAN INST11UTE OF 

,. 
-'1,8ER f J THONI CPA 
DAVID C HINlON. CPA 

CERIIFIEO PUBLIC .IICCOUtll ANI S 
1 ENNESSEE SOC1E fY or 

CER llriEO T'UBUC ACCOUtlllltll S 

A()8ERT RAY WARREN. CPA 
w\LIMA H DENNEY CPA 
Lf\RAY BRUCE Wl\lli\CF . Cf'l\ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPURT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
Voman's National Auxiliary Convention 

\.le have audited the accompanying balnnce sheet of the Woman's National 
Auxiliary Convention (an auxiliary of the Nation:tl Association of free \.Jill 
Baptists) (a nonprofit organization) as of D<'ce1nher 31. 1992, and the related 
statements of support and revenue. expenses ond ch:tnges in fund balances and 
cash flows for the year then ended. 1 hese f i none i :t t statements are the 
responsibility of the Organization's man:tgemE'llt . Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financi:tl st.,t~>JnE'tltS based on our audit:. 

WE' conducted our audit in :u:c-ottlnnce with gpnPratly accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards rl'qull<' th.,l we plnn and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whcth<'r thl' fln:~nctal statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes <'Xt~mlning, on a test basis, evldPnce 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by manageme11t, as well as evaluatii'B the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe tl1at our audit provides a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

In our oplnion, the flnanclal statesnents referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the \.loman's 
National Auxiliary Conventiotl as of December )l, 1992 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles. 

february 10. 1993 
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WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free ~ill Baptists) 

Balance Sheet 
December 31. 1992 

Cash 
Certificate of deposit 
Accounts receivable - Note 1 
Inventory - Note 1 
Notes receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Advances to General Fund 
Property and equipment at cost, 
less accumulated depreciation 
of $13,179 - Notes 1 & 2 

Capitalized lease - Note 3 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

General 
fund 

$ 9,278 
10,000 
6,951 

15,111 

24,045 
9 085 

Memorial Eunice 
Student Edwards 

Loan Fund -:-~F~u=n=d~ 
$ 11,625 $ 6,032 

60,260 
6,436 

13.807 

s 74,470 s 92.128 s 6.032 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue - Note 4 
Restricted deferred revenue -

Notes 1 & 10 
Note payable - Note 6 
Advances from Student Loan Fund 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Note 9 

fund balances 
Restricted - Note 5 
Unrestricted 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

$ 2,517 $ 
36,432 

2. 4 71 
5,000 

13.807 

60' 227 

$ 

6,032 

6 032 

4,135 92,128 -0-
10,108 
14,243 92.128 -0 -

s 74.470 s 92.128 s 6.032 

-2-
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Total 
All 

Funds 
$ 26,935 

10,000 
6,951 

15,111 
60,260 

6,436 
13,807 

24,045 
9 085 

$1721630 

$ 2,517 
36,432 

8,503 
5,000 

13' 807 

661259 

96,263 
10.108 

106.371 

$172.630 

Statement of SuRpo;or the Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Memorial Eunice Total 

General Student Edwards All 

fund Loan Fund 

Support and revenues: 
Dues and fees 
Designated contributions 
M azine and literature sales ag . 
Convention and retreat lncome 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee 
benefits 

Cost of magazine and 
literature printing 

Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Office expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Bad debt expense 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Special projects . 
Foreign student scholarshlps 
Continuing education 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Excess (deficiency) of support 
and revenue over expenses 

Transfer of accumulated 
interest to General fund 

Fund balance - beginning 
of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

$ 27,459 $ 
221,227 

76,846 
15,640 
63,760 

1.243 
'•0§,175 

( 

78,028 

19,777 

4 31060 
3,147 

18,298 
3. 592 
3,724 

34,408 
3,450 

11694 
491 
190 
871 

75 
852 

3,000 
716 

222,173 
788 

438,334 

32,159) 

35,000 

11,402 

~ 14,243 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
the financial statements. notes to -3-
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$ 

3,474 
2,340 
5 814 

325 

400 

725 

5,089 

( 35,000) 

122,039 

~ 92,128 

fund Funds 

$ 27,459 
221,227 

76,846 
15,640 
671234 

3 583 
-0- 411 989 

78,028 

19,777 

43,060 
31147 

18,298 
3. 917 
3. 724 

34,408 
3,450 

400 
1,694 

491 
190 
871 

75 
852 

3,000 
716 

222,173 
788 

439.059 

-0- ( 27 1070) 

-0- 133,441 
----"'-

~---..;:0_- $106 I 3 71 s 



~OMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CQ~~ENTION 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Memorial 
General Student 

Qperating activities 
Eund I.o€!n Fund 

Excess (deficiency) of support 
and revenue over expenses 

Adjustment co reconcile net 
income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Changes in operating assets 

and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in 
accounts receivable 

(Increase) decrease in 
inventory 

(Increase) decrease in 
accrued interest 
receivable 

Increase (decrease) in 
accounts payable 

Increase (decrease) in 
deferred revenue 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

Investing activities 
Collection of loans receivable 
Additions to loans receivable 
Purchase of equipment 

Net cash used in investing 
activities 

F~nancing activities 
Net cash provided by financing 
activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Transfers 
Transfer of accumulated 

interest and repayment of 
inter fund loan, net 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 

($32,159) $ 5,089 

1,694 
491 

( 2,234) 

629 

1,057 

665 

( 71Z) 

( 31.631) 6' 146 

11,237 
( 15,487) 

( ZH> 

( 732) ( 4.250) 

-0- -0-

( 32,363) 1,896 

32,256 ( 32,256) 

9.~~2 41,985 

s 9 12Z8 ~111625 

-4. 
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~ 

Eunice Total 
Edwards All 

Fund Funds 

$ -0- ($27,070) 

1,694 
491 

( 2,234) 

629 

1,057 

665 

3,528 2 0 811 

3.528 ( 21.957) 

ll '237 
( 15,487) 
( 732) 

-0- ( 4 982) 

·0- ·0· 

3,528 ( 26,939) 

2 504 53,874 

61032 $261935 

WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTIO~'.ll 
· tion of Free wl (An Auxiliary of the National Assocla 

Baptists) 

Statement of Cash flows 
(Continued) 

for the Year Ended December 31. 1992 

Memorial 
General Student 

Fund Loan Fund 

SYRRl~mental Disclo~ures 
i ition of equtpment 

$ 5' 732 $ Acqu s 
Cost of equipment 

( 5 000) 
Equipment note 

Cash down payment for 
equipment s 732 $ 

t , reoort and accompanying See accountan s -
notes to the financial statements, -5· 
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Eunice 
Edwards 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

Total 
All 

Funds 

$ 5,732 
( 5 000) 

$ 732 



Note 1 · 

WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1992 

Oreanization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Woman's National Auxiliary Convention is a nonprofit 
organization and an auxiliary of the National Association o( Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. The purpose of the Organization is to publish the Free 
Will Baptists' Woman's magazine, to receive and disburse funds for 
missionaries and provide other services to Free Will Baptist women. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 
50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc 

The following signifi cant accounting policies have been followed 
in the preparation of the financial statements : 

Fund accounting 

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the 
use of resources available to the Organization, the accounts of the 
Organization are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund 
accounting. This is the procedure by which resources for various 
purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds 
established according to their nature and purposes Separa t e accounts 
are maintained for each fund, however, in the accompanying financial 
statements, funds that have similar characteristics have been combined 
into fund groups. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been 
recorded and reported by fund group 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

Property and equipment is stated at acquisition cost. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives range 
from 3-20 years. 

Accounts and notes receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization issues credit to churches and individuals for the 
purchase of magazines and literature. These churches and individuals 
are located all across the United States. 

The Organization loans money to Bible college students for the 
payment of college tuition. The student is required to sign a note for 
the money. These notes are uncollateralized. These students are 
located across the United States. 

Management considers accounts and notes receivable to be fully 
collectible, accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is 
required. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to 
operations when that determination is made. 

-6-
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(An Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1992 

Note 1 · 

Note 2 • 

Note 3 · 

Note 4 · 

cash equivalents 

The Organization considers 
maturity of three months or less 

all highly liquid 
when purchased to 

investments with a 
be cash equivalents . 

Inventory 

is stated at the lower of cost (first 
Inventory 

method) or market 

Restricted deferred revenue 

tn, first out 

. h restricted funds result from . 
Deferred revenues tn t e . d b the donor for a speciflc 

hi h have been restrtcte y 1 the contributions w c . d f cis is recognized on Y to · the restrtcte un 
:~~:~~e~ha~e::~~~e~nexpenses have been incurred. 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Equipment 
Less Accumulated depreciation 

$ 37,224 
( 13 179) 

S 24.04S 

Capitalized lease 

i l
ion of Free ~ill Baptists, Inc. purchased an 

The National Assoc a d · s of the . s departments an agencte 
office building co house var~ou h t red into an agreement to lease 

Th Organizacton as en e b rvice denomination. e d t contribute co the de t se 
space in this new building_and ag:e~ ~ to continue until the debt has 
costs during the constructton perto an f $9 822 were capitalized 

truction period costs o • 
been retired The cons i d of twenty years. Amortization 
and will be amortized over a per o 
expense for the year amounted to $491. 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue 
subscriptions received 

in the general fund 
for 1993 issues. 

-7· 
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Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

Note 8 -

WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1992 

Restricted fund balances 

The restricted fund balances are revenue designated for specific 
purposes and are as follows: 

Endowment Trust Fund 

Memorial Student Loan Fund 

Note payable 

S 4. 135 

s 92.128 

At December 31, 1992, the Organization was responsible for a 
$5,000 note payable due in ninety days If the note is paid within 
ninety days, there is no interest on the note. The note is secured by 
the applicable equipment purchased. 

Lease 

The Organization entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and 
storage space. The term of the lease expires when all mortgages on the 
building are satisfied, which is approximately 22 years. The rent 
expense for the year amounted to $34,408. 

The future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Pension plan 

1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 

Thereafter (estimated) 

$ 31,980 
31,980 
31,980 
31,980 
31,980 

543,660 

The Organization participates in the master pension plan of the 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists. The plan is a defined contribution plan. The 
Organization contributes 5% of gross salary for all employees with five 
or more years of service and 3% of gross salary for employees with less 
than five years of service. Employees are allowed to contribute to the 
plan but are not required to contribute. Pension expense for the year 
amounted to $3,814. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each 
participant and upon retirement the participant can either receive a 
lump sum distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity 
accounts. 

-8-
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Note 9 -

Note 10 -

WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION. 

\.!LlA~u~x~iLlLt~·a~r£vx_Qo!f~t~h~e~N~a~t~i~o~n~aal~A~s~s~o~c~i~a~tji~o;n:;o~f~F;r~e~e~W~t~1~1~B~a~p~t~i~s~t~s) (~n Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 1992 

Commitments 

The Woman's National Auxiliary Convention 
equipment as collateral on a mortgage note that 
of Free Will Baptists, Inc. has with the Church 

has pledged its 

Restricted deferred revenue 

the National Association 
Extension Loan Fund. 

. d d f red revenue is as follows: Change in restrtcte e er 

Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 

Foreign 
Student 

Scholarship 
$ 1,396 

1,396 

Revenue recognized in the current 
year (expenses) ( 

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue ( 

3,000) 
1,604) 
4 075 Balance, December 31, 1991 

Balance, December 31, 1992 s 2.471 
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Eunice 
Edwards 

Fund 
$ 3,401 

127 
3,528 

-0-
3,528 
2 504 

s 6.032 
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Gifts to Missions/Missionary Objectives 
January 1, 1992 to December 31, 1992 

Cash Gifts 
Foreign Missions 

Sent through WNAC 
Sent direct to department 

Home Missions 
Sent through WNAC 
Sent direct, not available 

Bible Colleges 
Memorial Student Loan Fund 
Other Gifts 

Foreign Student Scholarship 
Building Fund 
Mission Objectives 

Provision Closet 
Eunice Edwards Loan Fund 
WNAC Operating Expense 

Co-Lab~rer Offering 
Emphasis Offering 
Endowment Trust Fund 
Dues 

Non-Cash Gifts 
Provision Closet 

Total Cash and Non-Cash Gifts 

145,500.49 
1641141.48 

55,520.00 

1,395.95 
2, 744.29 
9,198.49 

29,509.92 
17,318.52 
31409.00 

20,165.50 

$309,641.97 

55,520.00 

7,608.29 
3,473.51 

13,338. 73 

2,996.85 
3,500.00 

70,402.94 

34,317.82 

$500,800.11 

I 992 Top Ten Contributors to WNAC 
Co-Laborer Fund Emphasis Off . 

1. Tennessee 3 ermg Combined 
2. Oklahoma 31555.86 1. Arkansas 2,365. 70 1. Oklahoma 
3. Arkansas 3,·~~87 .. 0144 32. MO~Iaho~a 2,318.89 2. Arkansas 51635.93 
4 G . ISSOUrJ 2 277 40 3 T 5,433.84 
. eorgia 2,828.93 4.N. Carolina 2.119.59 4. Ne~nes~_ee 51412.83 

5. N. Carolina 2,214.16 5 Tennessee 1,856. 97 5. M. aro Ina 4,333.75 
6. Missouri 2,035.63 6. Georgia 1•360.69 . issouri 41313.03 
7. S. Carolina 1,826.77 7. S Carol,·na 11194.14 6. Georgia 4,189.62 
8 Oh

. · · 1 s c r· · IO 1
1

563.62 8 AI b I • • • aro ma 3 020 91 
9. California 1,479.47 9. T a ama 795.50 8. Alabama 1 :9o2:3a 

1 0 AI b · exas 552 26 9 Cart · 
. a am a 1 '1 06.88 10. Kentucky 407:49 10: Ohi~ ornJa 1,792.48 1,760.93 
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Salary Breakdown 

executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 

1992 1993 1994 
$27,195.00 $28,282.80 

2,120.44 2,163.63 
1 ,385.87 1 ,414.14 
21865.12 3,132.09 

Insurance: 
Travel/Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

$271195.00 
21120.44 
1,385.87 
2,874.84 

302.40 
21325.48 

246.96 

302.40 302.40 

Christmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

Executive Assistant 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Christmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

Bookkeeper 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Christmas Bonus 
Total Salary and Benefits 

Editor 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Hospital 
Dental 

Christmas Bonus 

2,325.48 2,558.03 
237.24 271.66 

522.98 
$34,099.13 

$171210.36 
11366.15 

893.23 
2,781.96 

522.98 200.00 
$34,089.41 $351192.66 

$17,210 .36 $17,898.92 
1 ,366.15 1,369.27 

893.23 894.95 
2.772.24 3,039.21 

209.52 209.52 209.52 
2,325.48 

246.96 

2,325.48 2,558.03 
237.24 271 .66 

330.97 
$22,582 .67 

$14,054.05 
11117.30 

716.22 

209 .52 
280.00 
666.96 

1 '156.48 

270.27 
$171314.32 

$14,903.07 
1,074.05 

745.15 
2,781.96 

209.52 
2,325.48 

246.96 

330.97 100.00 
$22,572.95 $23,302.35 

$14,054.05 $14,616.16 
1 '117 .30 1 '118.14 

716.22 730.81 
1 '150.08 1 ,243.08 

209.52 209 .52 
300.00 300.00 
640.56 733.56 

100.00 
$17,808.19 

270.27 
$17,307.92 

$17,004.00 $17,680.00 
11301 .04 1,352.52 

510.12 530.40 
2,764.32 3,031.29 

201.60 201.60 
21325.48 2,558.03 

237.24 271.66 

Total Salary and Benefits 

286.60 
$19,790.93 

327.00 
$21,906.48 

100.00 
$22,694.21 
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Report of the General Board 
1. We have heard the reports of the Home Missions Department, Execu. 

tive Office, Foreign Missions Department, Free WiiJ Baptist Bible 
College, Sunday School and Church Training Department, Retirement 
Department, Free Will Baptist Foundation, and Master's Men Depart. 
ment. We had before us in printed form the reports of the Commission 
for Theological Integrity, Radio-Television Commission, Music Com. 
mission, Historical Commission, International Free Will Baptist Con. 
sultation Committee, and Woman's National Auxiliary Convention. We 
recommend that these reports be received and their budgets and 
recommendations be adopted as each is presented. 

2. We recommend that a second printing of Rejoice: the Free Will Baptist 
Hymn Book, be authorized. We further recommend that all mistakes 
be found and corrected before it is reprinted. The chairman of the 
Music Commission has a report on the project along with the estimate 
of cost. (Adopted) 

3. We recommend that Tampa, Florida, be selected as the site of the July 
20-24, 2003, National Convention. 

(Adopted) 

4 . We recommend that the Tuesday evening service of the 1994 conven­
tion while meeting in Little Rock, Arkansas, be programmed to cel­
ebrate the completion of the Capital Stewardship Campaign, "A MiJlion 
More by '94." A committee is to be appointed from successful people 
among us to lead in raising the funds called for in this item. 

(Adopted as amended) 

5. As requested by the Budget Committee, the Executive Committee 
recommends the following as a schedule to reduce the percentage of 
the undesignated receipts used to underwrite the Administrative Bud­
get of the Executive Office. 

For I 994, that we continue with the present formula. 
For I 995, that the Executive Office keep no more than 60%. 
For 1996, that the Executive Office keep no more than 55%. 
For 1997, that the Executive Office keep no more than 50%. 
For I 998, that the percentage be no more than 45%. 

(Adopted) 

6. We recommend the adoption of the report of the Financial Disclosure 
Committee. (Adopted) 

7. We recommend the adoption of the Budget Committee report regard­
ing developing promotional materials for the Together Way Plan. 

(Adopted) 
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Credentials Committee Report 

· d the letters and find the Credentials Committee, have examme 
We.'n order as stated below: them • 

1. From 
.th the right to five delegates the following state associations wt 

each: nr 
. California, Florida, Georgia, I?a?o,. ~-

Alabama, Arkansas, Artzona, k Maryland, Michigan, Mtsstsstppt, 
nois, Indiana, Kan.sas, ;e~~u~a{~lina Ohio Oklahoma, South Care­
Missouri, New MeTxtco, ~~ginia and West Virginia. 
lina, Tennessee, exas, , 

. . . f ons with the right to three delegates 2. From the following dtstnct assocta I 
each: 

. . . Colorado District Association, No~th-
Atlantic-CanadaAssoctatiOn, Ftrst . t. Mexico Association, Ftrst 

. . Northwest Assocta IOn, 
east Assoctation, . . d First District New Jersey. 
Louisiana District Assoctation an 

tes from the three above categories be 
3. We recommend that the del ega d th t all other delegates properly 

seated. We further recommen a. ·ng the above associations be 
registered from local churches compnst 
seated. 

d that all legally appointed lay delegates of standing 4 We recommen · t d 
. boards be seated, if properly regts ere . 

Nuel Brown 
Bob Thomas 
Robert Helms 
Randy Bryant 
Herbert Waid 

A-221 



Report of the Resol r 
Th.e Resolutions Committe "U IOns COIJUnitte 

contnbutions of conce . he Says, Thank you , to all th e 
Th F rn m t e form of I . , ose Who rn 

e ami!Y-Ronald Creech reso utwns, namely: ade 
Natural Disas ters Gen . 
Homosexuality-Ilf . evleve Waddell 
Sound Systems an~~ ~ls anddTRandy Wilson 
S y oun racks-Mu . C . 

ee ou at the Pole- Jeff N. h I Sic omm,ssion 
Pro-Life (Anti-Abortion) Nlc o s and Allen Pointer 
Church Covenant-South -c:w/ersey 

Association (AR) Arizo~~ mArak, Kansas, North Carolina Anr h 
Florida ' , ansas Valley (OK) v· '. . 1°C 

C ' ~rgmla and 
ommendation-Florida 

The Resolutions Committee is . 
follo1wing it~ms for their conside~:~f~~~g to the Executive Committee the 

. An Item from the Board of R . 
of the denomination etJrement dealing with the stru t 

2 An · · c ure 
. Item from Herbert Waid d r . 

the national departments. ea mg With the auditing system of 

Resolutions 

Resolution #1 Ministerial Family Life 

Whe~eas, !he b~e~kup of the home is a s . 
lnclud~ng m~nrsters, and pecra/ target of Satan aimed at all believers 

Whereas, all Free Will Baptist homes . . .. 
Whereas, God in His Word clearly c~~nclu~ng. m~nrste~s', come under attack, and 

overtaken in a fault, ye which arem:~ ·~ rn Ga/atrans 6:1, "Brethren, if a man be 
Ther:/oeereknbes~t; considering thyself lest tho~':,~~/ ;:stetomre tsud~~ an one in the spirit of 

, e 1 resolved P e ; 
(1) That we be careful to pray for each . . 
(2) That the moderator appoint a comof ~~r famrlr~s . especially the ministers'· 

restoration for our leaders to be initia~~ ee of frve (5) t~ develop a ministry of 
. . as soon as possible. (Adopted) 

Resolution #2 Natural Disasters 
Whereas many 1 . ' peop e of our nation ar f · 
Th ~sasters ~uch as floods and drought~ · acrng tremendous loss because of natural 

ere ore, be It resolved that our local ch 
express Christian compassion through urches and associations be encouraged to 
these tragedies. prayer and tangible support for the victims of 

R 1 · (Adopted) 
eso Utlon #3 Homosexuality 

Whereas, homosexuality and the tea . 
Wh many seg~ents of our society a~~ngs of alternate lifestyles have invaded 

ereas, ~he Bible strongly conde~ns . 

Th 
commrtment to biblical truth· homosexuality, and because of our strong 

erefore be it re I ed th I 

I I so v at we as Free w·II B . 
' apbsts go on record as 
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(1} opposing the lifting of the ban on homosexuals in our armed forces; and 
(2) as opposing the government's condoning or accommodating homosexual practices 

in any manner. 
And be it understood that neither our resolute opposition to the potential change in national 

military policy nor our continued belief in the sinfulness of homosexual practice should 
be construed to deny our historic evangelical beliefs about God's love for the sinner 
while hating the sin. God is full of grace, as well as truth. We thus reaffirm that 
homosexuals, like the rest of humanity, are fully the objects of God's redemptive love. 
By faith and repentance, all may obtain full forgiveness through the renewing of their 
minds by Jesus Christ (Ephesians 4:22-24). We welcome all who receive forgiveness 
and wholeness in Jesus Christ as fellow believers in the Body of Christ (I Corinthians 
6:9-11 ). (Adopted) 

Resolution #4 Political Values 

Whereas, there is great need for Christian influence in government, 
Therefore, be it resolved that we strongly encourage our constituency to communicate with 

their government officials urging them to support Judeo-Christ1an values, 
And be it resolved that our people become personally involved in government at all levels. 
And be it resolved that we instruct our clerk to send a copy of Resolution #3 to President 

William Clinton, and that state clerks send copies of this resolution to their congressmen 
and senators. 

Be it further resolved that we provide copies of this resolution to our military chaplains. 
{Adopted as here written) 

Resolution #5 Pro-Life 

Be it resolved that we reaffirm our 1992 resolution supporting our pro-life stance. This 
resolution reads as follows: 

Be it resolved that we reaffirm our stand as Pro-Life and Anti-Abortion knowing the Bible 
teaches that life begins at conception (Jeremiah 1:5 and Luke 1 :15). We as Free Will 
Baptist pastors and lay people must do all we can to defend the right to life for the unborn. 

And be it further resolved that we oppose the use of unborn babies or any part thereof for 
research and other purposes. {Adopted) 

Resolution #6 Sound Systems 

Whereas, the music ministry at the convention has always played a vital role in the worship 
services of the convention, and 

Whereas, the preparation and presentation of the music is often hindered by the lack of 
quality equipment designed for music performances; 

Therefore, be it resolved that the Executive Committee, in conjunction with the Music 
Commission, be instructed to investigate the possibilities of securing different and 
improved sound systems for our musicians to use during the convention services. 

{Adopted) 

Resolution #7 Sound Tracks 
Whereas, the music ministry in our Free Will Baptist churches is a vital part of our worship 

and praise services, and 
Whereas, music is used as an expression of praise to the Lord by our own musicians at our 
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conventions, and 
Whereas, many of our musicians in our local churches use sound tracks to assist in th 

presentation of their music ministries, and e 
Whereas, many of our musicians are involved in producing recordings of high quality sound 

tracks and audio recordings, and 
Whereas, for better than 15 years our musicians have not been permitted to use sound 

tracks in any of the official national convention services, and 
Whereas, all the music of the convention is already approved by the music coordinator and 

Executive Committee before presentation; 
Therefore, be it resolved that the musicians at the national convention be allowed to use 

pre-recorded sound tracks during the official services. (Defeated) 

Resolution #8 "See You at the Pole" 

Whereas, our nation's schools stand in need of prayer, and 
Whereas, "See You at the Pole" involves over one million Christian students around the 

world, and 
Whereas, "See You at the Pole" challenges students to pray for their friends, teachers, 

schools and communities; 
Therefore, be it resolved that the National Association of Free Will Baptists support "See 

You at the Pole" and encourage all Free Will Baptist teens to take part in "See You 
at the Pole" September 15, 1993, 7:00 a.m. , at their schools' flagpoles. (Adopted) 

Resolution #9 Alcohol and Drug Rehabilitation 

Whereas, alcohol and drug problems have invaded every level of American society, and 
Whereas, the National Association of Free Will Baptists has not addressed itself to an 

ongoing rehabilitation program for those addicted to alcohol and drugs; 
Therefore, be it resolved that the moderator appoint a study committee to study the 

feasibility of such a ministry through our denomination and that the committee report 
back to the National Association in 1994. (Adopted) 

Resolution #1 0 Church Covenant 

In light of recent questions of concern among some of our brethren regarding adherence 
to the Covenant on the use of intoxicating beverages, we offer the following resolution: 

Whereas, in the first of our articles of faith we place our confidence in both the Old and New 
Testaments as the inspired Word of God and "our infallible rule of faith and practice," and 

Whereas, we have adopted the Church Covenant as one instrument binding us together 
in fellowship and ministry, and 

Whereas, the Church Covenant is in harmony wilh, and not contrary to, the inspired Word of God; 
Therefore, be it resolved that: 

(1) This National Association of Free Will Baptists reaffinn our commitment and 
submission to the Word of God as our only ultimate rule of faith and practice, and 

(2) We reaffirm our dedication to teaching, preaching and living all the precepts of our 
Church Covenant, and 

(3) We reaffirm our historic position that the consumption of intoxicating beverages is 
sinful and therefore believers are to be total abstainers, and 

(4) The various departments of the National Association reaffirm their commitment and 
submission to the Holy Scripture as our only rule of faith and practice, and 
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. . ed·cation to our Church Covenant by-
r various departm~nts .r~aff.lrm their d I ersons who are so committed, . a~d 

(5) O(ua) Bringing into their mml~tnes only th~ser~sponsible for evangelism, Chnstlan 
Re uiring those in thel~ departmen s . ci les and precepts of th~ Church 

(b) gro~th and church p\antrng to teac~he PD~nning early in their missron work 
Covenant (or an accura~e t:ansl~tlon e~eoui red to bring our mission ~orks and 

Our mission boards and miSSIOn~nes. be ~eqCovenant as soon as possl~le. 
(6) organized churches into conformity With (Adopted as here wntten) 

Resolution #11 Christian Watchcare d. ns·lonal document but reflects many 
t · t just a one- 1me . d 

Whe~r~~so~~ ;~rul~~~s~~~~a~s ~~~
0

study of the Sc~~~r!~ti,Pl~~=>~o~:~~r~~~ ~~one 
th watchcare over one ano Whereas it includes e . ,. d 

ther's happiness and reputation, an 
Whe~;a~. it is sinful to disregard thesf; t of our beloved Covenant be reaffirmed and 
Therefore, be it resolved that every ace 

adhered to by: ttacks and 
(1) refraining from person~! a , d malicious gossip, and d 
(2) refraining from spread.mg. r~mo~s ~~tthew 18 in instances of per~onal offenc~, tn I 
(3) first adhering to the pnnc.lp e~ o I hannels to achieve a fairheanng and a scnp ura 
(4) using establish~ denomlnatlona c . 

settlement of differences, and . hen there are grievances between national 
· th Executive Comm1ttee w d 

(5) apperdallng tober~ within the framework of their boards, an (Adopted) 
boa mem · ood works 

(6) encouraging one another In g . 

F i n Missions Department . 
Resolution #12 Support for ore g. . rt nt its General Director and certain 

. te rit of our Foreign MISSions ~epa me , 

Whe~f:~i~:~~esghfve been called into t;;!~!~~~ ~~~ractice, and teach total abstinence 
Whereas all of our mlsslonanes persona y 

' · · · Department, from alcohol, ffi m our confidence in our Foretgn Mtsstons 
Therefore be it resolved that we a tr . · · . . 

our General Director and our mlsstonanes~ple to continue supporting the mmlstry of 
Be it further resolved that we encourage our pe (Adopted) 

our Foreign Missions Department. 

Resolution #13 Appreciation . . d marvelous job hosting the 57th 
Whereas, the Kentucky State Assocrabon has one a . . ted 

National Assoctatton, h tanding vote of apprectatton. (Adop ) 
Therefore, be it resolved that we give t em as 

Respectfully Submi~ed • 
Millard Sasser, Chairman 
Keith Fletcher 
Jim Smith 
Lynn Wood 
Jeff Crabtree 
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Nominating Committee Report 
Nominees to General Board 

Terms to expire in 1995 
AJ~bama: John Edwards 
Arizona: David Taylor 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atlantic Canada· Darryl C . 
C 

. . · ram 
a!Jforma: Nuel Brown 

Col~rado: Bob Thomas 
flond~: Randy Bryant 
Georgia: Herbert Waid 
ld~h~: Tommie Carlson 
Illm01s: Ernie Lewis 
Indiana: Robert Helms 
Kansas: James Mize 
Kentucky: Tim York 
first Louisiana: Ron Parker 
Ma~land: Lester Horton 
Mexico: fred Jones 
M~c~igan: Charles Cooper 
M~ss1ssippi: J. L. Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 

Nominees to Executive Committee 
Terms to expire in 1995 

Replacing Charles Coo er (MI) 
Replacing J L G (Mp) , Charles Cooper 

. · · ore S , Nathan R bl ( 
Replacmg David Joslin (AR) D .d Ju ~ MO) , av1 oslm 

N . ominees to Home Missions Board 
Terms to expire in 1999 

Replacing Lynn Wood (OK) L W 
Replacing Rue Dell Smith (AR ynn ood . 
Replacing Wendell Walley (N~)DWon Guthne (TX) , endell Walley 

Nominees to Master's Men Board 
Terms to expire in 1999 

Replacing Wendell Leckbee (AR) 
Replacing Dwight fletcher (MS) D D?~ N;al (IN) 
Replacing Charles Denman (TX), GWig t _letcher ' ary Wtlson (AL) 
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Nominee to Foreign Missions Board 

Term to expire in 1996 
Replacing Alton Loveless (OH) who resigned, Bill Jones (TX) 

Nominees to Board of Retirement 

Terms to expire in 1999 
Replacing Robert Morgan (TN) , Robert Morgan 
Replacing Lincoln Varney (KY) , Lincoln Varney 
Replacing Henry Van Kluyve (NC), Henry Van Kluyve 

Nominee to Commission for Theological Integrity 

Term to expire in 1998 
Replacing Fred Hall (TN) , Fred Hall 

Nominee to Radio-Television Commission 

Term to expire in 1998 
Replacing Terry Boyd (TN), Steve Faison (TN) 

Nominees to Music Commission 

Term to expire in 1994 
Replacing Blaine Hughes (NC) who resigned , Randy Sawyer (NC) 

Term to expire in 1998 
Replacing Bill Gardner (TN) , Bill Gardner 

Nominee to Historical Commission 

Term to expire in 1998 
Replacing Mary Wisehart (TN), Mary Wisehart 

Nominees for General Officers 

Terms to expire in 1994 
Replacing moderator, Ralph Hampton (TN~, Ralph Hampton . 
Replacing assistant moderator, Carl Cheshter CAR), Carl Cheshter 
Replacing clerk Waldo Young (OK), Waldo Young 
Replacing assistant clerk Keith Burden (OK), Keith Burden 
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Obituary Committee R 
eport 

AJabama 
J. L (Pat) Burttram M. · , mJster 

Florida 
Ray Bartley, Deacon 

Georgia 
Tom Hamilton M. · 
Lloyd Vann ' mJster 

John English 
Clary Adams 
Lexie Fioyr 

Kentucky 
William Steel Dea 
0 , con 

_ouglas Burgett 
SJlasJones Teach 
011· ' er 

Je P. May, Deacon 
Gaynell May 
Ora Meadows 
Dollie Ratliff 
Frank Rudder 
J~sephine Thompson 
Mdes F. Patton 

Michigan 
Bobby Porter, Minister 

Maryland 
Ralph Weaver 

Mississippi 
Luther Gibson, Minister 
Hazel Jarrell 
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Missouri 
Joe Braddy M. · ' lnJster 

Ohio 
Fred_ Taylor, Minister 
Merlm Teese 
Henry Hawkins 
John Reese, Minister 

South Carolina 
Leroy Grant, Minister 
Jesse Norris 

Tennessee 
Ermine Butler, Minister 
R. M. Lamb, Minister 
Bruce Fender M. . 
D , mtster 

oug Roberson M. · 
W"ll" , lnJster 

M 
1 '.am (Bill) Hilton, Minister 

artm Oxedine M. · J H , mtster 
E'rb es erbert Metcalf, Deacon 

ert Farley 
Agnes Frazier 

Texas 
H. E. (Jack) Jordy 
Fleta Wood 

Virginia 
Ida Carter 
Carrie Green 

West Virginia 
Susie Elliott 

Budget Committee Report 
The National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. has approved in this 

convention the following budget for 1994: 
Executive Office ................................................ . 
Free Will Baptist Bible College ....................... . 
Foreign Missions ............................................... . 

(Includes $150,000.00 Advance Budget) 

$ 495,304.61 
3,100,000.00 
4,485,676.00 

Home Missions and Church Extension .......... 2,600,000.00 
Master's Men...................................................... 178,779.60 
Retirement and Insurance ............................... 344,882.00 
Free Will Baptist Foundation ........................... 45,900.00 
Sunday School and Church Training .............. 2,412,358.60 
Commission for Theological Integrity ............ 2, 700.00 
Historical Commission ..................................... 2,350.00 
Music Commission ........................................... 1,500.00 
Radio-Television Commission......................... 10,900.00 
Women Nationally Active for Christ............... 181.871.00 

TOTAL ............................................................ $13,862,221.81 

All these ministries receive funds through the Cooperative Plan except for the 
Sunday School and Church Training Department which is self-sustaining. 

The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through the Coopera­
tive Plan be allocated to the national ministries on the following basis: 

I . Underwrite the Executive Office Administration Budget above those 
gifts received directly. 

2. Disburse the balance of undesignated funds to the following national 
ministries according to these percentages: 

Free Will Baptist Bible College ................................. . 
F . M. . oretgn tSSions ......................................................... . 
Home Missions ........................................................... . 
Board of Retirement and Insurance ........................ . 
Master's Men ........................... .................................... . 
Free Will Baptist Foundation .................................... . 
Commission for Theological Integrity ..................... . 
H. . I C . . 1stonca ommtss1on .............................................. . 
M . c . . USIC ommiSSlOn ............. ............. .......................... . 
Radio-Television Commission .................................. . 

TOTAL ......... ............................................................ . 
Respectfully Submitted, Your Servants, 

Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary 
Tom Malone, President of Free WiiJ Baptist Bible College 

23 o/o 
23 o/o 
18 o/o 
14 o/o 
14 % 
6 % 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 

100 o/o 

R. Eugene Waddell, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
Roy Thomas, General Director of Home Missions Department 
Herman Hersey, General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
James Vallance, General Director of Master's Men Department 
Roger Reeds, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training Department 
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The Budget Committee Report 

Delegates attending the 1992 National Convention in Indianapolis 
Indiana, adopted "The Together Way Plan." This new plan for financing 
denominational ministries includes, among other things, a Five Year 
Stewardship Education Program. The Together Way Plan recognizes that 
Stewardship Education is an on-going process. 

The Executive Office has the responsibility of developing and imple­
menting the stewardship education process. The Budget Committee 
together with a ten-member advisory committee will work with the 
Executive Office in developing and implementing the Together Way Plan 
on January 1, 1994. 

The Executive Committee during its December 1992, meeting in 
Nashville, Tennessee, authorized the employment of someone to help 
write materials for the Together Way Plan. It was understood that the 
Budget Committee would approve the individual/individuals employed 
to help write the materials for the Together Way Plan. 

Rev. Herman Hersey has been asked to help write materials for the 
Together Way Plan. He agreed to do it without salary. 

The Budget Committee recommends that the 1993 (6 months) and 
1994 Together Way Plan projected budgets be adopted. 

Respectfully Submitted, Your Servants, 

Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary 
Tom Malone, President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
R. Eugene Waddell, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
Roy Thomas, General Director of Home Missions Department 
Bill Evans, General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
James Vallance, General Director of Master's Men Department 
Roger Reeds, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training 

Department 
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Projected Budgets 
The Together Way Plan 

Honorariums 
Salary 
Health Insuranc~ 
Travel & PromotiOn ) 
Office Expense (P~stage, phone 
Educational Matenals 

Totals 

The Together Way Plan Coordinator 
Salary 
Health Insurance 

. l 
Editor of The Together Way Plan Malena s 

Salary 

1993 
$ 1,875.00 

5,250.00 
1,306.00 
4,000.00 
2,069.00 

500.00 
$15,000.00 

$ 0.00 
1,306.00 

$5,250.00 

1994 
$ 3,750.00 

10,500.00 
2 612.00 

I 

8 000.00 
I 

4 138.00 
I 

1 000.00 
$30,000.00 

$ 0.00 
2,612.00 

$10,500.00 

· ht f the work in dud-. ·n have general overstg o 1. The Budget Commtttee wt 
ing budget approval. 

d b the Executive Secretary. 
2. All expenditures will be approve y 

unused funds in excess of one 
3 At the end of each calendar y~ar, anyth departments' share for the 
. month's budget will be credtted to e 

following year. 

Percent of Tot~l . 
Denominational GIVIng 1993 

Foreign Missions 
Home Missions 
Bible College 
Retirement & Insurance 
Executive Office 
WNAC 
Master's Men 
Foundation 

Totals 

Randall House- Furnish Printing 

Budget 

49.33% 
28.16% 
10.76% 

4.19o/o 
3.42% 
2.06% 
1.65% 

.43% 
100.00% 
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Share 

$ 7,400.00 
4 224.00 

I 

1,614.00 
629.00 
513.00 
309.00 
248.00 

65.00 
$15,002.00 

1994 
Share 

$14,799.00 
8,448.00 
3,228.00 
1,257.00 
1,026.00 

618.00 
495.00 
129.00 

$30,000.00 



Registration Committe R e eport 
National Convention 

Ordained Ministers 
~rdained Deacons 
Licensed Ministers 
Local Church Delegates 
State Delegates 
Home Missionaries 
For~ign Missionaries 
Nat!onal Board Members 
NatJOnaJ Officers 
Non-Delegates 

~ationaJ Youth Conference 
omen Nationally Active for Christ 

912 
197 
20 

184 
89 
61 
31 
12 
4 

2,192 

Grand Total 
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3,702 

2, I 28 
1 1 1 16 

6,946 

Double In A Decade Campaign Report 
The Double in a Decade Committee met twice during 1992. The 

committee scheduled a seminar during the national convention in India­
napolis, Indiana. Pastor Richard Atwood of Townsend, Delaware, shared 
principles, programs and philosop~ies he uses in ch~rch pl~nting. His 
seminar was followed by a questiOn and answer t1me. Pnor to the 
seminar, a questionnaire was distributed to attendees requesting input 
regarding how the Double in a Decade Committee could develop effec­
tive seminars and provide motivational materials to assist Free Will 
Baptist churches in developing strategies for continued growth. 

The questions on the questionnaire included: (1) What do you believe 
is necessary for our Free Will Baptist churches to grow? (2) Name some 
materials that could be provided that will help? (3) What topics could be 
discussed in seminars such as this to help us grow? ( 4) What else could 
be done at the National Association to help pastors and churches? (5) 
How should the Double in a Decade Campaign be organized and admin­
istrated? 

In light of the answers to these questions, the Committee will develop 
seminars which address the issues and topics which surfaced. Pastor 
Claudie Hames will speak during the Double in a Decade seminar during 
the national convention in Louisville, Kentucky. He will share the prin­
ciples and programs which he uses to promote growth in the church he 
pastors in Bakersfield, California. 

The Double in a Decade Campaign was launched January I, 1991, with 
a two-fold goal: to promote the planting of 250 new churches and 
stimulate denominational membership to double by 2000 A.D. Statistical 
data for 1992 indicates 9,283 were baptized and 12,123 members were 
added; 7,223 members were lost which left a net membership gain of 4,900. 

Comparative figures from 1991 
1991 1992 Tot& 

Baptisms 8,703 9,283 17,986 
Members Added 12,931 12,123 25,054 
Members Lost 7,240 7,223 14,463 
Net Increase 5,691 4,900 10,591 

The Double in a Decade Committee is actively seeking ways to help 
pastors and churches find effective means to promote growth. The 
Committee believes that Free Will Baptist churches want to grow and they 
can grow. In order to double in a decade, more laborers must be thrust 
into the Lord's harvest field. Christ's two-fold admonition must undergird 
this effort: "Go ye into all the world" and "Prayye, therefore the Lord of the 
harvest, that he will send forth laborers into his harvest." 

Double in a Decade Committee 

Melvin L. Worthington Th.D. CMP, Chairman 
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Report of the 
International Free Will 8 . 

Consultation C . aptist 
Free Will Baptist re . ODliDlftee 

Panama, Uruguay and~~senta_tlves from Japan, Canada . 
1992 and voted tow k t e United States met in Pa ' Mexico, Brazil 
F w· or award org . . nama Augu t 2 ' 
ree Il1 Baptists in 1995 amzmg an International F s ~-28, 

The delegates adopted the "P ellowshlp of 
their co!D~Itment to the fund anama D~claration of 1992" . 
those dJstmctive beli f ame~tal belief of orth d ~fi~mg 
Baptists, the necessit; ~t~~~:~actlces which chara~te~z;~ns!lanity, 
movement and the priorit f Jvmg~ the dangers of the ree ~Ill Y o evangelism. ecumemcaJ 

The Panam D . a eclarahon 1 992 
Adopted A 

I. The Basic Beliefs f F ugust 24-28, I 992 
A. We believe that ~he Br~bel ~ill Baptists. 

W d 1 e IS God' · · 
8 W orb a!ld is _our rule of faith and s ms~~red , infallible, inerrant 

· e elleve m one God practice. 
mighty, and all wi ' our Creator, who is hoi . 
Father th S se, eternally existing . th y, lovmg, al-

e. We beiievee thont Jand the Holy Spirit m ree persons-the 
· a esus Christ· · . 

?Jed for the sins of all me~s ~o~ manifest in the flesh· that He 
D ~tercession for all who beli~v~ nsen and ever lives t'o make 

. e belt eve m the Holy S . . . 
~aon~t~r torks effectit~~t ~h~ta~~~~ses all the attributes of 

E W b ·~a JOn. Ism, regeneration and 
. . e elleve that man was c . 
dl~ob~dience fell into a sta;:~t:d m the image of God and by 

F. ~ee~l~tetvoeathll htislpl osterity. sm and condemnation which 
. a a whore en . . ~~lth alnd continue in fai~ a~~f ~~~~sms and exercise saving 

G W erna salvation. e lence have promise of 
. ~ believe that our Lord J . 

H. ~~n~e~·nd judge the worldesus Chnst will return to glorify His 
Ieve m the resurrectio 

saved un_to the resurrection oP r~f the bodies of all men-the 
l ~surrec!lon of damnation. I e and the unsaved unto the 
. e b~IIeve that all men wiiJ be . 
~~~~~~~ent the righteous Ji~d;;t~:~~':d:ng to their works. 

go mto a state of end! . e ernalllfe and the 
ess pumshment 

II. The Charismatic Mov . 
We believeth tall b . ement and Free Will B . 

the Holy Spirit in:o th ~~~vers rec~ive the Holy Spirit ap~st Disti~ctives 
We believe that an:te~cKi~f ~hnst at the moment~~ c~~~~a~!lzed by 

work of grace is erroneous do~tri~~s~oggbests ~second baptism r~;~~~ond 
e reJected. 
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We believe that speaking in tongues as a visible evidence of the 
ba tis!ll of the Holy Spirit is an erroneous doctrine to be rejected. 

We believe that the Bible is God's final revelation and our absolute 
authOrity, and, therefore, any teaching that elevates human experiences 
such as trances, visions, being slain in the spirit, praying in tongues, etc., 
to the level of the Word of God is erroneous doctrine to be rejected. 

We believe that all Christians should obey the Scriptural admonitions 
to be filled with the Holy Spirit, and to grow in grace and in the knowledge 

of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ. 

111. The Ecumenical Movement 
As children of light, we warn our Free Will Baptist brethren about the 

danger of the influence of the world ecumenical movement, whose plan 
is to unite every religion (Christian or not) into one powerful world church. 
We believe its existence, plan and destructive activity in our day is rapidly 
preparing the way for the Antichrist. We recommend that our people 
identify these groups in their country and that they not compromise 
themselves, nor associate in any way with these groups. 

"For I am jealous over you with godly jealousy: for 1 have espoused you 
to one husband, that I may present you as a chaste virgin to Christ" (ll 

Corinthians 11 :2). 

IV. A Holy and Separated Lifestyle 
Reminding ourselves that I Peter I: 15-16 admonishes us to be holy as 

God is holy, we encourage our Free Will Baptist brethren to be salt and 
light in a sinful world reflecting the person and work of Jesus Christ while 
fulfilling the admonition of Paul in Ephesians 5:26-27. 

V. The Priority of Evangelism 
Considering the Great Commission (Matthew 28: 18-20) as the plan of 

God for the extension, advancement and establishment of God's church 
in the world, we encourage all Christians to make evangelism their 
highest priority through personal evangelism, missions and the conver-
sion of the lost through all ethical means available. 

The committee recommends that the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. participate in organizing the International Fellowship of Free 

Will Baptists in 1995. 

Melvin Worthington, Th.D., CMP, Executive Secretary 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

R. Eugene Waddell, General Director 
Department of Foreign Missions 
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National Youth Conference Re 
1993 port 

~he 1993 National Youth C 
registration total was 2 128 Th onference theme was "Take A St d , 
872 Music and Arts E~trie~ f ere were 125 Bible Competition E~~ .. The 
were held for teens and chilo; a tostal of 997. Evening worship 2es.and 
Kevin Rig c ren. peakers for T efVIces 
1000 in a~:~ndurt Gwartney, and Jeff Nichols. Th:~en wors~ip included 

ance each eve . . were m exce f 
Worship speakers were Darryn ~~~ WI~ several standing. Child:: ? 
attendance grew as the week ee, ean ~tone, and Paul All n s 
30~ anddgrowing to approxim~;~~r~g~ed, begmning with approx~~?e~; 

. war s were given to the y . 
Indianapolis, IN; Youth of the Ye outh Group of the Year- Peace 
of the Year - Curt & Becky G ar- Brent Hutsell, AR and Youth W FWkB' 
Submitted in Christ wartney, MO. ' or ers 

I 

De~n Jones, Director 
National Youth Conference 
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Report on Reprinting The Hymnal 
An Investigation of the Costs, Potential Sales and 

Process of Reprinting REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist 
Hymn Book (1988) 

A Look At the Book 
REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book (1988) was officially 

presented to the convention at the National Convention in Birmingham, 
Alabama. Forty Thousand Shaped Note Editions and Sixty Thousand 
Shaped Note Editions were initially printed for the denomination. Less 
than 8,000 of the One Hundred Thousand total books remains to date. It 
is time to consider reprinting the hymnal. 

The 1988 hymnal represents several areas of progress for the denomi-
nation. It is the first denominational hymnal that is truly representative of 
the broad diversities of Free Will Baptists. Western European, American, 
Oxford, and Folk Hymns are included in the book. The book also contains 
a broad collection of Gospel Songs, Singing Convention Songs, Scripture 
Songs and "Youth-For-Christ" Choruses. It's the first Free Will Baptist 
hymn book available in more than one color. Its quality of printing, hymn­
tune inclusions, binding, size, and scriptural emphasis puts our hymnal on 
equal footing with any other hymnal in the market today. 

A Look At the Sales 
Hundreds of Free Will Baptist Churches have purchased REJOICE: The 

Free Will Baptist Hymn Book (1988). As of this date, more than ninety 
thousand (90,000) books have been sold. We are completely sold out of 
all but the green shaped note edition, blue and green rounded note 
edition, and blue loose-leaf edition. We have less than eight thousand 
(8,000) hymn books (total) in the warehouse. Sales during the first year 

were in excess of 45,000. 

The Challenge of Reprinting 
Historically, the trend in hymnal publications has been to completely 

rework and print a new hymn book every ten years. The recently pub­
lished Southern Baptist Hymnal was superseded by Baptist Hymnal 
(1976). Hymns For the Family of God was published as a non-denomina­
tional book in the mid-1970s. It was replaced by The Hymnal (1986) (a 
WORD, Inc. publication) in the mid-1980s. 

What is the life expectancy for REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist Hymn 
Book (1988)? Consider the following: The majority of change in protestant 
hymnody occurred from 1960 to 1990. Scripture Singing, Contemporary 
Christian Music, and gospel music as we know it came of age during these 
particular years. REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book ( 1988) 
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captured the best of the sacred and gospel music published since 1960 
Since publication of that little maroon Free Will Baptist Hymn Book 
( 1964), song writers such as Bill Gaither, Ralph Carmichael, Lanny Wolfe 
and Dottie Rambo have made an important impact on evangelical 
hymnody. Our REJOICE hymnal gathered together the best gospel song 
publications prior to 1988. Most of the major changes in congregational 
hymnody for the 20th century has already taken place. And, it seems the 
rate of change in congregational tune selections has slowed consider~ 
ably. Slowing of the rate of change may indeed give our hymnal more life 
than that traditionally expected of gospel hymnody. 

There were 24 years from the time the 1964 hymna1 was published and 
REJOICE was released to the public. The very fact our book was published 
for and by a denomination may give our hymnal more life. The fact that 
the 1964 hymnal was stiiJ in demand at the time of publication of our 1988 
REJOICE book helps to illustrate ho\V our hesitation for change may grant 
considerable more life to our hymnaL 

Based on current trends in the gospel music industry, historical evi~ 
dence, and the fact our hymn book is still in high demand, one could safely 
calculate the life of our REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book ( 1988) 
to be another I 0 years (IS years total). 

We have sold over 90,000 REJOICE hymnals in the last five years. 
Historically, year to year sales of reprinted Free Will Baptist hymnals have 
been fairly strong. The 1964 hymnal sold over 15,000 copies each year 
after its original publication. The hymnal committee commissioned 
25,000 copies during the first year of publication. The Executive Office 
ordered an additional 15,000 books each year from 1964 to 1978 (Whaley, 
Companion to Free Will Baptist Hymn Book (1964) Volume I, p. 49). 
(That's 210,000 books in 14 years). Annual sales from 1978-1988 were 
closer to 10,000 books. Admittedly, REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist Hymn 
Book (1988) has a much broader denominational constituent than did the 
1964 hymnaL Therefore, based on historical evidence and general accep­
tance of the 1988 book already experienced, we should be able to sell 
15,000 copies of both the shaped and rounded note editions each year for 
the next five or six years. 

The Process of Reprinting 
The process of reprinting the hymnal involves correcting any mistakes, 

retypesetting pages in question, making ne\v negatives* and plates, and 
printing the book. A time line should be established to determine when 
product is secured for the editor, engraver, and printer. (See Time line 
with this report). 

*(If you recall, the Donnelly and Company was sued by MacKenzie and 
Associates for refusing to correct a serious printing and binding error in 
our original book. They subsequently lost the law-suit and refused to 
reprint the book for us this time. As a result, we are having to create new 
negatives for this reprinting). 
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Responsibility of Reprinting . 
'ty to accomplish four 

. . th hymnal will give us opportum 
Repnntmg e 

important goals: 

t. in the HymnaL . f 
ake Needed Correc tons . 'th the publication o 

1) M millions of opportunities r.or mistahkymesn:; REJOICE: The Free 
There are , h t way w1th any · . Th e 

nal such as ours. It s t a t dition is no exceptlOn. ere ar 
~i!Ilaptist Hymn Bf!ok 1198~t~~~:~;sm~stake~ that can now be corrected 

ographical, notatwna, an l 
~th the reprinting of the hymna . d d 

. he Shaped Note and Roun e 
d Adiust incons1stencaes between t 

2) Locate an • 
Note books. ha ed Note and Rounded Note 

evera\ inconsistencies betwe~n the~ J mn Book. A few songs are 
~- f RE' '0/CE·The Free Wtll Baptist ~ . sin the printed text. 

edttions o J • h have anconststencle 
printed in diffe~ent ~eys. Ot er~rtunity to correct these mistakes. 
Again, the repnnt gtves us opp 

M k fng the Hymnal. 
3) Develop a Strategy for ~r e ' lor brochure advertising a ne~ 

Following the introductiOn of t~e foufrhcymo n books since 1988 has basi-
. . \ h nal marketmg o . b k we can now 

denommattona ym , h W'th the reprintmg of the oo , F ee 
cally been word-of-mout . 1 hes to marketing. First, our o~ r 

ursue more aggressive approac theh mna\satawho1esalepncefor Wm Baptist Bookstores can purchbase hur!to send to our churches for the 
d e can develop a roc 

resale. Sec on , w . w customers. 
purpose of generatmg ne 

. " by Other Evangelical Churches and/or 
4) Develop a "Genenc Book for use 
Denominations. k we now have a track record 

With the sale of our flrst 100,000 bdooDse,mographics for the use of our 
k t an be evaluate · t with a new whereby our mar e c b ok using our conten s . 

hymnal can be established ant a m~de available for lease t? ~ mu~:~ 
cover and preface pag~s can .e e for the National Assoctat10n W1 
publisher. This will provide newmco~rt Pathway Press of The Churc~ ~~ 
a relatively small investment on o~r p ~hymnaL They are the copyng. 
God (Cleveland) has not rele~e ~ ~e company responsible ffr mu.stc 

holder~ of The Church J:~~~~~nal. They do not J?lan on ~~n~~~~~~~ 
engravmg of our ~hape on A significant market Wllh The u 
a new book anyttme so · · ts 
not available to us before now e:x.ts . 

Options for Reprinting . 
continues to rise. The ever escala~I~g 

The basic cost of printing hyr~mJ\s ost impossible to establish a reah~tl~ 
rise in the cost ofpa:Per ~:k~s ~~ b~en submitted from three compames. 
budget. Three pnntmg hi s a 
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The companies a re Arcata Graphics (enclosed), BMG Printing, and Kand 
S Printing (enclosed). At present, Arcata Graphics has the best bid. 

Bids were secured on the basis of printing 15,000 shaped note 15 ooo 
rounded-note, and 20,000 Generic books. This brings the total t~ so' OOO 
books at a cost of $2.50 to $3.00 each. This price includes teardown ~nd 
restripping of text film on both editions, plate change, extra paper and 
other related fees. This price does not reflect the cost of making graphic 
typographic, and notational corrections. It does not reflect shipping' 
copyright fees and copyright management expenses. ' 

Obviously, the more we correct or change, the more the costs are going 
to escalate. With those costs in mind, three possible approaches to 
reprinting the hymnal may be considered: Plan A: Fix Only the Serious 
Mistakes; Plan B: Fix all Serious Mistakes and as Many Small Mistakes we 
possibly find; and, Plan C: Correct any and all mistakes (. . .including 
commas, etc.) so that the book is totally striped of any errors. 

Plan A: Fix Only the Serious Mistakes 

The book, in its present condition, really meets the needs of our 
denomination, without making major corrections. However, several 
mistakes demand attention. For example, the last line of"AJl the Way My 
Savior Leads Me" was left off in the rounded-note edition. That must be 
corrected. This plan will allow for the correction of approximately 50 
pages with the least amount of expense. Inconsistencies between the 
books (such as different keys, etc.) will not be adjusted. The additional 
costs for these "repairs" are as follows: $1000.00 for engraving and/or 
typesetting, $500.00 for negatives, $1250 for editing and related services. 
That brings the total estimated expenses above the per book price quoted 
above to $2,000.00. 

Plan B: Fix all Serious Mistakes and as Many Small Mistakes as possible 

This plan will focus on the typographical, notational, and textual 
mistakes most obvious to everyone. Attention will go toward correcting 
any major mistake and as many inconsistencies between the editions as 
possible. Spelling mistakes and incorrect data regarding composers and 
copyright notices will be corrected. Approximately 400 pages will be 
corrected in this process (200 in each edition). Two teams of proofreaders 
will assist in the task of making these corrections. The additional costs for 
these "repairs" are as follows: $3000.00 for engraving and/or typesetting, 
$4000.00 for negatives, $1500.00 for editing and related services. That 
brings the total estimated expenses above the per book price quoted 
above to $8,500.00. 

Plan C: Fix it All 

This will focus on making any and all necessary corrections. This will 
be the most time consuming and costly but will, in the long run, be the 
most valuable for the product. Corrections will include all those listed 
a bove as we ll as any grammar and data materials left out with the initial 
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" e airs" are as follows: $4000.00 
dditional costs for these r p for negatives, $2000.00 for 

printing. T~e a and/or typesetting, $4?00.0~he total estimated _expense_s 
ror engrav~g \ated services. That bnngs $12 000.00. (This IS an e~tl­
editing ~n p~~ book price quoted ~b~v~ ~~the ~umber of pages needmg 
above t e t based purely on a specu a IO 
rnated cos 
corrections). • 

for Marketing 
Strategy t f the reprinting 

. h ld be par o 
. means for marketmg s ou \should be reprinted. The 

Two pnmary b ochure advertising the hymna k in 1987 will serve us 
proces~- o~;~~h~re originally designed f~r ~h5eo~3~opies of the brochure 
four co or Printing in Nashville can pn_n tist Bookstore should be 
well. K and SOOO 00 (2) Our own Free Wtll Bap f F ee Will Baptists have 
for under $2 ·t t~ se\\ the product. Numbers o rnot obtain the books 
given opportunt y h mnal because they can 
not purcha~ed the ~e~ o~ned bookstores. 
through thetr owns a 

Th Generic Book 
e . for non-Free Will Baptist 

an be said about a gene_nc book already offered to lease 

m~~~t~-~o~:~hvi\\e based mu~~f~~~~~~i~~~nd selling a gener~ct~o~~ 
the book from_ us tor ~~~~~yoi~ general. The publ}st~~r ::~:.~~:para~ on 
to the.evang~hc~t~~est) plus percent~ge for u~e ~ts usage, engravings for 
cost (mcludm~ . ·n involve secunng copyng "bilities The total 
for such an edttton w~ miscellaneous editing res_ponsl generic book is 
about 25 hymns, an book expense, for prepanng a 
cost above the per 
esti~ated at $3500.00. 

• t" g Hymnal Time Une for Repnn In 

July 1993 
Information Progr~m 

Send in CorrectiOnS 
Solicit HelpersT of Volunteers 

Secure a eam 
Text Readers 
Music proofers k for Music Commission Members 

Make Copy of loose-leaf Boo 
Make a List Of All Songs 
Proof Every Song 

The Text 
The Layout 
The Music 
The Typesetting 

Proof Every Table and Index 
Establish Budget 

A-241 



August 1993 

Phone Those that have coJiections of Materials 
Get Lists of Mistakes 
Make additions and deletion list 

September 1993 

Secure Corrections from Committee 

October 1993 

Secure Paper for Printing Project 
40% of Corrections Handed to Engraver 

November 1993 

Secure $5,000 for Expenses (Engraver, editing, etc.) 
20% of Corrections handed to Engraver 

December 1993 

Secure Letter of Credit for Manufacturer 
20% of Corrections handed to Engraver 

January 1994 

20% of Corrections handed to Engraver 

February 1994 

Deliver All Proofed Materials to Printer 
Receive BLUE-Line From Printer 

April1994 

Books Delivered to Randall House Publications 
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nrte/{)esoiPrion 

Trim· 

Ink 

Delivery: 

Orher Services: 

Quonmy/Price: 

QUOTATION 

Dare June 24 , 1993 

MacKenzie & Associat es 
Rober t MacKenzie 

Fr ee Wil l BaptistShH~a~ote Editions) 
(Round Not e and ep 

6 X 9 

720 + cover (hardcasc) 

Pa thfinder Natural Smooth Text - 45 l b . 

l color - no bleeds 

Scythe sewn hardcase 

As required 

Exact reprint 

10 , 000 
20,000 
30 , 000 
so,ooo 

Per your specs . See a t tached . 

4 .98 each 
4.53 each 
4 . 34 each 
4 . 24 each 

I ed l rms •re nel 30 days Unless ol.herw•se spec'' . e xtta 
the• applicable ta• e 

~te$ Ta. or 
0 

k or proposal reverSe$ and l•ght 
For other cond•tooM. see bac I ne negat•ve per page/per colo< Overlays. scree;s~ subm•sSJon ol an 
Work QUOted camera-ready" conso~tsro e~ If necessary please request a reV> Quote u 
reg-ster const•lute ad(Mton.al orep c a g 

Account Execut,ve 

Voughon ?r>nN"Ig Inc 
d11 Cowan S;reer NOlo'i'"lle. TN J7207 

FAX No 259·<1576 

(615) 256·22dd 

A-243 



I<ACXENZI£ ' AsSOCIATES 

F'R£!: WILL BAPTIST HYJ.INA.t 
!ROUND NOTE AND SHAPED 

NOTE EDITIONS) 

S~AR¥ OF SPECIFICATIONS 

PHOTOGRAPHIC & PLATES 

TEXT: 

?.\PER, PRINT 
QUANTITY: • 
TRIM SIZE:: 
TEXT PACES: 
TEXT PAPER: 

BIND 

TElC'l' PRINTiriG: 
BitroiNG STYLE: 
EtroPAPER STOCK: 
REINFORC!:X£!rrs 1 
CORNERS : 
EDGE COT: 
lL\Cl':INC: 
LIN!:OP: 
HEADBANDs: 
COvtR STYLE: 

BOARDS: 
STAMPING: 

CASE-IN: 
PACUNC: 

SHIPPING: 
FREICHT: 

10,000, 20,000 30 ooo 
6 X 9 • • • SO • 000 • PLUS 0V'f:R/ONOERS 
720-1/COLOR ,NON-BLE:~O 
481 LEWIS OFFSET NATURAL 
@ S~4.0S/CWT rOR 10 000· S66PPI 
@ SJ9.90/~~T FOR 100 ooo' 20,000; 30,000 COPIES· 

NO I COPIES· F'~"I • TE: PAPER PRICES ' u.,., sm;o BY 
ANDrPRICE: AT TIMS ·OF OEL~~B~ECT TO AVAILABILITY 
~~~L SURCHARGE: WILL BE BIU;D Am: EXCESS - FlttiGHT 

B ADDITIONAL AT COST 
SHYTH IL\RDBOUND • 
801 PlfllLISIIE:R w1iiTE 
CONCEALED H~SLIN JOIN~s 
SQUAIU:: J. 

SHOOTF! 
ROUND 
n:s 
rEs 
ONE-PieCE STAMPED ROXITE B 
<6• ROLLS, 
.098 BINDERS BOARDS 
1 HI"' 25 SQ 
DIES·~-LLED .IN. IMITATION COLO 

• ADDITIONAL IF FU 
LOOSe RNlSHE:O BY BINDER 
STOCK SINCLE: WALL PLAIN Btltlt 
CJ9#/CAATON - 1, 2SOI/P.U.tto.,. C.\RTONS ON PALLETS 

Otl COMPLETrDN .,. O -·) • 
ESTI~~~Eo FREtCHT ~~o~INT OF HA.~F'ACTURE 
fREIGHT C~~~CES TO BE: 8~10 :o NASHVILLE, TN. 

LL.:.O liT ACTU1U, COST 
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Recommendation from the Financial 
Disclosure Committee 

The Financial Disclosure Committee recommends to the all boards 
meeting that each department of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists itemize salaries and all other financial benefits of ministry 
directors, and administrative staff members in the proposed budgets in 
the annual digest of reports. We understand that this would include the 
following: 

Free Will Baptist Bible College: President, Academic Dean, Director of 
Public Relations, Director of Development, and Treasurer. 

Foreign Missions Department: Director, Overseas Secretary, Church 
Relations and Deputational Coordinator, Director of Communications, 
and Treasurer. 

Home Missions Department: General Director, Associate Director, and 
Director of Development. 

Sunday School Department: Director, Editor-in-Chief, and National 
Youth Conference Director. 

Master's Men: Director. 

Board of Retirement: General Director, Associate Director, and Director 
of Finance. 

Executive Office: Executive Secretary, Assistant to the Executive Secre­
tary, and Bookkeeper. 
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